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We have proprietary rights to a number of trademarked in this Annual Report on Form 10-K for tisedl year ende®ecember 3:
2013 (this "Form 1(K"), that are important to our business, includimgthout limitation, Caesars, Caesars Entertainm€atesars Pala
Harrahs, Total Rewards, Horseshoe, Paris Las Vegas, Rtponiand Bally's. In addition, Caesars InteracBveertainment, Inc., which is
majority-owned subsidiary of Caesars Growth Partners, LIaS,groprietary rights to the Slotomania, PlaytB@mgo Blitz and World Series
Poker ("WSOP") trademarks. We have omitted thesteggd trademark (®nd trademark (™) symbols for such trademarks naimedis
Form 10-K.
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ITEM 1. Business
Overview

Caesars Entertainment Corporation (referred tdis discussion, together with its consolidatedtestiwhere appropriate, as "Caes:
"Caesars Entertainment,” the "Company," "we," "camt "us"), a Delaware corporation, is the wortdsst diversified casinentertainmet
provider and the most geographically diverse UaSirmentertainment company. We conduct business throughvholly owned subsidiarie
Caesars Entertainment Operating Company, Inc. ('CBE@nd Caesars Entertainment Resort PropertieERFC) and their subsidiaries. \
also consolidate Caesars Growth Partners, LLC ("CBP"), which is a variable interest entity ("VIE™r which we have determined that
are the primary beneficiary.

As of December 31, 2013 , we owned and operatedhamraged, through various subsidiaries, 52 casin@8 U.S. states andcdauntries
Of the 52 casinos, 39 are in the United Statespaingarily consist of land-based and riverboat ocldide casinos. Our liBternational casinc
are land-based casinos, most of which are locat&hgland. See Item 2, " Propertiédn addition, we operate an online gaming bussres
the World Series of Poker tournament and brand.

As of December 31, 2013, our owned and managelititchad an aggregate of approximately thrediomilsquare feet of gaming sp:
and approximately 42,000 hotel rooms. Our indubgading customer loyalty program, Total Rewards, &gproximately 45 milliomembers
We use the Total Rewards system to market promotowl to generate customer play across our netsiqrioperties.

On January 28, 2008, Caesars Entertainment wasraddwy affiliates of Apollo Global Management, LL@gether with such affiliate
"Apollo™) and affiliates of TPG Capital, LP (togethwith such affiliates, "TPG" and, together witlpdlo, the "Sponsors”) in an athst
transaction, hereinafter referred to as the "Adtois" Subsequent to the Acquisition, our stockswa longer publicly traded. Effecti
February 8, 2012, as the result of our public d@ffigrour common stock trades on the NASDAQ Globsle& Market ("NASDAQ") under ti
symbol "CZR." In connection with the public offeginwe effected a 1.742 -for- gplit of our common stock. Unless otherwise statdl
applicable share and per-share data presentechere been retroactively adjusted to give effechis stock split.

Note references are to the notes to consolidatedh€ial statements included in Item 8, " FinanSi@tements and Supplementary Data .

Capital Structure

As described in Note 5 , " Caesars Growth Partridr€ Transactions ," and Note 9 , " Deptin the fourth quarter of 2013, Caes
consummated two transactions, (1) creating the 88RP financing structure, formed primarily from quiior CMBS financing structu
("CMBS") and (2) the closing of transactions forgiithe new CGP LLC, in which we have a majority emoit interest and managem
rights, but no voting control. CGP LLC is considggevariable interest entity and is consolidated our financial statements. Our busine:
conducted through our wholly owned subsidiariesOCEand CERP, as well as through CGP LLC. See lteiPZoperties" for propertie
within each structure. Also see Note 9, “Debt,” doeater detail on the debt related to each estitycture.

Caesars Entertainment Operating Company (CEOC)

In addition to owning and operating its own profet CEOC manages properties owned by both CEREE&RILLC, as described belc
as well as for other third parties under manageragreaements. A substantial portion of the finandorghe Acquisition was comprised of b
and bond financing obtained by CEOC.

Caesars Entertainment Resort Properties (CERP)

In October 2013, Caesars and its wholly owned slidrses, Caesars Entertainment Resort Propertie€, and Caesars Entertainm
Resort Properties Finance, Inc., which collectivebmprise the entities in CERP, completed BRefinancing of CMBS and Ling/Octav
Transactiondescribed in ‘Summary of 2013 Events&s a result, CERP is also an issuer of a matenmduat of our bank and bond financ
and holds the sole interest in the holding compsatiiat have title to six Caesars properties, whrghmanaged by CEOC.
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Caesars Growth Partners, LLC (CGP LLC)

In October 2013, Caesars and its subsidiaries thegavith Caesars Acquisition Company (“CACihd CGP LLC, consummated
Caesars Growth Partners, LLC Transactidescribed in ‘Summary of 2013 Events'Because the equity holders in CGP LLC receive s
disproportionate to their voting interests and saigally all the activities of CGP LLC are relateddCaesars, CGP LLC has been determin
be a variable interest entity. CAC is the sole ngtmember of CGP LLC; neither CAC nor CGP LLC guéea any of Caesarsglebt. Thi
creditors or beneficial holders of CGP LLC havermoourse to the general credit of Caesars Ententih Corporation. Caesars has ce
obligations to CGP LLC through the management &ndices agreements.

For accounting purposes, the transactions betwé&n 0.C and Caesars Entertainment and its subsididrave been determined to |
reorganization among entities under common conBetause substantially all the activities of CGRCLare related to Caesars and due t
factors set forth below, we have concluded thatweerequired to consolidate it under accountingsul

We have reached this conclusion based upon thehtirgggof a number of items, including the followin(@ the close association that C
LLC has with Caesars, including the fact that &lthee assets and businesses owned by CGP LLC wepdrad from Caesars; (ii) Caes
through CEOC, has an ongoing management agreenittnéach of the properties owned by CGP LLC; aiiyl@aesars has the obligatior
absorb losses and the right to receive residuainetthat could potentially be significant to CGEQ. See Note 5 , Caesars Growth Partne
LLC Transactions ," for greater detail on the teni®n and our related accounting.

Description of Busines:

We have established a rich history of indudéigding growth and expansion since we commenceidaagperations in 1937. We ov
operate, or manage casino entertainment faciliti@sore areas throughout the United States tharodmr participant in the casino industry
addition to casinos, our facilities typically indiel hotel and convention space, restaurants, andawming entertainment facilities.

Caesars Palace, Harrah's Las Vegas, Rio All-Suitéel& Casino, Ballys Las Vegas, Flamingo Las Vegas, Paris Las Vedasge
Hollywood Resort & Casino ("Planet Hollywood"), amtie Quad Resort & Casino ("The Quad") are locatddcas Vegas and draw customr
from throughout the United States and internatigndalhe Cromwell (formerly Bill's Gamblin' Hall & &oon ("Bill's")), also in Las Vegas, w
temporarily closed for renovations in February 2@h8 is scheduled to reopen in the second quabtet. Harrahs Laughlin is located ne
both the Arizona and California borders and drauwstamers primarily from southern California and Bt@enix metropolitan areas.

In northern Nevada, Harrah’'s Lake Tahoe and HanRgsort & Casino are located near Lake Tahoe andaka Reno is located
downtown Reno. These facilities draw customers arily from northern California, the Pacific Northgteand Canada.

Our Atlantic City casinos, Harrah’s Resort Atlan@ity, Showboat Atlantic City, Caesars Atlantic Giand Ballys Atlantic City, drav
customers primarily from the Philadelphia metrofawiiarea, New York, and New Jersey.

Harrah’s Philadelphia, a combination harness racetrack castho located south of Philadelphia, draws custenprimarily from th
Philadelphia metropolitan area and Delaware.

Horseshoe Baltimore, which is under developmenit,sgrve customers in the Baltimore/Washington opadtitan area and is expecte(
open in the third quarter of 2014.

Our Chicagoland dockside casinos, Harsaoliet in Joliet, Illinois, and Horseshoe HammandHammond, Indiana, draw custorr
primarily from the Chicago metropolitan area. lutern Indiana, Horseshoe Southern Indiana, a dbekasino complex located in Elizab:
Indiana, draws customers primarily from northermtGeky and southern Indiana.

In Louisiana, Harrah’s New Orleans, a lamased casino located in downtown New Orleans atragestomers primarily from the N
Orleans metropolitan area. In Bossier City, HoreedRossier City, a dockside casino, and Hagalduisiana Downs, a thoroughbred racet
with slot machines, caters to customers in norttevad_ouisiana and east Texas, including the Difdtas Worth metropolitan area.

On the Mississippi Gulf Coast, the Grand Casin@Bjllocated in Biloxi, Mississippi, caters to coisters in southern Mississippi, soutt
Alabama, and northern Florida.

Harrah’s North Kansas City, a dockside casino, draustomers from the Kansas City metropolitan afearahs Metropolis is a docksi
casino located in Metropolis, lllinois, on the OlRover, and draws customers from southern lllinaigstern Kentucky, and central Tennessee
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Horseshoe Tunica, HarrahTunica, and Tunica Roadhouse Hotel & Casino, sidekcasino complexes located in Tunica, Mississg
approximately 30 miles from Memphis, Tennessee,daad customers primarily from the Memphis area.

Horseshoe Casino and Bluffs Run Greyhound Parkuff8IRun"), a land-based casino and pari-mutuelifiagcand Harrahs Counci
Bluffs Casino & Hotel, a newly landased casino facility, are located in Council B3uffowa, across the Missouri River from Omi
Nebraska. At Bluffs Run, we own the assets othantgaming equipment and lease these assets toowee West Racing Associati
("IWRA"), a nonprofit corporation, and we manage fthcility for the IWRA under a management agreentiesit expires in October 2024. 1
license to operate Harra&hCouncil Bluffs Casino & Hotel is held jointly witWRA. Our Sponsorship and Operations Agreemetit WVRA
terminates in December 2015, and includes optiorxtend the term of the agreement for five sudoegtthree-year terms.

As of December 31, 2013, we owned and operateddasinos in London: the Sportsman, The Playboy Chdon, The Casino at t
Empire and The Golden Nugget. However, in Febrizd¥4, we closed The Golden Nugget casino. Our oasim London draw custom
primarily from the London metropolitan area, aslveal international visitors. We also own Alea Nugtiam, Alea Glasgow, Manchester :
Rendezvous Brighton, and Rendezvous SouthenBeanin the provinces of the United Kingdom, whicimparily draw customers from th
local areas. Pursuant to a concession agreemerdisav@perate two casinos in Egypt, The London @abro (which is located at the Ram
Hilton), and Caesars Cairo (which is located atRbar Seasons Cairo), that draw customers primfmnly other countries in the Middle E:
Emerald Safari, located in the province of Gautiengouth Africa, draws customers primarily from Sohfrica.

We also own and operate Bluegrass Downs, a haraessack located in Paducah, Kentucky.
We earn fees through our management of three cafindndian tribes:

» Harrah’s Phoenix Ak-Chin, located near PhoeAibizona, which we manage for the Ak-Chin Indian Goomity. Harrah$ Phoeni
AKk-Chin draws customers from the Phoenix metropalérea;

» Harrahs Cherokee Casino and Hotel, which we manage ®Etstern Band of Cherokee Indians on their refervin Cheroket
North Carolina. Harre's Cherokee draws customers from eastern Tennegsstern North Carolina, northern Georgia, and <
Carolina; and

» Harrahs Rincon Casino and Resort, located near San Dieglifornia, which we manage for the Rincon Sansknb Band ¢
Mission Indians. Harrah’s Rincon draws customessifthe San Diego metropolitan area and Orange @pGatifornia.

We also earn fees through our management of thenfiolg casinos:
» Caesars Windsor in Windsor, Ontario, which we marfag the Ontario Lottery and Gaming Corporat

» Horseshoe Cleveland casino and Horseshoe Cincipasitho in Ohio, which we manage for Rock Ohio @ez4&LC ("ROC"), i
venture with Rock Ohio Ventures, LLC ("Rock Gamipgi' which we have a 20% equity interest;

» ThistleDown Racino, a thoroughbred racing fagiéind landbased casino in Cleveland, Ohio, which we managR@C

CIE, which is a majoritypwned subsidiary of CGP LLC, owns the World SeridsPoker ("WSOP") tournaments, and we lice
trademarks for a variety of products and businesslased to this brand. CIE also operates an omjaraing business providing for certain
money games in Nevada, New Jersey, and the Unitegdiim; "play for fun" offerings in other jurisdions; and social games on Facek
and other social media websites and mobile appicgtiatforms, such as Slotomania.

Sales and Marketing

We believe that our North American distributionteys of casino entertainment provides us the abititgapture a disproportionate st
of our customers’ entertainment spending when theyel among markets, which is core to our cnossket strategy. In addition, where
have multiple properties in markets or regions, hvedieve that we are able to capture more of outoowsrs' gaming dollars than in th
markets where we have single properties competidyidually against outside competition. For ingtanin Las Vegas we believe
customer stickiness in the center strip generaigeased revenues. We believe our indulstagling customer loyalty program, Total Rewe
in conjunction with this distribution system, allswis to capture a growing share of our custonergrtainment spending and compete t
effectively. For example, we believe our collectmidistinctly branded properties in Las Vegag] tiegether through Total Rewards, help
capture a greater share of wallet with customeas the would otherwise achieve.
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Our Total Rewards program is structured in tiemgvjgling customers an incentive to consolidate rtlegitertainment spending at
casinos. Total Rewards customers are able to eawaf Credits at all of our casino entertainmeaitlifges located in the U.S. and Canade
on-property entertainment expenses, including gamugel, dining, and retail shopping. Total Rewardsnmbers can also redeem Rev
Credits for on-property amenities or other pféperty items such as merchandise, gift cards travel. Customers earn status within the 1
Rewards program based on their level of engageméhtus in a calendar year through both gaming haspitality expenditures. To
Rewards tiers are designated as Gold, Platinummra, or Seven Stars, each with increasing setastbmer benefits and privileges.

Separately, customers are provided promotionalr®féaxd rewards based on the ways in which they sthoo engage with us. Thi
benefits encourage new customers to join Total Résvand provide existing customers with incentivesonsolidate their entertainment sp
at our casinos. Additionally, our customers hadeittonal methods to earn and redeem Reward Cridiisding the Total Rewards Visa cre
card and partnerships with Starwood Hotels and Resad Excentus, which operates the Fuel Rewaetsdtk.

We have developed a database containing informathmut our customers, aspects of their casino gamlay, and their preferr
spending choices outside of gaming. We use thmrimdtion for marketing promotions, including thrbudirect mail campaigns, the use
electronic mail, our website, mobile devices, sotiadia, and interactive slot machines.

Patents and Trademark

We hold the following trademarks used in this doeain Harrah's, Caesars, Grand Biloxi, Bally's, Rfayo, Paris, Caesars Palace,
Harveys, Total Rewards, Bluffs Run, Reward Creditsyseshoe, Seven Stars, Tunica Roadhouse, Thewglbformerly Bill's), Louisian
Downs, The Quad Resort & Casino. Trademark righasparpetual provided that the mark remains inhysas. CGP LLC holds a tradem
license for Planet Hollywood used in connectionhwitlanet Hollywood in Las Vegas, which will expiire 2045. In addition, CIE holi
proprietary rights to the Slotomania, Playtika, @irBlitz, World Series of Poker and WSOP trademavie consider all of the above ma
and the associated name recognition, to be valuatdar business.

The development of intellectual property is parbaf overall business strategy, and we regardritetléctual property to be an import
element of our success. While our business as #evidimot substantially dependent on any one patenbmbination of several of our pate
or other intellectual property, we seek to estabdind maintain our proprietary rights in our busseperations and technology through the
of patents, copyrights, trademarks, and trade séons. We file applications for and obtain paterispyrights, and trademarks in the Un
States and in foreign countries where we belieliegfifor such protection is appropriate. We alsekséo maintain our trade secrets
confidential information by nondisclosure policiasd through the use of appropriate confidentiadigyeements. As of December 31, 2
Caesars had 26 active U.S. cases and 8 activgioceses. CGP LLC had five active U.S. cases ane@ thctive foreign casebhe U.S. cast
have patent terms that variously expire betweerb 20 2031.

We have not applied for patents or the registratiball of our technology or trademarks, as theeaagy be, and may not be successt
obtaining the patents and trademarks for which exehapplied. Despite our efforts to protect ourppedary rights, parties may infringe «
patents and use information that we regard as j@tapy and our rights may be invalidated or unecgable. The laws of some foreign coun
do not protect proprietary rights to as great atergixas do the laws of the United States. In amluitothers may be able to independe
develop substantially equivalent intellectual pmbype

Competition

The casino entertainment business is highly conipetand characterized by competitors that varysiarably by their size, quality
facilities, number of operations, brand identitiesarketing and growth strategies, financial strenghd capabilities, level of ameniti
management talent, and geographic diversity. Istmuarkets, including Las Vegas and Atlantic Oty compete directly with other cas
facilities operating in the immediate and surromgdinarket areas, while in others, including Atlar@ity, we face additional competition fri
nearby markets.

In recent years, many casino operators, includsghave been reinvesting in existing markets t@eithew customers or to gain ma
share, and as a result competition in existing etarkas intensified, especially in regional markistany casino operators, including us, t
invested in expanding existing facilities, devetapinew facilities, and acquiring established ftieli in existing markets. The expansiol
existing casino entertainment properties, the meeein the number of properties, and the aggresamketing strategies of many of
competitors has increased competition in many ntaiikewhich we compete, and we expect this int@ogepetition to continue.
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The expansion of casino entertainment into new mtarklso presents competitive issues for us that had a negative impact on
financial results. In particular, our facilities veabeen adversely impacted by the addition of ggnand room capacity, particularly «
operations located in New Jersey with the expansfiagaming in Maryland, New York and Pennsylvaiiag our operations located in Nev
with the expansion of gaming in California. SeVestates and Indian tribes are also consideringplamathe development and operatior
gaming facilities in their jurisdictions.

In addition, while we do not believe it to be theese, some have suggested that Internet gaming coedde additional competition for
and could adversely affect our brick and mortarrafiens. We also compete with other ngeming resorts and vacation areas, with va
other entertainment businesses, and with otherdafhgaming, such as lotteries.

The casino entertainment industry is also subjecpdlitical and regulatory uncertainty. See Item" MManagemens Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Gyiiems — Consolidated Operating Results " and Ity Managemen$ Discussion ar
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtiems — Regional Operating Results ." See alsad®®9.1 to this Form 10-K.

Summary 02013 Events
CEOC Financing Transactions

In January and February 2013, CEOC converted $188li&n aggregate principal amount of original maturityaker commitments he
by held by consenting lenders to Term B-6 Loans tmchinated $133.9 millioprincipal amount of revolving commitments of extery
lenders.

In February 2013, CEOC completed the offering df®00.0 millionaggregate principal amount of 9% senior securedsndtie 2020, tl
proceeds of which were used to repay $1,433.3onithf CEOC's existing term loans at par. In conjunctiath this transaction we amen
our existing CEOC Credit Facilities as describettém 7 - Key Business Initiatives and Financingngactions.

Horseshoe Cincinna

In March 2013, ROC opened the 100,000-sqdieoé-Horseshoe Cincinnati casino in Cincinnati, @hvhich we manage for ROC for a
under a management agreement that expires in N228.

ThistleDown Racino

In April 2013, the 71,700-squafeet ThistieDown Racino near Cleveland, Ohio opeitedlot gaming operations. We manage this fg
for ROC under a management agreement.

Conrad Punta del Este Resort and Casino

In May 2013, we formed a strategic relationshiphviinjoy S.A. (“Enjoy”)in Latin America. Enjoy acquired 45% of Baluma S.8ul
subsidiary that owns and operates the Conrad Rightaste Resort and Casino in Uruguay (the “Conrai’exchange for total consideratior
$139.5 million. After customary deductions for erpes associated with the closing, we received $5dl®n in cash (net of $29.7 million
cash deconsolidated), a note receivable of $3Ulmiand a 4.5% equity stake in Enjoy.

In connection with the transaction, Enjoy assumextrol of the Baluma S.A. board and primary resfiahty for management of tt
Conrad. Upon completion of the transaction, we deobidated Baluma S.A. from our financial staterseantd began accounting for Balt
S.A. as an investment in non-consolidated affiatlizing the equity method of accounting.

Caesars Acquisition Company / Caesars Growth Pastrd_C Transactions

CAC was formed to directly own 100% of the votingmbership units in CGP LLC. CGP LLC was formedtfer purpose of acquiril
certain businesses and assets of Caesars Entegtginm

On October 21, 2013, the CGP LLC joint venture @sned between subsidiaries of Caesars Entertainmed CAC through tt
execution of the series of transactions descrilebohvi

(i) The Class A common stock of CAC was made availaiale subscription rights offering by Caesars Batement to its sharehold:
as of October 17, 2013, the record date (the "CAghtR Offering"), whereby each subscription rightiged its holder to purcha
from CAC one share of CAC's Class A common stodkerright to retain such subscription right;

(i) Sponsors exercised their basic subscription rightsll and purchased $457.8 million worth of CACtss A common stock at a pi
of $8.64 per whole share;




(iii) CAC used the proceeds from the exercise of theclsadiscription rights in (ii) above to purchase %00f the voting units of CC
LLC;

(iv) CGP LLC in turn used $360.0 million of the proceedseived from CAC in (iii) above to purchase fr@&EOC (we refer to tt
following assets as the "Purchased Assets"):

a. the equity interests of a subsidiary of PHW Las a&d-LC that holds all of the assets and liab#itiermerly held directly k
PHW Las Vegas, LLC, including Planet Hollywood;

b. the equity interests of Caesars Baltimore Investn@mpany, LLC, the entity that indirectly holdgerests in the owner
Horseshoe Baltimore in Maryland (the "Maryland Jaiflenture"), a licensed casino development progeqtected to open in t
third quarter of 2014; and

c. a50% interest in the management fee revenues W Rldnager, LLC, which manages Planet Hollywood, &agsars Baltimo
Management Company LLC, which holds an agreememzaioage the Maryland Joint Venture.

(v) Caesars Entertainment contributed all of thares of CIES outstanding common stock held by a subsidiaryappdoximately $1.
billion in aggregate principal amount of senioremheld by a subsidiary (the "CEOC Notes" and,ttegewith the shares of CIE, 1
"Contributed Assets") to CGP LLC, in exchange boACGP LLC'’s non-voting units.

Pursuant to the terms of the CGP LLC transactidBPQ.LC is obligated to issue additional nesting membership units to us to
extent that the earnings from CIE's social and teaigames business exceeds a specified thresholdranim2015. The number of units to
received is capped at a value of $225 million déddby the value of the non-voting units at the dédtihe CGP LLC transaction.

The closing of the CAC Rights Offering for substiop rights not previously exercised by recipienfsthe rights, and for any over-
subscription privileges, including oversubscription the Sponsors, occurred on November 18, 2013 @istributed a total of 135,771,¢
shares of Class A common stock to the holders b$aiption rights who validly exercised their sutigiton rights and paid the subscript
price in full. CAC received aggregate gross proseedm the CAC Rights Offering of approximately $23.1 million. See Note 5 ,Caesar
Growth Partners, LLC Transactions ."

The transactions above were considered to be gapization of entities under common control; acoaly, we have not recognized ¢
gain or loss, and CGP LLC has recorded the acqaissdts on the same basis as previously record€ddsars Entertainment.

Refinancing of CMBS and Ling/Octavius ("CERP Tratisa")

On October 11, 2013, CERP, Caesars EntertainmesbdrR€roperties Finance, Inc. and certain subsédiaof CEOC (comprised
Harrah’s Atlantic City Holding, Inc.; Harrah’'s La&gas, LLC; Harrals Laughlin, LLC; Flamingo Las Vegas Holding, LLCar® Las Vege
Holding, LLC; and Rio Properties, LLC; each a wkobbwned subsidiary of Caesars, and formerly cdllett known as the "CMB
Properties") (i) completed the offering of $1,000lion aggregate principal amount of their 8% fipsiority senior secured notes due 2020
$1,150 million aggregate principal amount of tHeif6 second-priority senior secured notes due 2@®fether with the 8% firgbriority senio
secured notes due 2020, the “CERP Notesifl (ii) entered into a first lien credit agreemgnoterning their new $2,769.5 million ser
secured credit facilities, consisting of seniorsed term loans in an aggregate principal amou®#2¢g500.0 million (the “CERP Term Loans”
and a senior secured revolving credit facility maggregate principal amount of up to $269.5 nillio

The net proceeds from the offering of CERP Noteakthe borrowings under the CERP Term Loans, togetfth cash, were used to re
100% of the principal amount of loans under thetgegye and mezzanine loan agreements entered interbgin subsidiaries of the CM
Properties, repay in full all amounts outstandimgler the senior secured credit facility entered iy Caesars and Caesars Ling, LLC
Caesars Octavius, LLC, each an indirect subsidi&yaesars, and to pay related fees and expenses.

Macau Land Concessic

On November 1, 2013, the Company completed thecsad# of the equity interests of the subsidiattieat held the Company's investrr
in a land concession in Macau (the "Macau Land €ssion") to Pearl Dynasty for a total sales pric438.0 million. Net proceeds from 1
sale, after commissions and customary closing casteunted to approximately $420 million.
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Other Events

e The Cromwell temporarily closed in early Februa®i2 for renovations. The renovated hotel and caairexpected to reopen in
second quarter 2014,

* In September 2013, Caesars entered into an wnitdeg agreement for the sale of 10.0 millishares of its common stock. T
underwriter agreed to purchase the common stock fBaesars at a price of $19.46r share and exercised its option to purc
340,418 additional shares. These transactionsdloseOctober 1, 2013, and resulted in approxime$@§0.6 millionof proceeds 1
Caesars before expenses.

e In October 2013, the Company entered into amregent to sell its 50@om Claridge Hotel Tower, which was part of thdlps
Atlantic City asset group. The sale was completeldebruary 2014.

Summary 02014 Events

Sale of Properties from CEOC to CGP LL@n March 1, 2014, we executed a definitive agreartesell Bally’s Las Vegas, The Cromwz
The Quad and Harrah’s New Orleans to CGP LLC fpuechase price of $2,000.0 milligmet of assumed debt (the "Asset Transacti
Consistent with the 2013 sale of Planet Hollywoas Vegas and the Maryland Joint Venture, this &retien will also be accounted for a
reorganization of entities under common control.

Governmental Regulation

The gaming industry is highly regulated, and we hm&intain our licenses and pay gaming taxes tdirmo@ our operations. Each of «
casinos is subject to extensive regulation undeddtvs, rules, and regulations of the jurisdictiorwhich it is located. These laws, rules,
regulations generally concern the responsibilityarficial stability, and character of the ownersnaggers, and persons with financial interes
the gaming operations. Violations of laws in ongsjgiction could result in disciplinary action ither jurisdictions. A more detailed descrip
of the regulations to which we are subject is cioiigh in Exhibit 99.1 to this Form 10-K.

Our businesses are subject to various foreign réddstate, and local laws and regulations, in taldito gaming regulations. These ¢
and regulations include, but are not limited tcstrietions and conditions concerning alcoholic bbages, smoking, environmental matt
employees, currency transactions, taxation, zoamybuilding codes, construction, land use, ancketing and advertising. We also deal \
significant amounts of cash in our operations arel subject to various reporting and amidney laundering regulations. Such laws
regulations could change or could be interpret&@mintly in the future, or new laws and regulaamould be enacted. Material changes,
laws or regulations, or material differences ireiptetations by courts or governmental authoriti@sld adversely affect our operating res
See "ltem 1a - Risk Factors" for additional disourss

Employee Relation

We have approximately 68,000 employees throughautooganization. There is a clear relationship leevemployee engagement
customer service. The more engaged our employleesnore our guests benefit from memorable expeg®rengaging employees is there
a backbone and a driver of our success. We engagenaployees in many ways, including fostering opad constructive dialogue, invest
in policies and programs that make us a great,rsivand inclusive place to work, caring for our toyppes’safety, health and wellness,
providing opportunities for personal growth and elepment.

Approximately 28,000 of our employees are coverngddilective bargaining agreements with certaimof subsidiaries, relating to cert
casino, hotel, and restaurant employees at ceofagur properties. Most of our employees coveredcbective bargaining agreements
employed at properties in Las Vegas and Atlantity.GDur collective bargaining agreements in Atlar@iity covering most of the unioniz
work force there expire in 2014. We reached nellective bargaining agreements covering most oflag Vegas employees in January 2
replacing the previous agreements that had expireay 31, 2013. See "ltem 1a&Risk Factors" for additional discussion. On Febyu20
2014, we reached agreement with Transport Worket®rLocal 721, the union which represents apprexéty 1,200 employees at
following properties: Paris Las Vegas, Bally’s Msgas and Harrah's Las Vegas. The new agreemeireexp five years.

Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainability

Our Board of Directors and senior executives araradted to maintaining Caesafgosition as an industry leader in the area of aatg
social responsibility and sustainability. We maimtan Environmental, Social and Governance Councguide our activities and allocate
necessary resources. We establish annual targétsyimreas and, by engaging employees throughauéemtire organization, we drive 1
Company's performance accordingly.




Code of Commitment

For over a decade, we have maintained our Codeoafn@itment as a guiding framework for our approachdsponsible and ethir
business. First published in 2000, our Code of Camant is a public pledge to our employees, guastscommunities that we will honor
trust they have placed in us. Our Code of Commitnierdeeply embedded in our organizat®rommunications and culture and wic
displayed in all our properties for our guests ahdvho visit. We use training events to reinfome expectations of all employees with reg
to ethics, compliance and anti-corruption at alkls of the business.

Environmental Stewardsh

As part of our Code of Commitment, we accept ouly da help preserve the planet for current andriugenerations. For the past 1
years, we have been advancing a strategy to reduceffect on the environment in our main areasngbact. Our mul-year strateg'
CodeGreen, is a structured, ddraren and disciplined program that leverages thssipn of our employees and engages our gues
suppliers. Since our baseline year of 2007, we nasleced energy consumption across all our pra®eby more than 18%, and greenhous:
emissions by more than 20%, both on ancaméditioned square foot basis, and we reduced ateswlater consumption by 7%. Nearly 259
our total waste was recycled in 2012. Additionallie have received Green Key certifications at &llo8 our properties with hotels in No
America, most at the four key level.

Diversity and Inclusiol

We create a dynamic and innovative working cultnbesre individual growth is rewarded, recognized aalébrated. Caesars is the ¢
company in the casino entertainment industry t@ikeca perfect score, seven consecutive timesherHuman Rights Campaign Corpo
Equality Index, including the latest 2013 publioati We were also recognized as one of the top Bityet.eaders by Profiles in Divers
Journal for our innovation, communication, and datlon to diversity and inclusion practices. In 20&ur employees included more than !
who belong to minority groups. In terms of gendatabce, we encourage the advancement of womenina2dl2, more than 40% of t
managers in our organization were women.

Caesars Foundation

Established in 2002, the Caesars Foundation (tbari@ation”)is a private charitable foundation funded by aiparbf operating incon
from resorts owned and operated or managed by @GaebBae Foundatios’ objective is to strengthen organizations and narmog in th
communities where our employees and their families and work, and include our employees in volentefforts associated with the cat
we support. We maintain our Foundation commitmacheyear and since its inception, the Foundatiengifted more than $60 million to hi
support vibrant communities. For more informatieisjt www.caesarsfoundation.com

Available Information

Our Internet address gww.caesars.comiVe make available free of charge, on or throughveebsite, our annual reports on FormK,0-
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current report$-orm 8-K, and amendments to those reports filefdimished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 1
(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atadr(the "Exchange Act"), as soon as reasonabbtipadle after we electronically file st
material with, or furnish it to, the Securities dxchange Commission (the "SEC"). We also makelaai through our website all filings
our executive officers and directors on Forms 3 5 under Section 16 of the Exchange Act. Tfibegs are also available on the SEC’
website atwww.sec.govOur Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is availaiol our website under the "Investor Relationsk.lwWe will
provide a copy of these documents without chargearty person upon receipt of a written request adeek to Caesars Entertainn
Corporation, Attn: Corporate Secretary, One CaeRalace Drive, Las Vegas, Nevada 89109. Referemdbis document to our webs
address does not constitute incorporation by raferef the information contained on the website.

ITEM 1A. Risk Factors

Our substantial indebtedness and the fact that grsficant portion of our cash flow is used to maketerest payments could adversely afi
our ability to raise additional capital to fund ouoperations, limit our ability to react to changés the economy or our industry and preve
us from making debt service payments.

We are a highly leveraged company. As of DecembefB13 , we had $23,589.3 millidace value of outstanding indebtedness an
current debt service obligation for the next 12 thenis estimated to be $2,383.0 milliorwhich includes estimated interest paymen
$2,185.9 million . As of December 31, 2013 , CECdL! 1$19,589.1 million face value of outstanding btéeness including285.4 millior
owed to Caesars Entertainment, and CEOC’s debtcseobligation for the next 12 months is $1,967.dliom , which includes estimat
interest payments of $1,853.7 million . As of Debem31, 2013 , CERP had $4,676.7 million
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face value of outstanding indebtedness, and CE&#§ service obligation for the next 12 months44%3 million, which includes estimat
interest payments of $381.4 million .

Our substantial indebtedness could:

« limit our ability to borrow money for our workingapital, capital expenditures, development projedeht service requiremer
strategic initiatives or other purposes;

« make it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligans with respect to our indebtedness, and aryréto comply with the obligatiol
of any of our debt instruments, including restvetcovenants and borrowing conditions, could reisuétn event of default under -
agreements governing our indebtedness;

* require us to dedicate a substantial portion of cash flow from operations to the payment of irderand repayment of c
indebtedness thereby reducing funds available forusther purposes;

« limit our flexibility in planning for, or reactingp, changes in our operations or busir
* make us more highly leveraged than some of our etitops, which may place us at a competitive disadage
* make us more vulnerable to downturns in our busioeshe econom

e restrict us from making strategic acquisitions, aleping new gaming facilities, introducing new teotogies or exploiting busine
opportunities;

» affect our ability to renew gaming and other lices

« limit, along with the financial and other restnaticovenants in our indebtedness, among othershimg ability to borrow addition
funds or dispose of assets; and

* expose us to the risk of increased interest rateedain of our borrowings are at variable rafasterest

Any of the foregoing could have a material advef§ect on our business, financial condition, resolt operations, prospects and abilit
satisfy our outstanding debt obligations.

We may be unable to generate sufficient cash tovgss all of our indebtedness, and may be forcedtdke other actions to satisfy o
obligations under our indebtedness that may notduecessful.

We may be unable to generate sufficient cash flomfoperations, or unable to draw under our sesgoured credit facilities or otherwi
in an amount sufficient to fund our liquidity need3ur operating cash inflows are typically used dperating expenses, debt service ¢
working capital needs, and capital expenditurethénormal course of business. Our operating das¥sfare consumed by our cash inte
payments, which totaled $1,899.2 million in 2013 ¥kperienced negative operating cash flows of #168llion in 2013, and we also exp
to experience negative operating cash flows in 20idibeyond.

We do not expect that our cash flow from operatiails be sufficient to repay our indebtedness ie tbng term, and we will have
ultimately seek a restructuring, amendment, onegfcing of our debt. We cannot predict at this timeether we will be able to secure any ¢
refinancing, even if market conditions and our ficial condition improve between now and then. Eiferefinancing alternatives we
available to us, we may not find them suitable toca@nparable interest rates to the indebtednesgylrefinanced. In addition, the terms
existing or future debt agreements may restricrais securing a refinancing on terms that are abgl to us at that time. In the absenc
such operating results and resources, we woulddabstantial liquidity problems and would likely teuired to dispose of material asse
operations to meet our debt service and other afidigs. We may not be able to consummate thosegligms for fair market value or at
Furthermore, any proceeds that we could realizea faoy such dispositions may not be adequate to owadebt service obligations then ¢
We could also be required to reorganize our comganifs entirety. Neither the Sponsors nor any ludirt respective affiliates has ¢
continuing obligation to provide us with debt oy financing. Even if we are able to refinance dabt, any refinancing could be at hic
interest rates and may require us to comply withenomerous covenants, which could further restrictbusiness operations. For example
interest rates on CEOC's first and second liensate substantially higher than the interest rateler CEOGCS credit facilities, and the inter
rates on CERR' first and second lien notes, the proceeds of lwhiere used to refinance a portion of our previ@MBS financing, ar
substantially higher than the interest rates appleto such CMBS financing. If we are unable &vise our debt obligations generally, an
we are unable to refinance our debt obligations tin@ture in 2015 or thereafter, we cannot assutetlygat our company will continue in
current state or that your investment in our congpaitl retain any value.
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We may incur significantly more debt, which couldlgersely affect our ability to pursue certain opponities.

We and our subsidiaries may be able to incur snbatandebtedness at any time, and from time neetiincluding in the near futu
Although the terms of the agreements governingindebtedness contain restrictions on our abilityinwur additional indebtedness, th
restrictions are subject to a number of importanalifications and exceptions, and the indebtednessrred in compliance with the
restrictions could be substantial.

For example, as of December 31, 2013 , we had 8ThBlion of additional borrowing capacity available under oevolving credit facilit
with an additional $100.5 milliocommitted to back outstanding letters of credit,oélwhich is secured on a first priority basis. RE ha
$269.5 millionof additional borrowing capacity available undeeithrevolving credit facility. None of our existingdebtedness limits t
amount of debt that may be incurred by Caesarsrtairienent.

Our debt agreements allow for one or more futusmidaces of additional secured notes or loans, wimiak include, in each ca
indebtedness secured on a pari passu basis withbtigations under CEOC or CERP's credit faciliesl first lien notes. Thimdebtednes
could be used for a variety of purposes, includingncing capital expenditures, refinancing or mepasing our outstanding indebtedn
including existing unsecured indebtedness, or faregal corporate purposes. We have raised and tetdqpeontinue to raise debt, includ
secured debt, to directly or indirectly refinanes outstanding unsecured debt on an opportunisicsbas well as development and acquis
opportunities.

Our debt agreements contain restrictions that linoitir flexibility in operating our business.

Our debt agreements contain, and any future indebts of ours would likely contain, a number of emants that impose significi
operating and financial restrictions on us, inchgdiestrictions on our and our subsidiaries' ghbitit among other things:

» incur additional debt or issue certain preferrearst

e pay dividends on or make distributions in respéciur capital stock or make other restricted payts
* make certain investmen

» sell certain asse

» create liens on certain ass

» consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise disposelafradubstantially all of our asse

* enter into certain transactions with our affiliatesc

» designate our subsidiaries as unrestricted sulnsd

As a result of these covenants, we are limite¢hénnhanner in which we conduct our business, anthayebe unable to engage in favor:
business activities or finance future operationsagpital needs.

We have pledged and will pledge a significant portdf our assets as collateral under our debt agrets. If any of our lenders accele
the repayment of borrowings, there can be no assardhat we will have sufficient assets to repayiondebtedness.

We are required to satisfy and maintain specifiedricial ratios under our debt agreements. See QlpteDebt,"” for further informatior
Under CEOCS credit facilities, we are required to comply oguarterly basis with a maximum net senior sectirstllien leverage test. Whi
we were in compliance with the quarterly finanaalenant as of December 31, 2013, in order to cpmjth such test in the future, CE(
will need to achieve a certain amount of adjust&dTBA and/or reduce its first lien leverage. Thetfas that could impact the forego
include (a) changes in gaming trips, spend perdrng hotel metrics, which we believe are correldtedonsumer spending and confide
generally and spending by consumers for gaming ahdr entertainment activities, (b) our ability @éffect cost savings initiatives, (c) «
ability to complete asset sales, including thegeation described more fully in Note 24, (d) isguatditional second lien or unsecured detk
project financing, (e) reducing net debt througteropmarket purchases, privately negotiated trarmastiredemptions, tender offers
exchanges, (f) equity issuances, (g) reductiortapital expenditures spending, or (h) a combinaiti@meof. There can be no assurance thi
will be successful in implementing measures toease CEOC's adjusted EBITDA or reduce its leverage.
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As described more fully in Note 24, “Subsequentrisg we recently announced that CGP LLC will acquirgaierassets from CEOC |
$2,000.0 million in cash, net of assumed debt (¥8abent Asset Transactions"). The net cash prodeasuisthe transaction will impact t
calculation of the net senior secured first lievelage ratio going forward to the extent it redufdess lien debt or increases cash of CEOC.
transaction is an important component of our sgate obtain future liquidity and comply with ounéncial maintenance covenant.

Our ability to meet the financial ratios under debt agreements, including the quarterly finanoalenant under CEOE€ credit facilities
can be affected by events beyond our control, hatetcan be no assurance that we will be ablentne to meet those ratios. If CEO(
unable to meet its quarterly financial covenanthia future, we may need to make cash contributioSEOC in order to cure any breach
ensure continued compliance with the covenants.

A failure to comply with the covenants containeddBOC’s credit facilities or our other indebtedness caekllt in an event of defa
under the facilities or the existing agreementsictvhif not cured or waived, could have a mateadVerse effect on our business, finar
condition and results of operations. In the evérminy default under CEOC's credit facilities or ather indebtedness, the lenders thereunder

« will not be required to lend any additional amouiatsis

e could elect to declare all borrowings outstanditugyether with accrued and unpaid interest and feefe due and payable ¢
terminate all commitments to extend further creatit;

* require us to apply all of our available cash foasethese borrowing

Such actions by the lenders could cause crossltietmder our other indebtedness. For instanage ifvere unable to repay those amot
the lenders under CEOC's credit facilities andhtbiders of CEOC's secured notes could proceed stghim collateral granted to them to se
that indebtedness.

If the indebtedness under CEOC's credit facilittesour other indebtedness were to be accelertitere can be no assurance that our ¢
would be sufficient to repay such indebtednessilin

Repayment of our debt is dependent on cash flowegated by our subsidiarie!

Our subsidiaries currently own a portion of oureasand conduct a portion of our operations. Adecalg, repayment of our indebtedn
is dependent, to a significant extent, on the gaimr of cash flow by our subsidiaries and theititgbto make such cash available to us
dividend, debt repayment or otherwise. Our subsiiado not have any obligation to pay amounts @lu@ur indebtedness or to make ft
available for that purpose. Our subsidiaries maybeoable to, or may not be permitted to, makeibigions to enable us to make paymen
respect of our indebtedness. Each subsidiary istact legal entity and, under certain circumsemdegal and contractual restrictions |
limit our ability to obtain cash from our subsides. In the event that we do not receive distriingifrom our subsidiaries we may be unah
make required principal and interest payments anralebtedness.

We may sell odivest different properties or assets as a resiloar evaluation of our portfolio of businesses. 8u sales or divestiture
would affect our costs, revenues, profitability afidancial position.

From time to time, we evaluate our properties amdpwrtfolio of businesses and may, as a resultpsattempt to sell, divest or spoff
different properties or assets. For example, in é¥alver 2012, we sold our Harrah's St. Louis propéntyaddition, in connection with t
previously announced CGP LLC transaction, on Octdde 2013, Caesars Entertainment and its subm&didi) contributed its shares
Caesars Interactive Entertainment, Inc. and apprately $1.1 billion face value of senior notes jasly issued by CEOC to CGP LLC
exchange for non-voting units, and (ii) sold to CAE for cash the Planet Hollywood Resort & Casind.as Vegas, Caesars Entertainmgnt
joint venture interests in a casino under develagriveBaltimore (Horseshoe Baltimore) and a finahstake in the management fee strear
both of those properties. See Note 5, " CaesavwBrPartners, LLC Transactions ."

In addition, on March 1, 2014, we entered into &initeve agreement with respect to the Subsequesgef Transactions as more fi
described further in Note 24 , " Subsequent Evénfshe consummation of the Subsequent Asset Trénsacare subject to certain clos
conditions, including the receipt of gaming appteyaccuracy of representations and warranties,ptiante with covenants, obtaini
financing and receipt of third party consents. WeC&P LLC may be unable to obtain the necessaryoap{s or otherwise satisfy t
conditions required to consummate the SubsequesgtAsansactions on a timely basis or at all.

13




These sales or divestitures affect our costs, tegnprofitability, financial position, liquidityral our ability to comply with our de
covenants. Divestitures have inherent risks, ifolgidoossible delays in closing transactions (intlgdpotential difficulties in obtainir
regulatory approvals), the risk of lower-than-expdcsales proceeds for the divested businessespatauhtial postlosing claims fc
indemnification. In addition, current economic ciiwths and relatively illiquid real estate marketsy result in fewer potential bidders i
unsuccessful sales efforts. Expected costs sawiviysh are offset by revenue losses from divestegegrties, may also be difficult to achit
or maximize due to our fixed cost structure.

We are controlled by the Sponsors, whose interesay not be aligned with ours.

Hamlet Holdings, the members of which are comprisédndividuals affiliated with each of the Sponspas of December 31, 20
controls approximately 63.9% of our common stoakd aontrols us, pursuant to an irrevocable proxgvising Hamlet Holdings with sa
voting and sole dispositive power over those shakesa result, the Sponsors have the power to elédf our directors. Moreover, Ham
Holdings has the ability to vote on any transactibat requires the approval of our Board or oucldtelders, including the approval
significant corporate transactions such as mergadsthe sale of all or substantially all of oureass As a result, Hamlet Holdings is i
position to exert a significant influence over ard the direction of our business and results efatpns. The interests of the Sponsors ¢
conflict with or differ from the interests of othbplders of our securities. For example, the cotraéon of ownership held by the Spon:
could delay, defer or prevent a change of contfalsor impede a merger, takeover or other businessination which another stockhol
may otherwise view favorably. Additionally, the $ors are in the business of making or advisingeastments in companies they hold,
may from time to time in the future acquire intésda or provide advice to businesses that diremtlindirectly compete with certain portions
our business or are suppliers or customers of @ums. or both of the Sponsors may also pursue dtiquisthat may be complementary to
business, and, as a result, those acquisition tygtes may not be available to us. A sale of bssantial number of shares of stock in
future by funds affiliated with the Sponsors oritle®-investors could cause our stock price to declimelo8g as Hamlet Holdings continue:
hold the irrevocable proxy, they will continue te &ble to strongly influence or effectively contooir decisions.

In addition, we have an executive committee thateseat the discretion of our Board and is autleatito take such actions as it reason
determines appropriate. Currently, the executivarodtee may act by a majority of its members, pded that at least one member affilic
with TPG and Apollo must approve any action of éiecutive committee.

Reduction in discretionary consumer spending resodt from the downturn in the national economy ovéhne past few years, the volatil
and disruption of the capital and credit marketsdweerse changes in the global economy and other degtcould negatively impact o
financial performance and our ability to access fincing.

Changes in discretionary consumer spending or eoespreferences are driven by factors beyond ontrab such as perceived or act
general economic conditions; high energy, fuel atieer commodity costs; the cost of travel; the ptiéé for bank failures; a soft job mark
an actual or perceived decrease in disposable owrsincome and wealth; the recent increase in flaigces; increases in gaming taxe:
fees; fears of recession and changes in consumdidence in the economy; and terrorist attacks theo global events. Our busines
particularly susceptible to any such changes becaus casino properties offer a highly discretignset of entertainment and leisure activ
and amenities. Gaming and other leisure activitiesoffer represent discretionary expenditures artigipation in such activities may decl
if discretionary consumer spending declines, iniclgdduring economic downturns, during which constsngenerally earn less dispos:
income. The economic downturn that began in 20@Baatverse conditions in the local, regional, natiand global markets have negati
affected our business and results of operationsnzand continue to negatively affect our operatiamshie future. In addition, the Atlantic C
gaming market in particular has seen a massivengedtor example, according to the Atlantic Cityn@ag Industry Impact Report, prepa
by the Office of Communications, State of New JgrSasino Control Commission, reported gaming reesrfor Atlantic City properties ha
declined from $4,920.8 million in 2007 to $2,862nillion in 2013. During periods of economic contian, our revenues may decrease w
most of our costs remain fixed and some costs éwaease, resulting in decreased earnings. Whid@@uic conditions have improved,
revenues may continue to decrease. For examplég tid gaming industry has partially recovered fr2dd8, there are no assurances the
gaming industry will continue to grow as a resdleoonomic downturn or other factors. Any decreaste gaming industry could advers
affect consumer spending and adversely affect parations.

Additionally, key determinants of our revenues aperating performance include hotel average daitg ("ADR"), number of gamir
trips and average spend per trip by our custon@&iken that 2007 was the peak year for our finangp@formance and the gaming industr
the United States in general, we may not attaisaéHeancial levels in the near term, or at allw# fail to increase ADR or any other sim
metric in the near term, our revenues may not asgeand, as a result, we may not be able to pay dowexisting debt, fund our operatic
fund planned capital expenditures or achieve exgegtowth rates, all of which could have a mateathlerse effect on our business, finar
condition, results of operations and cash flow.rEa@ uncertain economic outlook may adversely affensumer spending in our gam
operations and related facilities, as consumers
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spend less in anticipation of a potential economhievnturn. Furthermore, other uncertainties, inalgdinational and global econor
conditions, terrorist attacks or other global egenbuld adversely affect consumer spending andradiy affect our operations.

Continued growth in consumer demand for non-gaminfferings would negatively impact our gaming revesu

Recent trends have indicated a growing shift irtaasr demand for nogaming offerings, as opposed to solely gamblinggnvtisiting
Las Vegas. According to LVCVA, 47% of Las Vegasitaiss in 2012 indicated that their primary reasowvisit was for vacation or pleasure
opposed to solely for gambling as the main attactup from 39% of visitors in 2008. To the extém demand for nogaming offering
replaces demand for gambling, our gaming revenuidisdecrease, which could have an adverse impacbwnbusiness and results
operations.

We may not realize any or all of our projected castvings, which would have the effect of reducingrd.TM Adjusted EBITDA - Pra
Forma, which would have a negative effect on oundincial performance and negatively impact our cowan calculation and could have
negative effect on our stock price.

We have undertaken comprehensive cedtiction efforts to manage expenses with currasiniess levels. While these and other ident
new cost saving programs have allowed us and weogxyll allow us to realize substantial savingst oontinued reduction efforts may fai
achieve similar or continued savings. Although wéidve, as of December 31, 2018nce fully implemented, these cost savings progravill
produce additional estimated annual cost savingt9af4 millionwe may not realize some or all of these projectadngs without impactir
our revenues. Our cost savings plans are interaatttease our effectiveness and efficiency inaperations without impacting our reven
and margins. Our cost savings plan is subject toaraus risks and uncertainties that may changeyatime, and, therefore, our actual sav
may differ materially from what we anticipate. Feotample, cutting advertising or marketing expemag have an unintended negative a
on our revenues. In addition, our expected savfrg®m procurement of goods may be affected by unebgokincreases in the cost of |
materials. Furthermore, because we use our prdigetetobe realized cost savings as a pro forma adjusttoecdiculate our LTM Adjuste
EBITDA - Pro Forma, our actual Adjusted EBITDA wdude reduced to the extent of the cost savingsoveod achieve.

We are subject to extensive governmental regulataond taxation policies, the enforcement of whichudd adversely impact our busine:
financial condition, and results of operation:

We are subject to extensive gaming regulationspatitical and regulatory uncertainty. Regulatoryrausities in the jurisdictions where
operate have broad powers with respect to thedingnof casino operations and may revoke, suspamdjition or limit our gaming or oth
licenses, impose substantial fines and take ottt@res, any one of which could adversely impactlmusiness, financial condition and result
operations. For example, revenues and income frperations were negatively impacted during July 260@&tlantic City by a threetay
governmenimposed casino shutdown. Furthermore, in many digions where we operate, licenses are grantedirfoted durations ar
require renewal from time to time. For example]dwa, our ability to continue our gaming operatiaasubject to a referendum every e
years or at any time upon petition of the votershia county in which we operate; the most recefgreedum which approved our ability
continue to operate our casinos occurred in Nover2d20. In Maryland, we will have to reapply forrdicense on the fifteenth anniversan
the opening of Horseshoe Baltimore. There can bassarance that continued gaming activity will ppraved in any referendum in the futi
If we do not obtain the requisite approval in antufe referendum, we will not be able to operategaming operations in lowa, which wo
negatively impact our future performance.

From time to time, individual jurisdictions havesalconsidered legislation or referendums, suchaas bn smoking in casinos and o
entertainment and dining facilities, which couldvexsely impact our operations. For example, thg Cibuncil of Atlantic City passed
ordinance in 2007 requiring that we segregateatt|85% of the casino gaming floor as a nonsmoéneg, leaving no more than 25% of
casino gaming floor as a smoking area. lllinoiogsssed the Smoke Free lllinois Act which becaffective January 1, 2008, and b
smoking in nearly all public places, including hamestaurants, work places, schools and casinas Ath also bans smoking within 15 fee
any entrance, window or air intake area of thedsipplaces. These smoking bans have adverselgtatfaevenues and operating results a
properties. The likelihood or outcome of similagilation in other jurisdictions and referendumsha future cannot be predicted, though
smoking ban would be expected to negatively impactfinancial performance.

Furthermore, because we are subject to regulatioeach jurisdiction in which we operate, and beeaggjulatory agencies within e:
jurisdiction review our compliance with gaming lamsother jurisdictions, it is possible that gamicmmpliance issues in one jurisdiction r
lead to reviews and compliance issues in othesdistions. For example, recent events in connectiith our role with the propos
development of a casino gaming facility by Sterlgffolk Racecourse, LLC (“Sterling Suffolk®dwner of Suffolk Downs racecourse in E
Boston, Massachusetts, have resulted in reviewseueral other jurisdictions arising out of a repisgued to the Massachusetts Gar
Commission from the Director of the Investigati@m&l Enforcement Bureau
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for the Massachusetts Gaming Commission (the “Bujea October 2013. That report raised certain is§aesonsideration when evaluat
our suitability as a qualifier in Massachusetts aratle a recommendation that we had not met ourehurg clear and convincing evidenc
establish our suitability. Although we strongly aligee with the directas’ recommendation, we withdrew our application agualifier ir
Massachusetts at the request of Sterling Suffodlitiér we nor our affiliates were found unsuitaiyeany licensing authority, but other garr
regulatory agencies have asked for information abmiissues raised in the report from the Buraad,we are in the process of providing
information. We cannot assure you that existinduture jurisdictions would not raise similar quess with respect to our suitability aris
out of the Bureaw report, or with respect to matters that may arishe future, and we cannot assure you that s@stfes will not adverse
affect us or our financial condition.

The casino entertainment industry represents afisigint source of tax revenues to the various dlicisons in which casinos operate. Fi
time to time, various state and federal legislatog officials have proposed changes in tax laws) the administration of such laws, includ
increases in tax rates, which would affect the stdu If adopted, such changes could adversely amnpar business, financial condition i
results of operations.

Our stockholders are subject to extensive governtaémnegulation and if a stockholder is found unsuaible by the gaming authority, th
stockholder would not be able to beneficially owarc&common stock directly or indirectly

In many jurisdictions, gaming laws can require ahpur stockholders to file an application, be istgated, and qualify or have his, he
its suitability determined by gaming authoritiesaarfiing authorities have very broad discretion iredatning whether an applicant shoulc
deemed suitable. Subject to certain administrgiieeeeding requirements, the gaming regulators Hevauthority to deny any applicatior
limit, condition, restrict, revoke or suspend aitghse, registration, finding of suitability or appal, or fine any person licensed, registere
found suitable or approved, for any cause deemasdorable by the gaming authorities. For additioanfdrmation on the criteria used
making determinations regarding suitability, seeV&nmental Regulation."

For example, under Nevada gaming laws, each pevbonacquires, directly or indirectly, beneficial m@rship of any voting security,
beneficial or record ownership of any neoting security or any debt security, in a publarporation which is registered with the Nev
Gaming Commission, or the Gaming Commission, masehaired to be found suitable if the Gaming Consiois has reason to believe thai
or her acquisition of that ownership, or his or kentinued ownership in general, would be incoesistvith the declared public policy
Nevada, in the sole discretion of the Gaming Cormsiois Any person required by the Gaming Commissiobe found suitable shall apply
a finding of suitability within 30 days after theaf@ing Commission's request that he or she shouldodand, together with his or |
application for suitability, deposit with the Nexaa@aming Control Board, or the Control Board, a sdiimmoney which, in the sole discretior
the Control Board, will be adequate to pay thecipaited costs and charges incurred in the invegiigand processing of that application
suitability, and deposit such additional sums &sraquired by the Control Board to pay final castd charges. Additionally, under Ohio I
an institutional investor, which is broadly definaad includes any corporation that holds any amotiour stock, will be required to apply
and obtain a waiver of suitability determination.

Furthermore, any person required by a gaming aityhtorbe found suitable, who is found unsuitabjette gaming authority, may not hi
directly or indirectly the beneficial ownership afly voting security or the beneficial or record enghip of any nonvoting security or any ¢
security of any public corporation which is registtwith the gaming authority beyond the time priéstl by the gaming authority. A violati
of the foregoing may constitute a criminal offenéefinding of unsuitability by a particular gamiragithority impacts that person's ability
associate or affiliate with gaming licensees int tharticular jurisdiction and could impact the mers ability to associate or affiliate w
gaming licensees in other jurisdictions.

Many jurisdictions also require any person who @egubeneficial ownership of more than a certaircgetage of voting securities
gaming company and, in some jurisdictions, moting securities, typically 5%, to report the aisifion to gaming authorities, and gam
authorities may require such holders to apply faalidication or a finding of suitability, subjeat timited exceptions for "institutional investo
that hold a company's voting securities for investipurposes only. Under Maryland gaming laws, veg mot sell or otherwise transfer m
than 5% of the legal or beneficial interest in Hetsoe Baltimore without the approval of the Margldmottery and Gaming Conti
Commission, or the Maryland Commission, after theryfand Commission determines that the transferegalified or grants the transferes
institutional investor waiver.

Some jurisdictions may also limit the number of gagnlicenses in which a person may hold an ownershia controlling interest.
Indiana, for example, a person may not have an ki interest in more than two Indiana riverboamer's licenses, and in Maryland
individual or business entity may not own an inséia more than one video lottery facility.

If we are unable to effectively compete against @ampetitors, our profits will decline

The gaming industry is highly competitive and oampetitors vary considerably in size, quality ofifities, number of operations, bre
identities, marketing and growth strategies, finahstrength and capabilities, and geographic diaerwWe
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also compete with other na@raming resorts and vacation areas, and with vaother entertainment businesses. Our competitogadéh marks
that we participate may have greater financial kating, or other resources than we do, and therébeano assurance that they will not enq
in aggressive pricing action to compete with ughédigh we believe we are currently able to compéfectively in each of the various mark
in which we participate, we cannot ensure that wkbe& able to continue to do so or that we willdspable of maintaining or further increas
our current market share. Our failure to competxsssfully in our various markets could adverséfgca our business, financial conditi
results of operations, and cash flow.

In recent years, many casino operators have béevesting in existing markets to attract new cusosror to gain market share, ther
increasing competition in those markets. As comgmhave completed new expansion projects, supglyypécally grown at a faster pace t
demand in some markets, including Las Vegas, oget market, and competition has increased sagmifly. For example, CityCenter, a lai
development of resorts and residences, opened ¢arbleer 2009, SLS Las Vegas, a 1,600 room hotekasitho, is expected to open in |
2014 on the northern end of the Strip near CircusuS, and the Genting Group has announced pladsvelop a 3,500 room hotel and 175,
square foot casino called Resorts World Las Veghgh is expected to open in 2016 on the northedhda the Strip near Circus Circus. Al
in response to changing trends, Las Vegas operhtyus been focused on expanding their gaming offerings, including upgrades to h
rooms, new food and beverage offerings, and neermment offerings. MGM has announced plans fog Park, which includes a new re
and dining development on the land between New Yelv York and Monte Carlo, a renovation of the [Bfront facades of both resorts ar
new 20,000 seat indoor arena for sporting everdscancerts operated by AEG. Construction of Thé& Baexpected to be complete in 2(
with the arena expected to be complete in 2016.itAahélly, SkyVue, a proposed 530et observation wheel, has been in constructione
2012. There have also been proposals for othee laogle nomaming development projects in Las Vegas by variother developer
including other arenas, observation wheels andler moaster, however, there are no details ash@nvor if these projects will be complete.
also face increased competition in Atlantic Citg, Revel, a resort and casino, opened in May 20h2 expansion of existing cas
entertainment properties, the increase in the nurob@roperties and the aggressive marketing glimseof many of our competitors hi
increased competition in many markets in which \werate, and this intense competition is expectezbtginue. These competitive press
have and are expected to continue to adverselgtadte financial performance in certain markets|uding Atlantic City.

In particular, our business may be adversely imgzhtly the additional gaming and room capacity ivade. In addition, our operatic
located in New Jersey may be adversely impactethéyexpansion of gaming in Maryland, New York arhisylvania, and our operatis
located in Nevada may be adversely impacted bgxpansion of gaming in California.

Theoretical win rates for our casino operations dapl on a variety of factors, some of which are beg@ur control.

The gaming industry is characterized by an elernénhance. Accordingly, we employ theoretical waiters to estimate what a certain 1
of game, on average, will win or lose in the long.rin addition to the element of chance, theoaétiin rates are also affected by the sprei
table limits and factors that are beyond our cdnsach as a player's skill and experience and\hehahe mix of games played, the finan
resources of players, the volume of bets placediamamount of time players spend gambling. Assaltef the variability in these factors,
actual win rates at the casino may differ from tieéioal win rates and could result in the winnigour gaming customers exceeding tt
anticipated. The variability of these factors, &ar in combination, have the potential to negégiveapact our actual win rates, which n
adversely affect our business, financial conditi@sults of operations and cash flows.

We face the risk of fraud and cheating.

Our gaming customers may attempt or commit fraudherat in order to increase winnings. Acts of frau@heating could involve the t
of counterfeit chips or other tactics, possiblycoilusion with our employees. Internal acts of ¢hmgacould also be conducted by employ
through collusion with dealers, surveillance stéfor managers or other casino or gaming ared. $taiflure to discover such acts or schem
a timely manner could result in losses in our ganoperations. In addition, negative publicity rethto such schemes could have an ad
effect on our reputation, potentially causing aeriat adverse effect on our business, financiati@am, results of operations and cash flows.

Use of the "Caesars" brand name, or any of our othBrands, by entities other than us could damage thrands and our operations a
adversely affect our business and results of opinas.

Our "Caesars" brand remains the most recognizedaésand in the world and our operations beneéitrf the global recognition a
reputation generated by our brands. Generally, geaatively pursuing gaming and ngaming management, branding, and develop
opportunities in Asia and other parts of the wosldere our brands and reputation are already meelbgnized assets. In addition, we
continue to expand our World Series of Poker tounemats to international jurisdictions where we hadi¢here is a likelihood of legalization
online gaming, in order to grow the brand’s awassnén connection
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with such opportunities, we intend to grant thitpes licenses to use our brands. Our businesgemults of operations may be adver
affected by the management or the enforcementeof@aesars" and the "World Series of Poker" breantes, or any of our other brands
third parties outside of our exclusive control.

Any failure to protect our trademarks could havenggative impact on the value of our brand names adVersely affect our busines

The development of intellectual property is parbaf overall business strategy, and we regardatiéctual property to be an import
element of our success. While our business as dewhaot substantially dependent on any one tradkrar combination of several of «
trademarks or other intellectual property, we sgelkstablish and maintain our proprietary rightour business operations and technao
through the use of patents, copyrights, trademankitrade secret laws. Despite our efforts to ptater proprietary rights, parties may infrii
our trademarks and use information that we regardraprietary and our rights may be invalidatedioenforceable. The unauthorized us
reproduction of our trademarks could diminish tlzdue of our brand and our market acceptance, catiwpeddvantages or goodwill, whi
could adversely affect our business.

We extend credit to a portion of our customers awd may not be able to collect gaming receivablesfrour credit players.

We conduct our gaming activities on a credit arghdaasis at many of our properties. Any such crediextend is unsecured. Table ga
players typically are extended more credit thamh glayers, and higlstakes players typically are extended more crédit tustomers who te
to wager lower amounts. High-end gaming is moratiel than other forms of gaming, and variancesimloss results attributable to higmc
gaming may have a significant positive or negaitwpact on cash flow and earnings in a particulartgr. We extend credit to those custor
whose level of play and financial resources warranthe opinion of management, an extension afitr&hese large receivables could ha
significant impact on our results of operationdéemed uncollectible. While gaming debts evidermned credit instrument, including wha
commonly referred to as a "marker,” and judgmemtgaming debts are enforceable under the currerg & the jurisdictions in which v
allow play on a credit basis and judgments in gucisdictions on gaming debts are enforceable iirstattes under the Full Faith and Cr
Clause of the U.S. Constitution, other jurisdicianay determine that enforcement of gaming delagasnst public policy. Although courts
some foreign nations will enforce gaming debts aiyeand the assets in the U.S. of foreign debinay be reached to satisfy a judgm
judgments on gaming debts from U.S. courts ardimating on the courts of many foreign natic

The acquisition, development and construction ofwmdiotels, casinos and gaming and n@aming venues and the expansion of exisl
ones could have an adverse effect on our businésgncial condition and results of operations due various factors including delays, cc
overruns and other uncertainties.

We intend to develop, construct and open or acquée hotels, casinos and other gaming venues, anelap and manage n@aming
venues, in response to opportunities that may .afigkire development projects and acquisitions regyire significant capital commitmer
the incurrence of additional debt, guarantees wfl tharty debt, the incurrence of contingent lisigis and an increase in depreciation
amortization expense, which could have an adveffeeteupon our business, financial condition, resuf operations and cash flow. -
development and construction of new hotels, casamosgaming venues and the expansion of existieg,@uch as our recent constructio
the Octavius Tower and redevelopment of the NobweéFoat Caesars Palace in Las Vegas, the plannedetlegppment of The Cromw
(formerly Bill's Gamblin' Hall & Saloon) in Las Veg, the development and construction of Horsestaltintbre and the development :
construction of non-gaming venues such as the Lipkgpect in Las Vegas, are susceptible to variaglssrand uncertainties, such as:

» the existence of acceptable market conditions amdathd for the completed proje

e general construction risks, including cost overrurtsange orders and plan or specification modificatshortages of equipme
materials or skilled labor, labor disputes, unfemsenvironmental, engineering or geological prolevork stoppages, fire and ot
natural disasters, construction scheduling probjemd weather interferences;

» changes and concessions required by governmentadjolatory authoritie

« the ability to finance the projects, especiallyigit of our substantial indebtedne

» delays in obtaining, or inability to obtain, altéinses, permits and authorizations required to teimpnd/or operate the project;
« disruption of our existing operations and facist

18




Moreover, our development and expansion projeassametimes jointly pursued with third parties grlizensing our brands to th
parties. These joint development, expansion prejeciicense agreements are subject to risks, ditiad to those disclosed above, as the)
dependent on our ability to reach and maintainexgents with third parties.

Our failure to complete any new development or esfn project, or consummate any joint developmexpansion projects or proje
where we license our brands, as planned, on saledithin budget or in a manner that generatesigiatied profits, could have an adve
effect on our business, financial condition, resolt operations and cash flow.

We may not realize all of the anticipated benefifscurrent or potential future acquisitions.

Our ability to realize the anticipated benefitsasfjuisitions will depend, in part, on our abilityintegrate the businesses of such acq
company with our businesses. The combination ofitwlependent companies is a complex, costly and tonsuming process. This proc
may disrupt the business of either or both of theaganies, and may not result in the full benefigeeted. The difficulties of combining 1
operations of the companies, including our 201Qieitipn of Planet Hollywood in Las Vegas, incluéenong others:

e coordinating marketing functior

» undisclosed liabilities; unanticipated issues teguating information, communications and othetesys

* unanticipated incompatibility of purchasing, logist marketing and administration methe

e retaining key employee

» consolidating corporate and administrative infractures

« the diversion of management's attention from ongbmsiness concerns; ¢

« coordinating geographically separate organizat

We may be unable to realize in whole or in parttibrefits anticipated for any current or futureuwasitjons.
The risks associated with our international operatis could reduce our profits.

Some of our properties are located outside theedrfitates, our acquisitions of London Clubs in 2806 Playtika in 2011 have increa
the percentage of our revenue derived from operaitiwtside the United States. International opamatare subject to inherent risks including:

e political and economic instabilit

* variation in local economie

« currency fluctuatior

» greater difficulty in accounts receivable colleat

» trade barriers; at

e burden of complying with a variety of internatioralvs

For example, the political instability in Egypt digethe uprising in January 2011 has negativelgcéfd our properties there.

Any violation of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Aadr other similar laws and regulations could havenggative impact on us

We are subject to risks associated with doing lassinoutside of the United States, which exposet ummplex foreign and U.
regulations inherent in doing business croseder and in each of the countries in which ibhsacts business. We are subject to requirer
imposed by the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act ("FOR#d other antcorruption laws that generally prohibit U.S. comigarand their affiliate
from offering, promising, authorizing or making ingper payments to foreign government officials tloe purpose of obtaining or retain
business. Violations of the FCPA and other aptiruption laws may result in severe criminal andl sanctions and other penalties and
SEC and U.S. Department of Justice have incredm@danforcement activities with respect to the RCPolicies and procedures and empilc
training and compliance programs that we have implged to deter prohibited practices may not becéffe in prohibiting our employe:
contractors or agents from violating
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or circumventing our policies and the law. If oumpoyees or agents fail to comply with applicalde/$ or company policies governing
international operations, we may face investigatjgrosecutions and other legal proceedings andnacivhich could result in civil penalti
administrative remedies and criminal sanctions. Aatermination that we have violated any atiruption laws could have a material adv
effect on our financial condition. Compliance wititernational and U.S. laws and regulations thailyapo our international operatic
increases our cost of doing business in foreigisdictions. We also deal with significant amountsash in our operations and are subje
various reporting and anti-money laundering redgoitegt Any violation of anti-money laundering law#\KL") or regulations, on which
recent years, governmental authorities have beeneasingly focused, with a particular focus on glaening industry, by any of our resc
could have a negative effect on our results of aipems. As an example, a major gaming company thcsettled a U.S. Attorney investigat
into its AML practices. On October 11, 2013, oneoaf subsidiaries received a letter from the Firgn€rimes Enforcement Network of 1
United States Department of the Treasury (“FinCENtating that FInCEN is investigating one of our sidlaries, Desert Palace, Inc. (
owner of Caesars Palace), for alleged violationthefBank Secrecy Act based on a BSA examinatioBiagfsars Palace previously condu
by the Internal Revenue Service to determine whetli appropriate to assess a civil penalty antike additional enforcement action age
Caesars Palace. Additionally, there is an ongo@atgifal grand jury investigation regarding AML megtéNe are cooperating fully with b
the FINCEN and grand jury investigations. Basegmteedings to date, we are currently unable terdghe the probability of the outcome
these matters or the range of reasonably possibée if any.

The loss of the services of key personnel coulddhavmaterial adverse effect on our business.

The leadership of our chief executive officer, Moveman, and other executive officers has beertigatrelement of our success.
death or disability of Mr. Loveman or other extedd® permanent loss of his services, or any negatiarket or industry perception w
respect to him or arising from his loss, could haveaterial adverse effect on our business. Owrakecutive officers and other membet
senior management have substantial experiencexgeadtise in our business and have made significantributions to our growth and succ
The unexpected loss of services of one or moréexd individuals could also adversely affect us.aMenot protected by key man or sin
life insurance covering members of our senior mansnt. We have employment agreements with our éxeocofficers, but these agreeme
do not guarantee that any given executive will i@math us.

If we are unable to attract, retain and motivate pioyees, we may not be able to compete effectimaty will not be able to expand o
business.

Our success and ability to grow are dependentaity pn our ability to hire, retain and motivatdfisient numbers of talented people, v
the increasingly diverse skills needed to servents and expand our business, in many locationsndrthe world. Competition for high
qualified, specialized technical and manageriad, particularly consulting, personnel is intensectii#ing, training, retention and benefit cc
place significant demands on our resources. Aduillg, our substantial indebtedness and the red@nwhturn in the gaming, travel and leis
sectors have made recruiting executives to oumlessimore difficult. The inability to attract quiEld employees in sufficient numbers to n
particular demands or the loss of a significant berof our employees could have an adverse effeaso

Acts of terrorism, war, natural disasters, severeather and political, economic and military conditis may impede our ability to operate
may negatively impact our financial results.

Terrorist attacks and other acts of war or hogtifiave created many economic and political unaaits. For example, a substar
number of the customers of our properties in Lagageuse air travel. As a result of terrorist aleéd bccurred on September 11, 2001, dorr
and international travel was severely disruptedclvihesulted in a decrease in customer visits tgpooperties in Las Vegas. We cannot pre
the extent to which disruptions in air or othemfisrof travel as a result of any further terroristt gecurity alerts or war, uprisings, or hosgk
in places such as Iraq, Afghanistan and/or Syriatber countries throughout the world will contintee directly or indirectly impact o
business and operating results. For example, cenatipns in Cairo, Egypt were negatively affectemhf the uprising there in January 2011
a consequence of the threat of terrorist attackisoéimer acts of war or hostility in the future, miams for a variety of insurance products t
increased, and some types of insurance are nord@wgdable. If any such event were to affect otoperties, we would likely be advers
impacted.

In addition, natural and mamade disasters such as major fires, floods, huregaearthquakes and oil spills could also advweisgbac
our business and operating results. Such eventd tead to the loss of use of one or more of owpprties for an extended period of time
disrupt our ability to attract customers to certafrour gaming facilities. If any such event weoeatffect our properties, we would likely
adversely impacted. Harrah's Atlantic City was etbduring a busy summer weekend in August 201ta@t#irricane Irene and was closed
five days in October and November 2012 due to ldame Sandy. Our results of operations were sigmiflg impacted by the closure due
Hurricane Sandy. In addition, Hurricane Sandy saitslly impacted tourism in New Jersey, includiiantic City, and the level of touris
has not yet recovered.

In most cases, we have insurance that covers pertibany losses from a natural disaster, butstiigect to deductibles and
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maximum payouts in many cases. Although we maydwered by insurance from a natural disaster, tméng of our receipt of insuran
proceeds, if any, is out of our control. In somsesa however, we may receive no proceeds fromanset such as our August 2011 closing
October and November 2012 closings in Atlantic City

Additionally, a natural disaster affecting one aormof our properties may affect the level and ofshsurance coverage we may be
to obtain in the future, which may adversely affeat financial position.

As our operations depend in part on our custonaduitity to travel, severe or inclement weather edso have a negative impact on
results of operations.

We are or may become involved in legal proceeditigg, if adversely adjudicated or settled, couldgatt our financial condition.

From time to time, we are defendants in variousslatg or other legal proceedings relating to mattecidental to our business. The na
of our business subjects us to the risk of lawdilgd by customers, past and present employeaspettors, business partners, Indian tr
and others in the ordinary course of business. ilts all legal proceedings, no assurance can beigedvas to the outcome of these matter:
in general, legal proceedings can be expensivetiame consuming. For example, we may have potehé&hbllity arising from a class acti
lawsuit against Hilton Hotels Corporation relatittgemployee benefit obligations. We may not be essful in the defense or prosecutio
these lawsuits, which could result in settlementslamages that could significantly impact our basg) financial condition and results
operations.

We may incur impairments to goodwill, indefinitevied intangible assets, or lorigred assets, which could negatively affect our dte
profits.

We perform our annual impairment assessment ofwitlces of October 1, or more frequently if impaient indicators exist. We determ
the estimated fair value of each reporting uniteblasn a combination of earnings before interestes¢adepreciation and amortizal
("EBITDA") and estimated future cash flows discaohtat rates commensurate with the capital strucarck cost of capital of compara
market participants, giving appropriate considerato the prevailing borrowing rates within theinasndustry in general. We also evaluate
aggregate fair value of all of our reporting ungsd other normperating assets in comparison to our aggregaté ated equity mark
capitalization at the test date. Both EBITDA muéigpand discounted cash flows are common measaegbta value and buy or sell busine
in our industry.

We will also perform an annual impairment assessroéither nonamortizing intangible assets as of October 1, orenfrequently i
impairment indicators exist. We determine the estéd fair value of our noamortizing intangible assets by primarily using Belief Fron
Royalty Method and Excess Earnings Method undeiniteme approach.

We review the carrying value of our lotiged assets whenever events and circumstancesatedihat the carrying value of an asset
not be recoverable from the estimated future cdmhsf expected to result from its use and eventuspadition. When performing tt
assessment, we consider current operating resutg]s and prospects, as well as the effect oflebsence, demand, competition, and ¢
economic, legal, and regulatory factors.

We are dependent upon our properties for futuré ¢asvs and our continued success depends on dlityab draw customers to o
properties. Significant negative industry or ecoitrends, reduced estimates of future cash flalisuptions to our business, slower gra
rates or lack of growth in our business have reduh impairment charges during the years ende@iber 31, 2013, 2012 , and 2Q1dnd, i
one or more of such events occurs in the futurditiadal impairment charges may be required in rieitperiods. If we are required to rec
additional impairment charges, this could have tenwl adverse impact on our consolidated finarstialements.

We may be required to pay our future tax obligation our deferred cancellation of debt income.

Under the American Recovery and Reinvestment A@GSf9, or the ARRA, we received temporary fedeaal relief under the Delay
Recognition of Cancellation of Debt Income, or CORlles. The ARRA contains a provision that alloiws a deferral for tax purposes
CODI for debt reacquired in 2009 and 2010, follovbgdrecognition of CODI ratably from 2014 through13. In connection with the debt t
we reacquired in 2009 and 2010, we have deferdateteCODI of $3.5 billion for tax purposes (net@figinal Issue Discount ("OID") intere
expense, some of which must also be deferred td #xbugh 2018 under the ARRA). We are requirethtdude onefifth of the deferre
CODI, net of deferred and regularly scheduled Gixaxable income each year from 2014 through 2@dt@rnatively, the deferred CODI, 1
of deferred OID, could be accelerated into taxabt®me in a year an impairment transaction occliosthe extent that our federal taxe
income exceeds our available federal net operatisg carry forwards in those years, we will haveaah tax obligation. Our tax obligatic
related to CODI could be substantial and could netg and adversely affect our cash flows as altesf tax payments. For more information
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on the debt that we reacquired in 2009 and 20H); 84anagemens Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operatio
— Other Factors Affecting Net Income ."

Our business is particularly sensitive to energyqas and a rise in energy prices could harm our ogting results.

We are a large consumer of electricity and oth@rgynand, therefore, higher energy prices may laawvadverse effect on our result:
operations. Accordingly, increases in energy cosay have a negative impact on our operating resatiglitionally, higher electricity ar
gasoline prices which affect our customers maylrésueduced visitation to our resorts and a réiducin our revenues. We may be indire
impacted by regulatory requirements aimed at reduthe impacts of climate change directed atstuipam utility providers, as we co
experience potentially higher utility, fuel, andrisportation costs.

CGP LLC's interests may conflict with our interests

The interests of CGP LLC could conflict with outenests. CGP LLC is in a similar business to us iangquired to first provide a
potential development opportunities to us. Howewer may decide to decline the opportunity for tlempanys business and permit CGP L
to pursue the development opportunity. A commitbéeour board of directors comprised of disinterdstirectors will consider potent
development opportunities provided to us by CGP LiE@Ghe committee declines an opportunity, thgpanpunity will be available to CGP LL
and will not be available to our businesses. Agsult, our business and growth prospects coulddgatively impacted. Furthermore,
consideration of business opportunities may crpatential or perceived conflicts of interests beaweur and CGP LLC's businesses. Whilt
may retain a portion of the financial stake in amgnagement fee to be received in connection witbpgrortunity provided to CGP LLC, the
can be no assurances that such opportunity wiliceessful or that we will receive the expected feem any opportunity.

Although certain employees of each of the Sponaoeson the boards of directors of Caesars Ententzih and CAC, the certificates
incorporation of both companies provide that neittee Sponsors nor directors have any obligatiopressent any corporate opportunity
Caesars Entertainment or CAC. Accordingly, the Spoh may pursue gaming, entertainment or othewiaet outside of Caes:
Entertainment or CAC and have no obligation to @nésuch opportunity to Caesars Entertainment o€ CA

There may be a significant degree of difficulty mperating CGP LLC's business separately from oursiness, and managing that proce
effectively could require a significant amount ofanagement's time.

The separation from CGP LLC's business from ouinass could cause an interruption of, or loss ofmmotum in, the operation of ¢
businesses. Management may be required to devosgdevable amounts of time to the separation, whidhdecrease the time they will he
to manage their ordinary responsibilities. If magragnt is not able to manage the separation efédgtior if any significant business activit
are interrupted as a result of the separationpaosinesses and operating results could suffer.

We provide corporate services, bacifice support and advisory and business managemseatvices through a management servi
agreement to CGP LLC and Growth Partners propertiaad have also recently announced the formationaohew services joint venture, t
purpose of which includes the common managementtu enterpris-wide intellectual property, each of which may regeia significan
amount of our resources and management to devaetiine to efforts other than our business, whichutd negatively impact our busine
and prospects.

Pursuant to a management services agreement, welgroorporate services, baokice support and advisory business manage
services to CAC and CGP LLC. Neither CAC nor CGRCLhas any employees and each of them only hasralshtory of operating casin
or online entertainment. In addition, on March 812, we announced the formation of a new serviogg yenture, the purpose of wh
includes the common management of enterpiske intellectual property, pursuant to which, amanher things, CEOC will provide to 1
new services joint venture a non-exclusive, irrade, royaltyfree license that includes the intellectual propéinat CEOC and its affiliat
own but are used in the operation of CGP LLC aassdier shared services agreements. Thereforeutiedss and operations of CAC and (
LLC are dependent on the services provided by n udtimately by the new services joint ventured amy require a significant amount of
resources and devotion of our management's time.atlditional demands associated with our provididgsory and management service
CAC and CGP LLC may impact regular operations of business by diverting our resources and the taterof some of our seni
management team away from revenue producing detyiadversely affecting our ability to attract awmplete business opportunities
increasing the difficulty in both retaining professals and managing and growing our businesses.oAtlyese effects could harm our busin
financial condition and results of operations.
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Work stoppages and other labor problems could négay impact our future profits.

Some of our employees are represented by labomsinibhe collective bargaining agreements coverigtnof our Las Vegas uni
employees expired on May 31, 2013. A new five yagneement was finalized in January 2014, whicludes a no strike provision for 1
term of the contract. Based on the contract régemgreed upon covering the other Caesaes Vegas properties, we are hopeful that
Quad negotiations produce a new agreement withoutwark disruptions. However, the possibility ofvark stoppage or disruption is alwi
present in such circumstances. In such instancd, & labor dispute could have a material impaaiwroperations.

Later this year, several collective bargaining agrents covering most of our union employees inrfitaCity will expire. We will begi
negotiations for renewal agreements in the nearrduand are hopeful that we will be able to reagfe@ements with the respective uni
without any work stoppage. In the event of a strikis possible that such actions could have gen# impact on our operations. From timi
time, we have also experienced attempts to uniocéztain of our nomion employees. While these efforts have achie@de success
date, we cannot provide any assurance that wenatilexperience additional and more successful uaivity in the future. The impact of tl
union activity is undetermined and could negativielpact our profits.

We may be subject to material environmental liahjliincluding as a result of unknown environmentabntamination.

The casino properties business is subject to ceftaieral, state and local environmental laws, l&gns and ordinances which gov
activities or operations that may have adverserenmental effects, such as emissions to air, digelsato streams and rivers and releas
hazardous substances and pollutants into the ema&ot, as well as handling and disposal from mpaitmonhazardous waste, and which
apply to current and previous owners or operatbreal estate generally. Federal examples of tkess include the Clean Air Act, the Cle
Water Act, the Resource Conservation Recovery thetComprehensive Environmental Response, Compensatd Liability Act and the C
Pollution Act of 1990. Certain of these environnah&ws may impose cleanup responsibility and lighbivithout regard to whether the owi
or operator knew of or caused particular contaronadr release of hazardous substances. Shouldbumknontamination be discovered on
property, or should a release of hazardous sulestamzcur on our property, we could be requiredhtestigate and clean up the contaminz
and could also be held responsible to a governmentdy or third parties for property damage, p@a injury or investigation and clear
costs incurred in connection with the contaminatiorrelease, which may be substantial. Moreoverh stontamination may also impair
ability to use the affected property. Such liapildould be joint and several in nature, regardiEfsgault, and could affect us even if si
property is vacated. The potential for substamtislts and an inability to use the property couleeaskely affect our business.

Our insurance coverage may not be adequate to calepossible losses we could suffer, and, in tlhiuire, our insurance costs may incree
significantly or we may be unable to obtain the sahevel of insurance coverag

We may suffer damage to our property caused bysaatty loss (such as fire, natural disasters amsl @fcwar or terrorism) that cot
severely disrupt our business or subject it tonetaby third parties who are injured or harmed. élijh we maintain insurance (includ
property, casualty, terrorism and business intéimapnsurance), that insurance may be inadequatenavailable to cover all of the risks
which our business and assets may be exposedvémaseases we maintain extremely high deductibteselfinsure against specific loss
Should an uninsured loss (including a loss whidiess than our deductible) or loss in excess afrats limits occur, it could have a signific
adverse impact on our operations and revenues.

We generally renew our insurance policies on amahbasis. If the cost of coverage becomes too, highmay need to reduce our po
limits or agree to certain exclusions from our aage in order to reduce the premiums to an acclkepsaount. Among other factors, homel
security concerns, other catastrophic events orcluaynge in the current U.S. statutory requiremieat insurance carriers offer coverage
certain acts of terrorism could adversely affecilable insurance coverage and result in increpsexhiums on available coverage (which |
cause us to elect to reduce our policy limits) additional exclusions from coverage. Among otheteptial future adverse changes, in
future we may elect to not, or may be unable téaiobany coverage for losses due to acts of tesmari
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The success of third parties adjacent to our projies is important to our ability to generate revemwand operate our business and ¢
deterioration to their success could materially aasely affect our revenue and result of operations.

In certain cases, we do not own the businessesuaethities adjacent to our properties. However aiffjacent thirdparty businesses a
amenities stimulate additional traffic through @omplexes, including the casinos, which are owdst generators of revenue. Any decrea
the popularity of, or the number of customers wigit these adjacent businesses and amenities radytdea corresponding decrease ir
traffic through our complexes, which would negaljvaffect our business and operating results. feurtii newly opening properties, suct
The Cromwell, are not as popular as expected, Wenati realize the increase in traffic through guoperties that we expect as a result of
opening, which would negatively affect our busingsgections.

Compromises of our information systems or unauthmed access to confidential information or our custers' personal information coul
materially harm our reputation and business.

We collect and store confidential, personal infaiorarelating to our customers for various busingsgoses, including marketing ¢
financial purposes, and credit card information oocessing payments. For example, we handleeatodind store personal informatior
connection with our customers staying at our hateld enrolling in our Total Rewards program. We rahgire this personal and confider
information with vendors or other third partiesdonnection with processing of transactions, opegatiertain aspects of our business o
marketing purposes. Our collection and use of petisdata are governed by state and federal priVaeg and regulations as well as
applicable laws and regulations in other countimeshich we operate. Privacy law is an area thginges often and varies significantly
jurisdiction. We may incur significant costs in erdo ensure compliance with the various applic@bieacy requirements. In addition, privi
laws and regulations may limit our ability to marke our customers.

We assess and monitor the security of collectidorage and transmission of customer informationaanongoing basis. We utili
commercially available software and technologiesntonitor, assess and secure our network. Furtiher,systems currently used
transmission and approval of payment card trarmastiand the technology utilized in payment cahngsniselves, all of which can put payn
card data at risk, are determined and controllethbypayment card industry, not us. Although weehtmken steps designed to safeguar
customers' confidential personal information, oetwork and other systems and those of third par§ash as service providers, coulc
compromised by a third party breach of our systenusty or that of a third party provider or aseault by purposeful or accidental action
third parties, our employees or those employees thiird party. Advances in computer and softwapabilities and encryption technola
new tools and other developments may increaseisheof such a breach. As a result of any securnigabh, customer information or ot
proprietary data may be accessed or transmitteat by a third party. Despite these measures, ttemebe no assurance that we are adeqt
protecting our information.

Any loss, disclosure or misappropriation of, oresxto, customers' or other proprietary informatiorother breach of our informati
security could result in legal claims or legal predings, including regulatory investigations antioas, or liability for failure to comply wi
privacy and information security laws, including failure to protect personal information or forsmsing personal information, which co
disrupt our operations, damage our reputation axgbse us to claims from customers, financial inbns, regulators, payment c
associations, employees and other persons, anyichwould have an adverse effect on our finanmaldition, results of operations and ¢
flow.

The SEC's investigation of a retired Deloitte pagnwho was formerly the advisory partner on Delelt audit engagement for Caesi
Entertainment could result in a determination thddeloitte was not independent of Caesars Entertaimnherhich may adversely affect o
ability to comply with certain obligations imposdyy federal securities law and certain debt agreersen

Deloitte & Touche LLP ("Deloitte”) is our independeregistered public accounting firm. In April 2Q1Beloitte advised Caes:i
Entertainment that a retired Deloitte partner whas\viormerly the advisory partner on Deloitte's aiedigagement for Caesars Entertaint
during most of 2009 (a period not covered in thlied) is the subject of a formal investigation Bye SEC. During 2009, this individt
engaged in gaming activities at a Caesars Ententih casino. Deloitte conducted a review of themmigg activities and this individual's r
as advisory partner and reported to the Audit Caemiof Caesars Entertainment its conclusion tmatiridividual's activities did not at €
time impair Deloitte's independence, because, anobingr considerations, these activities were nobrisistent with the SEC's independe
rules and furthermore he had no substantive rolany audit or review concerning Caesars Entertammafter Caesars Entertainm
conducted its own independent review with the &msce of outside counsel, the Caesars Entertainfahit Committee, in early May 201
accepted Deloitte's report and concurred with Dilsi conclusion that Deloitte's independence wasieanot impaired.

If regulatory authorities were to determine thaildittee was not independent of Caesars Entertainnseith determination may advers
affect Caesars Entertainment's ability to complthvaertain obligations imposed by federal seciwitaavs and certain debt agreements, w
would have a material adverse effect on our busiaes financial condition.
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Our obligation to fund multi-employer pension planie which we contribute may have an adverse impacius.

We contribute to and participate in various maltiployer pension plans for employees representezkiigin unions. We are requirec
make contributions to these plans in amounts astedd under collective bargaining agreements. Wenaloadminister these plans &
generally, are not represented on the boards sfetes of these plans. The Pension Protection Asadted in 2006, or the PPA, requires unde
funded pension plans to improve their funding mtiBased on the information available to us, sofrthe multiemployer plans to which v
contribute are either "critical" or "endangered"thsse terms are defined in the PPA. Specificalig, Pension Plan of the UNITED HE
National Retirement Fund is less than 65% funded. d&nnot determine at this time the amount of addit funding, if any, we may |
required to make to these plans. However, plansassents could have an adverse impact on our redut{serations or cash flows for a gi
period. Furthermore, under current law, upon theirgation of a multiemployer pension plan, or in the event of a witgtaby us, which w
consider from time to time, or a mass withdrawainsolvency of contributing employers, we wouldriequired to make payments to the |
for our proportionate share of the plan's unfundested liabilities. Any termination of a muétmployer plan, or mass withdrawal or insolve
of contributing employers, could require us to citmite an amount under a plan of rehabilitatiorsarcharge assessment that would he
material adverse impact on our consolidated firdraondition, results of operations and cash flows.

An active trading market for our common stock magtrdevelop

Prior to our listing in February 2012, there waspuiblic market for our common stock. We cannot mtethe extent to which invest
interest in us will lead to the development of ative trading market or how liquid that market ntiglecome. The Sponsors own approxims
63.9% of our common stock and while the sharesehgible for resale, currently such shares areawatlable for the public market. A:
result, our shares may be less liquid than theeshaf other newly public companies or other pubbmpanies generally and there ma
imbalances between supply and demand for our shases result, our share price may experience fsogmit volatility and may not necessa
reflect the value of our expected performancenlfative trading market does not develop, ownersusfcommon stock may have diffict
selling any of our common stock.

Future sales or the possibility of future sales afsubstantial amount of our common stock may degréise price of shares of our comm
stock.

Future sales or the availability for sale of sub8td amounts of our common stock in the public kearcould adversely affect t
prevailing market price of our common stock andldannpair our ability to raise capital through futusales of equity securities.

As of March 1, 2014 , there were 137,161,B8@res outstanding, all of which are the same @&a®ting common stock. All of tt
outstanding shares of our common stock will beilgigfor resale under Rule 144 or Rule 701 of tleewities Act of 1933, as amen
("Securities Act"), subject to volume limitatioregpplicable holding period requirements or othertiaual restrictions. The Sponsors have
ability to cause us to register the resale offtitsrss, and our management members who hold shédlémve the ability to include their sha
in such registration.

In October 2013, we sold 10,340,418 shares of ommgon stock in a public offering a price of $19pH) share. We may issue share
common stock or other securities from time to tiaseconsideration for future acquisitions and inwestts or for any other reason that
board of directors deems advisable. If any suchuiaitipn or investment is significant, the numbdrsbares of our common stock, or
number or aggregate principal amount, as the caseb®, of other securities that we may issue mawyrim be substantial. We may also g
registration rights covering those shares of comstonk or other securities in connection with anghsacquisitions and investments.

We cannot predict the size of future issuancesioicommon stock or other securities or the effiéetny, that future issuances and sale
our common stock or other securities, includingifetsales by the Sponsors, will have on the maskiee of our common stock. Sales
substantial amounts of common stock (including ehaf common stock issued in connection with anaatépn), or the perception that st
sales could occur, may adversely affect prevaitiragket prices for our common stock.
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The price and trading volume of our common stock yniductuate significantly.

The market price of our common stock may be higlalatile and could be subject to wide fluctuatiolmsaddition, the trading volume
our common stock may fluctuate and cause signifipane variations to occur. Volatility in the matiprice of our common stock may prez
a holder of our common stock from being able td #adir shares. The market price for our commortlstoould fluctuate significantly fi
various reasons, including:

» our operating and financial performance gndspects, along with that of CGP LI

» our quarterly or annual earningtogether with those of CGP LLG;, those of other companies in our indut
e conditions that impact demand for our products serdices

» the public's reaction to our press releases, gihllic announcements and filings with the S

» changes in earnings estimates or recommendatiossdwyities analysts who track our common s
» market and industry perception of our successaak thereof, in pursuing our growth strate

» strategic actions by us or our competitors, suchcgsiisitions or restructuring

» changes in government and environmental regulaiti@hyding gaming taxe

» changes in accounting standards, policies, guidantpretations or principle

e arrival and departure of key person

» changes in our capital structt

» sales of common stock by us or members of our meanagt tean

» the expiration of contractual lockup agreementsl

» changes in general market, economic and politicaditions in the United States and global econormidiancial markets, includii
those resulting from natural disasters, terrotistcks, acts of war and responses to such events.

In addition, in recent years, the stock marketdwgserienced significant price and volume fluctuagioThis volatility has had a significi
impact on the market price of securities issuedniayly companies, including companies in the gamodging, hospitality and entertainm
industries. The changes frequently appear to osithiout regard to the operating performance ofdffected companies. Hence, the pric
our common stock could fluctuate based upon fadt@shave little or nothing to do with us, andshdluctuations could materially reduce
share price.

Because we have not paid dividends since the Adtjaisand do not anticipate paying dividends on oaommon stock in the foreseea
future, holders of our common stock should not exppé¢o receive dividends on shares of our commorckt

We have no present plans to pay cash dividendsitastockholders and, for the foreseeable futurenih to retain all of our earnings
use in our business. The declaration of any fudlivelends by us is within the discretion of our Biband will be dependent on our earni
financial condition and capital requirements, a#l a® any other factors deemed relevant by our @oar
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We are a "controlled company" within the meaning die NASDAQ rules and, as a result, will qualifyrfoand intend to rely on, exemptio
from certain corporate governance requiremen

Hamlet Holdings controls a majority of our votingnemon stock. As a result, we are a "controlled camyp within the meaning
NASDAQ corporate governance standards. Under th&DI¥Q rules, a company of which more than 50% ofub#ng power is held by i
individual, group or another company is a "con#dlicompany" and we have elected not to comply wéhain NASDAQ corpora
governance requirements, including:

» the requirement that a majority of the Board cdssi$ independent directo

» the requirement that we have a nominating/corparaternance committee that is composed entireigdgpendent directol
» the requirement that we have a compensation coemrtitiat is composed entirely of independent dirertmn

« the requirement for an annual performance evalnatfadhe nominating/corporate governance and cosgiém committee

As a result of these exemptions, we do not haveapnity of independent directors nor do our nonimgfcorporate governance e
compensation committees consist entirely of inddpahdirectors and we are not required to haveramual performance evaluation of
nominating/corporate governance and compensationmittees. Accordingly, a holder of our common stadk not have the same protectic
afforded to stockholders of companies that areesuiltp all of the NASDAQ corporate governance regjaents.

Our bylaws and certificate of incorporation contaiprovisions that could discourage another compamgrh acquiring us and may preve
attempts by our stockholders to replace or remoue @airrent management.

Provisions of our bylaws and our certificate ofdrmoration may delay or prevent a merger or actjoiisthat stockholders may consi
favorable, including transactions in which you migtherwise receive a premium for your shares.dditéon, these provisions may frustrats
prevent any attempts by our stockholders to reptecemove our current management by making it nddfieult for stockholders to replace
remove our directors. These provisions include:

» establishing a classified board of direct

» establishing limitations on the removal of direst

* permitting only an affirmative vote of at leasb-thirds of the Board to fix the number of direct
« prohibiting cumulative voting in the election ofeictors

* empowering only the Board to fill any vacancy oa Board, whether such vacancy occurs as a resalt @icrease in the numbel
directors or otherwise;

e authorizing the issuance of "blank check" prefestatk without any need for action by stockholc
» eliminating the ability of stockholders to call sged meetings of stockholde

» prohibiting stockholders from acting by written sent if less than 50.1% of our outstanding commowksis controlled by tr
Sponsors;

« prohibiting amendments to the bylaws without dffirmative vote of at least twitirds of the Board or the affirmative vote of aa$
two-thirds of the total voting power of the outsdarg shares entitled to vote;

» prohibiting amendments to the certificate of inargiion relating to stockholder meetings, amendmamthe bylaws or certificate
incorporation, or the election or classificationtbé Board without the affirmative vote of tviloirds of the shares entitled to vote
any matter; and

« establishing advance notice requirements for notioing for election to the Board or for proposingtt@is that can be acted on
stockholders at stockholder meetings.
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Our issuance of shares of preferred stock couldydet prevent a change of control of us. Our Bdaas the authority to cause us to is
without any further vote or action by the stocklesk] shares of preferred stock, par value $0.0%hme, in one or more series, to designal
number of shares constituting any series, andxtthgé rights, preferences, privileges and restnithereof, including dividend rights, vot
rights, rights and terms of redemption, redemppdoe or prices and liquidation preferences of sseties. The issuance of shares of prefi
stock may have the effect of delaying, deferringp@venting a change in control of our company aithfurther action by the stockholde
even where stockholders are offered a premiunti@r shares.

Together, these charter and statutory provisiontdomake the removal of management more difficnt may discourage transactions
otherwise could involve payment of a premium ouavpiling market prices for our common stock. Ferthore, the existence of the foregc
provisions, as well as the significant common stoaktrolled by Hamlet Holdings, could limit the geithat investors might be willing to pay
the future for shares of our common stock. Theyldalso deter potential acquirers of our compahgreby reducing the likelihood that y
could receive a premium for your common stock iraequisition.

PRIVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT

This Form 10-K contains or may contain "forwdodking statements” intended to qualify for theesharbor from liability established
the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 39T hese statements can be identified by the fettthey do not relate strictly to historica
current facts. We have based these forwaotting statements on our current expectations afuure events. Further, statements that inc
words such as "may," "will," "project,” "might," ¥pect," "believe," "anticipate," "intend," "could;ivould," "estimate," "continue," "preser
"preserve," or "pursue,” or the negative of theswds or other words or expressions of similar megninay identify forwardeoking
statements. These forward-looking statements aredf@t various places throughout the report. Tlieseard{ooking statements, includir
without limitation, those relating to future act®ymew projects, strategies, future performance,atitcome of contingencies such as |
proceedings, and future financial results, wherghey occur in this report, are necessarily estmatflecting the best judgment of
management and involve a number of risks and umiogigs that could cause actual results to diffatemally from those suggested by
forward-looking statements. These forwdmdking statements should, therefore, be considarddht of various important factors set fc
above and from time to time in our filings with t8ecurities and Exchange Commission.

In addition to the risk factors set forth aboveportant factors that could cause actual resultdifier materially from estimates
projections contained in the forward-looking sta¢eis include without limitation:

» the impact of our substantial indebtedness andetteictions in our debt agreeme

» the effects of local and national economic, cradi capital market conditions on the economy ireganand on the gaming indus
in particular;

« the ability to realize the expense reductions fmm cost savings programs, including the progranm¢cease its working capital a
excess cash by $500 million;

e the sale of the casinos named in this filing matyb@consummated on the terms contemplated of;
» the financial results of CGP LLE€busines:

e access to available and reasonable financing émelyt basis, including the ability of the Compamyrefinance its indebtedness
acceptable terms;

e the ability of our customer-tracking, customer lbyand yieldmanagement programs to continue to increase custmyaty ant
same-store or hotel sales;

» changes in laws, including increased tax raesking bans, regulations or accounting standahndsl-party relations and approve
and decisions, disciplines and fines of courtsyl@grs and governmental bodies;

» our ability to recoup costs of capital investmehteugh higher revenu

e abnormal gaming holds ("gaming hold" is the amafnhoney that is retained by the casino from waggreustomers

» the effects of competition, including locationscoimpetitors, competition for new licenses and djregaand market competitic
« the ability to timely and costffectively integrate companies that we acquire mir operation
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the potential difficulties in employee retentiordarecruitment as a result of our substantial inelébéss, or any other fact

construction factors, including delays, increasedts of labor and materials, availability of labemd materials, zoning issu
environmental restrictions, soil and water condisioveather and other hazards, site access maitteisuilding permit issues;

severe weather conditions or natural disasterfjding losses therefrom, including losses in reesnand damage to property, anc
impact of severe weather conditions on our abilityattract customers to certain of its facilitissich as the amount of losses
disruption to us as a result of Hurricane Sandgt& October 2012;

litigation outcomes and judicial and governmentady actions, including gaming legislative actiogeferenda, regulatory discipline
actions and fines and taxation;

acts of war or terrorist incidents, severe weatugrditions, uprisings or natural disasters, ineigdiosses therefrom, including los
in revenues and damage to property, and the imgfas#vere weather conditions on our ability toaaitrcustomers to certain of
facilities, such as the amount of losses and diemipo our company as a result of Hurricane Sandgte October 2012;

the effects of environmental and structural buiddaonditions relating to our properti
access to insurance on reasonable terms for oets
the impact, if any, of unfunded pension benefitder multiemployer pension plans; €

the other factors set forth under " Risk Factaabove

You are cautioned not to place undue reliance enetliorwardeoking statements, which speak only as of the datais Annual Repo
on Form 10-K. We undertake no obligation to pulglicpdate or release any revisions to these fonlaoking statements to reflect event:
circumstances after the date of this Form 10-Koaeflect the occurrence of unanticipated eventset as required by law.

ITEM 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
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ITEM 2.  Properties

Summary of Property Information as of December 312013

(@)

(@)

Casino (@) (@) Hotel

Entity Space— Slot Table Rooms &
Region/Property Location Structure Type of Casino Sqg. Ft. Machines Games Suites
LAS VEGAS REGION
Harrah’s Las Vegas Las Vegas, Nev. CERP Landébas 90,60( 1,28( 10C 2,53(
Rio All-Suites Hotel & Casino Las Vegas, Nev. CERP Land-based 117,30( 1,07C 9C 2,52(
Caesars Palace Las Vegas, Nev. CEOC Land-based 139,20( 1,31( 19C 4,25(
Paris Las Vegas Las Vegas, Nev. CERP Land-based 95,30( 1,02( 10C 2,92(
Bally's Las Vega$” Las Vegas, Nev. CEOC Land-based 66,20( 1,00( 7C 2,81(
Flamingo Las Vegas Las Vegas, Nev. CERP Land-based 72,30( 1,22( 12C 3,46(
The Quad Resort & Casifj@ Las Vegas, Nev. CEOC Land-based 44,60( 76C 6C 2,55(
The Cromwell™®@ Las Vegas, Nev. CEOC Land-based — — — —
Hot Spot Oasis Las Vegas, Nev. CEOC Land-based 1,00(¢ 15 — —
Planet Hollywood Resort & Casino Las Vegas, Nev. CGP Land-based 64,50( 1,10( 9C 2,50(
ATLANTIC COAST REGION
Harrah’s Atlantic City Atlantic City, N.J. CERP Land-based 154,50( 2,32( 18C 2,59(
Showboat Atlantic City Atlantic City, N.J. CEOC Land-based 108,90( 2,18(C 11C 1,33(
Bally's Atlantic City© Atlantic City, N.J. CEOC Land-based 105,70 2,08( 14C 1,75(
Caesars Atlantic City Atlantic City, N.J. CEOC Land-based 111,80( 2,10¢ 15C 1,14(
Harrah’s Philadelphié Chester, Pa. CEOC Harness racing 112,60( 2,80C 13C —

and land-
based casino
Horseshoe Baltimoré Baltimore, Md. CGP Land-based — — — —
OTHER U.S. REGION
Harrah’s Laughlin Laughlin, Nev. CERP Land-based 56,00( 94C 4C 1,51(
Harrah's Reno Reno, Nev. CEOC Land-based 40,20( 75C 4C 93C
Harrah's Lake Tahoe Lake Tahoe, Nev. CEOC Laaskd 45,10( 83C 7C 51C
Harveys Lake Tahoe Lake Tahoe, Nev. CEOC Land-based 44,20( 74C 7C 74C
Harrah's Joliet® Joliet, III. CEOC Dockside 38,90( 1,13C 3C 20C
Horseshoe Hammond Hammond, Ind. CEOC Dockside 108,20( 2,97( 15¢ —
Harrah’s Metropolis Metropolis, III. CEOC DockHsi 31,00¢( 1,15( 3C 26(
Horseshoe Southern Indiana Elizabeth, Ind. CEOC Dockside 86,60( 1,73( 11C 50C
Harrah'’s Council Bluffs Council Bluffs, lowa CEOC Land-based 25,00( 59C 2C 25C
Horseshoe Council Bluffé Council Bluffs, lowa CEOC Greyhound racing 78,80( 1,61( 7C —
and land-
based casino
Horseshoe Tunica Tunica, Miss. CEOC Dockside 63,00( 1,28( 9C 51C
Harrah'’s Tunica Tunica, Miss. CEOC Dockside 136,00( 1,28( 7C 1,36(
Tunica Roadhouse Hotel & Casino Tunica, Miss. CEO Dockside 31,00¢( 75C 3C 13C
Grand Casino Biloxi Biloxi, Miss. CEOC Dockside 31,30( 75C 3C 49C
Harrah’s North Kansas City N. Kansas City, Mo. @E Dockside 60,10( 1,50( 6C 39C
Harrah’s New Orlean® New Orleans, La. CEOC Land-based 125,10( 1,82( 14C 45(C
Louisiana Down$) Bossier City, La. CEOC Thoroughbred 12,00( 1,05( — —
racing facility and
land-based casino

Horseshoe Bossier City Bossier City, La. CEOC Dockside 29,30( 1,37( 7C 60C
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(@) (@)

Casino @) (@) Hotel

Entity Space— Slot Table Rooms &
Region/Property Location Structure Type of Casino Sq. Ft. Machines Games Suites
MANAGED, INTERNATIONAL & OTHER REGION
Horseshoe Cincinnafi Cincinnati, Ohio CEOC Land-based 100,00( 1,99( 12C —
Harrah’s Ak-Chin® Phoenix, Ariz. CEOC Indian Reservation 48,80( 1,11C 3C 30C
Horseshoe Clevelarid Cleveland, Ohio CEOC Land-based 96,00( 1,78( 12C —
ThistleDown Racin@ Cleveland, Ohio CEOC Land-based 71,70( 1,15( — —
Harrah’s Cheroke® Cherokee, N.C. CEOC Indian Reservation 176,80( 3,68( 15C 1,11(¢
Harrah’s Rincorf San Diego, Calif. CEOC Indian Reservation 72,90( 1,71C 7C 66(
Conrad Punta del Este Resort and Ca$ino Uruguay CEOC Land-based — — — —
Caesars Windsd? Ontario, Canada CEOC Land-based 100,00 2,27( 9C 76C
Golden Nuggef’ United Kingdom CEOC Land-based 5,10( 50 2C —
Playboy Club London United Kingdom CEOC Land-based 6,20( 30 2C —
The Sportsman United Kingdom CEOC Land-based 5,20( 40 2C —
Rendezvous Brighton United Kingdom CEOC Land-based 7,80( 70 3C —
Rendezvous Southend-on-Sea United Kingdom CEOC and{based 8,70( 50 2C —
Manchester235 United Kingdom CEOC Land-based 11,50( 40 4C —
The Casino at the Empire United Kingdom CEOC d-Based 20,90( 12C 5C —
Alea Nottingham United Kingdom CEOC Land-based 10,00( 50 2C —
Alea Glasgow United Kingdom CEOC Land-based 15,00( 50 3C —
The London Clubs Cairo-Rams#és Egypt CEOC Land-based 2,70( 40 2C —
Caesars Cair Egypt CEOC Land-based 5,50( 30 2C —
Emerald Safarf South Africa CEOC Land-based 37,70( 55C 4C 19C

@  Approximate, except for Hot Spot Oa

® Includes O'Shea's Casino. O'Shea's Casino reojrelettember 2013 as part Biie Quad Resort & Casit

©  We have an 80% ownership interest in and managethperty

@ The property is owned by the Company, leased toofierator, and managed by the Company for the tipefer a fee pursuant to an agreement
expires in October 2024. This information includles Bluffs Run greyhound racetrack that operatéseaproperty.

®  We own a 49% share of a venture that owns art6fr hotel located near the prope

®  Prior to May 2012, this property operated underHherah's Chester name. We have a 99.5% ownersieiest in and manage this prope

©®  Managec

™ we operate this property and the province of Oatavins the complex through the Ontario Lottery Gaaning Corporatiol

O We have a 70% ownership interest in and managgtbjserty

O We manage this property and have a 20% interd®6i6 which owns this proper

®  Prior to December 2012, this property operated utiename Imperial Palace Hotel and Ca:

O We have a joint venture interest in this propentigich is under development, and will manage the@ry when it opens, which is expected in the -
quarter of 2014.

M This property was formerly Bill's Gamblin' Hall &®on. It temporarily closed in early February 2@d&ccommodate renovations. The renovated
and casino are expected to reopen in the secontbq@al4.

™ On May 31, 2013, the Company sold 45% of its eqintgrest in Conrad Punta del Este and, as a reftiitis transaction, we no longer consolidat
results, but instead account for it as an equitthot investment. The results of Conrad Punta d&d Be being included in consolidated results thhn
May 31, 2013 and the equity method income or Isssdluded in income/(loss) from operations begigniune 1, 201 3.

© In October 2013, the Company entered into an ageaeno sell its 500eom Claridge Hotel Tower adjacent to Bally's inaitic City. The sale wi
completed in February 2014.

®  We closed this casino in February 2(

@  Subsequent to year end, the Company announcedgjtienaent to sell this property to CGP LLC. See Nt
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ITEM 3. Legal Proceedings
Litigation

The Company is party to ordinary and routine litig)a incidental to our business. We do not expketdutcome of any pending litigat
to have a material effect on our consolidated famrposition, results of operations, or cash flows

ITEM 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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ITEM 5.

PART Il

Market for the Company’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Isuer Purchases of Equity Securitie

Effective February 8, 2012, our common stock traatethe NASDAQ under the symbol "CZR." The follogitable sets forth the high ¢
low sales prices for our common stock on the NASDiAfeach quarter during 2013 and 2012 .

First Quarter
Second Quarter

Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter

2013 2012
High Low High Low
$ 1837 $ 7.0 $ 179C $ 9.0C
17.7i 11.8¢ 15.7¢ 11.0¢
26.57 13.3¢ 11.67 6.3¢
22.5( 16.2¢ 8.2t 4.52

As of March 1, 2014 , there were 137,161,183 shafresmmon stock issued and outstanding that welce Iy 156stockholders of recort

To date, we have not paid a cash dividend. Cedaour borrowings have covenants and requiremessisicting or limiting the ability ¢
Caesars and its subsidiaries to, among other thipmg dividends on or make distributions in respafctheir capital stock or make otl
restricted payments. See Note 9, " Debt ," foitamthl information on our covenants and restrictio

There have not been any sales by the Company dfyespcurities during the years ended DecembefB13 , 2012 , or 2011that hav
not been registered under the Securities Act. titiath, the Company did not repurchase shares ntommon stock during the three mor

ended December 31, 2013

Performance Grapt

The following graph compares the cumulative totatkholder return on our common stock with the clative total return on the Stand.
& Poor's 500 Stock Index ("S&P 500") and the Dowmel U.S. Gambling Total Stock Market Index ("Dowd® U.S. Gambling™) for tl
period beginning on February 8, 2012, (the datecounmon stock commenced trading on the NASDAQ Gl&eadect Market) and ending
December 31, 2013NASDAQ OMX furnished the data. The performancapyr assumes a $100 investment in our stock andcim iedex o
February 8, 2012, and the reinvestment of all éimik, as applicable.

$180.00

1000 — — — Loch

e T o - 7

o ——

$20.00 /

560,00 \\— /

$40.00 \/

$20.00

50.00 : :
2/8/12 12/31/12 12/31/13
e C5e sars Entertainment =i} :5E&P 500 s«ofss 0) US Total Stock Market/Gambling
As of December 31,
2/8/2012 2012 2013

CZR 100.0C $ 449¢ $ 139.9¢
S&P 500 Index 100.0( 107.8¢ 142.7¢
Dow Jones U.S. Gambling 100.0( 98.6¢ 168.4:
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Past stock price performance is not necessariljcatidte of future results. The performance grapbuth not be deemed filed
incorporated by reference into any other of oundi under the Securities Act or the Exchange Aotess we specifically incorporate
performance graph by reference therein.

Equity Compensation Plan Informatiol

In February 2008, our Board of Directors approvea Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. Management Equitgmtive Plan, as amended,
"2008 Incentive Plan") and granted options to pasehour common stock to certain of our officers eamgloyees. In February 2012, our Bc
of Directors adopted the 2012 Performance IncerRiam, as amended (the "2012 Incentive Plan"), vlianore fully discussed in Note 20
Stock-Based Compensation ."

Number of securities to be Number of securities
issued upon exercise of remaining available for
Equity compensation plans not approved by security outstanding options or Weighted-average exercise future issuance under equity
holders vesting of restricted stock price of outstanding options compensation plang?
Stock Options? 8,463,81 $ 12.0¢ 5,613,58!
Restricted Stock’ 1,528,53. — N/A

@ The weighted average remaining contractual lifether options set forth in this row is 8yBars. The number of securities to be issued upercise o
outstanding options includes 231,918 shares relateal rollover option initially signed with an exgive on January 27, 2008, that provided for
conversion of options to purchase shares of thegaomprior to the Acquisition into options to puasie shares of the Company following the Acquis
(the "2008 Rollover Options"), which had an expoatdate of June 17, 2012. On April 16, 2012, themtdn Resources Committee of our Boar
Directors approved an award to replace the 200&%Ra1 Options with an option to purchase an equabunt of shares of our common stock pursua
the 2012 Performance Incentive Plan (the "2012dvell Options"). The 2012 Rollover Options are fullysted, expire in April 2022 and were iss
under the 2012 Incentive Plan.

@ The shares of restricted common stock are issugdrithe 2012 Incentive Pl

) Under the 2012 Incentive Plan, the type and fornawérds that can be granted includes, but is nutdd to, stock options, stock appreciation rig
restricted stock awards and restricted stock units.
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ITEM 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data should bedremconjunction with the consolidated financiatsiments and Item 7, " Management’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations ," of this Form-1Q

(In millions, except per share data) 2013% 2012@ 2011® 2010® 2009 @
OPERATING DATA
Net revenues $ 8,659." $ 8,580.. $ 8,566.t $ 8,547.( % 8,616.(
Write-downs, reserves, and project opening costsoh

recoveries 104.< 99.7 73.€ 149.7 107.¢
Impairment of intangible and tangible assets 3,018.¢ 1,074.: 32.¢ 184.C 1,638.(
Income/(loss) from operatiofis (2,234.9) (319.9 782.% 476.2 (695.5)
Gain/(loss) on early extinguishment of debt (29.9) 136.( 47.¢ 115.€ 4,965.!
Income/(loss) from continuing operations, net @bime taxe§’ (2,909.9) (1,388.7) (731.9 (855.6) 790.2
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, néhobme taxe (30.0 (114.¢ 27.2 21.¢ 32.t
Net income/(lossY’ (2,939.9) (1,502.9) (704.7) (833.9 822.7
Net income/(loss) attributable to Caesdrs (2,948.) (1,508.) (725.0) (841.¢ 803.¢

COMMON STOCK DATA

Basic earnings/(loss) per share from:

Continuing operations $ (2270 $ (11.12) $ (6.02 $ (8.69 $ 5.8¢

Discontinued operations (0.29) (0.99) 0.2 0.2z 0.1€

Net income/(loss) $ (22.95) $ (12.01) $ (5.8() $ (8.4_/) $ 6.04
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share from:

Continuing operations $ (2270 $ (11.12) $ (6.02 $ (8.69 $ 3.6¢

Discontinued operations (0.29) (0.99) 0.2 0.2z 0.1€

Net income/(loss) $ (22.99) $ (12.09 $ (5.80) $ 847 $ 3.8¢4
FINANCIAL POSITION DATA
Total assets $ 24,688.¢ $ 27,998.. $ 28,515.0 $ 28,587. $ 28,979..
Long-term debt, book value 20,918. 20,532.: 19,759.! 18,785.! 18,868.¢
Noncontrolling interest$ 1,218.: 80.1 46.7 39.¢ b5.¢
Stockholders’ equity/(deficity (3,122.0) (411.%) 1,006.° 1,632.¢ (922.9

@ As discussed in Note 21 , " Employee Benefit Plamge elected to change our method of accounting@étuarial gains and losses for our pension pi
the United Kingdom to a more preferable method jiitechunder GAAP. We applied this accounting charggespectively to all periods presented or
noted line items. Also included in this retrospeetapplication was the correction of immateriabesr The increase to pension expense as a resihl¢
accounting change and error correction was $9.8omiin 2013, $10.6 million in 2012, $37.4 million 2011, $10.5 million in 2010, and $23.7 million
2009. The impact on basic and diluted earningspare was $0.07 in 2013, $0.09 in 2012, $0.30 i 28nd $0.11 in 2010. For the year ended Dece
31, 2009, the impact on basic and diluted earniegshare was $0.33 and $0.11, respectively.

@ The increase in noncontrolling interests in 2013 wamarily a result of the CGP LLC transactiore déote £
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ITEM 7. Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition ahResults of Operation:

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith, and is qualified in its entirety by, thedited consolidated financial statem:
and the notes thereto and other financial inforomatncluded elsewhere in this Form KONote references are to the notes to consoli
financial statements included in Item 8, " Finah&8tatements and Supplementary Data ." Certaiersetts in this " ManagemestDiscussio
and Analysis of Financial Condition and ResultsOgferations " are forward-looking statements. SéeniI1A. Risk Factors —-PRIVATE
SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT " of this report.

Overview

We believe we are the world’'s most diversified paséntertainment provider and the most geograpgiodiverse U.S. casino-
entertainment company. As of December 31, 2013 oweed and operated, or managed, through varioosidiaries, 52 casinos in 13.S
states and 5 countries. Of the 52 casinos, 3%atteei United States and primarily consist of l&maded and riverboat or dockside casinos.
13 international casinos are land-based casinost afiavhich are located in England. See Item 2pperties."”

As of December 31, 2013 , our facilities had anragate of approximately three milli@guare feet of gaming space and approxim
42,000 hotel rooms. Our industry-leading custorogelty program, Total Rewards, has approximatelymiion members. We use the Tc
Rewards system to market promotions and to geneustemer play across our network of propertieaddition, we operate an online gan
business that provides certain real money gambieuada, New Jersey, and the United Kingdom; "ptayfdn" offerings in other jurisdiction
social games on Facebook and other social mediaitestand mobile application platforms, such asdftania. We also operate the Wi
Series of Poker tournament and brand.

2013 - Key Business Initiatives and Financing Traagions

In 2013, we made considerable progress in ourtsftoradd to and enhance our hospitality and extenient offerings and invest in me
of our assets, particularly in Las Vegas. We alseehcontinued to focus on our efforts to addresscapital structure and liquidity positic
throughout this past year. As part of these effartigshe fourth quarter of 2013 Caesars consummgtedtransactions, (1) creating our r
CERP financing structure, formed from the prior C®Inancing structure assets plus the additioninf| land Octavius, acquired from CE(
and (2) the closing of transactions forming the r@@P LLC, which we have a majority economic interesd certain management rights
consolidate as a variable interest entity. We ealtinue to place the improvement of the compsafiyiancial position as a key priority in 2(
as we focus particularly on the financial healthCafesars Entertainment Operating Company. Foriadditdetails on these transactions,
Note 5, " Caesars Growth Partners, LLC Transactionsd'Mote 9 , " Debt ."

In addition to the two transactions above, in 2048,also completed the following financing trangat:

* InJanuary and February 2013, CEOC converte®$13illion aggregate principal amount of original maturityaler commitments he
by consenting lenders to Term B-6 Loans and terrach&133.9 million principal amount of revolvingmmitments of extending lenders.

* We completed the offering of $1,500 milliaggregate principal amount of 9% senior securedsndtie 2020, the proceeds were us
repay $1,433.3 million of CEOC's existing term Isa par. In connection with this offering, CEOCawed the requisite lendersdnser
and entered into a bank amendment to its Creditifiesto, among other things: (i) use the nethcpeoceeds of the February 2013 n
offering to repay a portion of CEOEEeXxisting term loans; (ii) obtain up to $75.0 roitl of extended revolving facility commitments wa
maturity of January 28, 2017, which received aljuieed regulatory approvals in April 2013, (iii)cirease the accordion capacity unde
Credit Facilities by an additional $650.0 milliowhich may be used to, among other things, estaldidgended revolving facili
commitments under the Credit Facilities); (iv) nfgdhe calculation of the senior secured leveragm rfor purposes of the maintena
test under the Credit Facilities to exclude theeadssued in February 2013; and (v) modify centélirer provisions of the Credit Facilities.

Property Matters

e The Cromwell temporarily closed in early Februafl2 for renovations. The renovated hotel and caaheoexpected to reopen in
second quarter 2014,

e In March 2013, the 100,000-squdo®t Horseshoe Cincinnati casino in Ohio openediciviive manage for ROC under a manage
agreement.

* In April 2013, the 71,700-squafeet ThistleDown Racino near Cleveland, Ohio opeitsdvideo lottery operations. We manage
facility for ROC under a management agreement.
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* In May 2013, we sold 45% of our subsidiary that ewand operates the Conrad Punta del Este in Urugnagxchange for tot
consideration of $139.5 million. We received $5@#lion in cash (net of $29.7 million of cash deesofidated), a note receivable of $:
million, and a 4.5% equity stake in the acquirimgtg.

e In October 2013, the Company entered into apeagent to sell its 50@om Claridge Hotel Tower adjacent to Bally's inaftic City. The
sale was completed in February 2014.

* In November 2013, we completed the sale of ourésts in the Macau Land Concession for a totaksatiee of $438.0 million, whic
yielded net proceeds $424.9 million to CEOC after commissions and custnntlosing costs.

* In December 2013, we opened the first phase of i€, a $550 million outdoor retail, dining and ertainment district on the east sid
the Las Vegas Strip between the Flamingo Las VegasThe Quad Resort and Casino. Once construdi@omplete, the LINQ w
feature the world’s largest observation wheel,ezhliThe High Roller."

Operating Results - Detailed Information

As described in Note 21 , " Employee Benefit Planim the fourth quarter of 2013, we elected torg our method of accounting
actuarial gains and losses for our pension plahenUnited Kingdom to a preferable method permitiader GAAP. We believe this chai
was preferable because it will result in a methbdnoortization of gains and losses that acceleraesgnition of such gains and losses intc
income for events that have already occurred. We lagplied this change in accounting principleasectively. In addition, we made ot
immaterial corrections to the accounting for thagien plan.

We perform impairment assessments on our goodwil aonamortizing intangible assets at least annually, hotre frequently
impairment indicators exist. We also review theryiag value of our londived assets for impairment whenever events oruaiistance
indicate that the carrying value of an asset (sefagroup) may not be recoverable from the estidhfteire cash flows of that asset (or a
group). We incorporate estimates of our future grenince into these assessments, such as EBITDAnues, cash flows, and other ma
factors, the results of which can often be difféfeom our projections. Based upon the resultshebé assessments, we recorded impairt
totaling $3,018.9 million , $1,074.2 million , a$32.8 millionduring 2013, 2012, and 2011, respectively relatethhgible assets, goodw
and other intangible assets. The 2013 impairmeatges were driven by charges totaling $2,444.5aniih the Atlantic Coast region due
the continued weakness in visitation resulting éargrom intense regional competition. In additiave have experienced negative trenc
operating results in certain other markets, whietulted in impairment charges in addition to thioséne Atlantic Coast region totalirkp74.
million in 2013. The 2013 impairment charges are amongntbst material factors causing the significant uofable net earnings variance:
2013 compared with 2012. As a result of the facteegling to the impairment charges described aboutbly property visitation tren
resulting in part from continued competitive pregsy we continue to consider our participationtegies regionally to better align capa
with demand, which could result in the sale or etesof properties.

Consolidated Operating Results

Percent
Years Ended December 31, Favorable/(Unfavorable)

(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2013 vs 2012 2012 vs 2011
Casino revenues $ 5,808.¢ $ 6,243.( $ 6,389.¢ (7.0% (2.9%
Net revenues $  8,559. $ 8,580. $ 8,566.¢ (0.2)% 0.2%
Income/(loss) from operations $ (2,234 % (319.9 $ 782. (598.5% (140.9%
Loss from continuing operations, net of income saxe $ (2,909.) $ (1,388.) % (731.9) (109.6% (89.9%
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of

income taxes $ (30.0 $ (114¢ $ 27.2 73.€% (519.9%
Net loss attributable to Caesars $ (2948) $ (1,508.) % (725.0 (95.9% (108.0%
Operating margirV (26.1)% (3.1% 9.1% (22.4) pt: (12.8) pt:
Property EBITDA® $ 18766 $ 2028. $ 1,979 (7.9% 2.E%

Casino revenues, net revenues, income from opesatamd loss from continuing operations, net obime taxes for all periods presented in the tabte@lexclude the results
the Harrah's St. Louis casino (sold in November220the Alea Leeds casino (closed in March 2018) the subsidiaries that hold our land concessioMacau (sold i
November 2013), all of which are presented as diiwoed operation:

See footnotes following the Managed, Internatiomalg Other results discussion later in this Manageis Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord dResults ¢
Operations.
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Year ended December 3013compared with year ended DecemberZ112

Net Revenue

Net revenues were relatively unchanged in 2013 2012 as a $434.2 milliodecrease in casino revenues was largely offsendrgase
in passthrough reimbursable management costs, rooms, doddbeverage, and other revenues, coupled withrlpwemotional allowance
Net revenues attributable to CIE increased fromptti@ year due to the combination of the Buffatodos acquisition and continued strer
in the social and mobile games business. Las Vemass and food and beverage revenues grew as k& oésaur increased investment
hospitality offerings in this market.

Casino revenues declined in large part due to tméirtued weakness seen in Atlantic City resultiranT increased regional competiti
Continued softness in the domestic gaming markeeitain other U.S. regional markets outside ofddlavhas also negatively impacted ca
revenues, as has the sale of the Conrad. Slot wdunere down in virtually all domestic markets, i@hable volumes were relatively stro
primarily driven by baccarat in Las Vegas. Casievenues were also negatively affected by increaaedble marketing programs, suct
REEL REWARDS, discounts, and free play, that agaterd as a reduction of revenue, notably in theHayuarter. On a consolidated basis
experienced unfavorable hold in 2013 compared 20h?2. See regional operating results for a morailédtdiscussion of these facts.

On a consolidated basis, rooms revenue increaséd #iillion, or 1.2%, and cash ADR increased by t©%99 in 2013 from $91 in 201
primarily from the March 2013 introduction of resfees at our Nevada properties. Occupancy rateedsed 2.0 percentage points to 88
2013.

Reimbursable management costs increased to $268iannfrom $67.1 million, when compared with the prior year, related to
managed properties, including Horseshoe Clevelavidch opened in May 2012, Horseshoe Cincinnati Wwhapened in March 201
ThistleDown Racino, which commenced video lottemntinal operations in April 2013, and the Caesairsdébr management company, wt
we are now consolidating since increasing our oslmprin the management company from 50% to 100%uime 2012. Reimbursa
management costs are presented on a gross basissase and expense, thus resulting in no net itrgraoperating income.

Loss from Operation

Loss from operations was $2,234.6 million , comgamith $319.9 millionin 2012. During 2013, several indicators arose thatired us 1
test our goodwill, intangible assets and tangildsets for impairment. As a result, we recorded impents of tangible assets of $2,5¢
million, intangible assets of $349.9 million , agdodwill of $104.3 million in 2013, for a total 0$3,018.9 million, compared with tot
impairments of $1,074.2 million in 2012.

Loss from operations also worsened due to the iecionpact of the decline in casino revenues, théevaff of our investment in Suffo
Downs in Massachusetts, and a $52.9 million chéwge contingent earnout liability in 2013 relatedthe Buffalo Acquisition. These ite
were partially offset by a $149.2 milliakecrease in depreciation expense resulting fromtasisat became fully depreciated early in the
quarter 2013.

Net Loss and EBITDA measul

Net loss attributable to Caesars was $2,948.2anillicompared with $1,508.1 millian 2012. In addition to the factors described al,
2013 net loss results include a $152.7 million éase in interest expense, partially offset by ah&anillion favorable change in the loss fr
discontinued operations, net of income taxes, agaimof $44.1 milliorrelated to the sale of 45% of Baluma S.A., whicmswand operates 1
Conrad. Additionally, the loss on early extinguighmthof debt was $29.8 millioim 2013 compared with a gain on early extinguishnoérdeb
of $136.0 million in 2012, driving an unfavorableamge of $165.8 million Casino revenues were 67.9% of net revenue asamuahpo 72.8¢
in 2012. These factors are further described itHe®©Factors Affecting Net Income " that follows di@.

Property EBITDA decreased $151.5 million , or 7.5f6imarily driven by the income impact of the deelin casino revenues and the
of Harrah's St. Louis. Further details on this @AAP financial measure follow herein.

Year ended December 2012compared with year ended December&111

Net revenues for 2012 increased $13.8 millionQ.8f6 , from 201%rimarily due to growth in CIE's social and moliemes business &
from Caesars' management companies, due in p#netopening of Horseshoe Cleveland in May 20These higher revenues were mc
offset by revenue declines in the Atlantic CoasgiBe resulting from continued competitive pressureshat region and hurricanelatec
property closures. All five properties in the AtlanCoast Region had closures during the fourthrtgn®2012due to Hurricane Sandy, wh
made landfall on October 29, 2012. Harrah's Phijdda reopened two days later and the Atlantic @ityperties reopened five days later.
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For 2012 , loss from operations was $319.9 milkompared with income from operations of $782.5iomillin 2011. This change wi
largely due to impairment charges that totaled 4.2 million , comprised primarily of intangibleset impairment charges $295.2 millior
related to goodwill, $209.0 million related to teadarks and $33.0 milliorelated to gaming rights, as well as tangible aigspairment chargt
of $450.0 million related to the tangible asset®é of the properties in the Atlantic Coast Regiod $180.5 milliorrelated to a previous
halted development project in Biloxi, MississipBy comparison, intangible and tangible asset inmpant charges were $32.8 million in 2011
Also contributing to the loss from operations irl2@vas an increase in depreciation expense assoeidttethe opening of the Octavius Tov
at Caesars Palace Las Vegas in January 2012 narghsed corporate expenses and vadens, reserves, and project opening costs, 1
recoveries.

Net loss attributable to Caesars for 2012 incre&s&B.1 million or 108.0% from 2011 primarily due to the increase in loss fi
operations and a net loss from our discontinuedatipes of $114.6 million partially offset by increases in gains on easirguishments ¢
debt and the tax rate benefit as further desciiilbé@ther Factors Affecting Net Income" that folleverein.

Regional Operating Result- Consolidated

The executive officers of our company review ogaratresults, assess performance, and make decisidared to the allocation
resources on a property-ipyeperty basis. We believe, therefore, that eadpenty is an operating segment and that it is gppate tc
aggregate and present the operations of our compamyne reportable segment. To provide more metuingformation than would k
possible on either a consolidated basis or an iiddal property basis, the Company's casino progeednd other operations have been gro
into four regions to facilitate discussion of oyreoating results for each of the regions, irrespeaf which structure the properties belong.
Item 2, " Properties ," for the properties withach region.

Regional Operating Result

Las Veqgas
Percent
Years Ended December 31, Favorable/(Unfavorable)

(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2013vs 2012 2012 vs 2011
Casino revenues $ 1569.0 $ 1641f $ 1,582 (4.9% 3.7%
Net revenues $ 3,070 $ 3,029.¢ $ 3,013. 1.3% 0.6 %
Income from operations $ 527z $ 4287 $ 495t 23.C% (13.9%
Operating margif’ 17.2% 14.1% 16.4% 3.1 pte (2.3) pt
Property EBITDA® $ 8661 $ 8062 $  823.¢ 7.4% (2.0)%

Year ended December 31, 2013 compared with yeadeDécember 31, 2012

Net revenues increased 1.3%mpared with 2012 on increases in rooms, foodteweérage and other revenues, which were largese
by the decline in casino revenues of $72.2 millian 4.4%, compared with the prior year. Casino revenue20it3 were affected by increa:
variable marketing programs and unfavorable holdmtompared with 2012, while gaming volumes renthfted year over year.

Food and beverage revenues increased $55.0 mitlidh 9%, due to the addition of several new resiats including Bacchanal Buffet ¢
Nobu at Caesars Palace and the Gordon Ré-branded restaurants at Caesars Palace, PariBJamet Hollywood.

Rooms revenues increased $30.5 million, or 3.9%naly from resort fees, which contributed to aarease in cash ADR to $102 in 2
from $92 in 2012. However, the region's occupareglided 2.5 percentage points to 92% in 2013, pilyndue to lower group business.

Income from operations increased $98.5 million 2810%, primarily due to the net revenue increases desdrabove and decrease
casino expenses and depreciation expense.

Property EBITDA increased $59.8 million , or 7.4%ainly due to the income impact of higher net reses. Further details on this non:
GAAP financial measure follow herein.
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Year ended December 31, 2012 compared with yeadebDdcember 31, 2011

Net revenues for 2012 increased $16.8 million P&% , compared with 201drimarily due increases in casino revenues and §
revenues. Casino revenues increased 3.7% prinduiyto the strength in the international, hagid gaming segment contributing. Ror
revenue increased 1.9% partly attributable to Hreudry 2012pening of 662 additional rooms in the Octavius €pwat Caesars Palace
Vegas, which was partially offset by a 1.5 percgatpoint decrease in occupancy rates from 2(Rdvenues were negatively impacted by
LINQ project construction activities in 2012 , whiincluded the closure of O’'Shea’s casino and sgvetail outlets at Harrab’'Las Vege
earlier in 2012 , and the ongoing renovation of Thed Resort & Casino.

Income from operations decreased $66.8 million136% , from 2011 primarily due to an increase in property opeagénpenses al
depreciation expense associated with the OctaviugeT at Caesars Palace Las Vegas. In additiomaaadse of $19.7 million in writdewns
reserves, and project opening costs, net of re@s/eglated primarily to increased remediation €asintributed to the income decrease.

Atlantic Coasl

Percent
Years Ended December 31, Favorable/(Unfavorable)
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2013vs 2012 2012 vs 2011
Casino revenues $ 1,272.¢ $ 1,429.¢ $ 1,584 (11.0% (9.89%
Net revenues $ 1,520 $ 1,681. $ 1,839. (9.55% (8.6)%
Income/(loss) from operations $ (2405) $ (39409 $ 79.€ (509.6)% (595.7)%
Operating margift) (158.0)% (23.5% 4.5% (134.6) pt (27.8) pt:
Property EBITDA® $ 203.¢ $ 265.¢ $ 278.1 (23.9)% (4.5%

Year ended December 31, 2013 compared with yeadebDécember 31, 2012

Net revenues decreased $160.4 million , or 9.5%mpared with 2012, primarily due to the declineasino revenues of $157.0 million
or 11.0%, as a result of the continued decline in gaminlgimes in this region compared with 2012, while hadchained relatively flat. Ti
region continues to be affected by ongoing comipetipressure, and visitation to the region's pri@ehas not recovered following Hurrici
Sandy in the fourth quarter 2012.

Loss from operations was $2,405.3 million in 20D8npared with $394.6 millioin 2012, primarily due to tangible and intangibkse
impairment charges totaling $2,444.5 million congohwith $450.0 milliorin 2012, combined with the income impact of lowet revenue
Property operating expenses in 2013 were lower ithdime prior year as a result of decreases inscatstibutable to our cost savings initiati
and depreciation expense declines of $48.5 million.

Property EBITDA declined $62.2 million , or 23.4%ue to the income impact of lower revenues, allytoffset by the decline in prope
operating expense. Further details on this non-GAiA&hcial measure follow herein.

We expect the region will continue to be challengsda result of the competitive pressures. We goatto consider our participati
strategies in this region to better align capaeith demand.

Year ended December 31, 2012 compared with yeadebDdcember 31, 2011

For 2012 , net revenues decreased by $157.8 million8.6% from 2011 primarily due to continued competitive pressuaes th
negative impact of Hurricane Sandy, which forcezldtosure of our properties in Atlantic City fovdidays and our property in Philadelphie
two days in the fourth quarter 2012 . Loss fromrapens was $394.6 million for 2012 compared witbdme from operations &79.6 millior
in 2011 . This change was due largely to a impantnebarge of $450.0 million recorded in the fougtharter 2012elated to tangible assets
one of the properties in the region, with no corapse charge in 2011 , as well as the earnings itrgddower revenues.
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Other U.S.

Percent
Years Ended December 31, Favorable/(Unfavorable)
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2013vs 2012 2012 vs 2011
Casino revenues $ 2,638. $ 2,765.( $ 2,808. (4.6)% (1.5%
Net revenues $ 2924 $ 3,048.¢ $ 3,080.¢ (4.)% 1.0%
Income from operations $ 56.6 % 33z $ 420« 70.E% (92.9%
Operating margirfV 1.8% 1.1% 13.6% 0.8 pt: (12.5) pt:
Property EBITDA® $ 658.C $ 729« $ 682. (9.9% 6.8%

Year ended December 31, 2013 compared with yeadeDécember 31, 2012

Net revenues declined $124.8 million , or 4.19h 2013 compared with the prior year, primariljrihutable to lower visitation to tl
region's properties, driven by competition in tlegional markets and the persistent softness irgbmnal markets as noted above. Ce
revenue declined $126.9 million as a result of uofable hold and weaker slot volumes compared @@h2, while table games volun
increased slightly.

Income from operations improved $23.4 million , 4.5% , as a result of reductions property operating expenses related to I
variable costs and a $45.4 million decrease inatgation expense. Writdewns, reserves, and project opening costs, negaafveries wel
$9.4 million in 2013 compared with $39.3 million 2012, improving 2013 income from operations by .$29illion. Additionally, noneast
impairment charges were $389.2 million in 2013 carad with $408.7 million in 2012.

Property EBITDA declined $71.4 million , or 9.8%ompared with prior year mainly due to the incampact of lower revenues. Furtl
details on this non-GAAP financial measure follogréin.

Year ended December 31, 2012 compared with yeadebDdcember 31, 2011

Net revenues declined $31.8 million , or 1.0%s compared with the prior year primarily dueasino revenue decreases. Casino re\
declines were due to lower visitation to the prtipsrdriven by competition and the persistent ssf#nin regional gaming trends, as well a:
negative impact from Hurricane Isaac, which madefall in Louisiana in August 2012.

Income from operations declined $386.8 million ,9%.1% , primarily due to impairment charges durR@l2 of $408.7 million,
comprised of intangible asset impairment charges186.2 million related to goodwill and $33.0 nuhi related to gaming rights, and tang
asset impairment charges of $180.5 million related halted development project in Biloxi, Missigsi We also recorded a n@ash charge
$20.2 million in 2012 related to exit activitiessasiated with the halted project. The impact of #eve charges was partially offset k
decrease in property operating expenses resuhimg ¢ost savings initiatives.

Certain markets in the Other U.S. region have loatienged by new competition, while others havenbehallenged by lower visitati
trends over time. We continue to evaluate our gigdtion strategies in certain markets to bettignatapacity with demand.

41




Managed, International and Oth:

Years Ended December 31,

Percent

Favorable/(Unfavorable)

(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2013 vs 2012 2012 vs 2011
Net revenues
Managed 318f % 89t % 48.1 255.¢% 86.1%
International 366.: 455.2 452.( (19.5% 0.7%
Other 359.t 275.7 133.7 30.4% 106.2 %
Total net revenues 1,044  $ 820« $ 633.¢ 27.2% 29.4%
Income/(loss) from operations
Managed 204 % 7.C % 6.C 191.¢% 16.7%
International 20.¢ 30.¢ 21.1 (32.9% 46.4%
Other (454.9 (425.)) (239.%) (6.9% (77.9%
Total loss from operations (413.) $ (387.7) $ (212.6) (6.79)% (82.1)%
Operating Margin?
Managed 6.4% 7.8% 12.5% (1.4) pt: (4.7) ptt
International 5.7% 6.6% 4.7% (1.2) pt: 2.10 pt:

Managed properties include companies that opehmee tindianewned casinos, as well as Horseshoe Cleveland,esloog Cincinna
Caesars Windsor, and ThistleDown Racino since Augd$2, when the racetrack was contributed to Rdklo Caesars, LLC, a joint vent
in which Caesars holds a 20% ownership interestnB@sable management costs are presented on silggieis as revenue and expense,
resulting in no net impact on results.

In March 2013, the Company closed the Alea Leedsnoain England and its operating results have bdassified as discontinu
operations for all periods presented and are erddicbm the table above.

In May 2013, the Company sold 45% of its equityeiast in the Conrad, and as a result of this tcimsg no longer consolidates t
property's results of operations, but instead agtofor it as an equity method investment. The altable includes the consolidated resul
the Conrad through May 31, 2013, and the equityhoteincome or loss from operations beginning Jurg013.

In November 2013, we completed the sale of alhefdquity interests of the subsidiaries that heédMlacau Land Concession. As a re
the related operating results have been classiatiscontinued operations for all periods preskatel are excluded from the table above.

Other is comprised of corporate expenses, includidgiinistrative, marketing, and development coBispme from certain non-
consolidated affiliates and the results of CIE. @& majority owned subsidiary of CGP LLC. CIE sahe World Series of Poker brand
operates an online gaming business providing fadatereal money games in Nevada, New Jersey, lentUhited Kingdom; and social gar
on Facebook and other social media websites anderagtplication platforms, such as Slotomania.

Year ended December 31, 2013 compared with yeadebDécember 31, 2012

Increases in reimbursable management costs relatewt managed properties described above and osolkdation of Caesars Wind:
management company since increasing our ownershthe management company from 50% to 100% in J@i2.2Net revenues in t
international region declined $88.9 million , or.8% , in 2013 compared with the prior year, primarik/ aresult of the Conrad sale, wt
resulted in a $73.8 million decrease in net revengembined with net revenue declines at our Lon@trbs properties in 2013 due
competitive pressures.

Other loss from operations was $454.3 million irl20compared with $425.1 milliotihe prior year. This change was primarily due
$101.9 million writeeff of our investment in Suffolk Downs in Massacetis as mentioned above, partially offset by improent in operatir
results of CIE and a $33.6 million decrease in oafe expense.

Year ended December 31, 2012 compared with yeadebDdcember 31, 2011

For 2012 , net revenues increased $186.6 millmn29.4% , from 201 primarily due to increases associated with CIByel as increase
revenues from our new managed casino, Horseshael@tal, which opened in May 20121cluding an increase in reimbursable expensk
Horseshoe Cleveland.
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Loss from operations increased $174.6 million 82r1% , from 2011 primarily due to intangible asset impairment grear of $206.
million related to trademarks, compared with intlfggand tangible asset impairments of $29.8 mriliio 2011. Also contributing to the high
loss from operations are increases in corporaterese of $42.2 milliomesulting from the consolidation of certain funasoat corporate a
increased pension accruals and stock based conjpensapense, partially offset by the income impafancreased revenues and a decrea
$12.5 million in write-downs, reserves, and proj@gening costs, net of recoveries related to Iefiéciency project costs.

@ Operating margin is calculated as income/(losshfoperations divided by net revent
@ See the Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Financial Measudiscussion later in this ManagemsriDiscussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiord
Results of Operations for a reconciliation of rmests| attributable to Caesars to Property EBITDA .

Other Factors Affecting Net Income

Percent
Years Ended December 31, Favorable/(Unfavorable)

(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2013 vs 2012 2012 vs 2011
Interest expense $ (2,253.) $ (2,200.) $ (2,121.) (7.9% 1.C%
Gain/(loss) on early extinguishment of debt (29.9) 136.( 47.¢ (121.9% 183.¢ %
Gain on partial sale of subsidiary 441 — — * *
Income tax benefit 1,549.° 870.t 534.¢ 78.C% 62.€ %
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, néhcbme taxes (30.0 (114.¢) 27.2 73.£% (519.9%

*  Not meaningful

Interest Expens

During the year ended December 31, 2013, intergstrese increased $152.7 million , or 7.3%om 2012 primarily due to higher inter
rates as a result of CEOC's February 2013 9.0%osseicured notes offering, the extension of madsriof CEOC debt, as well as hig
CEOC debt balances and rates on the CERP finaotisgd in 2013. Interest expense for 2013 inclje&34.4 millionof expenses related
derivatives not designated as accounting hedgegi@r&#.0 million of expense due to amortization and reclassificatibdeferred losses
derivative instruments from Accumulated Other Cosmgnsive Loss ("AOCL"). Interest expense for 204@udes (i) $140.0 milliorof
expenses related to derivatives not designatedasiating hedges and (ii) $28.4 milliofiexpense due to amortization and reclassificatii
deferred losses on derivative instruments from AOCL

During the year ended December 31, 2012, intergetrese decreased $21.4 million , or 1.0om 2011 primarily due to a change in
interest rate swap agreements in 2011 offset blyehigterest rates and debit balances. Interestresepfor 2012 included (i) $140.0 millior
expenses related to derivatives not designateda@miating hedges and (ii) $28.4 milliofiexpense due to amortization and reclassificabi
deferred losses on derivative instruments from Augated Other Comprehensive Loss ("AOCL"). Intemgiense for 2011 included a $1¢
million charge as a result of our determinatiort thar interest rate swap agreements no longerfipdhlis hedging instruments for accoun
purposes.

See Note 9, " Debt ," for additional discussionndérest expense.

Gain/(Loss) on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we rezedra loss on early extinguishment of debt of $28ilBon , primarily related to tF
CERP refinancing and additional charges from thmumehase of debt under the CEOC Credit Facilityhim first and third quarters of 20
partially offset by third quarter gains on extingluinent of debt related to purchases of CMBS Loans.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, we rezedra net gain on early extinguishment of debti&6$0 million, primarily due to th
purchase of $367.3 million face value of CMBS debt$229.3 million. This is compared with a gaing7.9 million recognized in 2011.

See Note 9, " Debt ," for additional discussiorextfinguishment of debt.

Gain on Partial Sale of Subsidiary

In connection with the sale of 45% of our interiesthe Conrad, we recognized a gain of $44.1 nmiliio the second quarter 2013. Tt
was no comparable amount in the prior year.
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Income Tax Beneti

The effective tax rate benefit f@013, 2012 and 2011 , wa#.7%, 38.5%and 42.2% , respectivelffhe 2013 effective rate benefit v
primarily impacted by the tax benefits from a cabibss resulting from a tax election made for Ueleral income tax purposes and
reversal of uncertain tax positions offset by thargye in our federal valuation allowance and therded tax implications of the CGP LI
transaction in 2013. The 20E¥Hective tax rate benefit was primarily impactedthe tax benefit from the reversal of uncertai pasition:
offset by the tax effects of nondeductible goodwritipairments. Should the Company continue to erpee operating losses of the s
magnitude it has experienced in the past severaisydt is reasonably possible in the near term tina future reversal of its U.S. fede
deductible temporary differences could exceed tiaré reversal of its U.S. federal taxable tempodifferences, in which case the Comp
would record a valuation allowance for such exe@#is a corresponding reduction of federal incomehanefit on its Consolidated Statem:s
of Operations.

The year-overear decrease in the effective tax rate benefiR@dr2 was, primarily due to (i) nondeductible godbimpairments in 201:
(ii) a decrease in the tax benefit from foreignmapiens in 2012 mostly related to the effect ofyidong deferred taxes on unremitted earn
from foreign subsidiaries in Uruguay that are nogler permanently reinvested, (iii) a decreasedteddeferred tax benefits recognized in -
relative to 2011 mostly as a result of a statewetiring completed in 2011, and (iv) deferred lb@xefits recognized in 2011 from a correc
of the deferred tax liabilities, which were paitiabffset by tax benefits recognized in 2012 frdme tlecrease of uncertain tax positions rel:
to the settlement of a foreign matter and our IR&mnations.

See Note 15, " Income Taxes ," for additional infation.

Income/(Loss) from discontinued operations, néhcdme taxe

During the year ended December 31, 2013, loss thimeontinued operations, net of income taxes wa&s0Billion, primarily comprise
of charges totaling $21.5 million for exit acties and the writelown of intangible and tangible assets relatediéoMarch 4, 2013 closure
the Alea Leeds casino and net write-downs of $5l8om related to our land concession in Macau.

During the year ended December 2012, loss from discontinued operations, net of incdarees was $114.6 millioand included
$101.0 million tangible asset impairment chargatesl to our land concession in Macau.

During the year ended December 2@11, income from discontinued operations, net of inedaxes was $27.3 millicend includedb63.¢
million of income taxes related to the sale of fegrah's St. Louis casino.

Liquidity and Capital Resource

Liguidity Discussion and Analys

We are a highly leveraged company and a signifieenbunt of our liquidity needs are for debt seryiceluding significant intere
payments. As of December 31, 2013, we had $23,58dli®n face value of outstanding indebtedness and ouestdebt service obligati
for 2014 is $2,383.0 million , consisting of $197nlllion in principal maturities and $2,185.9 milfi in required interest payments. Our ¢
service obligation for 2015 is $3,223.7 milliongnsisting of $1,212.2 million in principal matueis and $2,011.5 milliom required intere
payments.

The following table summarizes the annual matwitgéthe face value of our long-term debt as ofddeloer 31, 2013 :

(In millions) 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter Total
CEOC $ 1132 $ 1,108! $ 2084 $ 2715%¢ $ 8447. $ 4,819.¢ $ 19,288.
Less: CEOC to affiliat& — (427.9 (324.5 (390.9 (3.9 — (1,146.6
CERP 35.¢ 33.¢ 31.¢ 25.C 25.1 4,525.( 4,676.
CGPLLC 47.¢ 497.1 2.2 2.2 5.4 216. 770.¢
Total $ 1970 $ 1212. $ 1,793¢ $ 2351.¢ $ 8473. $ 9561.( $ 23,589.

@ Substantially all of these amounts are held by CGE.

See Note 9, " Deht for details on our debt outstanding and restréctovenants related to certain of our borrowirigss detail include
among other things, a table presenting detailsuofidividual borrowings outstanding as of Decem®&r 2013 and 2012, with maturities
year, as well as discussion of recent changes indeht outstanding and certain changes in the terfrexisting debt for the year enc
December 31, 2013.
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Following the U.S. recession of late 2007 throu§b2 we have observed that gaming activity has imedawell below the preecessio
levels. In addition, new competition in certainimwl markets has negatively affected “same stooftimes, while overall slot volumes trei
continue to weaken in most markets. These factave megatively affected our results of operatiams, may continue to negatively affect
results of operations in the future. During periofi®conomic weakness and in the face of contimueak consumer spending on gaming,
revenues may decrease while many of our costs refixed and some costs even increase, resultiggdneased earnings. As a result, we
experienced substantial net losses since 2010glsagvoperating losses in 2012 and 2013, resuitiray net stockholders’ deficit §&3,122.(
million as of December 31, 2013. Further, we expeexperience operating and net losses in 2014apdnd.

Our cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricasti, totaled $2,771.2 million as of December281,3 compared with1,757.5 milliol
as of December 31, 2012 . Cash and cash equivadsnts December 31, 2013 , includes $976.9 milhetd by CGP LLC, which is n
available for our use to fund other Caesars oparaitdr satisfy our obligations.

In addition to cash flows from operations, avakalkburces of cash include amounts available un@@s current revolving cre
facility. At December 31, 2013, the facility proeid for up to $215.5 million , with $109.4 millianaturing on January 28, 2014. As of Me
1, 2014 the facility provided for $106.1 milliomf which $9.6 million remained as available borrog/icapacity. In addition, CERP h&869.t
million available on its revolving credit faciligt December 31, 2013.

Each of the structures comprising Caesars Enteneitis consolidated financial statements have sepaedie ajreements with rela
restrictions on usage of their capital resourc&SPQ@LC is a variable interest entity that is cordatied by Caesars Entertainment. CAC it
managing member of CGP LLC and therefore contribldezisions regarding liquidity and capital restes of CGP LLC.

(Dollars in millions) December 31, 2013
CEOC CERP CGP LLC Parent
Cash, cash equivalents, and short term investriients $ 1,438.: $ 181t % 991.¢ % 159.¢
Revolver capacit{f 215.¢ 269.k — —
Less: revolver capacity committed to letters ofidre (200.5) — — —
Total Liquidity $ 1,553.. $ 4510 $ 991.¢ % 159.¢

' Excludes restricted ca:

@ At December 31, 2013, the CEOC revolver providguhcay up to $215.5 million , however $109.4 mitliof that revolver capacity matured on January2284 and available
capacity is $106.1 million before the letter ofditeommitments.

Restricted cash totaled $424.3 million as of Decem®1, 2013 The current portion is primarily comprised of amts related to intere
payments on outstanding debt and amounts heldigfyseertain insurance program requirements. Toreaurrent portion primarily represe
funds reserved for ongoing development projects.

As a result of the restrictions from CEOC's bormgs, CERP Financing and other arrangements, the@nod restricted net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries held was $3.0 billion &h@ billion , as of December 31, 2013 and 20E3pectively.

The amount of restricted net assets in our uncataeld subsidiaries is not material to the finahstiatements.

Our operating cash inflows are typically used fpe@ting expenses, debt service costs, workingalapeds, and capital expenditure
the normal course of business. We experienced iwegaperating cash flows of $109.4 million 2013, and we also expect to experit
negative operating cash flows in 2014 and beyond.

As described more fully in Note 24 , " Subsequevdris ,"we recently announced that CGP LLC will acquirgtaiarassets from CEC
for $2,000.0 millionin cash, net of assumed debt. The transactiongeatad to close in the second quarter 2014. Theast proceeds w
impact the calculation of the senior secured leyenatio ("SSLR") covenant going forward to theettit reduces first lien debt or incree
cash of CEOC.

From time to time, depending upon market, pricaugg other conditions, and on our cash balancediguidity, we may seek to acquire
exchange notes or other indebtedness of the Cortgpanpsidiaries through open market purchases,tpljvaegotiated transactions, ter
offers, redemption, exchange offers or otherwigmnusuch terms and at such prices as we may detrfoi as may be provided for in
indentures governing the notes), for cash or otbaesideration, including our common stock. In additwe have considered and will conti
to evaluate potential transactions to reduce net deich as debt for debt exchanges, debt foryguithanges and other transactions.
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We do not expect that cash flow from operationd & sufficient to repay CEOC's indebtedness inltmg-term and we will have
ultimately seek a restructuring, amendment or egfaing of our debt, or if necessary, pursue aduifidebt or equity offerings.

Our ability to refinance or restructure our debtimissue additional debt or equity, will depemqmbn, among other things:
» The condition of the capital markets at the timbial is beyond our contr

e Our future financial and operating performance, aihwill be affected by prevailing economic condiigoand financial, busine
regulatory and other factors, many of which arednelyour control; and

» Our continued compliance with the terms and covenanour Credit Facilities, indentures and loareagents that govern our de

Under CEOC's Credit Facilities, we are requireddtisfy and maintain specified financial ratiose8fically, our credit facilities requi
CEOC to maintain an SSLR of no more than 4.75 @9 Which is the ratio of its senior first priorigecured debt to LTM Adjusted EBITDA -
Pro Forma CEOC Restricted. This ratio excludes up to $3,70filon of first priority senior secured notes amp to $350.0 million aggreg:
principal amount of consolidated debt of subsidsrihat are not whollgwned. This ratio also reduces the amount of seiiigtr priority
secured debt by the amount of unrestricted CEO@ oashand which was $ 1,450.2 millias of December 31, 2013. As of Decembe
2013, the SSLR was 4.52 to 1.0.

While we were in compliance with the terms and c¢oows of all of our loan agreements, including GE® Credit Facilities ar
indentures, as of December 31, 2013, in order moptp with the quarterly SSLR covenant under the CEQredit Facility in the future, we w
need to achieve a certain amount of LTM AdjustedTEB\ - Pro-Forma -CEOC Restricted and/or reduced levels of total CEE®@or secure
net debt (total senior secured debt less unrestiricash). The factors that could impact the forgg@iclude (a) changes in gaming trips, sj
per trip and hotel metrics, which we believe areradated to consumer spending and confidence giynenad spending by consumers
gaming and other entertainment activities, (b) aifity to effect cost savings initiatives, (c) oaiility to complete asset sales, including
transaction described more fully in Note 24, (duisg additional second lien or unsecured debproject financing, (e) reducing net d
through open market purchases, privately negotiaitatactions, redemptions, tender offers or exgésn(f) equity issuances, (g) reductior
capital expenditures spending, or (h) a combinatieneof.

In addition, under certain circumstances, CEOC&d{f-acilities allow us to apply cash contribusaeceived by CEOC from CEC as
increase to LTM Adjusted EBITDA - Pro Forma - CE®Estricted, if CEOC is unable to meet its SSLR cawd, in order to cure any breach.

Based upon our current operating forecast, the a@geclosing of the CEOC asset sale to CGP LLCrdest above, and our ability
achieve one or more of the other factors noted ebimeluding our ability to cure a breach of the@E SSLR, in certain circumstances, \
cash contributions from CEC, we believe that we hélve sufficient liquidity to fund our operatioasd meet our debt service obligations
that we will continue to be in compliance with BEOC SSLR covenant during the next twelve months.

Effective February 8, 2012, as the result of oitiahpublic offering, our common stock trades dre tNASDAQ Global Select Mark
under the symbol "CZR." The net proceeds from aitral public offering were approximately $15 mdlh, taking into account expenses
underwriting commissions, and giving effect to thesrcise of the underwriters' ovaltetment option. In connection with the public exihg
we effected a 1.742-for-1 split of our common stock

In March 2012, we filed a prospectus with the SEECpart of a registration statement, to sell shaffesir common stock, up to a maxim
aggregate offering price of $500.0 million, and Aipril 2012, we entered into an equity distributiagreement whereby we may issue anc
up to 10.0 million shares of our common stock fitimme to time.

On September 25, 2013, Caesars entered into amwnititey agreement for the sale of 10.0 million s#sof its common stock, par va
$0.01 per share. The underwriter agreed to purctiesseommon stock from Caesars at a price of $1petOshare, which resulted in $1¢
million of proceeds to Caesars before expensesS&ptember 27, 2013, the underwriter exercisedpt®m to purchase 340,418 additic
shares of common stock, resulting in approxima$élyp million of additional proceeds to Caesars leefixpenses. These transactions clos:
October 1, 2013, and resulted in $200.6 millior@sh proceeds to Caesars before expenses.
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CEOC Financing, Debt Covenant Compliance and Regirs

CEOC Credit Facilities

As of December 31, 2013 , CEOC's Credit Facilipesvide for senior secured financing of up to $8,82million, consisting of (i) senir
secured term loan facilities in an aggregate ppgciamount of $4,412.6 million with $29.0 milliomaturing on January 28, 20
$959.8 million maturing on October 31, 2016 (thectemental Loans"), and $3,423.8 millioraturing on January 28, 2018, and (ii) a s¢
secured revolving credit facility in an aggregatmgipal amount of up to $215.5 million , with $1@9illion maturing January 28, 2014, :
$106.1 million maturing January 28, 2017, includbath a letter of credit sub-facility and a swimgliloan subfacility. The term loans und
the CEOC Credit Facilities require scheduled quigrigayments of $2.5 million , with the balance duenaturity. As of December 31, 2013
$100.5 million of the revolving credit facility is committed to wstanding letters of credit. After consideration tbie letter of cred
commitments, $115.0 milliorof additional borrowing capacity was available tee tCompany under its revolving credit facility at
December 31, 2013 .

The indenture and other agreements governing alr gay debt and PIK toggle debt limit CEOC’s (armstrof its subsidiariesability to
among other things: (i) incur additional debt auis certain preferred shares; (ii) pay dividendmake distributions in respect of our cay
stock or make other restricted payments; (iii) me&dain investments; (iv) sell certain assetsefWage in any business or own any ma
asset other than all of the equity interest of CES8Qong as certain investors hold a majority &f tiotes; (vi) create or permit to exist divid
and/or payment restrictions affecting its restdcseibsidiaries; (vii) create liens on certain assetsecure debt; (viii) consolidate, merge, sk
otherwise dispose of all or substantially all sfédissets; (ix) enter into certain transactions ustlaffiliates; and (x) designate its subsidiae
unrestricted subsidiaries. Subject to certain etieep, the indenture governing the notes and tmeemgents governing the other cash pay
and PIK toggle debt will permit us and our rese&ttsubsidiaries to incur additional indebtednesduding secured indebtedness.

CEOC Credit Facilities Activity

A substantial portion of our financing is compriseidcredit facility and notes financing obtained 6%£OC. The CEOC financings
neither secured nor guaranteed by Caesars’ othsidsaries, including certain subsidiaries that gwoperties that secure $4,650.0 millface
value of the CERP Term Loans as of December 313 201 addition, CGP LLC, a consolidated VIE, is moguarantor and its assets are
available to CEOC's creditors. Information pertagnsolely to the consolidated financial position aasults of CEOC and its subsidiaries
be provided in a report on Form 8-K which will bled later in March 2014.

In February 2013, CEOC amended the CEOC Credififf@giin connection with the February 2013 notéfering discussed in the CE(
Bond Offerings Activity section above.

During 2012, we (i) extended the maturity of $3,81&illion B-1, B-2 and B3 term loans held by consenting lenders from Jan2a
2015 to January 28, 2018 and increased the intetsstvith respect to such extended term loans"{teem B-6 Loans"), (ii) convertefl457.¢
million original maturity revolver commitments helhy consenting lenders to Term@koans and promptly following such conversion,aie
$1,574.3 million of Term B-6 Loans held by any cemisng lender, (iii) extended the maturity of $3Tr@lion original maturity revolve
commitments held by consenting lenders who electédo convert their commitments to term loans fréanuary 28, 2014 to January 28, 2
and increased the interest rate and the undrawmdaoment fee with respect to such extended revateanmitments, and upon the effectiver
of such extension, terminated $798.5 million ofaleer commitments and increased the amount of audéhg Term B-6 Loans b$2,853.!
million , and (iv) modified certain other provisiemof the CEOC Credit Facilities. The Term6B-oans have a springing maturity to April
2017 if more than $250.0 million of CEOC's 11.2584isr secured notes due 2017 remain outstandirfgpah14, 2017.

In addition to the foregoing, CEOC may from time time elect to extend and/or convert additionaimtdoans and/or revolv
commitments.

In January and February 2013, CEOC converted $188li®n aggregate principal amount of original maturitygker commitments he
by consenting lenders to Term B-6 Loans and terrach&133.9 million principal amount of revolvingmmitments of extending lenders.
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CEOC Debt Covenant Compliance and Restrictions

In addition, certain covenants contained in the CEDedit Facilities and indentures covering theosdcpriority senior secured notes
first priority senior secured notes restrict ouiligbto take certain actions such as incurring iiddal debt or making acquisitions if we
unable to meet a fixed charge coverage ratio (LTéjusted EBITDA - Pro FormaCEOC Restricted to fixed charges) of at leastt@.0.0, :
total first priority secured leverage ratio (fipgtiority senior secured debt to LTM Adjusted EBITDAPro Forma -CEOC Restricted) of 1
more than 4.5 to 1.0 and/or a consolidated leveratie (consolidated total debt to LTM Adjusted BBIA - Pro Forma -CEOC Restricted) 1
no more than 7.25 to 1.0. As of December 31, 2CE)C's total first priority secured leverage ratia consolidated leverage ratio weér@€
to 1.0 and 14.42 to 1.0, respectively. For the yemted December 31, 2013, CEOC's earnings werigisnot to cover fixed charges I$§782.¢
million . For purposes of calculating the fixed charge cage ratio, fixed charges includes consolidateer@st expense less interest inc
and any cash dividends paid on preferred stockefatfian amounts eliminated in consolidation). Forppses of calculating the total f
priority secured leverage ratio and the consolidiétgerage ratio, the amounts of CEOC first prjosnior secured debt and consolidated
debt, respectively, are reduced by the amount m#atricted cash on hand. The covenants that prdeidéhe fixed charge coverage ratio, t
first priority secured leverage ratio and consdkddeverage ratio described in this paragrapmarenaintenance covenants.

CEOC's Credit Facilities require compliance on artprly basis with a maximum net senior secured fien debt leverage test. In additi
the Credit Facilities include negative covenantshject to certain exceptions, restricting or limiti CEOCS ability and the ability of i
restricted subsidiaries to, among other thingsin@yr additional debt; (ii) create liens on certaissets; (iii) enter into sale and lehset
transactions; (iv) make certain investments, loans, advances; (v) consolidate, merge, sell, cgrotise dispose of all or any part of its as
or to purchase, lease, or otherwise acquire adlngr substantial part of assets of any other persdnpay dividends or make distributions
make other restricted payments; (vii) enter intotaie transactions with its affiliates; (viii) engg in any business other than the bus
activity conducted at the closing date of the laanbusiness activities incidental or related theréix) amend or modify the articles
certificate of incorporation, blaws, and certain agreements or make certain pagnoermodifications of indebtedness; and (x) desigro
permit the designation of any indebtedness as {peséd Senior Debt."

Caesars Entertainment is not bound by any finamciakgative covenants contained in CE©&'edit agreement, other than with respe
the incurrence of liens on and the pledge of iislsbf CEOC.

All borrowings under the senior secured revolvingrtipn of the CEOC Credit Facility are subject twe tsatisfaction of customs
conditions, including the absence of a default,abeuracy of representations and warranties, amdettjuirement that such borrowing does
reduce the amount of obligations otherwise pernhittebe secured under our Credit Facilities withatably securing the retained notes.

CEOC Bond Offerings Activity

In February 2012, CEOC completed the offering o2%$0.0 million aggregate principal amount of 8.5&nior secured notes due 2(
CEOC used $1,095.6 millioof the net proceeds from this transaction to repayprtion of the CEOC Credit Facilities in connentiwith the
consummation of the transactions as further desdritmder the CEOC Credit Facilities section below.

In August 2012, CEOC completed the offering of $05@illion aggregate principal amount of 9énior secured notes due 2020. Ci
used $478.8 millionof the net proceeds from this transaction to repagortion of the CEOC Credit Facilities in connentiwith the
consummation of the transactions as further desdrimder the CEOC Credit Facilities section below.

In December 2012, CEOC completed the offering &0BF million aggregate principal amount of @¥nior secured notes due 2020,
proceeds of which were placed into escrow andegerded as shoterm restricted cash in our Consolidated Balan@eths of December !
2013. On February 20, 2013, when the proceeds re@ased from escrow, CEOC used $350.0 milliorhefgroceeds to repay a portion of
existing loans under the CEOC Credit Facilitiepat

In February 2013, CEOC completed the offering ab6$0.0 million aggregate principal amount of 8&nior secured notes due 2020
March 27, 2013, when the proceeds were released észrow, CEOC used $1,433.3 milliohthe proceeds to repay a portion of the exi
term loans under the CEOC Credit Facilities at para result of these repayments, we recognizests dn early extinguishment of deb
$29.4 million during the first quarter of 2013. tmnnection with the February 2013 notes offeringEOC received the requisite lenders
consents and entered into a bank amendment toECCredit Facilities to, among other things:

(i) use the net cash proceeds of February 201sraifering to repay $1,433.3 million of CEG@xisting term loans as described ab
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(i) obtain up to $75.0 milliomf extended revolving facility commitments with amarity of January 28, 201

(iii) increase the accordion capacity under the CEOCiCredilities by an additional $650.0 milliomvhich may be used, among ot
things, to establish extended revolving facilityrenitments under the CEOC Credit Facilities);

(iv) modify the calculation of the senior secured legergatio for purposes of the maintenance test utidelCEOC Credit Facilities
exclude the February 2013 notes; and

(v) modify certain other provisions of the CEOC Crdsdicilities

CERP Financing, Debt Covenant Compliance and R#g&iris

CMBS Financing refinanced as part of CERP Financing

In connection with the Acquisition, eight of ouroperties (the “CMBS propertiesgnd their related assets were spun out of CEC
Caesars Entertainment. As of the Acquisition ditte, CMBS properties were Harrah's Las Vegas, Ramingo Las Vegas, Harrah's Atlar
City, Showboat Atlantic City, Harrah's Lake Tahétgrveys Lake Tahoe and Bill's Lake Tahoe. The CMB&perties borrowed $6,50!
million of CMBS financing (the “CMBS Financing”)The CMBS Financing was secured by the assets 0€CMBS properties and cert:
aspects of the financing were guaranteed by Caé&sdestainment. On May 22, 2008, Paris Las VegasHarrah's Laughlin and their rela
operating assets were spun out of CEOC to Caesdest&inment and became property secured undeC @S mortgage loan and/or rela
mezzanine loans (“CMBS Loans"and Harrah's Lake Tahoe, Harveys Lake Tahoe, Billke Tahoe and Showboat Atlantic City w
transferred to CEOC from Caesars Entertainmenpatemplated under the debt agreements effectiveuput to the Acquisition. The CMI
Financing was refinanced in October 2013 as desdtielow.

Octavius/Ling Financingrefinanced as part of CERP Financing

On April 25, 2011, the Company, together with dartubsidiaries of CEOC comprised of Caesars OataviLC; Caesars Ling, LLC; a
Octavius Ling Holding Company, LLC (collectivelyaliBorrowers”) entered into a credit agreement (fDetavius/Ling Credit Agreemeny”
pursuant to which the Borrowers incurred finandiogomplete the development of the Octavius TovweCaesars Palace Las Vegas ant
Ling project (the "Development"). The Octavius/Li@gedit Agreement provides for a $450.0 million isersecured term facility (theTermr
Facility”) with a sixyear maturity, secured by all material assets efBbrrowers. The proceeds of the Term Facility wareled during th
second quarter of 2011 and were classified adetestrcash until drawn to pay for costs incurrethim Development.

In October 2013, the Ling and Octavius Tower weengferred from CEOC to a CERP entity, and amowontstanding under t|
Octavius/Ling Credit Agreement were refinanced as of this CERP Financing transaction as descriteddw.

On October 11, 2013, we formed CERP from the p@iMBS Financing structure assets plus the additiohireg and Octavius acquir
from CEOC, and (i) completed the offering of $1,@illion aggregate principal amount of their 8¥stfpriority senior secured notes ¢
2020 and $1,150 million aggregate principal amafrtheir 11% second-priority senior secured notes #8021 (together with the 8% first-
priority senior secured notes due 2020, the "N¢tast] (ii) entered into a first lien credit agreerngoverning their new $2,769.5 million setr
secured credit facilities, consisting of seniorsed term loans in an aggregate principal amou®2¢500.0 million ("CERP Term Loans") ¢
a senior secured revolving credit facility in amgeggate principal amount of up to $269.5 milliowe refer to this new borrowing structure
CERP and the refinancing transaction as "CERP Eingr

The CERP Financing includes negative covenantgesutn certain exceptions, restricting or limitittge ability of CERP and operati
companies under the CERP Financing to, among tiregs: (i) incur additional debt or issue certpmaferred shares; (ii) pay dividends ol
make distributions in respect of their capital &toc make other restricted payments; (iii) makeaiarinvestments; (iv) sell certain assets
create liens on certain assets to secure debtz@gugolidate, merge, sell, or otherwise disposalair substantially all of their assets; (vii) el
into certain transactions with their affiliatesdafviii) designate their subsidiaries as unrestdcubsidiaries.

The CERP Financing also includes affirmative covésdhat require the CERP properties to, amongrdtiiegs: (i) maintain its leg
existence; (ii) maintain required insurance coverdgi) pay all taxes when due; (iv) furnish reaad financial statements and complic
certificates to the lenders; (v) furnish requiredti@n notices to the lenders; (vi) comply with &ws and regulations from applica
governmental authorities (including environmentaks); (vii) maintain all records and allow accesddnders upon request; (viii) use
proceeds in the manner set forth in the creditegent; and (ix) maintain required debt ratings.
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In addition, the CERP Term Loans require CERP tintam a senior secured leverage ratio of no micaa 8.000 1.00, which is the rat
of first lien senior secured net debt to earningfole interest, taxes, depreciation and amortimatamljusted as defined ("CERP Adjus
EBITDA"). This ratio also reduces the amount osffitien senior secured net debt by the amount oéatricted cash on hand. CERP is
required to calculate its senior secured leverage until the first quarter of 2014.

CGP LLC Financing and Debt Covenant Compliance

PHW Las Vegas LLC Senior Secured Loan

In February 2010, CEOC acquired 10@¥the equity interests of PHW Las Vegas, LLC, whavns Planet Hollywood. In connect
with this transaction, PHW Las Vegas, LLC assumebb54.3 millionface value senior secured loan, and a subsidiai@E®C cancele
certain debt issued by PHW Las Vegas, LLC's prestmreentities. The outstanding amount is securethdwassets of PHW Las Vegas, L
and is non-recourse to other subsidiaries of tha@2my. On December 5, 2013, the loan maturity isfdebt was extended to April 2015.

In October 2013, CEOC sold 100% of its equity iestin PHW Las Vegas, LLC to CGP LLC. Prior tostde in PHW Las Vegas, LI
was an unrestricted subsidiary of CEOC and theeefwot a borrower under CEOC's Credit Facilities.

PHW Las Vegas, LLC may, at its option, voluntandsepay the loan in whole or in part upon twenty)(@8ys prior written notice
Lender. PHW Las Vegas, LLC is required to pregeyloan in (i) the amount of any insurance proceedsived by Lender for which Lent
is not obligated to make available to PHW Las Veda<C for restoration, (ii) the amount of any preds received from the operator of
timeshare property adjacent to the Planet HollywBedort and Casino, subject to certain limitaticarg] (iii) the amount of any excess ¢
remaining after application of the cash managermemntisions as outlined in the loan agreement, asnaied.

The PHW Las Vegas, LLC senior secured loan requirasPHW Las Vegas, LLC maintain certain reserved$ in respect of furnitul
fixtures, and equipment, capital improvements,regeservice, taxes and insurance. Certain amalamtssited into the specified reserve fu
represent restricted cash.

The amount outstanding under the PHW Las Vegas, $é1Gor secured loan were assumed by CGP LLC ijunotion with its acquisitio
by CGP LLC and bears interest at a rate per anrguraléo LIBOR plus 2.859% . A subsidiary of CEOCrmainteresbnly participations in
portion of the PHW Las Vegas, LLC senior securethlthat bear interest at a fixed rate equal to%.p@er year.

The PHW Las Vegas, LLC loan contains customaryratitive covenants, subject to certain excepticgmiring PHW Las Vegas, LLC"
among other things, deliver annual financial staets, annual budgets, maintain its properties, taairits books and records, maini
insurance, and comply with laws and material ca$ralt also contains customary negative covenantgect to certain exceptions, restric
or limiting the ability of PHW Las Vegas, LLC tomang other things, dispose of its assets and chigm@peisiness or ownership, consumr
mergers or acquisitions and create liens on itstasBHW Las Vegas, LLC is in compliance with thex® covenants as of December 31, 2

Horseshoe Baltimore Financing

On July 2, 2013, CBAC Borrower, LLC (“CBAC"j joint venture among Caesars Baltimore Investr@@mpany, LLC (a wholly owne
indirect subsidiary of CEOC), Rock Gaming MothepshLC, CVPR Gaming Holdings, LLC, STROMD Limited Partnership and PRT Tv
LLC, entered into a credit agreement (the “Baltism@redit Facility”)in order to finance the acquisition of land in Baltre, Maryland and tt
construction of the Horseshoe Baltimore and a gafagllectively, the “Baltimore Developmentn October 2013, CEOC sold 100% of
equity interests in Caesars Baltimore Investmenin@any, LLC to CGP LLC. AS part of this transacti®®@GP LLC assumed all relal
outstanding debt under the Baltimore Credit Facilit

The Baltimore Credit Facility provides for (i) aCkRO million senior secured term facility with aszeayear maturity, which is compris
of a $225.0 million facility that was funded updretclosing of the Baltimore Credit Facility, a $8illion delayed draw facility availak
from the closing of the Baltimore Credit Facilitytil the 12month anniversary of the closing and a $37.5 mmlldelayed draw facilit
available until the 18-month anniversary of thesagig and (ii) a $10.0 million senior secured reumdvfacility with a fiveyear maturity. Th
Baltimore Credit Facility is secured by substahtiall material assets of CBAC and its wholly owngoimestic subsidiaries. There were
amounts outstanding under the revolving facilitypb®ecember 31, 2013.

Concurrent with the closing of the Baltimore Crelicility, CBAC also entered into a term loan faigithat provides for up to $3C
million of equipment financing (the “Baltimore FF&Eacility”). Under the Baltimore FF&E Facility, CBAC may use disnfrom the facility t
finance or reimburse the purchase price and cenalisted costs of furniture, furnishings and equépinto be used in the Baltim
Development. There were no amounts outstandingruhdeBaltimore FF&E Facility as of December 311320
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The Baltimore Credit Facility contains customarfirafative covenants, subject to certain exceptiarguiring CBAC to, among ott
things, deliver annual and quarterly financial esta¢nts (following the commencement of operationthefBaltimore Development), ann
budgets, construction progress reports and oth@casy maintain its properties, maintain its bo@ksl records, maintain insurance,
commercially reasonable efforts to maintain a pubditing for the term loans and comply with lawsl anaterial contracts. It also conte
customary negative covenants, subject to certabemions, restricting or limiting the ability of @& to, among other things, dispose o
assets and change its business or ownership, comst@mmergers or acquisitions, make dividends, stepkrchases and optional redempt
of subordinated debt, incur debt and issue preafesteck, make loans and investments, create linnts@ssets and enter into transactions
affiliates. In addition, the Baltimore Credit Fatgilincludes a covenant prohibiting the senior seddeverage ratio from exceeding a spec
ratio at any time after the second full fiscal deaaending after the commencement of operatioribe@Baltimore Development. The Baltim
FF&E Facility has covenants and events of defaultstantially consistent with the Baltimore CredécHity, and other restrictive covena
customary for FF&E facilities of this type. CBACIis compliance with the Baltimore Credit FacilitycaBaltimore FF&E Facility covenants
of December 31, 2013.

CIE Convertible Notes

During 2012, CIE issued to Rock Gaming two non+ieé bearing convertible promissory notes totadd.7 million. The promissol
notes are convertible into approximately 8,913 etaf CIE common stock. The notes are due June &fd are classified as current portio
long-term debt.

Cost Savings Initiatives

The Company has undertaken comprehensiveredsiction efforts to manage expenses with currasiness levels. We estimate that
cost savings programs produced $12.1 million irrdnmeental cost savings for the year ended Decenthe2@13 compared with 2012
Additionally, as of December 31, 2013, the Compearpects that these and other identified new coshga programs will produce furtt
annual cost savings of $91.4 milliotrased on the full implementation of current petgehat are in process. As the Company realizésgs
or identifies new cost-reduction activities, this@unt will change.

Capital Spending and Development

We incur capital expenditures in the normal cowkéusiness, and we perform ongoing refurbishmeut maintenance at our exist
casino entertainment facilities, to maintain ousligy standards. We also continue to pursue dewedop and acquisition opportunities
additional casino entertainment and other hospijtddicilities, as well as online businesses thaetmmur strategic and return on investn
criteria. Cash used for capital expenditures in tbemal course of business is typically made abdldrom cash flows generated by
operating activities, established debt programd, @sset sale proceeds, while cash used for develuppnojects, including projects currei
under development and additional projects beingsymd, is typically funded from established debtgpams, specific project financir
additional debt offerings, and asset sale proceeds.

If they proceed, our planned development projedts each require significant capital commitmentdaif completed, may result
significant additional revenues. The commitmentapital, the timing of completion, and the commenest of operations of developm
projects are contingent upon the negotiationsrafl fagreements and political and regulatory appsoes well as other contributing factors.
must also comply with covenants and restrictionga¢h in our debt agreements.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 , our cagptaiding totaled $726.3 million , net of an inceeag$18.5 millionof related payable
Estimated total capital expenditures for 2014 aqgeeted to be between $950.0 million and $1,150ltom , and will be primarily related
the Horseshoe Baltimore development, renovation3 i@ Quad and The Cromwell, and planned maintemaapital expenditures. We exf
to utilize existing project financing for the Hosbme Baltimore and The Cromwell renovation of agpnately $400.0 millionand fund th
remainder from cash flows generated by our opagataiivities and asset sale proceeds.

Summary of Capital Expenditures

Percent
Years Ended December 31, Increase/(Decrease)
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2011 2013 vs 2012 2012 vs 2011
Development $ 3222 $ 232.¢ $ 98.( 38.4% 137.6%
Renovation/refurbishment 323.¢ 227.1 160.( 42.8% 41.%
Other 80.7 47.2 14.¢ 71.(% 225.5%%
Total capital expenditures $ 726.5 % 507.1 $ 272.5 43.2% 86.1%
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Our capital expenditures in 2013 , 2012 , and 2@tluded capitalized payroll costs of $8.4 milligi$7.3 million , and $4.1 million
respectively. Interest capitalized was $37.8 millj&38.2 million , and $22.8 million in 2013, 2012nd 2011, respectively.

Capital expenditures increased $219.2 million in@26ompared with 2012primarily due to development expenditures assediavith the
LINQ project and Horseshoe Baltimore, renovatiormfbé Cromwell, and the accelerated pace of ourvaiom and refurbishment project:
various other properties. The $234.6 milliocrease in 2012 compared with 2011 was primarilg tb development expenditures assoc
with the LINQ project.

Property Disposition:

Our cash flows from operating, investing, and ficiag activities for the 12 months ended Decembe2813 , 2012 and 201 lassociate
with the Harrah's St. Louis casino and the subsatighat hold our land concession in Macau, wlieghdefined as discontinued operations
included in our Consolidated Statements of Caslv&las cash flows from discontinued operations. Wlé the Harrah's St. Louis casinc
November 2012, and the net proceeds generatedtfrersale are being used and will continue to be esdund investments by CEOC
useful assets, including capital expenditures. &ds not used for investments by CEOC in usefdtasscluding capital expenditures, r
be required to be used to repurchase CEOC debt.
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Reconciliation of Noi-GAAP Financial Measures

Property EBITDA is presented as a supplemental oreasf the Company's performance. Property EBITBAléfined as revenues |
property operating expenses and is comprised ofheeme/(loss) before (i) interest expense, nehtrest income, (ii) (benefit)/provision
income taxes, (iii) depreciation and amortizati@w), corporate expenses, and (v) certain itemstti@tCompany does not consider indicativ
its ongoing operating performance at an operatiopgrty level. In evaluating Property EBITDA youosiid be aware that, in the future,
Company may incur expenses that are the same daistmsome of the adjustments in this presentafitne presentation of Property EBITI
should not be construed as an inference that fuasdts will be unaffected by unusual or unexpedems.

Property EBITDA is a noGAAP financial measure commonly used in the Comfgamdustry and should not be construed a
alternative to net income/(loss) as an indicatoopérating performance or as an alternative to fash provided by operating activities a
measure of liquidity (as determined in accordanith BAAP). Property EBITDA may not be comparablestmilarly titled measures repori
by other companies within the industry. Property HBA is included because management uses Prop&iyEA to measure performance ¢
allocate resources, and believes that Property BBIprovides investors with additional informatioarssistent with that used by management

Reconciliation of Net Loss Attributable to Caesargo Property EBITDA

Year Ended December 31, 2013

Managed,
Atlantic International, Other

(In millions) Las Vegas Coast Other U.S. and Other Adjustments Total
Net loss attributable to Caesars $ (2,948.)
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests 8.4
Net loss (2,939.9
Loss from discontinued operations, net of inconxesa 30.C
Net loss from continuing operations, net of incdarees (2,909.9
Income tax benefit (1,549.)
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (4,459.9)
Other income, including interest income (13.§)
Gain on partial sale of subsidiary (44.7)
Loss on early extinguishments of debt 29.¢
Interest expense 2,253.(
Income/(loss) from operations $ 527  $ (2,405.) $ 56.6 $ (413.)) (2,234.9
Depreciation and amortization 233.7 1312 166. 33.¢ 565.2
Amortization of intangible assets 76.C 15.2 37.C 36.2 164.5
Intangible and tangible asset impairment charges 5.5 2,444.} 389.2 179.% 3,018.¢
Write-downs, reserves, and project opening costsph

recoveries 26.¢ 17.7 9.4 50.£ 104.
Acquisition and integration costs — — — 81.c 81.2
(Income)/loss on interests in non-consolidatediafiis (3.2 — 0.6) 21.¢ 17.€
Corporate expense — — — 161.4 161.c
EBITDA attributable to discontinued operations $ (2.3 2.1
Property EBITDA $ 866.1 $ 203.¢ $ 658.( $ 151.2 $ 21 $ 1,876.¢
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(In millions)

Net loss attributable to Caesars

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net loss

Loss from discontinued operations, net of inconxesa
Net loss from continuing operations, net of incamees
Income tax benefit

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes
Other income, including interest income

Gain on early extinguishment of debt

Interest expense

Income/(loss) from operations

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of intangible assets

Intangible and tangible asset impairment charges

Write-downs, reserves, and project opening costsoh
recoveries

Acquisition and integration costs

(Income)/loss on interests in non-consolidatediatiis
Corporate expense

EBITDA attributable to discontinued operations
Property EBITDA

(In millions)

Net loss attributable to Caesars

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interests
Net loss

Loss from discontinued operations, net of inconxesa
Net loss from continuing operations, net of incamees
Income tax benefit

Loss from continuing operations before income taxes
Other income, including interest income

Gain on early extinguishment of debt

Interest expense

Income/(loss) from operations

Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of intangible assets

Intangible and tangible asset impairment charges

Write-downs, reserves, and project opening costsoh
recoveries

Acquisition and integration costs

(Income)/loss on interests in non-consolidatediatiis
Corporate expense

EBITDA attributable to discontinued operations
Property EBITDA

Year Ended December 31, 2012

Managed,
Atlantic International, Other
Las Vegas Coast Other U.S. and Other Adjustments Total
$ (1,508.)
5.2
(1,502.9
114.¢
(1,388.9)
(870.9
(2,258.)
(25.5
(136.0
2,100.:
428.7 (3946 $ 33z % (387.9) (319.9
268.2 179.7 211.¢ 54.F 714.¢
75.¢ 16.C 37.C 45.¢ 174.¢
3.C 450.( 408.7 212t 1,074.
33.1 12.2 39.2 15.1 99.7
— — — 6.1 6.1
(2.6) 2.2 (0.6) 18.5 17.5
— — — 195.( 195.(
66.5 66.5
806.% 265.€ $ 729.¢ $ 160.2 66.5 $ 2,028.:
Year Ended December 31, 2011
Managed,
Atlantic International, Other
Las Vegas Coast Other U.S. and Other Adjustments Total
$ (725.0
20.¢
(704.7)
(27.9
(731.9
(534.6
(1,266.0
(25.9
(47.9
2,121.°
495.¢ 796 % 419.6 3 (212.9) 782.f
238.¢ 174.2 210.: 54.1 677.(
76.4 15.1 37.2 28.C 156.7
— — 3.C 29.¢ 32.¢
13.4 6.€ 13.2 40.€ 73.€
0.2 — — 4.1 4.3
0.3 2.5 (0.7) 6.4 7.8
— — — 152.¢ 152.¢
91.t 91.t
823.¢ 278.1 $ 682.7 $ 103.¢ 91.t $ 1,979.:
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

We prepare our financial statements in conformith WAAP. Certain of our accounting policies, inding the estimated lives assigne
our assets, the determination of bad debt, asgetiiment, Total Rewards point liability, séftfsurance reserves, the purchase price alloc:
made in connection with our acquisitions/mergédrs,dalculation of our income tax liabilities, ame tdetermination of whether to consolide
variable interest entity require that we apply #igant judgment in defining the appropriate asstions for calculating financial estimates.
their nature, these judgments are subject to aerémt degree of uncertainty. Our judgments arecaseour historical experience, term:
existing contracts, observance of trends in theistry, information provided by our customers anfbrimation available from other outs
sources, as appropriate. Actual results may dfffean our estimates. For a summary of our significaecounting policies, please refer to
notes to our audited consolidated financial statemmmcluded in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

We consider accounting estimates to be criticabanting policies when:
« the estimates involve matters that are highly wageat the time the accounting estimate is mané

+ different estimates or changes to estimates coale la material impact on the reported financialitiprs changes in financi
position, or results of operations

When more than one accounting principle, or metbbids application, is generally accepted, we getbe principle or method that
consider to be the most appropriate when givensgieific circumstances. Application of these actiognprinciples requires us to me
estimates about the future resolution of existingautainties. Estimates are typically based upatotical experience, current trer
contractual documentation, and other informati@aappropriate. Due to the inherent uncertainty livimg estimates, actual results reporte
the future may differ from those estimates. In prem our financial statements, we have made osir d&imates and judgments of the amc
and disclosures included in the financial statesegiving regard to materiality.

Long-Lived Assets

We have significant capital invested in our |divgd assets and judgments are made in determthiagstimated useful lives of ass
salvage values to be assigned to assets, andwhen an asset has been impaired. The accuracyesé tbstimates affects the amour
depreciation and amortization expense recognizesliinfinancial results and whether we have a gailogs on the disposal of an asset.
assign lives to our assets based on our standéioy,pehich is established by management as reptatee of the useful life of each categ
of asset. We review the carrying value of our Idimge assets whenever events and circumstancesatedihat the carrying value of an a
may not be recoverable from the estimated futush dmws expected to result from its use and ewmdisposition. The factors considerec
management in performing this assessment includerduoperating results, trends and prospects efisaw the effect of obsolescence, dem
competition, and other economic, legal, and regwafactors. In estimating expected future caskwéldor determining whether an asse
impaired, assets are grouped at the lowest levieleatifiable cash flows, which, for most of ousats, is the individual property.

Goodwill and Other NomAmortizing Intangible Assets

The purchase price of an acquisition is allocatethe underlying assets acquired and liabilitiesuased based upon their estimated
values at the date of acquisition. We determine astimated fair values after review and considenatf relevant information includi
discounted cash flows, quoted market prices arichatts made by management. To the extent the peqgiréce exceeds the fair value of
net identifiable tangible and intangible assetsiaeq and liabilities assumed, such excess is detbas goodwill.

We have historically performed our annual goodwiipairment assessment as of September 30 of eash Ipe2013, we changed -
annual impairment testing date from September 3Ddimber 1. We believe this change, which represethange in the method of applying
accounting principle, is preferable in the circuanstes as it provides additional time for us to gfiathe fair value of our operating divisic
and meet reporting requirements. The change imtineial goodwill impairment testing date is not imted to nor does it delay, acceleratt
avoid an impairment charge. We determined thatds wnpracticable to objectively determine projectegh flows and related valuat
estimates that would have been used as of eachrBket 30 for periods prior to October 1, 2013 withthe use of hindsight. As such, we F
prospectively applied the change in the annual impnt testing date from October 1, 2013. We penféhis assessment more frequent
impairment indicators exist. We determine the eatéd fair value of each reporting unit based ommkination of earnings before inter
taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA")Juation multiples, and estimated future cash flaiscounted at rates commensurate
the capital structure and cost of capital of corapbr market participants, giving appropriate comsition to the prevailing borrowing ra
within the casino industry in general. We also eateé the aggregate fair value of all of our repgrtinits and other non-
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operating assets in comparison to our aggregateatebequity market capitalization at the test dB®RITDA multiples and discounted c
flows are common measures used to value busingsseas industry.

We have historically performed an annual impairmesgessment of other namortizing intangible assets as of September 30 héve
also historically performed an assessment moreuéetly if impairment indicators exist. In 2013, werformed this September 30 assess
and subsequently changed our testing date to Oclob&/e did not change our methodology with thengj@ain our testing date. We perfc
this assessment more frequently if impairment iaidics exist. We determine the estimated fair vafusur nonamortizing intangible assets
primarily using the "Relief From Royalty Method"dExcess Earnings Method" under the income approac

The annual evaluation of goodwill and other ramertizing intangible assets requires the use timates about future revenues
EBITDA, valuation multiples, and discount ratesdetermine their estimated fair value. Our futureeraies and EBITDA assumptions
determined based upon 2013 actual results givifertefo expected changes in operating results turéuyears. Our valuation multiples
discount rates are based upon market participauing®ions using a defined gaming peer group. Chamgthese assumptions can mater
affect these estimates. Thus, to the extent thargpaolumes deteriorate further in the near futgliscount rates increase significantly, or
do not meet our projected performance, we coulc leadditional impairments to record in the next teeahonths, and such impairments c«
be material. This is especially true for any of quoperties where goodwill and other namortizing intangible assets have been par
impaired as a result of a recent impairment anglyaid for our Las Vegas properties, which compaisggnificant portion of our remaini
goodwill balance. As of December 31, 2013, we hpdreximately $3.0 billion in total book value of @pwill and other noramortizing
intangible assets, the majority of which have bestently impaired, and accordingly, are at riskpaftial or total impairment should °
experience minor adverse changes in our signifie@stimptions. Charges related to goodwill and gitd@ assets other than goodwill
recognized in impairment of intangible and tang#ésets in the Statements of Operations.

Total Rewards Point Liability Program

Our customer loyalty program, Total Rewards, offersentives to customers who gamble at all of aasimo entertainment faciliti
located in the U.S. and Canada forpoperty entertainment expenses, including gantiotgl, dining, and retail shopping. Under the pang
customers are able to accumulate, or bank, rewadits over time that they may redeem at theirrdigan under the terms of the program.
reward credit balance will be forfeited if the ausier does not earn a reward credit over the pixem®nth period. As a result of the ability
the customer to bank the reward credits, we actitaeestimated cost of fulfilling the redemption refvard credits, after consideratior
estimated forfeitures (referred to as "breakages)they are earned. The estimated value of rewedits is expensed as the reward credit
earned by customers and is included in direct caskpense in our Consolidated Statements of OpesatiTo arrive at the estimated «
associated with reward credits, estimates and g#sams are made regarding incremental marginakoafsthe benefits, breakage rates, an
mix of goods and services for which reward creditsbe redeemed. We use historical data to agsiste determination of estimated accruals.

Allowance for Doubtful Accoun- Gaming

Marker play represents a significant portion of ouerall table games volume. We maintain stricttiada over the issuance of markers
aggressively pursue collection from those customérs fail to pay their marker balances timely. Tdhesllection efforts are similar to thc
used by most large corporations when dealing withrdue customer accounts, including the mailingtatements and delinquency noti
personal contacts, the use of outside collecti@meigs and civil litigation. Markers are generaddlgally enforceable instruments in the Un
States. Markers are not legally enforceable instnisin some foreign countries, but the United eStaassets of foreign customers ma
reached to satisfy judgments entered in the Urttades. We consider the likelihood and difficulfyeaforceability, among other factors, wi
we issue credit to customers who are not residdritee United States.

We reserve an estimated amount for gaming recedgahht may not be collected to reduce the Compaagtivables to their net carry
amount. Methodologies for estimating the allowafaredoubtful accounts range from specific reserneesarious percentages applied to ¢
receivables. Historical collection rates are coasid, as are customer relationships, in determispegific reserves. As with many estime
management must make judgments about potenti@nschiy third parties in establishing and evaluatingreserves for allowance for doub
accounts.

Selflnsurance Accruals

We are self-insured for various levels of worketempensation, property and general liability, enppo medical coverage, and of
coverage. Insurance claims and reserves includeasof estimated settlements for known claimsyel as accruals of actuarial estimate
incurred but not reported claims. In estimatingstheeserves, historical loss experience and judtgreout the expected levels of costs
claim are considered. We also utilize consultaatadsist in the determination of certain estimatecruals. These claims are accounte:
based on actuarial estimates of the undiscountanhs] including those claims
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incurred but not yet reported. We believe the Usactuarial methods to account for these liabgifrovides a consistent and effective we
measure these highly judgmental accruals; howestenges in health care costs, accident frequendysamerity, and other factors «
materially affect the estimates for these liakahti We regularly monitor the potential for chanigesstimates, evaluate our insurance acci
and adjust our recorded provisions.

Income Taxe

We are subject to income taxes in the United St@tetuding federal and state) and numerous forgigisdictions in which we opera
We record income taxes under the asset and lialiléthod, whereby deferred tax assets and liasliéire recognized based on the exp
future tax consequences of temporary differencésdmn the financial statement carrying amountsxidtiag assets and liabilities and tt
respective tax bases, and attributable to operédsgyand tax credit carryforwards. We reduce #veying amounts of deferred tax assets
valuation allowance if, based on the available ewa®, it is more likely than not that such asselisnat be realized. Accordingly, the neec
establish valuation allowances for deferred taxet@ss assessed periodically based on the "moety lthan not" realization threshold. T
assessment considers, among other matters, thenfiagquency, and severity of current and cumdalibsses, forecasts of future profitabil
the duration of statutory carryforward periods, ewperience with operating loss and tax credityéarwards not expiring unused, and
planning alternatives.

The effect on the income tax provision and defeteedassets and liabilities of a change in taxsr&geecognized in income in the pel
that includes the enactment date. We have provédealuation allowance on certain foreign and st&teoperating losses ("NOLs"), and o
federal, state, and foreign deferred tax assetd.dN#Dd other federal, state, and foreign deferagdassets were not deemed realizable |
upon near term estimates of future taxable income.

We report unrecognized tax benefits within accragpenses and deferred credits and other in ourdlidated Balance Sheets, sepe
from any related income tax payable, which is atgmorted within accrued expenses, or deferred iectaxes. Reserve amounts relate tc
potential income tax liabilities resulting from wrtain tax positions, as well as potential intecegtenalties associated with those liabilities.

We file income tax returns, including returns far subsidiaries, with federal, state, and foreigmsgictions. We are under regular
recurring audit by the Internal Revenue Service earibus state taxing authorities on open tax posst and it is possible that the amour
the liability for unrecognized tax benefits coulthage during the next 12 months.

Variable Interest Entities ("VIE")

We consolidate a VIE when we have both the powelirect the activities that most significantly ingpahe results of the VIE and the ri
to receive benefits or the obligation to absortsdssof the entity that could be potentially sigrfit to the VIE. For VIEs that are un
common control with affiliates, in lieu of an asseent of the power to direct the activities thastgignificantly impact the results of the V
we may be required to assess a number of othesréatt determine the consolidating entity, inclgdthe following: (i) the closeness of
association that the VIE has with the businessebeéffiliated entities, (ii) the entity from wiidhe VIE obtained its assets; (iii) the natur
ongoing management and other agreements; andéwhlligation to absorb losses and the right teivecresidual returns that could potenti
be significant to the VIE. Along with the VIEs thate consolidated in accordance with the aboveedjuiels, we also hold variable interest
other VIEs that are not consolidated because wa@iréhe primary beneficiary. We continually monitmth consolidated and unconsolid:
VIEs to determine if any events have occurred toatd cause the primary beneficiary to change.

Recently Issued and Proposed Accounting Stande

For discussions of the adoption and potential irtgpatrecently issued accounting standards, reféfdte 3 , "Recently Issued Accounti
Pronouncements ."
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Guarantees of Third-Party Debt and Other Obligatisand Commitments

Contractual Obligations ©

Payments due by Period

Less than 1 1-3 4-5
(In millions) Total year years years After 5 years
Debt, face value $ 23567. $ 182t $ 2,998. $ 10,825.! $ 9,561.
Capital lease obligations 22.2 14.€ 7.€ — —
Estimated interest paymerits 10,820.1 2,185.¢ 3,959.° 3,104." 1,570.:
Operating lease obligations 1,341t 61.1 113.€ 107.€ 1,059.:
Purchase order obligations 128.€ 128.¢ — — —
Community reinvestment 70.% 6.1 12.2 12.t 39.¢
Construction commitments 470.7 422.1 48.€ — —
Entertainment obligatior8 216.2 84.1 64.¢ 40.5 26.¢
Letters of credit 100.t 100.t — — —
Minimum payments to tribe¥ 144.: 13.¢ 43.C 46.5 41.C
Other contractual obligatiorfd 525.1 119.¢ 180.¢ 74.¢ 149.¢

$ 37,407 $ 3,319. $ 7428. $ 14212 $ 12,448.

[CY

(b)

(©
(d)

(e)

In addition to the contractual obligations disckbse this table, we have unrecognized tax benéditavhich, based on uncertainties associated hi¢
items, we are unable to make reasonably reliatimates of the period of potential cash settlemehgmy, with taxing authorities.

Estimated interest for variable-rate debt includgethis table is based on rates at December 313 2&stimated interest includes the estimated impt
our interest rate swap and interest rate cap agnetsmand interest related to capital leases.

Entertainment obligations represent obligationgay performers that have contracts for future garémces at one or more of our proper

The agreements pursuant to which we manage casmbslian lands contain provisions required by that provide that a minimum monthly paymen
made to the tribe. That obligation has priority oseheduled repayments of borrowings for develogmests and over the management fee earne
paid to the manager. In the event that insufficeagh flow is generated by the operations to fumsl payment, we must pay the shortfall to the t
Subject to certain limitations as to time, suchambes, if any, would be repaid to us in futuregmsiin which operations generate cash flow in excd
the required minimum payment. These commitmentsterininate upon the occurrence of certain defieeehts, including termination of the manager
contract. Our aggregate monthly commitment forrttiemum guaranteed payments pursuant to the cdatfacthe three managed Indianmed facilitie:
now open is $1.2 million per month. Each of thes&mos currently generates sufficient cash flowsoteer all of its obligations, including its deletrgice.
Primarily includes licensing, management and otbes
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ITEM 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adwechanges in market rates and prices, such agsht@tes, foreign currency exchange |
and commodity prices. Our primary exposure to miarisk is interest rate risk associated with oubtd&V/e attempt to limit our exposure
interest rate risk by managing the mix of our dadttveen fixed-rate and variable-rate obligationso@ $23,589.3 milliorface value of dek
including capital lease obligations, at DecemberZ13, we have entered into eight interest rate swapeagents to fix the interest rate
$5,750.0 million of variable rate debt, and $2,86million of debt remains subject to variable interest rafd® difference to be paid
received under the terms of the interest rate sagapements is accrued as interest rates changeeeoghized as an adjustment to inte
expense for the related debt. Changes in the \arialerest rates to be paid or received pursuarthé terms of the interest rate s
agreements will have a corresponding effect orréubash flows.

In addition to the swap agreements, we have aresiteate cap agreement for a notional amount @841 millionat a LIBOR cap rate
4.5% and an interest rate cap agreement for amadtamount of $501.4 million at a LIBOR cap rate/di%. Assuming a constant outstanc
balance for our variable rate debt for the nexiridhths, a hypothetical 1%crease in interest rates would increase intengs¢nse for the ne
12 months by $11.9 million . As of December 31, 20%he weighted average USD LIBOR rate on ouralde rate debt was 0.421%A
hypothetical reduction of this rate to 0% would @@se interest expense for the next 12 months Fyrillion .

We do not purchase or hold any derivative finanicisiruments for trading purposes.

The table below provides information about our ficial instruments that are sensitive to changeintigrest rates as ddecember 3:
2013, including the cash flows associated with the gigal amounts of debt obligations, the notional anie of interest rate derivati
instruments and related weighted average inteadss.r Principal amounts are used to calculate dympnts to be exchanged under the re
agreement(s) and weighted average variable ra¢dsased on implied forward rates in the yield cas®f December 31, 2013 .

Expected Maturity Date

(Dollars in millions) 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter Total Fair Value
Liabilities
Long-term debt

Fixed rate $ 162.1  $ 680.1 $ 826. $ 2,324¢ $ 8,446.! $ 6,784.¢ $ 19,224. $ 16,188.

Average interest

rate 9.8% 9.C% 9.2% 9.2% 9.5% 5.7% 9.2%

Variable rate $ 35 $ 5321 $ 9%67. $ 272 $ 272 $ 2,776. $ 4365. $ 4,355¢

Average interest

rate 7.2% 7.9% 8.C% 7.€% 7.€% 2.€% 7.€%

Interest Rate Derivatives
Interest rate swaps

Variable to fixed® $ 5750 $ (165.9)
Average pay rate 3.2% 3.3% — — — — 3.2%
Average receive ra 0.2% 0.2% — — — _ 0.7%

Interest rate cag8 $ 5,165 *

@ Expire in 2016
@ Expire in 201F
*  Amount rounds to zero.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , our loeign variable rate debt reflects borrowings undar @redit Facilities provided to us b
consortium of banks with a total capacity of $4,828illion and $6,480.6 millionrespectively. The interest rates charged on bongs unde
these facilities are a function of LIBOR. As sutle interest rates charged to us for borrowingseunide facilities are subject to chang:
LIBOR changes.

Foreign currency transaction gains and losses narenaterial to our results of operations for tiearns ended December 31, 2013 , 2012
and 2011. Our only material ownership interests in busieess foreign countries are London Clubs, Playtikad an approximate 5¢
ownership of a casino in Uruguay. Therefore, weehast been subject to material foreign currencyharge rate risk from the effects 1
exchange rate movements of foreign currencies wioal@ on our future operating results or cash flows

From time to time, we hold investments in variouaikable-forsale equity securities; however, our exposure itepisk arising from tr
ownership of these investments is not materialtoconsolidated financial position, results of gems, or cash flows.
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ITEM 8. Financial Statements and Supplementanpata
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Caesars Entertainment Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Caesars Entertainment Corporatiors@isldiaries (the “Company§
of December 31, 2013 and 2012, and the relatedotidated statements of operations, comprehensis® lstockholders' equity/(deficit) &
cash flows for each of the three years in the peended December 31, 2013. Our audits also incltidedonsolidated financial staterr
schedules included in Item 15(a)(2). These conatddl financial statements and consolidated finhnsiatement schedules are
responsibility of the Company's management. Oupaesibility is to express an opinion on the cordaied financial statements
consolidated financial statement schedules basedioaudits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversightaBlo(United States). Thc
standards require that we plan and perform thet daodibtain reasonable assurance about whethdimngecial statements are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digidg in the financial statements. An @
also includes assessing the accounting princigded and significant estimates made by managenmemtelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statatagresent fairly, in all material respects, timaricial position of Caesars Entertainn
Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 313 201 2012, and the results of their operationsthanl cash flows for each of the th
years in the period ended December 31, 2013, ifiocmity with accounting principles generally accsghtin the United States of Ameri
Also, in our opinion, such consolidated financi@tsment schedules, when considered in relatidhedasic consolidated financial statem
taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all mate®gapects, the information set forth therein.

The Company is highly leveraged and a significambant of its liquidity needs are for debt servioeluding significant interest paymer
Additionally, the Companyg Credit Facility requires the maintenance of ariguly senior secured leverage ratio. Note 1 todbesolidate
financial statements includes a discussion of mamagt's liquidity considerations and plans to naintompliance with this ratio. Also ¢
Note 9 for details on the Compé's outstanding debt.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 2 to the consolidatesh€ial statements, the Company has elected théihge the method of accounting
its defined benefit pension plan, and (ii) chartgeannual goodwill impairment date.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stasdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the Compar
internal control over financial reporting as of eter 31, 2013, based on the criteria establishéwteérnal Controlintegrated Framewol

(1992)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadribe Treadway Commission, and our report datedch 17, 2014 expressed
unqualified opinion on the Company's internal cohtiver financial reporting.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Las Vegas, Nevada
March 17, 2014
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In millions, except par value)

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents ($976.9 attributablet®/tEs in 2013)
Restricted cash ($28.8 attributable to our VIERGA3)
Receivables, net ($54.8 attributable to our VIERGA3)
Deferred income taxes ($7.0 attributable to ours/fE2013)
Prepayments and other current assets ($15.6 attbileuto our VIEs in 2013)
Inventories
Assets held for sale
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net ($516.0 attributableutoVIEs in 2013)
Goodwill ($112.8 attributable to our VIEs in 2013)
Intangible assets other than goodwill ($180.0lattdble to our VIEs in 2013)
Investments in and advances to non-consolidatdchtds
Restricted cash ($231.6 attributable to our VIE20@3)
Deferred charges and other ($11.0 attributableito/Es in 2013)
Assets held for sale
Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable ($54.8 attributable to our VIEQW 3)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities @1 attributable to our VIEs in 2013)
Interest payable ($5.5 attributable to our VIER@13)
Deferred income taxes
Current portion of long-term debt ($47.8 attribuéato our VIEs in 2013)
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt ($673.9 attributable to our VIEQ0G13)
Deferred credits and other ($67.3 attributableuo\dEs in 2013)
Deferred income taxes ($3.8 attributable to our3/HE2013)
Liabilities held for sale
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 17)

Stockholders’ equity/(deficit)
Common stock; voting; $0.01 par value; 139.0 anfl3 8hares issued, respectively
Treasury Stock: 2.2 and 2.1 shares, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(185s)
Total Caesars stockholders’ deficit
Noncontrolling interests
Total deficit

Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit

As of December 31,

2013® 2012®
$ 2,771 $ 1,757k
87.t 833.¢
619.¢ 580.
8.7 114.
237.c 150.(
45.¢ 52.C
— 5.1
3,770. 3,493.¢
13,237.¢ 15,701,
3,063.. 3,160.:
3,487. 3,985,
176.¢ 100.
336.¢ 364.¢
604.2 720.¢
11. 471.:
$ 24,688.¢ $ 27,998
$ 4427 $ 376.c
1,212.: 1,008.¢
389.f 233.7
289. —
197.1 879.¢
2,530.¢ 2,588.
20,918. 20,532.;
667.F 823.(
2,476.( 4,334
— 52.1
26,592. 28,329.
1.4 1.2
(16.9 (16.9)
7,230.! 6,954.¢
(10,320.) (7,372
(16.9 214
(3,122.0) (411.7)
1,218.: 80.1
(1,903.9) (331.6)
$ 24,688.¢ $ 27,998

@ As discussed in Note 21 , " Employee Benefit Plange elected to change our method of accountingétuarial gains and losses for our pension pi



the United Kingdom to a more preferable method jiteechunder GAAP. We applied this accounting chamgespectively to all periods presented or
noted line items.

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In millions, except per share data)

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012% 2011%
Revenues
Casino $ 5,808.¢ 6,243.( $ 6,389.¢
Food and beverage 1,510.( 1,507.¢ 1,506.:
Rooms 1,219.¢ 1,205t 1,193.:
Management fees 57.C 47.5 35.¢
Other 874.¢ 762.( 647.1
Reimbursed management costs 268.1 67.1 26.€
Less: casino promotional allowances (1,178.¢) (1,252.) (1,232.9)
Net revenues 8,559.° 8,580.¢ 8,566.¢
Operating expenses
Direct
Casino 3,280.t 3,553.( 3,615.:
Food and beverage 658.4 657.¢ 657.(
Rooms 305.¢ 297.€ 286.2
Property, general, administrative, and otHer 2,168.¢ 2,043t 2,093.t
Reimbursable management costs 268.1 67.1 26.€
Depreciation and amortization 565.2 714.¢ 677.C
Write-downs, reserves, and project opening costspfrecoveries 104.¢ 99.7 73.€
Impairment of intangible and tangible assets 3,018.¢ 1,074.. 32.¢
Loss on interests in non-consolidated affiliates 17.€ 17.5 7.8
Corporate expense 161.¢ 195.( 152.¢
Acquisition and integration costs 81.c 6.1 4.3
Amortization of intangible assets 164.5 174.€ 156.7
Total operating expenses 10,794.. 8,900.: 7,784.:
Income/(loss) from operations (2,234.9 (319.9 782.t
Interest expense (2,253.0 (2,100.9) (2,121.)
Gain/(loss) on early extinguishment of debt (29.9) 136.( 47.¢
Gain on partial sale of subsidiary 44.1 — —
Other income, including interest income 13.€ 25.5 25.2
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes (4,459.9) (2,258.) (1,266.0)
Income tax benefit 1,549.° 870.t 534.¢
Loss from continuing operations, net of income $axe (2,909.9 (1,388.9) (731.9
Discontinued operations
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations (29.¢) (64.5) 55.1
Income tax provision (0.2 (50.1) (27.¢)
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, nehcdme taxes (30.0 (114.¢ 27.2
Net loss (2,939.9 (1,502.9) (704.7)
Less: net income attributable to noncontrollingiasts (8.9 (5.9 (20.9)
Net loss attributable to Caesars $ (2,948.) (1,508.) $ (725.0
Loss per share - basic and diluted
Loss per share from continuing operations $ (22.70) (11.12 $ (6.02)
Earnings/(loss) per share from discontinued opanati (0.29) (0.92) 0.2z
Net loss per share $ (22.99) (12.09) $ (5.80)




Weighted-average common shares outstanding - badidiluted 128.¢ 125.¢ 1251

@ As discussed in Note 21 , " Employee Benefit Plamge elected to change our method of accountingétuarial gains and losses for our pension pi
the United Kingdom to a more preferable method jiitechunder GAAP. We applied this accounting charggespectively to all periods presented or
noted line items.

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(In millions)
Years Ended December 31,
2013W 20120 2011®

Net loss $ (2,939.H) $ (1,502.9) $ (704.7)
Other comprehensive income/(loss):

Defined benefit plan adjustmerits 0.8 0.2 (2.0)

Reclassification of defined benefit plan adjustredntinterest expense 0.7 — —

Foreign currency translation adjustments (24.7) 20.7 (20.0

Change in fair market value of derivatives — — (64.9

Reclassification of loss on derivative instrumendsn other comprehensive loss to interest

expense 4.C 28.¢ 265.7

Unrealized losses on available-for-sale investments (3.9 (0.9 2.€
Total other comprehensive income/(loss), beforerime taxes (22.5) 48.1 182.(
Income tax provision related to items of other cazhgnsive income/(loss) (15.9 (10.9) (70.9
Total other comprehensive income/(loss), net obine taxes (38.9 37.2 111.1
Total comprehensive loss (2,978.9) (1,465.9 (593.0
Less: amounts attributable to noncontrolling irséese

Net loss (8.4 (5.9 (20.9)

Foreign currency translation adjustments 0.1 1.3 1.9
Total amounts attributable to noncontrolling inttse 8.3 (6.4) (22.2)
Comprehensive loss attributable to Caesars $ (2,986.5) $ (1,472.0 $ (615.2)

™ As discussed in Note 21 , " Employee Benefit Plange elected to change our method of accountin@étuarial gains and losses for our pension pi
the United Kingdom to a more preferable method jiitechunder GAAP. We applied this accounting charggespectively to all periods presented or
noted line items.

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY/(DE FICIT)

(In millions)

Caesars Stockholders

Accumulated

Additional Other Total Caesars Non
Paid-in- Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders' controlling Total
Common Stock  Treasury Stock Capital Deficit @ Income/(Loss)® Equity Interests Equity
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 07 $ — $  6906¢ $ (51056 $ (1689 $ 16324 $ 396 $1,672.
Cumulative effect of pension
accounting changé — — — (44.9) 44.: — — —
Effect of change in accounting for
accruals for casino jackpot
liabilities, net of tax — — — 10.7 — 10.7 — 10.7
i )
Net income!/(lossff — — — (725.0 — (725.0 20.¢ (704.)
Share-based compensation . . 221 _ . 221 0.1 202
Repurchase of treasury shares * _ @ _ _ @ _ @
Distributions to noncontrolling
interests, net of contributions — — — — — — (5.8 (5.6
Changes in noncontrolling interests _ _ _ _ _ _ (9.6 ©.6
Purchase of additional interest in
subsidiary — — (31.5) — — (31.5) — (31.5)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax o . . . 109.¢ 109.¢ 1.3 111.1
Other — — (10.9 0.2 — (10.5) — (10.9)
Balance at December 31, 2011 0.7 — 6,885.. (5,864.) (14.7 1,006’ 46.7 1,053.
i )
Net income/(loss}f — — — (1,508.) — (1,508.) 53 (1,502.9
Share-based compensation _ _ 34.1 _ _ 34.1 _ 34.1
Initial public offering 0.6 . 16.€ _ . 172 . 172
Common stock issuances % _ 0.2 _ _ 0.2 _ 0z
Increase in treasury shares _ (16.9) 16.2 | _ _ _ _
Increase in noncontrolling interests,
net of distributions and
contributions — — — — — — 27.C 27.C
Other comprehensive loss, net of ta _ _ _ N 36.1 36.1 1.1 37.2
Other — — 21 — — 21 — 2.1
Balance at December 31, 2012 1.3 (16.9 6,954.¢ (7,372 21. (4115 80.1 (331.9)
i )
Net income/(loss}f - - - (2,948.9) — (2,948.) 84 (2,939
Share-based compensation _ _ 39.1 | _ 39.1 _ 39.1
Common stock issuances 0.1 _ 215.¢ _ _ 216.( _ 216.
Stock options exercised for shares * . 1.2 _ . 1.2 . 1.2
Increase in treasury shares _ % 0.9 _ _ 0.9 _ 0.9
Contributions from noncontrolling
interest — — — — — — 35.2 35.2
Increase in noncontrolling interests,
net of distributions — — — — — — 1,140.: 1,140.:
Other comprehensive loss, net of ta _ _ _ N (38.9) (38.9) ©0.9) (38.9)
Purchase of additional interests in
subsidiary — — (9.8 — — (9.8) — (9.§)
Reclassification of noncontrolling
interest — — 24.1 — — 24.1 (24.7) —
Other — — 5.1 — — 5.1 (21.9) (16.0)
Balance at December 31, 2013 $ 14 3 (16.9) $ 7,230 % (10,320.) $ (169 $ (3,122.) $ 1,218.  $(1,903.)

@ As discussed in Note 21 , " Employee Benefit Plamge elected to change our method of accountingétuarial gains and losses for our pension pi
the United Kingdom to a more preferable method figechunder GAAP. We applied this accounting charegespectively to all periods presented or

noted line items.
*  Amount rounds to zer

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ents.
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In millions)

Years Ended December 31,

2013%® 20129 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $ (2,939.H) $ (1,502. $ (704.7)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash flowsnfiaperating activities:

(Income)/loss from discontinued operations 30.C 114.¢ (27.9)
(Gains)/losses on early extinguishments of debt 29.¢ (136.0) (47.9
Depreciation and amortization 742.¢ 902.( 845.¢
Amortization of deferred finance costs and debtalisit/premium 360.1 314.¢ 227.%
Reclassification from, and amortization of, accumedi other comprehensive loss 4.7 28.4 266.5
Non-cash write-downs and reserves, net of recaverie 63.7 34.€ =&
Gain on partial sale of subsidiary 44.)) — —
Non-cash acquisition and integration costs 52.¢ — —
Impairment of intangible and tangible assets 3,018.¢ 1,074.. 32.¢
Loss on interest in non-consolidated affiliates 17.€ 17.t 7.5
Share-based compensation expense 56.5 55.1 22.2
Deferred income taxes (1,476.) (750.9 (501.2)
Pension expense in excess of cash fPaid 9.¢ 10.€ 37.4
Change in deferred charges and other (23.5) 23.t 51.¢
Change in deferred credits and other (189.9) (118.9 (123.¢

Change in current assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (61.¢) (88.0 (87.7)
Prepayments and other current assets (16.¢) (5.9 43.F
Accounts payable 68.4 37.¢ 14.¢
Interest payable 157.( 42.¢€ (20.7)
Accrued expenses 57.4 9.C 15.C
Other (26.7) (23.9 (6.9
Cash flows from operating activities (109.9 30.2 63.C

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisitions of property and equipment, net of din related payables (726.9) (507.7) (272.5)
Change in restricted cash 773.¢ (680.5) (517.9)
Purchase of additional interests in subsidiaries — — (75.9)
Payments to acquire certain gaming rights — — (22.9)
Proceeds from partial sale of subsidiary, net shazeconsolidated 50.4 — —
Proceeds from the sale of subsidiary, net of caslributed — 42.L —
Payments to acquire businesses, net of transamtigts and cash acquired (29.5) 37.9 (19.09
Investments in/advances to non-consolidated a#giand other (38.6€) (28.7) (76.0
Purchases of investment securities (30.0 (39.9 (35.9)
Proceeds from the sale and maturity of investmeatirities 67.4 31.€ 22.€
Other (12.5) (5.5 9.9
Cash flows from investing activities 64.¢ (1,224.) (1,006.9)
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(In millions)
Years Ended December 31,
2013% 2012% 2011®

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt 6,038." 3,709.¢ 863.¢

Debt issuance and extension costs and fees (152.¢) (50.6) (18.7)

Borrowings under lending agreements — 453.( 358.(

Repayments under lending agreements — (608.0) (203.0

Cash paid for early extinguishments of debt (6,512.) (2,036.9 (128.5

Scheduled debt retirements (92.¢) (15.¢) (43.7)

Purchase of additional interests in subsidiaries (10.0 (9.€) —

Sales of noncontrolling interests, net of fees 1,197 37.€ 14.¢

Distributions to noncontrolling interest owners (29.9 (20.7) (9.9

Issuance of common stock, net of fees 217.2 17.4 —

Other 24.7) (13.5) (22.0)

Cash flows from financing activities 651.1 1,472.¢ 811.t

Cash flows from discontinued operations

Cash flows from operating activities (9.9 (20.6) 60.1

Cash flows from investing activities 411.¢ 599.7 (10.9)

Cash flows from financing activities = = =

Net cash from discontinued operations 402.5 579.1 49.4

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent 1,009.( 857.€ (82.9)
Change in cash classified as assets held for sale 4.7 8.7 2.t
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 1,757t 891.2 971.]
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 2,771.0  $ 1757 § 891.2

@ As discussed in Note 21 , " Employee Benefit Planse elected to change our method of accountingétuarial gains and losses for our per
plan in the United Kingdom to a more preferable hrodtpermitted under GAAP. We applied this accountthange retrospectively to all peri

presented on the noted line items.

Supplemental Cash Flow Information:

Years Ended December 31,

Cash paid for interest $

Cash paid for income taxes
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Change in accrued capital expenditures

Change in assets acquired through financing aiesvénd capital leases

2013 2012 2011
1,899.. $ 1,771.¢  $ 1,685.(
38.2 16.5 54
18.5 49.C 20.4
67.4 35.¢ 4.2

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financa¢®ents.
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In these footnotes, the words "Company," "Caesarefainment,” "we," "our," and "us" refer to CaesaEntertainment Corporatic
("CEC"), a Delaware corporation, its subsidiarieadaconsolidated entities, unless otherwise statatiecontext requires otherwise.

Note 1 — Description of Business and Basis of Pregation

We conduct business through our wholly owned sudnsed, Caesars Entertainment Operating Comparny, (lCEOC") and Caes:
Entertainment Resort Properties ("CERP") and thelisidiaries. We also consolidate Caesars Growtinéta, LLC ("CGP LLC"), which is
variable interest entity ("VIE") for which we hawetermined that we are the primary beneficiary.ohDecember 31, 2013 we ownec
operated, or managed, through various subsidiaridsVIEs, 52 casinos in 13 U.S. states and 5 ciesntDf the 52 casinos, 3%e in the Unite
States and primarily consist of land-based andbivat or dockside casinos. Our 13 internationahcasare landased casinos, most of wh
are located in England. See Item 2, " Properties ."

We have an ownership interest in CGP LLC as webladigations under the asset management and maeage®rvices agreements
constitute variable interests in CGP LLC. Becalmedquity holders in CGP LLC receive returns dipprtionate to their voting interests
substantially all the activities of CGP LLC areateld to Caesars, CGP LLC has been determined toJaiable interest entity. We h:
determined that we are the primary beneficiary @RQ_LC and we have consolidated this entity. Sete o, "Caesars Growth Partners, L
Transactions ."

Caesars Interactive Entertainment, Inc. ("CIE")jakhis a majority owned subsidiary of CGP LLC, agtes an online gaming busin
providing for certain real money games in NevadawNlersey, and the United Kingdom; "play for furifeangs in other jurisdictions; a
social games on Facebook and other social mediaitgsband mobile application platforms, such agso®lania. CIE also owns the Wa
Series of Poker ("WSOP") tournaments and brandJiaedses trademarks for a variety of productslaminesses related to this brand.

We view each casino property and CIE as operagggents and aggregate all such casino properte€ Hhinto oneeportable segmer

On January 28, 2008, Caesars Entertainment wasreddwy affiliates of Apollo Global Management, LL{@gether with such affiliate
"Apollo") and affiliates of TPG Capital, LP (togethwith such affiliates, "TPG" and, together witlpdlo, the "Sponsors") in an athst
transaction ("the Acquisition”). As a result of tAequisition and through February 7, 2012, our kta@s not publicly traded. Effecti
February 8, 2012, as the result of our public a@ffgrour common stock trades on the NASDAQ Glotele& Market ("NASDAQ") under tt
symbol "CZR." In connection with the public offeginthe Company effected a 1.742 -forsdlit of its common stock. Unless otherwise st:
all applicable share and per-share data presergeginhhave been retroactively adjusted to giveceffe this stock split. See Note 11
Stockholders' Equity and Loss Per Share ," fohmrinformation.

Liquidity Considerations

We are a highly leveraged company and a signifieenbunt of our liquidity needs are for debt seryiceluding significant intere
payments. As of December 31, 2013, we had $23,58dli®n face value of outstanding indebtedness and ouestdebt service obligati
for 2014 is $2,383.0 million , consisting of $197nlllion in principal maturities and $2,185.9 milfi in required interest payments. Our ¢
service obligation for 2015 is $3,223.7 milliongnsisting of $1,212.2 million in principal matueis and $2,011.5 milliom required intere
payments.

Following the U.S. recession of late 2007 throu§b2 we have observed that gaming activity has imedawell below the preecessio
levels. In addition, new competition in certainice@l markets has negatively affected “same steoftimes, while overall slot volumes trei
continue to weaken in most markets. These factave Inegatively affected our results of operatiamsi may continue to negatively affect
results of operations in the future. During periofil®conomic weakness and in the face of contimaeak consumer spending on gaming,
revenues may decrease while many of our costs refixed and some costs even increase, resultiggdneased earnings. As a result, we
experienced substantial net losses since 2010eglsagvoperating losses in 2012 and 2013, resuitirg net stockholders’ deficit §&3,122.(
million as of December 31, 2013. Further, we expe@xperience operating and net losses in 2014apdnd.

Our cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricasti, totaled $2,771.2 million as of DecemberZ81,3 compared with1,757.5 milliol
as of December 31, 2012 . Cash and cash equivasntd December 31, 2013 , includes $976.9 milietd by CGP LLC, which is n
available for our use to fund operations or satigfy obligations. Caesars experienced negativeatipgr
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)

cash flows of $109.4 millionn 2013 and we also expect to experience negafpezating cash flows in 2014 and beyond at our C
subsidiary.

In addition to cash flows from operations, avaiabburces of cash include amounts available ungtecworent revolving credit facility.
December 31, 2013, the facility provided for ugpf15.5 million , with $109.4 milliomaturing on January 28, 2014. As of March 1, 201k
facility provided for $106.1 million of borrowingapacity, of which $9.6 milliomemained as available borrowing capacity. In addjtiCERI
had $269.5 million available on its revolving citefdicility at December 31, 2013.

As described more fully in Note 24 , “ SubsequewtiiEs ,"we recently announced that CGP LLC will acquiretaiarassets from CEC
for $2,000.0 millionin cash, net of assumed debt. The transactiongeatad to close in the second quarter 2014. Theast proceeds w
impact the calculation of the senior secured legenatio ("SSLR") covenant going forward to theesttit reduces first lien debt or incree
cash of CEOC.

From time to time, depending upon market, priceugg other conditions, and on our cash balancediguidity, we may seek to acquire
exchange notes or other indebtedness of the Cortppanpsidiaries through open market purchases,tpljvaegotiated transactions, ter
offers, redemption, exchange offers or otherwigmnusuch terms and at such prices as we may deterfoi as may be provided for in
indentures governing the notes), for cash or otbaesideration, including our common stock. In additwe have considered and will conti
to evaluate potential transactions to reduce net deich as debt for debt exchanges, debt foryguithanges and other transactions.

We do not expect that our cash flow from operatiails be sufficient to repay our indebtedness ie tbngterm and we will have
ultimately seek a restructuring, amendment or egfaing of our debt, or if necessary, pursue aduifidebt or equity offerings.

Our ability to refinance or restructure our debtimissue additional debt or equity, will depemqmbn, among other things:
» The condition of the capital markets at the timbialv is beyond our contr

» Our future financial and operating performance, aihwill be affected by prevailing economic conditsoand financial, busine
regulatory and other factors, many of which arednelyour control; and

»  Our continued compliance with the terms and covenanour Credit Facilities, indentures and loareagents that govern our de

Under CEOC's Credit Facilities, we are requiregdtisfy and maintain specified financial ratiose8fically, our credit facilities requi
CEOC to maintain an SSLR of no more than 4@3.0, which is the ratio of CEOC's senior firsiopty secured debt to LTM Adjust
EBITDA - Pro Forma - CEOC Restricted. This raticclexles up to $3,700.0 millioof CEOC first priority senior secured notes andto
$350.0 million aggregate principal amount of coitaiked debt of subsidiaries that are not whollyaed. This ratio also reduces the amou
CEOC senior first priority secured debt by the amoaf unrestricted CEOC cash on hand, which wagd312 millionas of December 3
2013. As of December 31, 2013, the CEOC SSLR wes 4. 1.0.

While we were in compliance with the terms and dtmaks of all of our loan agreements, including GE® Credit Facilities ar
indentures, as of December 31, 2013, in order moptp with the quarterly SSLR covenant under the CEOredit Facility in the future, we w
need to achieve a certain amount of LTM AdjustedTER\ - Pro-Forma -CEOC Restricted and/or reduced levels of total@esgcured n
debt (total senior secured debt less unrestricasti)c The factors that could impact the foregoimgude (a) changes in gaming trips, spenc
trip and hotel metrics, which we believe are catedl to consumer spending and confidence generatlyspending by consumers for gan
and other entertainment activities, (b) our abiliyeffect cost savings initiatives, (c) our alilib complete asset sales, including the transa
described more fully in Note 24, (d) issuing addifill second lien or unsecured debt, or projecnfimay, (e) reducing net debt through o
market purchases, privately negotiated transactimaemptions, tender offers or exchanges, (f)tggssuances, (g) reductions in cay
expenditures spending, or (h) a combination thereof

In addition, under certain circumstances, the CEDE&dit Facilities allow us to apply cash contribut received by CEOC from CEC
an increase to LTM Adjusted EBITDA - Pro Forma -@E Restricted, if CEOC is unable to meet its SShRyrder to cure any breach.

Based upon our current operating forecast, theaggdeclosing of the CEOC asset sale to CGP LLCridmst above and in Note 24, ¢
our ability to achieve one or more of the otheitdes noted above, including our ability to cureradeh of the SSLR, in certain circumstan
with cash contributions from CEC, we believe thatwill have sufficient liquidity to fund our operans
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and meet our debt service obligations and that ile@ntinue to be in compliance with the CEOC SSdliring the next twelve months.

See Note 9, " Deht for details on our debt outstanding and restréctovenants related to certain of our borrowirigss detail include
among other things, a table presenting detailsuofirdividual borrowings outstanding as of Decem®&r 2013 and 2012 with maturities
year, as well as discussion of recent changes iindebt outstanding, and certain changes in thesesfrexisting debt for the year ens
December 31, 2013.

Basis of Presentation and Use of Estimal

Our consolidated financial statements are prepamedccordance with accounting principles generaltgepted in the United Sta
("GAAP"), which require the use of estimates ansuagptions that affect the reported amounts of asBabilities, revenueand expenses a
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitegtual amounts could differ from those estimates.

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiegbtform to the current year's presentation.

As described in Note 21 , " Employee Benefit Plgnis the fourth quarter of 2013, we elected torgde our method of accounting
actuarial gains and losses for our pension plathénUnited Kingdom to a more preferable method fpgech under GAAP. We believe tl
change was preferable because it will result inethiod of amortization of gains and losses thatlacaies recognition of such gains and lo
into net income for events that have already oecliiwWe have applied this change in accounting jpliecetrospectively. In addition, we me
other immaterial corrections to the accountingtf@ pension plan.

Principles of Consolidatior

Our consolidated financial statements include tloeoants of Caesars Entertainment and its subsidiaaifter elimination of ¢
intercompany accounts and transactions.

We consolidate into our financial statements thepants of all 100% owned subsidiaries, partialyred subsidiaries that we control
VIEs for which we are the primary beneficiary (9¢ete 2). Control generally equates to ownershig@aiage, (1) whereby affiliates that
more than 50% owned are consolidated; (2) invednianaffiliates of 50% or less but greater tha®e2ére generally accounted for using
equity method; and (3) investments in affiliate0%6 or less are generally accounted for usingtis¢ method.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Variable Interest Entities

We consolidate a VIE when we have both the powelirect the activities that most significantly ingpahe results of the VIE and the ri
to receive benefits or the obligation to absortsdssof the entity that could be potentially sigrfit to the VIE. For VIEs that are un
common control with affiliates, in lieu of an asseent of the power to direct the activities thastgignificantly impact the results of the V
we may be required to assess a number of othesréatt determine the consolidating entity, inclgdthe following: (i) the closeness of
association that the VIE has with the businessebeéffiliated entities, (ii) the entity from wiidhe VIE obtained its assets; (iii) the natur
ongoing management and other agreements; andéwhligation to absorb losses and the right teivecresidual returns that could potenti
be significant to the VIE. Along with the VIEs thate consolidated in accordance with the aboveedjuiels, we also hold variable interest
other VIEs that are not consolidated because wedarthe primary beneficiary. We continually monitmth consolidated and n@onsolidate
VIEs to determine if any events have occurred toatd cause the primary beneficiary to change.

Noncontrolling Interest and Earnings from Consolidad VIE

We account for the noncontrolling interest in oansolidated VIE, CGP LLC, using the hypotheticguidation at book value (“HLBW’
method to attribute the earnings and losses of @GE between the controlling and noncontrolling me&. Under this method, 1
noncontrolling interest in the CGP LLC entity issbd upon the noncontrolling interest holders' @attral claims on CGP LL&’accountin
balance sheet pursuant to the mandatory liquidgtimvisions of the operating agreement. Under #pproach, the income or loss |
represents our noncontrolling interest holders'inebme is associated with the increase or decrga$iee noncontrolling interest holde
contractual claims on CGP LLEbalance sheet assuming a hypothetical liquidaidhe end of that reporting period when compavigd thei
claims on CGP LLG balance sheet assuming a hypothetical liquidatibthe beginning of that reporting period, aftemoving an
contributions or distributions. Caesars' resultieg income from the controlling interest is theidaal net income from the consolidation of
VIE less the HLBV calculated net
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income attributable to the noncontrolling interestder. Due to certain mandatory liquidation praMis of the operating agreement, this ¢
result in a net loss to Caesars consolidated sesufieriods in which CGP LLC reports net income.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are highly liquid investments witiginal maturities of three montlos less from the date of purchase and are statid
lower of cost or market value. Our cash and cashvatents of $2,771.2 million as of December 31120 includes $976.9 millioheld by
CGP LLC, which is not available for our use to fuopkrations or satisfy our obligations.

Restricted Casl

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , we had $424®mand $1,198.2 milliorof restricted cash, respectively, comprised of entran:
non-current portions. Proceeds from bond offerings tia in escrow prior to closing and cash reservedeu loan agreements for
development projects and (b) certain expendituresried in the normal course of business, suchtaseist services, real estate taxes, cas
insurance, and capital improvements, are classédestricted cash. The current portion is primadmprised of amounts related to inte
payments on outstanding debt, and the owment portion primarily represents funds reserfegdongoing development projects. In 2012,
current portion included $750.0 million in proceadsler our 9%senior secured notes due 2020, the proceeds ohwiaid been placed ir
escrow. On February 20, 2013, the escrow conditieere satisfied and the cash was no longer coreidestricted.

Receivable:!

We issue credit to approved casino customers faligwackground checks and investigations of creatitiiness. Business or econo
conditions or other significant events could affist collectibility of these receivables.

Accounts receivable are typically namerest bearing and are initially recorded at cdstounts are written off when management de
the account to be uncollectible. Recoveries of antopreviously written off are recorded when reedi We reserve an estimated amoun
gaming receivables that may not be collected tacedeceivables to their net carrying amount. Meéthagies for estimating the allowance
doubtful accounts range from specific reservesaigous percentages applied to aged receivabletoridial collection rates are considerec
are customer relationships, in determining specifiserves. Receivables are reported net of an afioe for doubtful accounts &162.(
million and $201.7 million as of December 31, 2@it®@ 2012, respectively.

Casino Reinvestment Development Authority Investin@iCRDA") Obligations

The New Jersey Casino Control Act provides, amdhgrahings, for an assessment of licenses equaPt%6of gross gaming revenues
lieu of an investment alternative tax equal to 2@%gross gaming revenues. The Company may satigyirtvestment obligation by investi
in qualified eligible direct investments, by makiggalified contributions, or by depositing fundsttwthe CRDA. Funds deposited with
CRDA may be used to purchase bonds designatedeb@RDA or, under certain circumstances, may be tddn@® the CRDA in exchange
credits against future CRDA investment obligatioviée record an allowance for funds deposited to cedilne deposits to their expec
eventual realizable value.

Long-Lived Assets

We have significant capital invested in our ldiged assets, and judgments are made in determihaigestimated useful lives and salv
values and if or when an asset (or asset group)bas impaired. The accuracy of these estimatestafthe amount of depreciation
amortization expense recognized in our financialits and whether we have a gain or loss on thmodid of an asset. We assign lives tc
assets based on our standard policy, which is ledteld by management as representative of the lugefaf each category of asset.

We review the carrying value of our lotiged assets whenever events and circumstancesatedihat the carrying value of an asset
not be recoverable from the estimated future chstsfexpected to result from its use and eventisgdaition. We typically estimate the 1
value of assets starting with a "Replacement Cast/'Napproach and then deduct appropriate amoumtddth functional and econon
obsolescence to arrive at the fair value estim@#ser factors considered by management in perfagrthis assessment may include cul
operating results, trends, prospects, and thindy appraisals, as well as the effect of demandjpetition, and other economic, legal,
regulatory factors. In estimating expected futuashcflows for determining whether an asset is ingokiassets are grouped at the lowest
of identifiable cash flows, which, for most of cagsets, is the individual property. These analgsesensitive to management assumption
the estimates of the obsolescence factors. Changiese assumptions and estimates could have eriaddmpact on the analyses and
consolidated financial statements.
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Additions to property and equipment are statedat.dVe capitalize the costs of improvements thedrel the life of the asset. We expe
maintenance and repair costs as incurred. Gailusses on the dispositions of property and equiprmaenrecognized in the period of dispc
Interest expense is capitalized on internally aoreséd assets at the applicable weighaedrage borrowing rates of interest. Capitalizatit
interest ceases when the project is substantialfgptete or construction activity is suspended farenthan a brief period of time. Inter
capitalized was $37.8 million and $38.2 million fbe years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 ctespe.

Depreciation is calculated using the strailii- method over the shorter of the estimated ud#&iof the asset or the related leas
follows:

Useful Lives

Land improvements 12 year:
Buildings 30 to 40 year
Leasehold improvements 5 to 15 year
Riverboats and barges 30 year:
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 2.5 to 20 year

Goodwill and Other Non-Amortizing Intangible Assets

The purchase price of an acquisition is allocatethe underlying assets acquired and liabilitiesuased based upon their estimated
values at the date of acquisition. We determine a@bstimated fair values after review and considenatf relevant information includi
discounted cash flows, quoted market prices, atichates made by management. To the extent the gseghrice exceeds the fair value ol
net identifiable tangible and intangible assetsiaeq and liabilities assumed, such excess is detbas goodwill.

We have historically performed our annual goodwilipairment assessment as of September 30, andzédathe assessment in
following quarter in some years. In 2013, we parfed this September 30 assessment and subsequiesutiger! our testing date to Octobe
We believe this change was preferable becausdlitllaw us to take advantage of the additionalgiand resources available to performr
test. This change was not applied retrospectivelyt as impracticable to do so because retrospecipplication would have required
application of significant estimates and assumgtiathout the use of hindsight. We did not change methodology with the change in
testing date. We perform this assessment more dretyuif impairment indicators exist. We determthe estimated fair value of each repor
unit based on a combination of earnings beforeaste taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITRAaluation multiples, and estima
future cash flows discounted at rates commensuwrite the capital structure and cost of capital ofmparable market participants, giv
appropriate consideration to the prevailing borrgyviates within the casino industry in general. 8® evaluate the aggregate fair value ¢
of our reporting units and other noperating assets in comparison to our aggregate ateb equity market capitalization at the test «
EBITDA multiples and discounted cash flows are canmmeasures used to value businesses in our igdustr

We have historically performed an annual impairmesgessment of other namortizing intangible assets as of September 30 hélve
also historically performed an assessment moreuéetly if impairment indicators exist. In 2013, werformed this September 30 assess
and subsequently changed our testing date to Oclob&/e did not change our methodology with thengj@ain our testing date. We perfc
this assessment more frequently if impairment iaiics exist. We determine the estimated fair vafusur nonamortizing intangible assets
primarily using the "Relief From Royalty Method"dExcess Earnings Method" under the income approac

The annual evaluation of goodwill and other ragmertizing intangible assets requires the use tifnates about future operating resi
valuation multiples, and discount rates to deteemtineir estimated fair value. Changes in thesenagons can materially affect the
estimates. Thus, to the extent gaming volumes idet¢e further in the near future, discount rateseéase significantly, or we do not meet
projected performance, we could have additionakiinmpents to record in the future and such impaitseould be material.

Debt Discounts or Premiums and Debt Issue Cc

Debt discounts or premiums and debt issue costsried in connection with the issuance of debt atalized and amortized to inter
expense based on the related debt agreements tyiosng the effective interest method. Unamoudiziscounts or premiums are written
and included in our gain or loss calculations te éxtent we retire debt prior to its original métudate. Unamortized debt issue costs
included in deferred charges and other in our Clideted Balance Sheets.
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Total Rewards Point Liability Program

Our customer loyalty program, Total Rewards, offersentives to customers who gamble at all of casimo entertainment faciliti
located in the U.S. and Canada formoperty entertainment expenses, including gantiotgl, dining, and retail shopping. Under the pang
customers are able to accumulate, or bank, rewedits over time that they may redeem at theirrdisan under the terms of the program.
reward credit balance will be forfeited if the ausier does not earn a reward credit over the pxerm®nth period. As a result of the ability
the customer to bank the reward credits, we actittaeestimated cost of fulfilling the redemption refvard credits, after consideratior
estimated forfeitures (referred to as "breakages)they are earned. The estimated value of rewadits is expensed as the reward credit
earned by customers and is included in direct casikpense. To arrive at the estimated cost assdciaith reward credits, estimates
assumptions are made regarding incremental margasa of the benefits, breakage rates, and theofriwods and services for which rew
credits will be redeemed. We use historical datassist in the determination of estimated accri&glgsh amounts are included within acci
expenses. See Note 8 , " Detail of Accrued Expeasd<ther Current Liabilities ."

In addition to reward credits, customers at certdinur properties can earn points based on platyate redeemable in the form of cre
playable at the gaming machine. We accrue theafastdleemable points, after consideration of estchéreakage, as they are earned. The
is recorded as contra-revenue and is includedsimogromotional allowances.

Self-Insurance Accruals

We are selinsured for various levels of workers' compensatiproperty and general liability, employee medicalerage, and oth
coverage. Insurance claims and reserves includeasof estimated settlements for known claimsyel as accruals of actuarial estimate
incurred but not reported claims. In estimatingstheeserves, historical loss experience and judtgreout the expected levels of costs
claim are considered. These claims are accountebafged on actuarial estimates of the undiscouriteths, including those claims incur
but not reported. We believe the use of actuarighads to account for these liabilities providedasistent and effective way to measure t
highly judgmental accruals. We regularly monitce fiotential for changes in estimates, evaluatémsurrance accruals, and adjust our recc
provisions.

Revenue Recognitio
Casino Revenues

Casino revenues are measured by the aggregateiffesertte between gaming wins and losses, withiliiEs recognized for func
deposited by customers before gaming play occulsf@nchips in the customerpossession. Food and beverage, rooms, and otheatiog
revenues are recognized when services are perforte@nce deposits on rooms and advance tickes sakerecorded as customer dep
until services are provided to the customer. Std®es and other taxes collected from customersebralb of governmental authorities
accounted for on a net basis and are not includeét revenues or operating expenses.

The retail value of accommodations, food and begesrand other services furnished to guests withbatge is included in gross rever
and then deducted as promotional allowances. Se= I8 " Casino Promotional Allowances ."

Interactive Entertainme—Social and Mobile Games

CIE derives revenue from the sale of virtual cucies within casindhemed social and mobile games that are playedacious globz
social and mobile third-party platforms. Within tBtomaniaapplication, game players may collect free virtt@hs on a regular basis, n
send "gifts" of either free virtual coins or freetsmachine spins to their friends through intei@tt with the Facebook application, and |
"earn" free virtual coins through targeted markgmomotions. Within th@&ingo Blitzapplication, game players may collect free bingexite
on a regular basis, may send "gifts" of free bingegits or other virtual items to their friendsdhgh interactions with the Facebook applica
and may "earn" free bingo credits through targebedketing promotions. Virtual coins in Slotomaniaavirtual bingo credits in Bingo Bli
(collectively referred to as "virtual currency" ‘trirtual goods") allow the game players to play tkespective games free of charge. A g
player may purchase additional virtual goods atmve beyond the level of free virtual goods avadall that player. Purchased virtual gc
are deposited into the player's account and arertheseparately identifiable from virtual goods\yiously obtained by the player.

CIE is able to reliably estimate the period of tiower which virtual currency is consumed. As SUEH; recognizes revenue using an itemnr
based revenue model. However, CIE is unable tindisish between when purchased or free virtualenay is being consumed; therefore,
must estimate the amount of outstanding purchasadhlcurrency at each reporting period based wstaner behavior. CIE records wit
other current liabilities the deferred revenue aisded with its social and mobile games, and atsonds within other current assets the pre
platform fees associated with this deferred revenue
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CIE's applications are played on various social arudbile third-party platforms for which such thipérties collect monies from CIE’
customers and pay CIE an amount after deductirigttopm fee. CIE is the primary obligor with itsstomers under these arrangements, re
the ability to establish the pricing for its virti@irrencies, and assumes all credit risk witltitstomers. Based upon these facts, CIE recog
revenues from its game-playing customers on a drasis and related platform fees are recordedcasn@onent of operating expense.

Advertising

The Company expenses the production costs of asingrithe first time the advertising takes placelvértising expense wab207.¢
million , $194.2 million , and $190.1 million foh¢ years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 , and,28%fectively.

Income Taxes

The effect on the income tax provision and defeteedassets and liabilities of a change in taxsr&aecognized in income in the pel
that includes the enactment date. We have provédealuation allowance on certain foreign and st&teoperating losses ("NOLs"), and o
federal, state, and foreign deferred tax assetd.sNEDd other federal, state, and foreign deferagdassets were not deemed realizable |
upon near term estimates of future taxable income.

We classify reserves for tax uncertainties withatraed expenses and deferred credits and otheurirConsolidated Balance She
separate from any related income tax payable, wiBielso reported within accrued expenses, or tixféncome taxes. Reserve amounts r
to any potential income tax liabilities resultingph uncertain tax positions, as well as potentiériest or penalties associated with tl
liabilities.

We file income tax returns, including returns far subsidiaries, with federal, state, and foreigisflictions, except for CGP LLC, whict
filed as part of a separate tax filing group. We ander regular and recurring audit by the InteRedenue Service ("IRS") and various ¢
taxing authorities on open tax positions, and fpassible that the amount of the liability for utwgnized tax benefits could change during
next 12 months.

Note 3 — Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2013, the FASB issued new guidanceHerrecognition, measurement, and disclosure afatibns resulting from joint ai
several liability arrangements for which the taaatount of the obligation is fixed at the reportitate. The new guidance is effective fo
January 1, 2014Ne do not expect this new guidance to have a nadtienpact on our consolidated financial positicgsults of operations a
cash flows.

Note 4 — Acquisitions, Dispositions, and Divestitugs
Acquisitions
Baltimore, Marylanc

In July 2012, a consortium led by the Company waarded the license to operate a casino in downtBaltimore. In October 201
Caesars entered into definitive agreements witlerottivestors to form a venture that will build aodn the casino, subject to regulai
approvals and receipt of project financing. Purstarthe agreements, we committed to contributeagimum of $78.0 milliorin cash capit:
to the venture for the purpose of developing antstacting the casino. We contributed $38.0 milliorcapital in 2013 and $17.7 millian
2012. As of December 31, 2013 , CGP LLC had anapprately 52% indirect ownership interest in thetue.

Buffalo Studios, LL(

In December 2012, CIE purchased substantiallyfah@ net assets of Buffalo Studios, LLC ("Buff@tudios"), a social and mobile gar
developer and owner of Bingo Blitz, for considevatof $45.2 millionplus an earnout payment with an acquisition dateviue estimated
$5.6 million . The purchase price was allocatedotal assets of $52.9 million and liabilities of. $million . As of December 31, 2013he
estimated fair value of the earnout was $58.5 amilli The $52.9 milliorincrease in fair value was recognized in acquisitiad integratic
costs in our Consolidated Statements of Operations.
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Dispositions
Conrad Punta del Este Resort and Casino

In May 2013, we formed a strategic relationshiphviinjoy S.A. (“Enjoy”) in Latin America. Enjoy acged 45%o0f Baluma S.A., ot
subsidiary that owns and operates the Conrad Rightaste Resort and Casino in Uruguay (the “Conra’exchange for total consideratior
$139.5 million . After customary deductions for erges associated with the closing, we received4$h0lion in cash (net of $29.7 millioof
cash deconsolidated), a note receivable of $3Ulbmj and a 4.5% equity stake in Enjoy.

In connection with the transaction, Enjoy assunm@tdrol of the Baluma S.A. board and responsibftitymanagement of the Conrad. U,
completion of the transaction, we deconsolidatetufda S.A. from our financial statements and begesoanting for Baluma S.A. as
investment in non-consolidated affiliates utilizitige equity method of accounting.

Alea Leed:

In March 2013, we permanently closed our Alea Lesaisino in England. As a result of the closure remrded charges &5.7 millior
related to the write-down of tangible and intangilsissets, net of currency translation adjustmemd, $15.8 millionrelated to exit cost
primarily related to non-cancellable contract cadt$15.1 million . During the year ended Decembgr2013 , the Company pa$@.0 millior
of exit-related costs, accreted interest expensglof million , and recognized increases in thbiliig of $1.6 million primarily due to th
impact of currency translation adjustments. As eE@nmber 31, 2013, $16.8 million remains accruecxkit-related costs. We have presel
the operations of Alea Leeds as discontinued ojpaigin the Consolidated Condensed Statements efdfipns for all years presented. S
Discontinued Operations " below.

Macau Land Concessic

In 2012, we determined that it was more likely timan that we would divest of our investment in adaoncession in Macau prior to
end of the remaining 3pear term of the concession (the "Macau Land Caicey. As a result, we recognized an impairmer
$101.0 million. We subsequently began discussions with interestegstors regarding a sale of the subsidiaries tiledd the Macau Latr
Concession. As a result of this plan of dispos&,classified the assets and liabilities as heldsé&be as of December 31, 2012nd presentt
the operations of the business as discontinuedatipas for years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 .

In November 2013, we completed the sale of ouréstein the Macau Land Concession to Pearl Dyniastystments Limited for a to
sales price of $438.0 million . We recognized aditgmhal impairment of $5.8 millioin 2013 prior to the sale. We expect to use th
proceeds from the sale, which were $424.9 millitm fund CEOC investments in useful assets, inolydapital expenditures, or to repurct
certain outstanding CEOC debt.

Suffolk Investment

Since 2011, we have invested $101.9 milliorSterling Suffolk, the owner of Suffolk Downs eourse in East Boston, Massachus
This investment was comprised of a $41.9 milliomwtible preferred equity investment and a $60ilian common equity ownership
Sterling Suffolk, recorded as an intangible assgrasenting the right to manage a potential fugaming facility. On October 18, 20:
Caesars agreed to withdraw its application as diftgnain Massachusetts. In December 2013, we edtento a termination and rele
agreement with Sterling Suffolk (“Suffolk Agreem®ntpursuant to which we terminated several agreentmttseen us and Sterling Suffc
Based on this termination and on our assessmettteofecoverability of the investment, during theader ended December 31, 2013,
recorded an impairment charge totaling $101.9 anillj the full amount of our cash investment, of skh$41.9 million was recorded in write-
downs, reserves, and project opening costs, nefcolveries and $60.0 milliomas recorded in impairments of intangible and thlegassets. /
part of the Suffolk Agreement, we agreed to plaseammmon equity interest into a divestiture trastd our convertible preferred interest
redeemed in exchange for a $28.5 million promissarie (“Suffolk Note”). The Suffolk Note matures in April 2015, or earligpon thi
occurrence of certain events. Given the uncertaigigted to these events and the resulting ristobéction, we recorded a full reserve on
Suffolk Note during 2013.

Other Dispositions

In October 2013, we entered into an agreementlt¢thseClaridge Hotel Tower, which was part of Bally's Atlantic City asset group, 1
$12.5 million . The Claridge Hotel Tower assets éhéeen classified as held for sale as of Decenthe2®13. This transaction closed
February 2014.
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In November 2012, we sold our Harrah's St. Lousinmand recorded a pre-tax gain of $9.3 mill@nthe sale. We have presentec
results of Harrah's Maryland Heights, LLC, previaugner of the Harrah's St. Louis casino, as disnaetl operations for thgear ende
December 31, 2013 . See " Discontinued Operatidreddw.

Other Property Matters

In August 2012, one of our subsidiaries sold an exship interest in ThistleDown Racetrack, LLC ("§te@Down Racino"), ol
thoroughbred racing facility in Cleveland, Ohio, Rock Gaming for $28.6 million and contributed ismaining 46.61%interest i
ThistleDown Racino to Rock Ohio Caesars LLC ("RO@"exchange for additional equity interests in R®ock Gaming then purchase
portion of equity interests in ROC from our subaiglifor $14.3 million in order to retain an 8a%vnership interest in ROC. We recognize:
$11.0 million gain as a result of these transastion

The CRDA collects casino reinvestment funds (alsowkn as investment alternative tax obligation d@ppser "IAT") equal to 1.25%f
monthly gross gaming revenues on a monthly basiBdcember 2013, we conveyed land parcels withppnaised value totalin§7.3 millior
to the CRDA. As consideration, we will receiveradit against future IAT obligations equal to tippeaised value of the land parcels. Pric
the disposal, we recorded a tangible asset impairofeb21.7 million in 2013 to reduce the recordedk valued of the assets to fair value.

Amounts Related to Assets and Liabilities HeldSale

As of December 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ — 3 4.7
Other current assets — 0.4
Assets held for sale, current $ — 3 5.1
Property and equipment, net $ 11¢ % 471.2
Assets held for sale, non-current $ 11¢ $ 471.2
Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ —  $ 3.8
Liabilities held for sale, current $ — % 3.8
Deferred credits and other $ — 3 0.2
Deferred income taxes — 51.¢
Liabilities held for sale, non-current $ — $ 52.1
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Amounts Related Discontinued Operations

Years Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011
Net revenues
Harrah's St. Louis $ 208.4 257.7
Macau 2.9 3.€ 315
Alea Leeds 0.4 6.3 6.7
Total net revenues $ 8.2 218.c 267.¢
Pre-tax income/(loss) from operations
Harrah's St. Louis $ (0.9 62.2 75.2
Macau (5.0 (121.¢ (16.2)
Alea Leeds (23.9 (5.7 4.7
Total pre-tax income/(loss) from discontinued ofierss $ (29.9) (64.5) 55.1
Income/(loss), net of income taxes
Harrah's St. Louis $ (0.€) (1.7) 45.¢
Macau (5.5 (207.9) (14.9)
Alea Leeds (23.9 (5.1 (4.7
Total income/(loss) from discontinued operatioret, af income taxe<$ (30.0 (114.6) 27.2

Note 5 — Caesars Growth Partners, LLC Transactions

Formation Transactions

Caesars Acquisition Company ("CAC") was formed wnd. 00% of the voting membership units in CGP LIGGP LLC was formed f

the purpose of acquiring certain businesses arelsasECaesars Entertainment.

On October 21, 2013, the joint venture was formetivben subsidiaries of Caesars Entertainment and tBfough the execution of 1

series of transactions described below (the "Tetitzs"):

0] The Class A common stock of CAC was made availatidea subscription rights offering by Caesars BEatement to it
shareholders as of October 17, 2013, the recorel @ae "CAC Rights Offering"), whereby each sulysion right entitled it

holder to purchase from CAC one share of CAC'ssChasommon stock or the right to retain such supson right;

(i) Sponsors exercised their basic subscriptights in full and purchased $457.8 milliarorth of CAC's Class A common stock i

price of $8.64 per whole share;

(iii) CAC used the proceeds from the exercise of theslsadiscription rights in (i) above to purchase %06f the voting units of CC

LLC,;

(iv) CGP LLC subsequently used $360.0 millafnthe proceeds received from CAC in (iii) aboveptochase from CEOC (we refel

the following assets as the "Purchased Assets"):

a. the equity interests of a subsidiary of PHW Las &%&d-LC that holds all of the assets and liabsitiermerly held directl
by PHW Las Vegas, LLC, including the Planet HollysoResort & Casino in Las Vegas ("Planet Hollywgod"

b. the equity interests of Caesars Baltimore Investr@ampany, LLC, the entity that indirectly holdsdrests in the owner
Horseshoe Baltimore in Maryland (the "Maryland ddfienture™), a licensed casino development progeptected to ope

in the third quarter of 2014; and
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C. a 50%interest in the management fee revenues of PHW d§&ndLC, which manages Planet Hollywood, and Ce
Baltimore Management Company LLC, which holds areament to manage the Maryland Joint Venture.

(v) Caesars Entertainment contributed all of thares of CIE’s outstanding common stock held bylssigliary and approximatefyl.1
billion in aggregate principal amount of senior notes Ihglé subsidiary (the "CEOC Notes" and, togetheh whe shares of ClI
the "Contributed Assets") to CGP LLC, in exchangedll of CGP LLC’s non-voting units.

Prior to the consummation of the Transactions, &l&tollywood was owned by PHW Las Vegas, LLC ("PHW5 Vegas"). On Octob
21, 2013, in connection with and prior to the abgsof the Transactions, PHW Las Vegas contributetiassigned to PHWLYV, a wholly owr
subsidiary of PHW Las Vegas (“PHWLV"and PHWLYV accepted and assumed from PHW Las Vediasf its assets and liabilities of PF
Las Vegas, including Planet Hollywood.

The closing of the CAC Rights Offering for substiop rights not previously exercised by recipienfsthe rights, and for any over-
subscription privileges, including oversubscriptioyn the Sponsors, occurred on November 18, 2013C @istributed a total 0135,771,88
shares of Class A common stock to the holders b$aiption rights who validly exercised their sutigiton rights and paid the subscript
price in full. CAC received aggregate gross prosdenim the CAC Rights Offering of approximately $23.1 million .

Also on October 21, 2013, the aggregate fair mavieie of the subscription rights issued by Cae&artertainment was restored
Caesars Entertainment from CGP LLC through a redéirsenior notes issued by CEOC and previouslyridmried to CGP LLC by CEC. T
amount of the restoration was approximately $21illiom .

CGP LLC reimbursed Caesars Entertainment and CACeidain fees and expenses incurred in conneutithnthis transaction.
Contingently Issuable Non-Voting Membership Units

Pursuant to the terms of the Transactions, CGP isL@bligated to issue additional nenting membership units to Caesars Entertain
to the extent that the earnings from CIE's soaial mobile games business exceeds a specified tideamount in 2015. The number of u
to be received is capped at a value of $225 millimded by the value of the non-voting units a ttate of the CGP LLC transaction.

CGP LLC recorded a liability of $167.8 million ,pesenting the fair value of the additional naring membership units continger
issuable to Caesars Entertainment during 2016 uhdeClE earnout liability described above. Thetomently issuable membership units'
value is based upon a multiple of EBITDA for thdecalar year 2015 in excess of a specified minimbrashold and includes a maxim
payout threshold. The fair value of the CIE earr@lility as of December 31, 2013 was $306.5 milli Such liability is eliminated in o
consolidation of CGP LLC.

Call Right

Pursuant to the certificate of incorporation of CAGd the CGP Operating Agreement, after October2016, Caesars Entertainm
and/or its subsidiaries will have the right, whitimay assign to any of its affiliates or to angrtsferee of all noreting units of CGP LLC he
by subsidiaries of Caesars Entertainment, to aealiror a portion of the voting units of CGP LL@r (at the election of CAC, shares of CAC’
Class A common stock) not otherwise owned by Cadsatertainment and/or its subsidiaries at such.tiffle purchase consideration may
at Caesars Entertainment’s option, cash or shdr€esars Entertainmeattommon stock valued at market value, net of coatg marke
discount and expenses, provided that the cashopowill not exceed 50%f the total consideration in any exercise of tial dght. The
purchase price will be the greater of (i) the famrket value of the voting units of CGP LLC (or s#saof CAC5 Class A common stock)
such time based on an independent appraisal dhéiiinitial capital contribution in respect of sugnits plus a 10.5%er annum return on st
capital contribution, subject to a maximum retumsach capital contribution of 25%er annum, taking into account prior distributiamish
respect to such units.

The call right may be exercisable in part by Caegantertainment (up to three times), but until¢h# right is exercised in full, any voti
units of CGP LLC (or shares of CAC'’s Class A comnstock) acquired by Caesars Entertainment will dmverted into norvoting units o
CGP LLC (or non-voting shares of CACClass B common stock). Additionally, the calhtignay only be exercised by Caesars Entertain
and/or its subsidiaries if, at the time of suchrebse, (w) Caesars Entertainment and CAC enterdntesale registration rights agreement
respect to the shares of Caesars Entertainment oanstock used as all or a portion of the purchasesideration in connection with 1
exercise of the call right, (x) the common stoclCaesars
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Entertainment (i) is registered with the Securittgsl Exchange Commission, (i) is listed for tragiand trades on a national secur
exchange, and (iii) issuable upon exercise of thk right will represent, in the aggregate, not mdhan one half of the total Cae:
Entertainment common stock issued and outstanding giving effethe exercise of the call right, (y) CaesarseBatnment has a minimt
liquidity of $1.0 billion and a maximum net debvérage ratio of 9.0 1.00, and (z) no event of default has occurretlia in effect under a
financing agreement of Caesars Entertainment oslitssidiaries. Further, in the event that a stolddrovote of Caesars Entertainmer
required in connection with the exercise of sudhrgght, receipt of affirmative approval of suclote will be a condition to the exercise of
call right and at the closing of the Transactioaffiliates of the Sponsors will enter into a votisgpport agreement in favor of any s
stockholder approval. In addition, a majority oé timdependent directors of the board of directér€aesars Entertainment must approve
exercise of the call right by Caesars Entertainnagia/or its subsidiaries. The call right will bartsferable to a transferee that also recei
transfer of all the nometing units of CGP LLC, and exercisable by thensfaree upon the same terms and conditions as appbaesal
Entertainment and its subsidiaries.

Following October 21, 2018 and until April 21, 2022ir Board will have the right to cause a liquidatof CGP LLC, including the sale
winding up of CGP LLC, or other monetization of allits assets and the distribution of the proceedsining after satisfaction of all liabiliti
of CGP LLC to the holders of CGP LLE€units according to the waterfall described bel®m. April 21, 2022 (unless otherwise agree:
Caesars Entertainment and CAC), if our Board haspreviously exercised its liquidation right, th&E Operating Agreement provides -
CGP LLC shall, and our Board shall cause CGP LL@tct a liquidation.

Upon a liquidation, partial liquidation or sale rofterial assets, all net cash and other assetmatizable of CGP LLC shall, subjec
applicable gaming regulatory laws, be distributedalows: (i) first, to all units held by CAC uhtimounts distributed equal return of CAC’
initial capital contribution plus a 10.5%@r annum of return on such capital contributiarcfsreturn to begin accruing on the proceeds ie®
of the purchase price of Planet Hollywood, HorsesBaltimore and 50%f the related management fees only upon the imasst of suc
excess proceeds by CGP LLC); (ii) second, to atsumeld by Caesars Entertainment and/or its sidr#éd until Caesars Entertainment cati
up to its respective amount distributed in prowvis{) (including the 10.5%er annum of return on the initial capital conttibn) and (iii) third
to all holders of units pro rata.

The structure pursuant to which CGP LLC will effecliquidating distribution, sale of CGP LLC or ethsimilar transaction that provic
liquidity to the holders of CGP LLC's units as deked above will be determined by a spegatpose Liquidation Committee that will inclt
representatives from Caesars Entertainment and @ACGonnection with any liquidation of CGP LLC, CAIl have an approval right ov
any sale or other monetization of assets of CGP that would not exceed the greater of (x) the bealke of CGP LLC, and (y) the value
CGP LLC as determined by an appraiser selectedAsy.C

CIE Unsecured Intercompany Loan

CIE has entered into an unsecured credit facilithviCEC (the "CEC Credit Facility") whereby CEC pided to CIE unsecurt
intercompany loans as approved by CIE on an indalidransaction basis. In connection with the pasehof Playtika in 2011 and -
December 2012 Buffalo Studios acquisition, CIE bared $126.4 million for Playtika and $42.0 millidor Buffalo Studios under the CI
Credit Facility. The outstanding CIE balance on @#C Credit Facility as of December 31, 2013, wa8.8 million. No principal paymen
are required under the Credit Facility until itstor@ty date of November 29, 2016The unsecured intercompany loans bear intereghe
unpaid principal amounts at a rate per annum eguhIBOR plus 5%. The CEC Credit Facility does not have any rettecor affirmative
covenants. The CEC Credit Facility eliminates wth consolidation of CGP LLC.

Consolidation as a Variable Interest Entity

In October 2013, Caesars and its subsidiaries thegavith Caesars Acquisition Company (“CACihd CGP LLC consummated
Caesars Growth Partners, LLC Transactidascribed above. Because the equity holders in OGPreceive returns disproportionate to tl
voting interests and substantially all the act@stiof CGP LLC are related to Caesars, CGP LLC kas betermined to be a variable inte
entity. CAC is the sole voting member of CGP LL@either CAC nor CGP LLC guarantee any of Caesdebt. The creditors or benefic
holders of CGP LLC have no recourse to the gerealit of Caesars Entertainment Corporation. Cadsas certain obligations to CGP L
through the management and services agreements.

For accounting purposes, the transactions betw&d 0 C and CEOC have been determined to be a reizaéon among entities unc
common control. Because substantially all the #@iv of CGP LLC are related to Caesars and duieofactors set forth below, we hi
concluded that we are required to consolidatedieanmccounting rules.
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We have reached this conclusion based upon thehtirgggof a number of items, including the followir(@ the close association that C
LLC has with Caesars, including the fact that dlthee assets and businesses owned by CGP LLC weergrad from Caesars; (ii) Caes
through CEOC, has ongoing asset and managemeitesagreements with each of the properties owyed®P LLC; and (iii) Caesars t
the obligation to absorb losses and the right teik@ residual returns that could potentially m#icant to CGP LLC. See above for gre
detail on the Caesars Growth Partners, LLC Traiwaeind our related accounting. During the 2013qggdein which we consolidated CGP LI
as a VIE (subsequent to the Transactions), we reézed net revenues of $141.7 million and net incatbutable to Caesars of $3.9 million .

Note 6 — Property and Equipment, net

As of December 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012
Land and land improvements $ 6,266.6 $ 7,208.¢
Buildings, riverboats, and improvements 6,668.. 8,725.
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 2,297.° 2,491.(
Construction in progress 824.¢ 378.:
16,057.: 18,803.!
Less: accumulated depreciation (2,819.9) (3,102.)
$ 13,237.¢ $ 15,701

Depreciation Expens

Years Ended December 31,
(In millions) 2013 2012 2011

Depreciation expense $ 5716 $ 751 $ 724.

Depreciation expense is included in depreciatiahanortization, corporate expense, and income flimecontinued operations.
Tangible asset impairments

We review the carrying value of our lofiged assets for impairment whenever events ouanstances indicate that the carrying valt
an asset may not be recoverable from the estinfatade cash flows expected to result from its usd aventual disposition. Over time,
have experienced deteriorating gaming volumes @pgaties in certain of our markets and, as a rethdt Company continues to evaluat:
options regarding its participation in those mask®¥e also test properties or asset groups forimmeat when those assets are more likely
not to be disposed of by sale or other means onwteeidentify evidence of deteriorating market eswf assets in a region.

Atlantic City, New Jerse

During the fourth quarter 2013, casino propertyesabccurred in the Atlantic City market. The prigiof the transactions indicatel
substantial decline in market price had occurredfasinos in Atlantic City. As a result of thisggiering event, the Company determined it
necessary to perform a recoverability test of theying amount of our Atlantic City properties.we determined the carrying values of
Atlantic City properties were not recoverable. Tfere, we performed a fair value assessment optbperties. Impairment losses $22,356.
million were recorded in 2013 primarily as a resflthe assessment. The Company recorded an imgatiraf $450.0 million in 2012s
result of evaluating options for one of its Atlan@ity properties for participation in the market.

Tunica, Mississippi

As a result of downward pressure on the actualteefiom operations compared with prior years aritth wrevious forecasts for one of
properties in the Tunica market, the Company dedtexchit was necessary to perform a recoverabibist bf the carrying amount of 1
property. It was determined the carrying value was$ recoverable. Therefore, we performed a faiugahssessment of the property
recorded an impairment loss of $114.8 million i120
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Biloxi, Mississippi

As a result of a possible transaction involvingt&iar of our land holdings in Biloxi, we tested tlaed holdings for recoverability in 20:
This analysis resulted in tangible asset impairment79.3 million in 2013. In 2012, we recordeddidle asset impairments $180.5 millior
on a previously halted development project in Bilox

Other

We recorded tangible asset impairments of $13.Bamiin 2013 as a result of other identified triggeregents for long lived assets owi
by the Company.

Note 7 — Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Changes in Carrying Value of Goodwill

Gross Goodwill Accumulated Impairment Net Carrying Value

(In millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Balance as of January 1 $ 94337 $ 9,438¢ $ (6,273.9) $ (6,078.) $ 3,160.: $ 3,360.
Additions 15.1 14.: — — 15.1 14.c
Impairments — — (104.9) (195.9 (104.9) (195.9
Contribution of ThistleDown to ROC venture — (20.7) — — — (20.7)
Disposalg? (14.9) — — — (14.9 —
Other® 7.1 0.8 — — 7.1 0.9
Balance as of December 31 $ 9441( $ 94337 $ (6,377.) $ (6,273.9) $ 3,063 $ 3,160.:

® During 2013, we sold 45% of our interest in BalukA. See Note 4.
@ Related to CIE acquisitions of Buffalo Studios arider CIE acquisitions.

In 2012, we contributed our interests in ThistleDaw ROC and recorded a $20.1 millieduction of related goodwill. The Company
not have any reporting units with a zero or negativok value as of December 31, 2013 .

Changes in Carrying Value of Intangible Assets ©Offtean Goodwill

Amortizing Non-Amortizing Total
(In millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Balance as of January 1 $ 1027¢ $ 1,163.° $ 2,958.. $ 3,199% $ 3,985 $ 4,363.
Additions 19.1 37.¢ — — 19.1 37.¢
Impairments (150.9) — (199.€) (242.0 (349.9) (242.0
Amortization expense (164.5 (174.¢ — — (164.5) (174.9
Disposals — — — — — —
Other (1.9 0.7 (0.9 0.€ (2.7) 1.2
Balance as of December 31 $ 730.C $ 1,027.¢ $ 2,757 $ 2,958.. $ 3,487 $ 3,985’

During 2013, we increased our amortizing intangibdsets $19.1 milliomas a result of entering into certain contractuaarsgement:
During 2012, we acquired substantially all of ttet assets of Buffalo Studios and recorded amogigitangible assets of $37.8 millioelatec
to developed games and game titles.

Our impairment assessments of amortizing intangaskets resulted in impairment charges of $150l8min 2013. These impairme
charges include the write-off of our $60.0 milliamtangible assets associated with the Suffolk mement rights and certain amortiz
intangibles in our Atlantic Coast region. The AtiarCoast region impairments were primarily theutesf a combination of reduced projec
revenues within our long-term operating plan amtiange in the discount rate.
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Impairment Charges for Goodwill and Other Mamortizing Intangible Assets

Years Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011
Goodwill $ 104.: % 1952 $ 3.C
Non-amortizing intangible assets:
Trademarks 101.¢ 209.( 8.C
Gaming Rights and other 98.2 33.C —
Total impairment charges $ 303¢ § 4372 $ LT

Our annual assessment of goodwill resulted in inmpant charges of $104.3 million in 2013 and $198ition in 2012. These impairme
charges were a result of the combination of a distoate increase and reduced projected revenubmvaur longterm operating plan as
result of the economic climate.

Our interim and annual assessments of non-amagtizitangible assets resulted in impairment chaafe$199.6 million in 2013anc
$242.0 million in 2012 These impairment charges were the result of abemation of reduced projected revenues associaiéu tives:
intangible assets within our long-term operatingnphnd a change in the discount rate.

Gross Carrying Value and Accumulated Amortizatibintangible Assets Other Than Goodwill

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Weighted
Average
Remaining Gross Net Gross Net
Useful Life Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(Dollars in millions) (in years) Amount Amortization Amount Amount Amortization Amount
Amortizing intangible assets
Customer relationships 6.0 $ 1,268.. $ (6455 $ 622 $ 1,456. $ (618.0) $ 838.7
Contract rights 14.5 97.€ (79.9) 18.2 145.1 (66.%) 78.¢
Patented technology 2.8 138.: (76.5) 61.¢ 158.¢ (78.9) 80.1
Gaming rights 10.5 42.¢ (15.9 27.4 42.¢ (12.¢) 30.C
$ 15468 % (816.9 730 $ 1,803.( $ (775.9 1,027.¢
Non-amortizing intangible assets
Trademarks 1,598.: 1,699.°
Gaming rights 1,159t 1,258.«
2,757, 2,958..
Total intangible assets other than ) )
goodwill $ 3487 $ 39857

The aggregate amortization expense for intangigdeta that continue to be amortized was $164.5omilh 2013 , $174.6 million i201Z
and $156.7 million in 2011 . Estimated annual aimation expense for each of the five years from&itough 2018 is $136.4 millior$,134.¢
million , $121.4 million , $110.9 million , and $¥0million , respectively.
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Note 8 — Detail of Accrued Expenses and Other Curre Liabilities

As of December 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012
Accrued Expenses
Payroll and other compensation $ 233.¢ % 206.%
Self-insurance claims and reserves 208.2 202.(
Advance deposits 203.t 138.¢
Accrued taxes 130.( 147.(
Total Rewards liability 50.1 52.C
Other accruals 387.1 348.4
Total accrued expenses 1,212 1,094.
Liabilities held for sale — 3.8
Total $ 1,212 % 1,098.t
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Note 9 — Debt

(Dollars in millions)
CEOC Debt

Credit Facilities®
Term Loans B1 - B3
Term Loan B4
Term Loan B5
Term Loan B6®

Secured Debt
Senior Secured Note8
Senior Secured Note8
Senior Secured Note8
Second-Priority Senior Secured Not8s
Second-Priority Senior Secured Notés
Second-Priority Senior Secured Notés
Chester Downs Senior Secured Notes

Bill's Gamblin' Hall & Saloon ("Bill's") Credit
Facility ©

Capitalized Lease Obligations
Subsidiary-Guaranteed Deft

Senior Notes

Senior PIK Toggle Notes
Unsecured Senior Del

5.375%

7.0%

5.625%

6.5%

5.75%

Floating Rate Contingent Convertible Senior
Notes

Other Unsecured Borrowings
Special Improvement District Bonds
Other

Total CEOC Debt @

Final Rate(s) Face Value Book Value Book Value
Maturity December 31, 2013 December 31, 201
2015 3.24% $ 29.C 29.C 1,025.¢
2016 9.50% 959.¢ 948.1 954.t
2018 4.49% 991.¢ 989.: 1,218.¢
2018 5.49% 2,431.¢ 2,399.¢ 2,812.¢
2017 11.25% 2,095.( 2,066. 2,060.:
2020 8.50% 1,250.( 1,250.( 1,250.(
2020 9.00% 3,000.( 2,954.! 1,486.¢
2018 12.75% 750.( 743.¢ 742.¢
2018 10.00% 4,528.: 2,433.. 2,260.:
2015 10.00% 214.¢ 187.7 173.%
2020 9.25% 330.C 330.C 330.(
2019 11.00% 185.( 179.¢ 181.¢
to 2017 various 16.7 16.7 27.2
2016 10.75% 478.€ 478.€ 478.¢
2018 10.75%/11.50% 10.€ 10.€ 9.7
2013 — — — 116.¢€
2013 — — — 0.€
2015 5.625% 364.4 328.< 306.7
2016 6.50% 248.7 212.¢ 200.¢
2017 5.75% 147.¢ 115.C 108.7
2024 0.25% 0.2 0.2 0.2
2037 5.30% 62.€ 62.€ 64.2
2016 0.00% - 6.00% 45.¢ 45.¢€ —
18,141 15,782.¢ 15,810.!
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Final Rate(s) Face Value Book Value Book Value
(Dollars in millions) Maturity December 31, 2013 December 31, 201
CERP Debt
Secured Debt
CERP Senior Secured Lo&h 2020 7.00% 2,500.( 2,449.° —
CERP First Lien Note& 2020 8.00% 1,000.( 993.7 —
CERP Second Lien Noté3 2021 11.00% 1,150.( 1,140.¢ —
CMBS Financing — — — 4,660.t
LINQ/Octavius Senior Secured Loan — — — 446.5
Capitalized Lease Obligations to 2017 various 5.4 5.4 8.6
Other Unsecured Borrowings
Other 2016 0.00% - 6.00% 21.: 21.z —
Total CERP Debt 4,676. 4,610.¢ 5,115.¢
CGP LLC Debt ?
Secured Debt
PHW Las Vegas Senior Secured Loan 2015 3.03% 494.¢ 456.1 438.2
Baltimore Credit Facility 2020 8.25% 225.( 214t —
Capitalized Lease Obligations to 2017 various 0.1 0.1 0.1
Other Unsecured Borrowings
Other 2014 - 2018 various 51.C 51.C 477
Total CGP LLC Debt 770.¢ 721.7 486.(
Total Debt 23,589.: 21,115 21,412.:
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt (297.9) (297.9) (879.9
Long-Term Debt $ 23,392.: $ 20,918 $ 20,532..

@ Guaranteed by Caesars Entertainn

@ Guaranteed by Caesars Entertainment and certailiydwned subsidiaries of CEOQ

®  Guaranteed by Caesars Entertainment Resort Prepartd its subsidiarit

@ $1,146.6 millionof debt issued by CEOC is held by other consolitiatatities, substantially all of which is held bR LLC. Accordingly, such debt
not considered outstanding in the above presentatio

®  The Term B-6 Loans have a springing maturity toilXp#, 2017 if more than $250.0 million of CEOC'$.25%senior secured notes due 2017 rel
outstanding on April 14, 2017.

©  Subsequent to year end, the Company announcedytheraent to sell the property to CGP LLC, as phithis transaction, CGP LLC will assume |
debt. See Note 24.

™ As of December 31, 2013, under the CGP LLC strest@IE has $39.8 milliomrawn under a revolver arrangement with Caesarsr@ammen
Accordingly, such debt is not considered outstagdinthe above presentation.

Annual Maturities of Lon-Term Debt

(In millions) 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 Thereafter Total
CEOC $ 113« $ 1,108! $ 2,084( $ 2,715! $ 8447. $ 4819.¢ $ 19,288
Less: CEOC to affiliaté — (427.9) (324.5 (390.9 3.9 — (1,146.6
CERP 35.¢ 33.¢ 31.¢ 25.C 25.1 4,525 ( 4,676.
CGP LLC 47.¢ 497.1 2.2 2.2 5.4 216.: 770.¢
Total $ 1971 $ 1,212. $ 1,793! $ 2351¢ $ 8473° $ 9561.( $ 23589

@ Substantially all of these amounts are held by CGE.
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As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , book valuesebt dre presented net of unamortized discount2@f78.8 million and$2,691.(
million , respectively.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , the Companytstanding debt had a fair value of $20,544.1 milland $20,652.8 million
respectively. The fair value of debt has been d¢aled based on the borrowing rates available d3eaember 31, 2013for debt with simila
terms and maturities, and based on market quotesrgsublicly traded debt. The fair value of oubtis classified within level 1 and level Z
the fair value hierarchy.

As a result of the restrictions related to CEO@sdwings, CERP Financing, and on the assets of ClGPdebt and other arrangeme
the amount of restricted net assets of our cora@dl subsidiaries and variable interest entities $2.0 billion and $1.2 billion as o
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Current Portion of Long-Term Debt

Current maturities of longerm debt include required interim principal payitsean certain term loans under the CEOC seniorrse
credit facilities, the special improvement distrminds, other unsecured borrowings and capitaligasie obligations. The current portior
long-term debt also includes required principalmeants of $43.5 million of CEOC 10.0% second-priosénior secured notes due 20$81.¢
million of CEOC 10.0% second-priority senior secumotes due 2015, $25.0 million of CERP senior s=tu.oan, and CIE noimteres
bearing convertible promissory notes totaling $4fiilfion , under the CGP LLC structure.

The current portion of long-term debt as of Decen@ie 2012 included $750.0 million of CEOC 9.0%tes issued in December 2!
pending satisfaction of certain escrow conditioBs. February 20, 2013, the escrow conditions wetisfieal and the debt obligation w
reclassified to long-term.

CEOC Debt
CEOC Credit Facilities Activity

In connection with the Acquisition, CEOC enteretbithe senior secured credit facilities (the "CEOf@dit Facilities"). This financing
neither secured nor guaranteed by Caesars Entedatis other direct subsidiaries, including the subsiégthat own properties that
security for the CERP Financing, as defined below.

During 2012, we (i) extended the maturity of $3,81&illion B-1, B-2 and B3 term loans held by consenting lenders from Jan2a
2015 to January 28, 2018 and increased the intetsstvith respect to such extended term loans"{teem B-6 Loans"), (ii) convertefl457.¢
million original maturity revolver commitments helhy consenting lenders to Term@koans and promptly following such conversion,aie
$1,574.3 million of term loans held by any consamgtiender, (iii) extended the maturity of $37.2 lroil original maturity revolve
commitments held by consenting lenders who electédo convert their commitments to term loans fréanuary 28, 2014 to January 28, 2
and increased the interest rate and the undrawmdaoment fee with respect to such extended revateanmitments, and upon the effectiver
of such extension, terminated $798.5 million ofaleer commitments and increased the amount of audéhg Term B-6 Loans b$2,853.
million , and (iv) modified certain other provisimof the CEOC Credit Facilities.

In January and February 2013, CEOC converted $188li®n aggregate principal amount of original maturityakrer commitments he
by consenting lenders to Term B-6 Loans and tertath&133.9 million principal amount of revolvingmmitments of extending lenders.

In connection with the February 2013 notes offeritggcribed in the CEOC Notes section below, CEGfived the requisite lenders’
consent and entered into a bank amendment to tlEO3Eredit Facilities to, among other things:

(i) use the net cash proceeds of the February 801 offering to repay $1,433.3 million of CEG@Xxisting term loans as describe
the CEOC Notes section below;

(i) obtain up to $75.0 milliomf extended revolving facility commitments with aturity of January 28, 201

(iii) increase the accordion capacity under the CEOCitradilities by an additional $650.0 milliqavhich may be used to, among of
things, establish extended revolving facility cortmrénts under the CEOC Credit Facilities);

(iv) modify the calculation of the senior secured legergatio for purposes of the maintenance test utidelCEOC Credit Facilities
exclude the notes issued in February 2013; and
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(v) modify certain other provisions of the CEOC Crdgdicilities

In addition to the foregoing, CEOC may elect toeext and/or convert additional term loans and/oplk@r commitments from time
time.

As of December 31, 2013 , the CEOC Credit Facdifovide for senior secured financing of up to6%8,1 million, consisting ¢
(i) senior secured term loan facilities in an agate principal amount of $4,412.6 million with $29nillion maturing on January 28, 20
$959.8 million maturing on October 31, 2016 (thactemental Loans"), and $3,423.8 milliamaturing on January 28, 2018, (i) a se
secured revolving credit facility in an aggregatmgpal amount of up to $215.5 million , with $1@9illion maturing January 28, 2014, ¢
$106.1 million maturing January 28, 2017, includbwh a letter of credit sub-facility and a swimgliloan sulfacility. There were no amoui
outstanding under the revolving credit facility@¢cember 31, 2013 and 2012 or during the year eddmémber 31, 2013. The term lo
under the CEOC Credit Facilities require schedujedrterly payments of $2.5 million , with the balardue at maturity. As ddbecember 3:
2013, $100.5 milliorof the revolving credit facility was committed taitstanding letters of credit. After consideratidrtiee letter of cred
commitments, $115.0 milliorof additional borrowing capacity was available tee tCompany under its revolving credit facility at
December 31, 2013 . As of March 1, 2014, the fgcprovided for $106.1 million of borrowing capagitof which $9.6 millionremained &
available.

Borrowings under the Credit Facilities, other themrowings under the Incremental Loans, the Ter# Bsans and the Term 8-1Loans
bear interest at a rate equal to the tbemrent LIBOR rate, or at a rate equal to the aligr base rate, in each case plus an applicabimas
of December 31, 2013, the Credit Facilities, othan borrowings under the Incremental Loans, #enilB-5 Loans and the Term@Loans
bore interest at LIBOR plus 300 basis points far titrm loans. The revolver loan bore interest 8QR plus 30asis points or the altern
base rate plus 200 basis points. The swingline lbzaa interest at the alternate base rate plu$aSi3 points. The extended revolver loan
interest at LIBOR plus 525 basis points or theratite base rate plus 425 basis points.

Borrowings under the Incremental Loans bear intesies rate equal to either the alternate baseoratbe greater of (i) the thequrren
LIBOR rate or (ii) 2.0% ; in each case plus an egtlle margin. As of December 31, 201Borrowings under the Incremental Loans
interest at the minimum base rate of 2.0% , plusdsis points.

Borrowings under the Term B-5 Loans bear interést i@te equal to either the alternate base ratieeotheneurrent LIBOR rate, plus i
applicable margin. As of December 31, 2013 , boimg® under the Term B-5 Loans bore interest at LIRBflus 425 basis points.

Borrowings under the Term B-6 Loans bear interést mte equal to either the alternate base ratkeotheneurrent LIBOR rate, plus i
applicable margin. As of December 31, 2013, boimg® under the Term B-6 Loans bore interest at LRBfus 525 basis points.

On a quarterly basis, we are required to pay eawtier (i) a commitment fee in respect of any urdwed amounts under the revolv
credit facility and (ii) a letter of credit fee imespect of the aggregate face amount of outstarlditeys of credit under the revolving cre
facility. As of December 31, 2013 , the CEOC Cirdtiicilities bore a commitment fee for unborrowedoants of 50basis points under t
revolving credit facility maturing January 28, 20&td 100 basis points under the revolving crexditlity maturing January 28, 2017.
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CEOC's Credit Facilities are guaranteed by Cadsatertainment and are secured by a pledge of CE@&}ital stock and by substanti
all of the existing and future property and asséiSEOC and its material, wholly owned domesticsidiaries, including a pledge of the caf
stock of CEOC’s material, wholly owned domestic sidlaries and 65.0% of the capital stock of thstdiler foreign subsidiaries, in each ¢
subject to exceptions. As of December 31, 20&8rtain undeveloped land in Las Vegas and tHevidig casino properties have mortge
under the Credit Facilities:

Las Vegas Atlantic Coast Other U.S.

Caesars Palace Bally’s Atlantic City Harrah’s New Orleans (Hotel Onl{})
Bally’s Las Vegas" Caesars Atlantic City Harrah's Louisiana Downs

The Quad Resort & Casirtd Showboat Atlantic City Horseshoe Bossier City

Harrah's Tunica

Horseshoe Tunica

Tunica Roadhouse Hotel & Casino
Harrah’s Council Bluffs

Horseshoe Council Bluffs/Bluffs Run
Horseshoe Southern Indiana
Harrah's Metropolis

Horseshoe Hammond

Harrah’'s Reno

Harrah's Lake Tahoe

Harveys Lake Tahoe

® Subsequent to year end, the Company announcedttbenaent to sell this property to CGP LLC. See Ndte
CEOC Notes Activity

In February 2012, CEOC completed the offering of2$0.0 million aggregate principal amount of 8.5&mior secured notes due 2(
CEOC used $1,095.6 millioof the net proceeds from this transaction to regpgprtion of the CEOC Credit Facilities in connentiwith the
consummation of the transactions as further digmigsthe CEOC Credit Facilities section above.

During the second quarter of 2012, we purchase8 $§llion face value of CEOC 5.75% unsecured semiotes for$3.2 millior
recognizing a pre-tax gain of $1.0 million , netdeferred finance charges.

In August 2012, CEOC completed the offering of $05@illion aggregate principal amount of 9énior secured notes due 2020. Ci
used $478.8 millionof the net proceeds from this transaction to repagortion of the CEOC Credit Facilities in connentiwith the
consummation of the transactions as further digmigsthe CEOC Credit Facilities section above.

In December 2012, CEOC completed the offering &0J million aggregate principal amount of @¥nior secured notes due 2020,
proceeds of which were placed into escrow and wepsrded as shotérm restricted cash in our Consolidated BalanceeShas c
December 31, 2012. On February 20, 2013, whenrnbeepds were released from escrow, CEOC used $8%lidh of the proceeds to repa
portion of the existing loans under the CEOC CrEdittilities at par.

In February 2013, CEOC completed the offering o580.0 million aggregate principal amount of $%nior secured notes due 2(
CEOC used $1,433.3 millioof the proceeds to repay a portion of the existéarg) loans under the CEOC Credit Facilities at para result ¢
these repayments, we recognized a loss on earhgeidhment of debt of $29.4 million during thesfiquarter of 2013.

During the third quarter of 2013, we purchased $18illion of face value of CEOC 5.375% unsecuredi@enotes for $18.3 million In
connection with this transaction, we recorded a s early extinguishments of debt of $0.2 milljaret of discounts. The notes were repa
December 2013 upon maturity.

Our Senior Secured Notes, including the SecondiBriSenior Secured Notes, and our unsecured ddtith is fixed-rate debt, have semi-
annual interest payments.
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Bill's Credit Facility

In November 2012, a CEOC subsidiary entered in$d&6.0 million , severyear senior secured credit facility bearing intessLIBOR
plus 9.75% with a LIBOR floor of 1.25%he "Bill's Credit Facility") to fund the renovati of The Cromwell (formerly Bill's Gamblin' Hall
Saloon) into a boutique lifestyle hotel that inagda dayclub/nightclub. The renovated facility xpexted to open in the second quarter :
and will include a complete remodeling of the guestms, casino floor, and common areas, the adddfoa second floor restaurant, and
construction of an approximately 65,08Quare foot rooftop pool and dayclub/nightclub. TMEOC subsidiary will own the property ¢
manage the casino, hotel, and food and beveragatapes, and the dayclub/nightclub will be leasea third party. The proceeds of the B
Credit Facility were funded during the fourth gearof 2012 and were included as restricted casif 82cember 31, 2012The proceeds &
being used to fund renovation activity through céetipn in 2014 and the unused portion remainediotstl as of December 31, 2013 .

As part of the credit facility, Caesars Entertaiminprovided a completion guarantee to ensure prangtcomplete performance to
complete construction and pay all project costadoordance with the loan documents, (ii) provide itiitial working capital specified in t
project budget, and (iii) obtain all material petsrand licenses necessary for the commencemepieoétions. The maximum liability under
completion guarantee is $20.0 million . For evexttsurring subsequent to December 31, 2013, see2doté Subsequent Events ."

Other Financing Transactions

In February 2012, Chester Downs issued $330.0aniliggregate principal amount of 9.25%nior secured notes due 2020 throu
private placement. Chester Downs used $232.4 mitificthe proceeds of the notes to repay the term ¢hen2016 plus accrued interest a
prepayment penalty. The remaining proceeds werée itsenake a distribution to Chester Downs' managmgnber, Harrah's Chester Do\
Investment Company, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiaff zZEOC, and for other general corporate purposes.

Restrictive Covenants and Other Matt

Under CEOC's Credit Facilities, we are requireddtisfy and maintain specified financial ratiose8fically, the CEOC Credit Faciliti
requires CEOC to maintain an SSLR of no more th@ tb 1.0, which is the ratio of its senior first mity secured debt to LTM Adjust:
EBITDA - Pro Forma - CEOC Restricted. This raticckexes up to $3,700.0 million of first priority den secured notes and up $850.(
million aggregate principal amount of consolidatdbt of subsidiaries that are not whaliyned. This ratio also reduces the amount of s
first priority secured debt by the amount of umiestdd CEOC cash on hand which was $1,450.2 milasnof December 31, 2013. As
December 31, 2013, the CEOC SSLR was 4.52 to 1.0.

The CEOC Credit Facilities require compliance oguarterly basis with a maximum net senior secunest lien debt leverage test.
addition, the CEOC Credit Facilities include negattovenants, subject to certain exceptions, o#isigi or limiting CEOCS ability and th
ability of its restricted subsidiaries to, amon@eat things: (i) incur additional debt; (ii) crediens on certain assets; (iii) enter into sale
leaseback transactions; (iv) make certain investmemians, and advances; (v) consolidate, merge, sefitherwise dispose of all or any f
of its assets or to purchase, lease, or otherwdgeire all or any substantial part of assets of ather person; (vi) pay dividends or m
distributions or make other restricted payments) énter into certain transactions with its aHiks; (viii) engage in any business other tha
business activity conducted at the closing dathefoan or business activities incidental or edahereto; (ix) amend or modify the article
certificate of incorporation, blaws, and certain agreements or make certain pagnoermodifications of indebtedness; and (x) destigro
permit the designation of any indebtedness as ¢beseéd Senior Debt."

While we were in compliance with the terms and dtmks of all of our loan agreements, including GE® Credit Facilities ar
indentures, as of December 31, 2013, in order toptp with the quarterly SSLR covenant under the CEOredit Facility in the future, we w
need to achieve a certain amount of LTM AdjustedTER\ - Pro-Forma -CEOC Restricted and/or reduced levels of total@esgcured n
debt (total senior secured debt less unrestricast)c The factors that could impact the foregoimgude (a) changes in gaming trips, spenc
trip and hotel metrics, which we believe are catedl to consumer spending and confidence generatlyspending by consumers for gan
and other entertainment activities, (b) our abildyeffect cost savings initiatives, (c) assetsal@) issuing additional second lien or unsec
debt, or project financing, (e) reducing net délbbtigh open market purchases, privately negotimgetsactions, redemptions, tender offel
exchanges, (f) equity issuances, (g) reductiorspital expenditures spending, or (h) a combinatieneof.

Caesars Entertainment is not bound by any finamciakgative covenants contained in CE©Credit agreement, other than with respe
the incurrence of liens on and the pledge of isksbf CEOC.
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All borrowings under the CEOC senior secured reingi\credit facility are subject to the satisfactmincustomary conditions, including
absence of a default, the accuracy of representatiod warranties, and the requirement that suclowimg does not reduce the amoun
obligations otherwise permitted to be secured uttteCEOC Credit Facilities without ratably secgrthe retained notes.

The indenture and other agreements governing alr pay debt and PIK toggle debt limit CEOC’s (anmbtrof its subsidiariesability to
among other things: (i) incur additional debt auis certain preferred shares; (ii) pay dividendmake distributions in respect of our cay
stock or make other restricted payments; (iii) me&dain investments; (iv) sell certain assetsefWjage in any business or own any ma
asset other than all of the equity interest of CES8Qong as certain investors hold a majority &f tlotes; (vi) create or permit to exist divid
and/or payment restrictions affecting its restdcseibsidiaries; (vii) create liens on certain assetsecure debt; (viii) consolidate, merge, sk
otherwise dispose of all or substantially all afdissets; (ix) enter into certain transactions usthaffiliates; and (x) designate its subsidiae
unrestricted subsidiaries. Subject to certain etieep, the indenture governing the notes and tmeemgents governing the other cash pay
and PIK toggle debt will permit us and our rese&ttsubsidiaries to incur additional indebtednesduding secured indebtedness.

CERP Debt
CMBS Financing

In connection with the Acquisition in 2008, eigtitaur properties (the “CMBS propertiesipd their related assets were spun out of C
to Caesars Entertainment. As of the Acquisitionedéite CMBS properties were Harrah's Las Vegas, R@mingo Las Vegas, Harra
Atlantic City, Showboat Atlantic City, Harrah's Lakiahoe, Harveys Lake Tahoe and Bill's Lake Tafite CMBS properties borrow
$6,500.0 million of CMBS financing (the “CMBS Finging”). The CMBS Financing was secured by the assets o0€EMBS properties ar
certain aspects of the financing were guarantee@dssars Entertainment. On May 22, 2008, ParisViegms and Harrah's Laughlin and t
related operating assets were spun out of CEOGa&s&'s Entertainment and became property secudsdt the CMBS mortgage loan anc
related mezzanine loans (“CMBS Loansihd Harrah's Lake Tahoe, Harveys Lake Tahoe, Bilke Tahoe and Showboat Atlantic City w
transferred to CEOC from Caesars Entertainmenbatemplated under the debt agreements effectiveupat to the Acquisition. The CMI
Financing was refinanced in October 2013 as desdti@low.

During 2013, we purchased $274.8 million of aggtedace value of CMBS Financing for $219.7 millioprecognizing total préax gain:
on early extinguishment of debt of $52.4 millionet of deferred finance charges. During 2012, wehased $367.3 millionf aggregate fat
value of CMBS Financing for $229.3 million , recagng total pre-tax gains on early extinguishmehdebt of $135.0 million net of deferre
finance charges.

Octavius/Ling Financing

On April 25, 2011, the Company, together with dertubsidiaries of CEOC comprised of Caesars OataVliLC; Caesars Ling, LLC; a
Octavius Ling Holding Company, LLC (collectivelyaliBorrowers”) entered into a credit agreement (fDetavius/Ling Credit Agreemeny”
pursuant to which the Borrowers incurred finandiogomplete the development of the Octavius TovweZaesars Palace Las Vegas ant
Ling project (the "Development"). The Octavius/Lifgedit Agreement provided for a $450.0 million isersecured term facility (theTermr
Facility”) with a sixyear maturity, secured by all material assets efBbrrowers. The proceeds of the Term Facility wareded during th
second quarter of 2011 and were classified adetstrcash until drawn to pay for costs incurrethim Development.

In October 2013, the Ling an@ctavius Tower were transferred from CEOC to a CERHty, and amounts outstanding under
Octavius/Ling Credit Agreement were refinanced a3 pf the CERP Financing as described below.

CERP Financing

On October 11, 2013, we formed CERP from the p@iMBS Financing structure assets plus the additiohireg and Octavius acquir
from CEOC, and (i) completed the offering of $1,00illion aggregate principal amount of their 8%sfipriority senior secured notes due 2
and $1,150 million aggregate principal amount &irti1% second-priority senior secured notes dd Zbgether with the 8% firgiriority
senior secured notes due 2020, the "CERP Noted'"figrentered into a first lien credit agreemeategrning their new $2,7691billion senio
secured credit facilities, consisting of seniorused term loans in an aggregate principal amou$2¢600.0 million(the "CERP Term Loans
and a senior secured revolving credit facility maggregate principal amount of up to $269.5 milliéWe refer to this new borrowing struct
as CERP and the refinancing transaction as "CER&nEing".
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Borrowings under the CERP Term Loans bear inteaestrate equal to either the alternate base ratieeogreater of (i) the therurren
LIBOR rate or (ii) 1.0%; in each case plus an applicable margin. As ofeldxer 31, 2013, borrowings under the CERP Term & doome
interest at the minimum base rate of 1.0% , plW&sis points. The CERP Term Loans require sckddydarterly payments of $6.3 millign
with the balance due at maturity. Borrowings unither senior secured revolving credit facility wolddar interest at a rate equal to eithe
alternate base rate or the greater of (i) the therent LIBOR rate or (ii) 1.0% ; in each case mnsapplicable margin.

On a quarterly basis, we are required to pay eantdr (i) a commitment fee in respect of any urdwed amounts under the sel
secured revolving credit facility and (i) a lettef credit fee in respect of the aggregate facewsrnof outstanding letters of credit under
senior secured revolving credit facility. As of @eaber 31, 2013, the senior secured revolving crieditity bore a commitment fee 1
unborrowed amounts of 50 basis points. There weramounts outstanding under the revolving credititp at December 31, 2013.

The net proceeds from the offering of CERP Notabtae borrowings under the CERP Term Loans, togetfit cash, was used to re
100% of the principal amount of loans under thetgege and mezzanine loan agreements entered interbgin subsidiaries of the CM
properties, repay in full all amounts outstandimgler the senior secured credit facility entered ioy Caesars and Caesars Ling, LLC
Caesars Octavius, LLC, each an indirect subsidiiyaesars, and to pay related fees and expensissieBulted in a loss on extinguishmer
debt of $37.1 million .

CERP Restrictive Covenants

The CERP Notes includes negative covenants, sulbgecertain exceptions, restricting or limiting thability of CERP and operati
companies under the CERP Financing to, among tiregs: (i) incur additional debt or issue certpmaferred shares; (ii) pay dividends ol
make distributions in respect of their capital &toc make other restricted payments; (iii) makeaiarinvestments; (iv) sell certain assets
create liens on certain assets to secure debtz@gmwgolidate, merge, sell, or otherwise disposalair substantially all of their assets; (vii) el
into certain transactions with their affiliatesdafviii) designate their subsidiaries as unrestdcsubsidiaries.

The CERP Term Loans contain certain customaryraffive covenants. In addition to such affirmativeenants, the agreement ¢
contains negative covenants, subject to certaiepmians, that restrict or limit the ability of CER®, among other things: (i) incur additio
debt; (ii) create liens on certain assets; (iiijjeerinto certain sale and leaseback transactions{ake certain investments; (v) consolid
merge, sell, or otherwise dispose of all or sulisthy all of their assets; (vi) pay dividends onraake distributions in respect of their caj
stock or make other restricted payments; and ériter into certain transactions with affiliates.isThgreement requires CERP to mainte
senior secured leverage ratio of no more than 80000, which is the ratio of first lien senior secureet Webt to earnings before inter
taxes, depreciation and amortization, adjustedefined ("CERP Adjusted EBITDA"), for a test periddERP is not required to calculate
senior secured leverage ratio until the first qeraof 2014.

CGP LLC Debt
PHW Las Vegas, LLC Senior Secured L

In February 2010, CEOC acquired 100%the equity interests of a subsidiary of PHW Magjas, LLC, which owns the Planet Hollyw«
Resort and Casino located in Las Vegas, Nevadaohmection with this transaction, PHW Las VegasCLassumed a $554.3 millidace
value senior secured loan, and a subsidiary of CE@ateled certain debt issued by PHW Las Vegas,'d Iptedecessor entities. ~
outstanding amount is secured by the assets of Be¥Wegas, LLC and is narcourse to other subsidiaries of the Company. ©cebhber ¢
2013, the loan maturity of this debt was again motéel to April 2015. No additional options existetdend the maturity of the loan. The loa
secured by the assets of PHW Las Vegas, LLC.

In October 2013, CEOC sold 1008bits equity interest in PHW Las Vegas, LLC to CGEC. Prior to its sale, PHW Las Vegas, LLC\
an unrestricted subsidiary of CEOC and therefooe anborrower under CEOC’s Credit Facilities. SeseN\b -Caesars Growth Partners, LI
Transactions .

PHW Las Vegas, LLC may, at its option, voluntandsepay the loan in whole or in part upon twenty)(@8ys prior written notice
Lender. PHW Las Vegas, LLC is required to pregeyloan in (i) the amount of any insurance proceedsived by Lender for which Lent
is not obligated to make available to PHW Las Vega€ for restoration in accordance with the temfishe loan agreement, (ii) the amour
any proceeds received from the operator of thediraee property adjacent to the Planet HollywoodoResnd Casino, subject to cerl
limitations, and (iii) the amount of any excesshcasmaining after application of the cash managemeovisions as outlined in the Ic
agreement, as amended.
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The PHW Las Vegas, LLC senior secured loan requirasPHW Las Vegas, LLC maintain certain reservad$ in respect of furnitul
fixtures, and equipment, capital improvements,regeservice, taxes and insurance. Certain amalamtssited into the specified reserve fu
represent restricted cash.

The amount outstanding under the PHW Las Vegas, kéfior secured loan bears interest at a rate rparna equal to LIBOR plt
2.859% . A subsidiary of CEOC owns interesty participations in a portion of the PHW Las \sgLLC senior secured loan that bear int
at a fixed rate equal to 1.59% per year.

In connection with PHW Las Vegas, LL&'Amended and Restated Loan Agreement, Caesarstdimieent entered into a Guara
Agreement (the "Guaranty") for the benefit of thenter, pursuant to which Caesars Entertainmentagtesd to the Lender certain reco
liabilities of PHW Las Vegas, LLC. Caesars Ententaént's maximum aggregate liability for such resaufiabilities is limited t0$30.(
million , provided that such recourse liabilities of PHWs\4egas, LLC do not arise from (i) events, actsgimumstances that are actu
committed by, or voluntarily or willfully broughtomut by, Caesars Entertainment or (ii) event, amtsjrcumstances (regardless of the cau
the same) that provide actual benefit (in cashh @agiivalent, or other quantifiable amount) to @@mpany, to the full extent of the acl
benefit received by the Company. Pursuant to thar&hty, Caesars Entertainment is required to maiataet worth or liquid assets of at e
$100.0 million .

The loan contains customary affirmative covenasiibject to certain exceptions, requiring PHW Laga& LLC to, among other thin
deliver annual financial statements, annual budge#sntain its properties, maintain its books aecbrds, maintain insurance, and comply
laws and material contracts. It also containsaruary negative covenants, subject to certain eiaeptrestricting or limiting the ability
PHW Las Vegas, LLC to, among other things, dispafsés assets and change its business or ownershigummate mergers or acquisiti
and create liens on its assets. Management belieae®HW Las Vegas, LLC was in compliance with éheve covenants as of Decembe
2013.

Horseshoe Baltimore Financir

On July 2, 2013, CBAC Borrower, LLC (“CBAC"p joint venture among Caesars Baltimore Investn@ampany, LLC (then a whol
owned indirect subsidiary of CEOC), Rock Gaming Mwship LLC, CVPR Gaming Holdings, LLC, STROWD Limited Partnership ar
PRT Two, LLC, entered into a credit agreement (fBaltimore Credit Facility”)in order to finance the acquisition of land in Balire
Maryland and the construction of the HorseshoeifBale and a garage (collectively, the “BaltimorevBlepment”).In October 2013, CEC
sold 100% of its equity interests in Caesars Baltgrinvestment Company, LLC to CGP LLC.

The Baltimore Credit Facility provides for (i) a@B0 million senior secured term facility with aszeayear maturity, which is compris
of a $225.0 million facility that was funded on y#, 2013 upon the closing of the Baltimore Crdshicility, a $37.5 milliondelayed dra
facility available from the closing of the BaltimoiCredit Facility until July 2014 and a $37.5 noiflidelayed draw facility available ur
January 2015 and (ii) a $10.0 million senior seduevolving facility with a fiveyear maturity. The Baltimore Credit Facility is seed b
substantially all material assets of CBAC and itwolly owned domestic subsidiaries. There were nowrts outstanding under the revoly
facility as of December 31, 2013.

Concurrent with the closing of the Baltimore Creé#cility, CBAC also entered into an equipment ficiag term loan facility for up
$30.0 million (the “Baltimore FF&E Facility”)Under the Baltimore FF&E Facility, CBAC may use disnfrom the facility to finance
reimburse the purchase price and certain relatsts @d furniture, furnishings and equipment to Beduin the Baltimore Development. TF
were no amounts outstanding under the BaltimoreEEFé&cility as of December 31, 2013.

The Baltimore Credit Facility contains customarfirafative covenants, subject to certain exceptiogrguiring CBAC to, among ott
things, deliver annual and quarterly financial esta¢nts (following the commencement of operationthefBaltimore Development), ann
budgets, construction progress reports and oth@casp maintain its properties, maintain its bo@ksl records, maintain insurance,
commercially reasonable efforts to maintain a pubditing for the term loans and comply with lawsl anaterial contracts. It also conte
customary negative covenants, subject to certabemions, restricting or limiting the ability of @& to, among other things, dispose o
assets and change its business or ownership, comstiegnmergers or acquisitions, make dividends, steplirchases and optional redempt
of subordinated debt, incur debt and issue preadesteck, make loans and investments, create lirrits@ssets and enter into transactions
affiliates. In addition, the Baltimore Credit Fatilincludes a covenant prohibiting the senior seddeverage ratio from exceeding a spec
ratio at any time after the second full fiscal geaending after the commencement of operatiortee@Baltimore Development. The Baltim
FF&E Facility has covenants and events of defaulttstantially consistent with the Baltimore CreditcHity, and other restrictive covena
customary for FF&E facilities of this type. Managemh believes that CBAC was in compliance with tladtiBiore Credit Facility and Baltima
FF&E Facility covenants as of December 31, 2013.
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CIE Convertible Notes

During 2012, CIE issued to Rock Gaming two non+esé bearing convertible promissory notes totadd.7 million. The promissol
notes are convertible into approximately 8,8hares of CIE common stock. The notes are due2ttve and are classified as current portic
long-term debt.

Note 10 — Derivative Instruments
Derivative Instruments Interest Rate Swap Agreements

We use interest rate swaps to manage the mix oflebtr between fixed and variable rate instrumehssof December 31, 2013we ha
eight interest rate swap agreements outstandirig mational amounts totaling $5,750.0 millidmat were not designated as accounting he
These interest rate swaps reset monthly or quaed expire on January 25, 2015. The differendeetpaid or received under the terms o
interest rate swap agreements is accrued as intettes change and recognized as an adjustmemtdrest expense for the related c
Changes in the variable interest rates to be paidagived pursuant to the terms of the interdst savap agreements will have a correspor
effect on future cash flows. Changes in the falugaf the swap agreements are recognized in sttesgense.

Derivative Instruments Interest Rate Cap Agreements

We have an interest rate cap agreement to partietige the risk of future increases in the varisfie of the CERP Financing. In Febrt
2013, in conjunction with exercising the optioretdend the maturity of the former CMBS Financin@@i4, we entered into a new agreen
which is effective from February 13, 2013 and teranés February 13, 2015, and is for a notional arofi$4,664.1 milliorat a LIBOR ca
rate of 4.5% This is not designated as a hedge for accouptimgoses as a result, changes in fair value oihtieeest rate cap are recognize
interest expense.

We have an interest rate cap agreement to partieitige the risk of future increases in the variabte of the PHW Las Vegas sel
secured loan. The interest rate cap agreement & fiotional amount of $501.4 million at a LIBORpaate of 7.0% Changes in fair value
the interest rate cap are recognized in intergstrese.

Derivative Instruments Impact on Financial Statements

None of our derivative instruments are offset, #mel fair values of assets and liabilities are redzed in the Consolidated Conden
Balance Sheets. As of December 31, 2013, nonerafarivative instruments were designated as acamyhedges.

Fair Values of Derivative Instrumer

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives

Fair Value Fair Value
(In millions) Balance Sheet Location 2013 2012 2013 2012
Interest rate swaps Deferred credits and other $ — — (165.9 $ (306.9)
Interest rate cap Deferred credits and other * * — —
Total $ — % — % (165.9 $ (306.9

* Amount rounds to zero.

Effect of Derivative Instruments on Net Loss anch@@hensive Los

(In millions)

Years Ended December 31,

Location of (Gain) or Loss

Derivatives designated as accounting hedges Recognized in Net Loss 2013 2012 2011
Loss recognized in AOCL (effective portion) Other Comprehensive Loss $ — 3 — % 64.%
Loss reclassified from AOCL into net loss

(effective portion) Interest Expense 4.C 28.4 265.7
Gain recognized in net loss (ineffective portion) Interest Expense — — (53.9
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Effect of No-designated Derivative Instruments on Net Loss

(In millions) Years Ended December 31,
Derivatives not designated as accounting hedges Location of Loss 2013 2012 2011
Net periodic cash settlements and accrued intérest Interest expense $ 172.C % 169.¢ $ 201.1
Total expense for derivatives Interest expense $ 4.4 % 140.C $ 184.2

“The derivative settlements under the terms ofrterést rate swap agreements are recognized assinéxpense and are paid monthly.
Note 11 — Stockholders' Equity and Loss Per Share
Stockholders' Equity

The holders of common stock are entitled to one y&r share on all matters to be voted on by thekkblders of the Company. In-
event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidatiodissolution or winding up of the Company, holdef€@mmon stock shall receive a pro |
distribution of any remaining assets after paynuémtr provision for liabilities and the liquidatiqgereference on preferred stock, if any.

In January 2012, the Company entered into an agneemith certain of its direct and indirect stoclders, pursuant to which t
Company, Hamlet Holdings, and entities controllgdte Sponsors released the contractual transégiations on 24.2 milliorshares of ot
common stock (the "Released Shares") beneficiallgenl by certain indirect stockholders (the "Papiting Colnvestors”). In consideratis
for such release, the Participating Co-Investoreed)to contribute 1.8 millioshares to the Company (the "Delivered Shares").Jdmpan
agreed to cause the registration for resale (thelfRegistration”) under the Securities Act of teenaining Released Shares not constiti
Delivered Shares (the "Registered Shares") antistiveg of the Registered Shares on NASDAQ.

In February 2012, the Company received the Deltv&teares, placed them into its treasury, and aff&ér8 millionnewly issued shares
its common stock and an underwriters allotment®if,897 shares, in a public offering, at $9p&0 share. The Company received net proc
of $15.2 millionon February 13, 2012, after taking into accounteses and underwriting commissions and giving effethe exercise of tl
underwriters' oveallotment option. As a result of the public offerjrthe Company's common stock trades on the NASDA@gr the symb
"CZR." In connection with this public offering, tlf@ompany effected a 1.742 -forsplit of its common stock and used the net procéeas
its public offering for general corporate purpoddsne of the Sponsors or affiliates or employeethef Company participated in the pu
offering as selling stockholders.

In February 2012, the Shelf Registration was filadd, upon its effectiveness, 508hthe Registered Shares became eligible for r
under the Shelf Registration. The remaining 50%hefRegistered Shares became eligible for resa@gust 2012.

In March 2012, the Company filed a prospectus WithSEC, as part of a registration statement,ltsisares of our common stock, up
maximum aggregate offering price of $500.0 millidm April 2012, the Company entered into an eqdistribution agreement with Citigro
Global Markets Inc. and Credit Suisse SecuritieSAYLLC, whereby the Company may issue and seltad0.0 million shares of tt
Company's common stock from time to time. Durind2ahe Company sold 1,055,493 shares for an aggredfering price of $15.4 million
During 2012, the Company sold 15,000 shares faggnegate offering price of $0.2 million . Sinceeéption, the Company has sdli@70,49:
shares for an aggregate offering price of $15.@anil

In September 2013, Caesars entered into an undiexvaigreement for the sale of 10.0 millisimares of its common stock. The underw
agreed to purchase the common stock from Caesarprite of $19.40 per share and exercised it®opt purchase 340,4Hiditional share
These transactions closed on October 1, 2013,emudted in approximately $200.6 million of proce¢ni€aesars before expenses.

Noncontrolling Interests

CBAC Gaming, LLC, the Compangd consortium developing Horseshoe Casino Baltimarceived additional capital contributions fi
minority shareholders of $35.3 millioduring 2013. The investment increased the Compamyreontrolling interest equity for part
contributions to the development of the project,afgre-opening losses of $8.9 million also alkechto noncontrolling interest equity.
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As discussed in Note 5 , " Caesars Growth Parth&S, Transactions” CAC acquired 100% of the voting units of CGP LirCOctobe
2013 for $1,173.1 million Due to our consolidation of CGP LLC, the interastjuired by CAC is considered a noncontrollingiiest and h:
been presented separately within our ConsolidatddriBe Sheets. Because the equity holders in CGPreteive returns disproportionate
their voting interests resulting from the distribmt mechanism contained in CGP LlsCcontrolling documents, we account for
noncontrolling interest in CGP LLC under the HLBVethod to attribute the earnings and losses of CGE hetween controlling ai
noncontrolling interests, as described in Noté Summary of Significant Accounting Policies ."

Earnings/(Loss) Per Shar

Basic earnings/(loss) per share from continuingrapens and discontinued operations is calculatgdividing loss from continuir
operations and income/(loss) from discontinued atpans, respectively, net of income taxes, by tleghtedaverage number of comm
shares outstanding for each period. Because thep@myngenerated net losses for the years ended ec&h, 2013 , 2012 and 2011he
weightedaverage basic shares outstanding was used in ahgubliluted loss per share from continuing operes, and diluted earnings/(lo
per share from discontinued operations, as usilugedi shares would be anti-dilutive to loss persha

The following table shows the weighted average remal shares that were excluded from the computatfaliluted loss per share, as t
were anti-dilutive:

Years Ended December 31,

(In_millions) 2013 2012 2011
Stock options 4.3 6.1 5.¢
Restricted stock units 1.€ — —
Warrants 0.3 04 0.1
6.2 6.5 6.C

Note 12 — Reclassification out of Accumulated Othe€Eomprehensive Loss

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Losses on Losses on Losses on
Benefit Plan Derivative Derivative Derivative
(In millions) Adjustments Instruments Instruments Instruments
Amount reclassified from AOCL to interest expense $ 0.7 $ 4C $ 284 $ 265.7
Related tax impact — (1.5) (10.9) (117.9)
Reclassification, net of income taxes $ 07 $ 25§ 18.1 % 148.¢

Note 13 — Casino Promotional Allowances

The retail value of accommodations, food and beyesrand other services furnished to guests witbbatge is included in gross rever
and then deducted as casino promotional allowardesestimated cost of providing such casino prasnat allowances is included in cas
expenses.

Estimated Retail Value of Casino Promotional Allowes

Years Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011
Food and Beverage $ 628t $ 651.: $ 636.¢
Rooms 457.€ 481.1 484.%
Other 92.t 119.7 111.1
$ 1,178.¢ $ 1,252 % 1,232.%
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Estimated Cost of Providing Casino Promotional Aémces

Years Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011
Food and Beverage $ 459.C % 476.7 $ 469.(
Rooms 178.% 186.7 188.2
Other 47.€ 49.7 58.¢€
$ 685.. $ 713.1 % 716.1

Note 14 — Write-downs, Reserves, and Project OperarCosts, net of Recoveries

Years Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011
Remediation costs $ 28t % 211 % 11.C
Divestitures and abandonments 22.¢ 59.1 10.1
Efficiency projects — 17.5 46.€
Gain on ThistleDown transactions (Note 4) — (11.0 —
Suffolk Downs equity investment write-off (Note 4) 41.¢ — —
Project opening costs 15.4 12.€ 4.7
Other 4.2 0.4 1.4
Total $ 104.. % 99.7 $ 73.€

Write-downs, reserves, and project opening costs,oh recoveries include project opening costs eadous pretax charges to recc
contingent liability reserves, costs associateth efficiency projects, project write-offs, dematiti costs, and other naoutine transactions, r
of recoveries of previously recorded non-routingerges.

Remediation costs primarily includes costs relategrojects at certain of our Las Vegas properties.

Divestitures and abandonments includes lossesvastgid or abandoned assets, demolition costs astsl @ssociated with various proje
that are determined to no longer be viable. Diterets and abandonments included charges of $16li6nmin 2013 , $28.8 million in 2012
and $8.3 million in 2011 all of which primarily related to a previously lteal development project and land lease obligationBiloxi,
Mississippi. Divestitures and abandonments alsluded a charge of $15.0 million in 2012 relate@tanvestment in a potential venture.

Efficiency projects represents costs incurred tnfily and implement efficiency programs aimedteatamlining corporate and operat
functions to achieve cost savings and efficiengiesnarily related to Project Renewal, an initigtilesigned to reinvent certain aspects c
Company's functional and operating units to gagmificant further cost reductions and streamliseojperations.

Project opening costs represents costs associdttedpening a new property or project.

Other includes contingent liability reserves, resmas, cash received in a settlement related tmeshare development agreement ir
third quarter of 2013 and other non-routine, noerafing amounts.

Note 15 — Income Taxes

Components of (Loss)/Income Before Income Taxes

Years Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011

United States $ (4,652.) $ (2,341.9 $ (1,271.9)

Outside of the U.S. 192t 83.2 5.t
$ (4,459.)) $ (2,258.7)) $ (1,266.()
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Income Tax (Benefit)/Provisic

Years Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011
United States
Current
Federal (6.9 % (72.0 % (1.0
State (82.6€) 5.€ (16.9
Deferred
Federal (1,421.9) (726.7) (450.€)
State (51.2) (87.7) (70.7)
Outside of the U.S.
Current 28t 13.C 8.8
Deferred (16.€) 3.3 (5.3
(1,549.7) $ (870.5) $ (534.¢)
Allocation of Income Tax (Benefit)/Provisi
Years Ended December 31,
(In millions) 2013 2012 2011
Income tax (benefit)/provision applicable to:
Loss from continuing operations, before income saxe (1,549.) $ (870.5) $ (534.¢)
Discontinued operations 0.2 50.1 27.¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss) 15.¢ 10.€ 70.€
Retained earnings — — 6.C
Additional paid in capital 14.t (2.2 11.€

The tax provision of $70.9 million allocated to anwilated other comprehensive income/(loss) in 2044 primarily comprised d§117.:
million related to the reclassification of losses on dérreainstruments from accumulated other comprelvenksiss to interest expense, of
by tax benefits of $28.4 million related to the e in fair market value of derivatives and $19ilion related to foreign currency translat
adjustments. The tax impact for the componentscotimulated other comprehensive income/(loss) ir20as immaterial both individua
and in the aggregate. The tax provision of $15l8aniin 2013 was primarily related to foreign cemncy translation adjustments.
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Effective Income Tax Rate Reconciliat

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Statutory tax rate 35.C% 35.C% 35.C%
Increases/(decreases) in tax resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit 6.4 4.4 8.7
Valuation allowance (9.5 2.3 (6.8
Foreign income taxes 0.1 — 2.4
Goodwill (0.9 (1.9 0.1
Stock based compensation (0.2 (0.2 —
Officers’ life insurance/insurance proceeds — 0.1 0.3
Acquisition and integration costs 0.1 (0.2 —
Reserves for uncertain tax positions — 3.1 (0.2
Deferred tax liability adjustment — — B2
Capital loss tax benefit 4.C — —
CGP LLC transaction deferred tax adjustment (0.9 — —
Other — — —
Effective tax rate 34.1% 38.E% 42.2%
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Temporary Differences Resulting in Deferred Taxefsand Liabilities

(In millions) 2013 2012
Deferred tax assets:

State net operating losses $ 252.¢ % 180.:
Foreign net operating losses 24.¢ 37.¢
Federal net operating loss 1,280.¢ 850.2
Compensation programs 141.t 120.¢
Allowance for doubtful accounts 76.4 87.€
Self-insurance reserves 16.4 15.7
Accrued expenses 44 .4 44.¢
Federal tax credits 34.7 33.7
Federal indirect tax benefits of uncertain staxep@sitions 27.2 52.¢
Outside basis difference in foreign subsidiaries — 61.5
Investment in CGP LLC 23.4 —
Investments in non-consolidated affiliates 38.7 —
Capital loss carryover 136.4 —
Deferred revenue 41.2 2.C
Other 10.z 18.€

Subtotal 2,148.¢ 1,505.
Less: valuation allowance 739.5 330.(
Total deferred tax assets 1,409.: 1,175..

Deferred tax liabilities:

Depreciation and other property-related items 1,188.¢ 2,241,
Deferred cancellation of debt income and other-delated items 1,833.¢ 1,913
Management and other contracts — 3.¢
Intangibles 1,118.: 1,255.°
Prepaid expenses 25.C 28.5
Investments in non-consolidated affiliates — S
Total deferred tax liabilities 4,165.¢ 5,446.!
Net deferred tax liability $ 2,756.F $ 4,271..

Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities Presented in@onsolidated Balance Shet

(In millions) 2013 2012

Assets:
Deferred income taxes (current) $ 87 % 114.¢
Liabilities:
Deferred income taxes (current) 2892 % —
Liabilities held for sale (non-current) — 51.¢
Deferred income taxes (non-current) 2,476.( 4,334..
Net deferred tax liability $ 2,756.5 $ 4,271.:

As a result of certain realization requirementsA&IC Topic 718,Compensation - Stock Compensat{thSC Topic 718"), the table
deferred tax assets and liabilities shown aboves e include certain deferred tax assets as oémber 31, 2013 , andecember 31, 20:
that arose directly from tax deductions relateédaity compensation that are greater than the cosgtien recognized for financial reporti
Equity will be increased by $2.4 million if and whsuch deferred tax assets are ultimately realizbd.Company uses ASC Topic 748come
Taxeg("ASC Topic 740"), ordering when determining wheress tax benefits have been realized.
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As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , the Companyfddetal net operating loss ("NOL") carryforwards$®,654.7 million anc2,418..
million , respectively. These NOLs will begin to expire2629. The federal NOL carryforwards per the incaiame returns filed include
unrecognized tax benefits taken in prior years. fuapplication of ASC Topic 740, the federal NCQarnyforwards reflected in the income
returns, as filed, are larger than the NOLs forolita deferred tax asset is recognized for finarst&kement purposes. In addition, the Com
had federal general business tax credits carryfiatsvaf $27.5 million which will begin to expire R029. As of December 31, 2013&lthougl|
no valuation allowance has been established forGbmpanys federal NOL carryforwards or general business d@edits carryforwarc
deferred tax assets, the Company has provideduati@h allowance against certain other federal rdefietax assets that were not dee
realizable based upon near term estimates of fuéxable income. Should the Company continue teeepce operating losses of the s
magnitude it has experienced in the past severaisyét is reasonably possible in the near term ttha future reversal of its U.S. fede
deductible temporary differences could exceed tigré reversal of its U.S. federal taxable tempodifferences, in which case the Comp
would record a valuation allowance for such exegtis a corresponding reduction of federal incomehlianefit on its Consolidated Statem:
of Operations.

As of December 31, 2013 , the Company had a fedegital loss carryforward of $370.5 milligvhich will expire in 2018. The Compa
does not project having sufficient capital gainguture years in order to utilize these capitakloarryovers. As such, a full valuation allowe
has been provided for the capital loss carryov@0ih3.

NOL carryforwards for the Company’s subsidiaries $tate income taxes were $6,500.7 million and B&® million as ofDecember 3:
2013 and 2012 respectively. The state NOL carryforwards peritttmme tax returns filed included unrecognized ltarefits taken in pri
years. Due to application of ASC Topic 740, theg larger than the NOLs for which a deferred taxetassrecognized for financial statem
purposes. We believe that it is more likely thah that the benefit from certain state NOL carryfards will not be realized. In recognition
this risk, we have provided a valuation allowant&36.5 millionon the deferred tax assets relating to these NOtyfoawards and othi
state deferred tax assets which will not more jikban not be realized. We anticipate that state.®i@ the amount of $22.7 milliowill expire
in 2014. The remainder of the state NOLs will ezgietween 2015 and 2033.

NOL carryforwards of the Company’s foreign subsgidis were $118.9 million and $162.4 million as céd@mber 31, 2013 and 2012
respectively. The majority of these foreign NOLs/dan indefinite carryforward period but are subjeca full valuation allowance as -
Company believes these assets do not meet the 'likeiyethan not" criteria for recognition under &STopic 740.

As of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , the Companyftrailgn tax credit carryforwards of $7.2 millionca$12.3 million, respectively
During 2013, the Company amended its 2006 fedaratdturn to deduct $12.4 milliaf the foreign tax credits which were projectedxpire
in 2015. In 2013, the Company amended its 2007r&dax return to claim $12.6 millioof foreign tax credits which were projected to ea
in 2015. The remaining foreign tax credit carryfards of $7.2 millioris projected to expire unused in 2015 as the Cosngdars not project
have sufficient future foreign source income ineasrdo utilize these carryforwards. As such, the @any has provided a full valuati
allowance against the foreign tax credit carryfaxdeferred tax asset.

We do not provide for deferred taxes on the exoé#ise financial reporting over the tax basis im mvestments in foreign subsidiaries
are essentially permanent in duration. That exiesstimated to total $110.3 million as of Decenier2013. The additional deferred tax
including foreign withholding taxes, that have been provided is estimated at $13.3 million as e&@nber 31, 2013 .

Reconciliation Unrecognized Tax Bene

Years Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011

Balance at beginning of year $ 3332 % 5321 § 567.
Additions based on tax positions related to theentryear 0.8 9.t 4.2
Additions for tax positions of prior years 6.7 3.3 2.C
Reductions for tax positions for prior years (50.5) (203.9) (36.9
Settlements (81.6) (7.9 —
Expiration of statutes (66.5) (0.7 (4.9

Balance at end of year $ 1422 $ 3332 $ 532.:
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We classify reserves for tax uncertainties withatraed expenses and deferred credits and otheurirConsolidated Balance She
separate from any related income tax payable ardef income taxes. In accordance with ASC 74@&rvesamounts relate to any poter
income tax liabilities resulting from uncertain tawsitions as well as potential interest or peeslissociated with those liabilities.
reduction for tax positions from prior years in 301lthe settlements in 2013 , and the expiratiostafutes in 201rimarily relate to th
completion of several state audits encompassingenuns tax years. The Company recognized tax berthfivugh the reduction of tax expe
of approximately $51.4 million related to the mowarhin uncertain tax positions.

We recognize interest and penalties accrued relateshrecognized tax benefits in income tax expeklée accrued approximatefyl¢
million during 2011, and we reduced our accruabpproximately $10 million and $8.0 milliaturing 2013 and 2012, respectively. In total
have accrued balances of approximately $63 milli$@3 million , and $80 million for the paymentiaferest and penalties Biecember 3:
2013 , 2012 and 2011 , respectively. Included @ lthlances of unrecognized tax benefits as of DeeeBil, 2013 , 2012 and 201%re
approximately $91 million , $219 million , and $28illion , respectively, of unrecognized tax benefits tifatecognized, would impact t
effective tax rate.

We file income tax returns, including returns far subsidiaries, with federal, state, and foreigisgictions. We are subject to exarr
various state and foreign tax authorities. As oté&sber 31, 2013 the tax years prior to 2010 are not subject tangration for U.S. te
purposes. As of December 31, 2Q1Be tax years prior to 2010 are no longer suligeixamination for foreign and state income tasppae
as the statutes of limitations have lapsed.

The Company believes that it is reasonably possitdethe unrecognized tax benefits liability vad#crease within the next 12 months
$66.4 milliondue to state statute of limitations expirationsinyr2014. Audit outcomes and the timing of auditlsments are subject
significant uncertainty. Although the Company bedie that adequate provision has been made forissuks, there is the possibility that
ultimate resolution of such issues could have areis@ effect on our earnings. Conversely, if tHesees are resolved favorably in the fut
the related provision would be reduced, thus hasif@vorable impact on earnings.

Note 16 — Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the price that would beeireed to sell an asset or paid to transfer alifgkin an orderly transaction betwe
market participants in the principle market omdne exists, the most advantageous market, fosgéeific asset or liability at the measurer
date (referred to as the "exit price"). Fair vailsi@ marketased measurement that should be determined bpsadagsumptions that mar
participants would use in pricing an asset or lighiincluding consideration of nonperformancekris

We assess the inputs used to measure fair valog the three-tier hierarchy promulgated under GARHSs hierarchy indicates the ext
to which inputs used in measuring fair value arseoable in the market.

Level 1: Inputs include quoted prices in active marketddentical assets or liabilities that are accessibline measurement d:

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included in Leviidt are observable either directly or indirecithgluding quoted prices f
similar assets in active markets, quoted prices fidentical or similar assets in inactive marketsd observable inputs st
as interest rates and yield curves.

Level 3: Inputs that are significant to the measurementaof\falue that are not observable in the marketiantide managemer
judgments about assumptions market participantddugae in pricing the asset or liability (includiagsumptions about ris}

Our assessment of goodwill and other intangibletas®r impairment includes an assessment usingust evel 2 (EBITDA multiple
and discount rate) and Level 3 (forecasted castsflanputs. See Note 2 , " Summary of Significaotédunting Policies Goodwill and Othe
Non-Amortizing Intangible Asset$ for more information on the application of theewof fair value methodology to measure goodwidl athe
intangible assets.

Under GAAP, entities are allowed to measure ceffiaBncial instruments and other items at fair ealWe have not elected the fair ve
measurement option for any of our assets or ligdslithat meet the criteria for this option. Irresfive of the fair value option previou
described, GAAP requires certain financial and fioancial assets and liabilities of the Companypéomeasured on either a recurring bas
on a nonrecurring basis as shown in the sectiatdaHow.
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Items Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Bas

(In millions) Balance Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December 31, 2013
Assets:
Investments $ 91.7 $ 917 $ — % —
Derivative instruments * — * —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments (165.9 — (165.9 —

December 31, 2012

Assets:
Investments $ 1142 $ 1142 $ — % —
Derivative instruments * — * —
Liabilities:
Derivative instruments (306.9 — (306.9 —

*  Amount rounds to ze
Investment:

Investments consist of debt and equity securitigls maturity dates of greater than three monthmftbe date of purchase. The majorit
these securities are traded in active markets, readily determinable market values, and use Leveputs. Securities for which there are
active markets or the market values are not realditerminable are valued using Level 2 inputs.oAlihese investments are included in ei
prepayments and other current assets or deferratheh and other in our Consolidated Balance Shé&éts.following table shows o
investments by type.

(In millions) 2013 2012

Equity $ 196 % 2.8

Government bonds 72.1 111.¢
Total Investments $ 917 $ 114.:

Gross unrealized gains and losses on marketahleitses as of December 31, 2013 and 2012 were abéial.
Derivative instrument

The estimated fair values of our derivative instemts are derived from market prices obtained fraalat quotes for similar, but t
identical, assets or liabilities. Such quotes regné¢ the estimated amounts we would receive ortpagrminate the contracts. Derival
instruments are included in either deferred chaegesother, or deferred credits and other, in camgBlidated Balance Sheets. Our deriva
are recorded at their fair values, adjusted forctteglit rating of the counterparty if the derivatiis an asset, or adjusted for the credit ratii
the Company if the derivative is a liability. SeetBl 10 , " Derivative Instruments ," for more infation.

Items Measured at Fair Value on a N«recurring Basis

Total
Adjustments
(In millions) Balance Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Loss/(Gain)
Intangible and tangible assets $ 311.¢ % — 3 — $ 311.¢ % 2,440.:
Assets held for sale, net 11.€ — — 11.¢ 25.2
Contingent earnout liability 61.¢ — — 61.¢ 53.4

Market and income approaches were used to valustiegible and tangible assets. Inputs includeéxgrected range of market valt
probabilities estimated by management that eaaleveduld be achieved, expected cash flows, reaenparable transactions, discounted
flows, discount rate, royalty rate, growth rated & rate. See Note 2 , " Summary of Significaot@unting Policies ."
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Assets held for sale, net includes the net as$dtedClaridge Hotel Tower in Atlantic City. Themingent earnout liability relates to C
acquisitions. See Note 4 , " Acquisitions, Disposis, and Divestitures ."

Note 17 — Litigation, Contractual Commitments and @ntingent Liabilities
Litigation
The Company is party to ordinary and routine litig)a incidental to our business. We do not expketdutcome of any pending litigat
to have a material effect on our consolidated famrposition, results of operations, or cash flows
Contractual Commitments
Casino Development Opportunities

We continue to pursue additional casino developnapgortunities that may require, individually aml the aggregate, signific:
commitments of capital, up-front payments to tigedties, and development completion guarantees.

The agreements pursuant to which we manage casmbglian lands contain provisions required by that provide a minimum montt
payment that must be made to the tribe. That ofdigehas priority over scheduled repayments of deings for development costs and ¢
the management fee earned and paid to the maragke event that insufficient cash flow is genedaby the operations to fund this paym
we must pay the shortfall to the tribe. Subjectedain limitations as to time, such advancesnyf,avould be repaid to us in future period
which operations generate cash flow in excess efréiguired minimum payment. These commitments teftininate upon the occurrence
certain defined events, including termination of fhanagement contract. Our aggregate monthly camenit for the minimum guarante
payments, pursuant to contracts for the three mahalpdian-owned facilities is $1.2 millionEach of these casinos currently gene
sufficient cash flows to cover all of its obligat® including its debt service.

Tribal Casino Management Contracts

Expiration of

Casino Location Management Agreement
Harrah’s Rincon near San Diego, California November 2014
Harrah’s Ak-Chin near Phoenix, Arizona December 2014
Harrah’'s Cherokee Cherokee, North Carolina November 2018

In addition to the guarantees discussed above agiddial aggregate non-cancellable purchase otdigabf $812.2 million as of
December 31, 2013 .

Planet Hollywooc

In July 2013, the Company terminated its lease withird party in order to retake possession ofléinger performance theater spac
Planet Hollywood currently known as "The Axis aaft Hollywood." In connection with that transantithe Company refurbished the -
Axis at Planet Hollywood and entered into a tyear performance agreement with Britney Spearsupmtsto which Ms. Spears has agree
perform a total of 98hows at the refurbished The Axis at Planet HollgakoThe performance agreement with Ms. Spears icentastomar
representations, warranties, covenants and agréemaed exclusivity and non-compete provisions forilar transactions. As ddecember 3:
2013, aggregate remaining commitments under the leasminiation agreement, amounts committed to refbnbis the theatre a
commitments under the performance agreement aggrapproximately $36.2 million through December 2115.
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Contingent Liabilities
Employee Benefit Obligatior

In December 1998, Hilton Hotels Corporation ("Hiltp spuneff its gaming operations as Park Place Entertamin@orporation ("Pal
Place"). In connection with the spaif, Hilton and Park Place entered into variouseagnents, including an Employee Benefits and (
Employment Allocation Agreement dated DecemberBd98 (the "Allocation Agreement”) whereby Park Rlaassumed or retained,
applicable, certain liabilities and excess asséw@ny, related to the Hilton Hotels RetirementPlghe "Hilton Plan™) based on the accr
benefits of Hilton employees and Park Place emmsyPark Place changed its name to Caesars Enteetat, Inc., and the Company acqu
Caesars Entertainment, Inc. in June 2005. In 19892805, the United States District Court for thetiict of Columbia (the "Court") certifie
two nationwide classes in the lawsuit against Hilemd others alleging that the Hilton Plan's berfefimula was backloaded in violation
ERISA, and that Hilton and the other defendantedaio properly calculate Hilton Plan participarststvice for vesting purposes. In May 2(
the Court issued a decision granting summary juadgre the plaintiffs. Thereafter, the Court reqditthe parties to attempt to agree ¢
remedies determination and further required théigsmto submit briefs to the Court in support cfithpositions. On September 7, 2010,
Court issued an opinion resolving certain of Hilsoand the plaintiffs’ issues regarding a remedatsrmination and requiring the partie
confer and take other actions in an effort to nesdhe remaining issues. On July 28 and 29, 2014 Qourt held a hearing to address
remaining remedy issues and on August 31, 2011Cthet issued a Memorandum Opinion and a final ©¢te "Order"). In the Order, t
Court ordered, among other things, Hilton to awhetk payments and commence increased benefitslifataas members no later tt
January 1, 2012 or, in the case of any individwaldiit or vesting disputes, within 30 days after fimal dispute resolution by the Court.
September 28, 2011, Hilton filed a Motion for Residieration to ask the Court to reconsider certapeats of the Order. On October 5, 2!
Hilton filed a Notice of Appeal to appeal all asfgeof the Order and all other orders in the castheoUnited States Court of Appeals for
District of Columbia Circuit (the "Circuit Courtgnd on December 22, 2011, plaintiffs filed a crappeal. On November 28, 2011, Hilton fi
a motion to stay the implementation of the backingademedy pending the appeal and on January 12, 28e Court granted Hilton's mot
contingent upon Hilton posting a bond of $75.8 imillby no later than February 21, 2012. On DecembeR@42, the Circuit Court affirm
the decisions of the Court. At various times ptithe Courts 2010 opinion, we were advised by counsel forddgfendants that the plainti
estimated that the damages were in the range ofrfi80n to $280 million . Counsel for the defendsifurther advised that approximat@lsC
million of the damages relates to questions regarding ribygep size of the class and the amount, if anyjJashages to any additional cl
members due to issues with Hilton’s record keeping.

We received a letter from Hilton dated October @02 notifying us for the first time of this lawswind alleging that we have poter
liability for the above described claims under teems of the Allocation Agreement. Based on thengeof the Allocation Agreement, !
believed our maximum potential exposure is appraxaty 30 percent to 33 percaitthe amount ultimately awarded as damages. Weatre
party to the proceedings between the plaintiffs #uweddefendants and have not participated in tfiende of the litigation or in any discussi
between the plaintiffs and the defendants aboutrial remedies or damages. Further, we did noe fecess to information sufficient
enable us to make an independent judgment aboyiogble range of loss in connection with thisteraBased on conversations betweer
representative and a representative of the deféesidan believed it was probable that damages woeldt least $80.0 millioand, accordingl
we recorded a charge of $25.0 million in accordamite FASB Codification Topic 450 ontingencies during the second quarter 2010.

On December 27, 2013, we received a letter frortoHlihotifying us that all final court rulings halseen rendered in relation to this ma
and that our obligation under the Allocation Agresinwas approximately $61.6 million , of which $ illion was due in January 20
Subsequent to the December letter, we were inforbyeHlilton that our total obligation under the Adktion Agreement was approximal
$53.5 million , of which we believe approximatel¥8s5 million relates to contributions for historliggeriods and approximatet§35.0 millior
relates to estimated future contributions. Becawsehave not been able to adequately assess thenatfon supporting either Hiltog’
calculation of total amount due under the Allocatidgreement or the portions of that total amourgt trepresent historical and fut
obligations, we have not been able to revise otimase. We cannot currently predict the ultimatécome of this matter, but we continue
believe that we may have various defenses againktdaims, including defenses as to the amouliioifities.

Other Matters

In recent years, governmental authorities have lre@easingly focused on anti-money laundering (‘&M policies and procedures, w
a particular focus on the gaming industry. As aaneple, a major gaming company recently settledS Bttorney investigation into its AV
practices. On October 11, 2013, a subsidiary ofGbmpany received a letter from the Financial Cari@forcement Network of the Unil
States Department of the Treasury (“FInCEN"), stathat FInCEN is investigating the Compangubsidiary, Desert Palace, Inc. (the own
Caesars Palace), for alleged violations of the BEzerecy Act to determine
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whether it is appropriate to assess a civil perattg/or take additional enforcement action agaliassars Palace. Additionally, the Comg
has been informed that a federal grand jury ingasittn regarding the Company’s anteney laundering practices and procedures is ong
The Company is fully cooperating with both the AECand grand jury investigations. Based on procegdio date, the Company is curre
unable to determine the probability of the outcahthese matters or the range of reasonably peskibs, if any.

Self-Insurance

We are self-insured for various levels of worketempensation, property and general liability, engpo medical coverage, and of
coverage. Insurance claims and reserves includeasof estimated settlements for known claimsyel as accruals of actuarial estimate
incurred but not reported claims. As of December@113 and 2012 , we had total self-insurance litgb@iccruals of $208.2 millioranc
$202.0 million , respectively.

Note 18 — Leases

We lease both real estate and equipment used iopmrations and classify those leases as eitheatipg or capital leases, for accoun
purposes. As of December 31, 2013 , the remairnuas lof our operating leases ranged from 1 toy&drs, with various automatic extensi
totaling up to 80/ears. Rent expense, net of income from suble&sassociated with operating leases for continoipgrations and is charc
to expense in the year incurred. In addition torthirimum rental commitments, certain of our opemgtieases provide for contingent ren
based on a percentage of revenues in excess dfispetnounts.

Net Rent Expens

Years Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011
Noncancelable leases:
Minimum $ 715 $ 1152 % 102.1
Contingent 2.1 2.3 2.4
Sublease (0.9 (0.9 (0.9
Other leases 57.7 77.¢ 74.€
Total net rent expense $ 130.2 % 194t % 178.2

Future Minimum Lease Obligatiol

Capital Operating
(In millions) Leases Leases
2014 $ 16.1 $ 61.1
2015 7.8 58.¢
2016 — 54.7
2017 — 53.¢
2018 — 53.¢
2019 and thereafter — 1,059.:
Total minimum rental commitments 23¢ $ 1,341t
Less amounts representing interest 1.7
Present value of net minimum lease payments $ 22.2
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Note 19 — Supplemental Cash Flow Information

Reconciliation of Cash Paid for Intere

Years Ended December 31,

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011
Interest expense $ 2,253.( % 2,100.. $ 2,121.°
Adjustments to reconcile to cash paid for interest:
Net change in accrued interest (125.9 (13.]) (11.9
Amortization of deferred finance charges (51.2 (88.5) (70.9)
Net amortization of discounts and premiums (308.9 (226.9) (157.2)
Reclassification of accumulated other comprehernisis® — — (183.2)
Amortization of other comprehensive income 4.7 (29.]) (83.9)
Rollover of PIK interest to principal (1.2 (1.0 (1.7
Change in fair value of derivative instruments 137.€ 29.€ 70.2
Cash paid for interest $ 1,899.. $ 1,771.¢  $ 1,685.(

Note 20 — Stock-Based Compensation

We have established a number of employee beneafgrams for purposes of attracting, retaining, arativating our employees. T
following is a description of the basic componesftthese programs as of December 31, 2013 .

Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Our stock-based compensation expense consistsrgyiftime-based and performance based stock options, reststbck units ar
restricted stock awards that have been grantecatagement, other personnel and key service prarider

StockBased Compensation Expense

(In millions) 2013 2012 2011
Amounts included in:
Corporate expense $ 24t % 291 % 13.¢
Property, general, administrative, and other 31.7 26.C 8.C
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 56t $ 551 % 21.¢

Included in stock-based compensation expense éoyahrs ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2&Pbig¢ million , $20.6 million anc
$0.2 million, respectively, for share based awards issualdbanes of a consolidated entity. The majority esthawards have been class
as liability awards and are remeasured to fairevalueach reporting date.

Management Equity Incentive Pl

The Management Equity Incentive Plan allowed fer gnanting of performandeased options. The options vest and become exbleid
the return on investment in the Company of TPG, llsp@and their affiliates (the "Majority Stockhold®) achieves a 2.B return. The optior
vest on a pro-rata basis from zero to 100% if thegavity Stockholders achieve a return of less th@nX but greater than or equal to 1X5
Upon the adoption of the 2012 Performance Incer®iam, options may no longer be granted under taedgement Equity Incentive Plan.
of December 31, 2013, 25,053 options were outgtgnehder this plan will expire between years 202821.
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Performance Incentive Ple

In 2012, we adopted the 2012 Performance Inceiftlaa, as amended, (the "2012 Incentive Plan") fiectbrs, employees, officers ¢
consultants or advisors who render services tadCiipany or its subsidiaries. As of December 31,3204 total of 15,449,468 stodlase:
awards issuable in shares of CZR common stock reagdued under this plan. The 2012 Incentive Ptamiged for a ondime stock optio
exchange program (the "Option Exchange") to pethét Company to cancel certain stock options heladyain of its employees, serv
providers and directors in exchange for new, regiant options to purchase an equal number of shafresur common stock (tl
"Replacement Options").

Options eligible for the Option Exchange (the "iilg Options") were granted on or prior to Febru@n2012, and had an exercise f
equal to or greater than $20.09 per share. Repkwte®ptions have an exercise price of $8.22 perest@al10 year term and a new vest
schedule determined on a grant-by-grant basiglas\s:

Time-Based Options 20% of the timeébased Replacement Options were immediately vestith,the remainder vesting annually

equal amounts over four years.

PerformanceéBased Options

For options replacing the Eligible Options subj® vesting if funds affiliated with the Sponsaishieve at least a 1X6return, th
Replacement Options will vest on the date thatGoeenpany's 30day trailing average closing common stock pricea¢s|w
exceeds $35.00 per share.

For options replacing the Eligible Options subj® vesting if funds affiliated with the Sponsaishieve at least a 2X0return, th
Replacement Options (prior to the modification digsd below) vested on the date that the Compa8@/'slay trailing averac
closing common stock price equaled or exceededi®5¥er share.

In December 2013, the Company modified the wgsperiod for its performandeased options that originally vested upon
Company common stock price equaling or exceedingdisper share over a 3fay trailing period. The modification provides
these options to vest on the earlier of the follmyvi(i) 50% on March 15, 2014 and 5@ March 15, 2015 or (ii) the Compar
30 -day trailing average closing common stock pegaals or exceeds $57.4&r share. There was no incremental compen:
relating to such modification; however, the Companly accelerate the amortization of the compemsagxpense relating to 1
modified options in accordance with the modifiedtiugg period.

Loveman PerformaneBased Option The Company granted 290,384tions in November 2011 to Gary Loveman, the Camijg

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer dmsident. The options were eligible to vest ifdsiaffiliated with the Sponsc
achieve at least a 1.0 X return (the "Loveman PevémceBased Option"). The Replacement Options granteexthange for tt
Loveman Performance-Based Options (which were rreatlds described above) vested on the date th&@dhgany's 36-day trailing
average closing common stock price equaled or ebeck$57.41 per share.

As a result of the Option Exchange, incrementatlstbmpensation of $15.2 milliomas realized and is being amortized to compens
expense over an approximate vesting period of#i3qgears.
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Stock Option Activity

Weighted Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Exercise Fair Contractual Term
Shares Price Value @ (years)
Outstanding as of December 31, 2012 8,478,141 $ 1222 % 3.51
Granted 550,81: 13.6¢ 5.9t
Exercised (143,109 8.3¢ 7.3%
Forfeited (344,65¢) 10.6¢ 3.01
Expired (77,389 16.4z2 5.4(C
Outstanding as of December 31, 2013 8,463,81. $ 12.0¢ $ 2.6¢ 8.5
Vested and expected to vest as of December 31, 201. 7,975,090 $ 119¢ $ 2.8¢ 8.5
Exercisable as of December 31, 2013 2,314,22! ¢ 155 % 4.5¢ 8.3

@ Represents the weighted-average grant date faiev@r option, using the Monte Carlo simulationi@ppricing model for performandeased option
and the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for tibeesed options.

Stock Option Grants and Exercises

Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in millions, except per share data) 2013 2012 2011
Options Granted:
Number of options granted 550,81: 8,173,94. 2,252,45
Weighted Average Grant-Date Fair Value per siare $5.95 $3.50 $10.5¢
Weighted Average Exercise Price per SHéfe $13.65 $8.44 $26.28

Option Exercises:

Number of options exercised 143,10¢ — —
Cash received for options exercised $1.2 — —
Intrinsic value of options exercised $1.5 — —
Intrinsic Value of Options Vested and Expected &si/ $86.1 $0.1 —

@ Represents the weighted-average grant date faievagr option, using the Monte Carlo simulationiappricing model for performandeased option
and the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for tibesed options.
@ Adjusted for the February 2012 1.742 -forstihick split

The Company utilized historical optionee behaviatala to estimate the option exercise and terntinatites used in the optiqmicing
models. The expected term of the options repregéet period of time the options were expectedet@instanding based on historical tre
and/or derived from a numerical pricing model, sashthe Monte Carlo simulation model. Expectedatility was based on the histori
volatility of the common stock of Caesars Enteraémt and its competitor peer group for a periodraxmating the expected life. T
Company does not expect to pay dividends on comstock. The riskree interest rate within the expected term wasthamn the U.!
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grardluation assumptions for the indicated periagspgesented below:

Years Ended December 31,

2013 2012 2011
Expected volatility 57.4% 55.8% 65.8%
Expected dividend yield —% —% —%
Expected term (in years) 3.8 4.€ 4.8
Risk-free interest rate 1.C% 0.€% 1.1%
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As of December 31, 2013 , there was $50.9 milbbmotal unrecognized compensation cost relate@aesars Entertainment Corpora
share-based compensation plans, which is expexteel tecognized over a remaining weighted-averagegof 3.3 years .

Restricted Stock Unit

On June 28, 2013, the Company granted restrictek stnits (the "RSUs") to employees of the Compaitih an aggregate fair value
$21.7 million. Each RSU represents the right to receive payimemspect of one share of the Company's commaik sithe majority of th
RSUs will vest 25%annually beginning January 2, 2014. The followiablé summarizes the activity of RSUs during thedis/ear ende
December 31, 2013 . There were no RSUs outstamtlirigg 2012.

Restricted Stock Unit Activi

Units Fair Value
Outstanding as of December 31, 2012 — —
Granted 1,579,83 $13.74
Forfeited (76,307 $13.7C
Outstanding as of December 31, 2013 1,503,53. $13.74

In addition to the RSU activity presented abovejrduthe fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 there 5,260 RSUs granted an®91
RSUs outstanding as of December 31, 2013 relatiraydonsolidated entity. The weightederage grant date fair value per RSU grante:
outstanding during and as of December 31, 201338a70 and $3,853 , respectively.

Restricted Common Stock Awari

For the year ended December 31, 2012 , the Comgeanted 50,00@hares of restricted common stock to an executifieeo of the
Company under the Company's 2012 Incentive Plae. fEstricted common stock vests annually in equabumts over twoyears. As ¢
December 31, 2013 and 2012 , 25,000 shares anf(G&h@res of restricted common stock were outstand@spectively. For the years en
December 31, 2013 and 2011, there were no sharestatted common stock granted.

Note 21 — Employee Benefit Plans

We have established a number of employee benafigrams for purposes of attracting, retaining, arativating our employees. T
following is a description of the basic componesftthese programs as of December 31, 2013 .

Savings and Retirement Plar

We maintain a defined contribution savings andegtent plan that allows employees to make pre-takadtertax contributions. Und
the plan, participating employees may elect to route up to 50%of their eligible earnings (subject to IRS rulesiaegulations) and &
eligible to receive a company match of up to $60@hich was reinstated in 2012. Participating emeés become vested in matct
contributions on a pro-rata basis over five yedrsredited service. Our contribution expense fas flan was $12.5 million , $10.0 million
and $38,000 for the years ended December 31, 2PAB2,, and 2011 , respectively.

We maintain several supplemental executive retirgmpkans ("SERP") to provide additional retirembahefits to a select group of forr
executives. The total liability reported in defefreredits and other for the SERP plans was $ 24libmas of December 31, 2013 , a$id2.(
million as of December 31, 2012 .

Pension Commitment

With the acquisition of London Clubs, a CEOC sulasig in 2006 we assumed a defined benefit plahghavides benefits based on fi
pensionable salary. The assets of the plan areiheldseparate trustee-administered fund and deatbrvice benefits, professional fees,
other expenses are paid by the pension plan.

In the fourth quarter of 2013, Caesars electechtmge its method of accounting for actuarial gaing losses for its pension plan in
United Kingdom to a preferable method permittedar@AAP. The new method (“Immediate Recognition Mel’) recognizes actuarial ga
and losses in operating results in the year in withe gains and losses occur rather than defethiaigy into Other Comprehensive Loss
amortizing them over future periods (“Deferral Madh). Caesars management believes that this accountamgehimproves the transpare
of reporting by providing recognition of currentomomic and interest rate trends in the currentoderésults, as opposed to deferring therr
recognizing them over future periods. We applied "#tcounting change retrospectively to all peripdssented, which increased prope
general, and administrative expense, as well
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as net loss, by $9.9 million , $6.8 million , ar@i7$6 million for 2013 , 2012 , and 201tespectively. The impact of the accounting chamn
all other financial statement line items was immateWe made an immaterial correction to the histd accounting for actuarial gains
losses, which increased property, general, admatiige, and other expense, as well as net los$30§ million in 2012 and $9.9 milliom
2011, respectively. The total decrease to basicdinted earnings per share as a result of the alms $0.07 , $0.09 , and $0.30 for 2013
2012 , and 2011 , respectively. In addition, agdaruary 1, 2011, we recognized an increase to adated deficit totaling $44.3 million
which included an immaterial error correction ofZfillion .

This accounting change does not impact our deb¢rat calculation and there is no impact on castifig of the pension plan. Duri
the fourth quarter 2013, we recognized $9.9 miliinncreased pension expense as compared to ouviopsemethod of accounting for t
pension. Total plan assets at December 31, 2018 $&95.8 million with total projected benefit olaign totaling $270.8 million resulting it
a net pension liability of $75.0 millionOur estimated long term expected return on adsethis plan, which has been frozen since 20.
6.3% , with a 4.4% discount rate.

Multiemployer Pension Plar

The Company contributes to a number of multiemplaefined benefit pension plans under the termsotiéctivebargaining agreemel
that cover its union-represented employees. Tlks 0§ participating in these multiemployer plans different from a singlemployer plan i
the following aspects:

a. Assets contributed to the multiemployer plan by engployer may be used to provide benefits to emgaeyof other participatil
employers.

b. If a participating employer stops contributing teetplan, the unfunded obligations of the plan maybbrne by the remaini
participating employers.

c. If the Company chooses to stop participating in esarhits multiemployer plans, the Company may lpiied to pay those plans
amount based on the underfunded status of the i@terred to as a "withdrawal liability."

Multiemployer Pension Plan Participatic

Pension Protection Contributions
Act Zone Status® (In millions)
Expiration Date of
Collective-
EIN/Pension Surcharge Bargaining
Pension Fund Plan Number 2013 2012 FIP/RP Status® 2013 2012 2011 Imposed Agreement
Southern Nevada Culinary anc 88- Green  Green No $20.C $18.7 $16.c No May 31, 2018
Bartenders Pension Plan 6016617/001
Pension Plan of the UNITE 13- Red Red Yes 14.C 13.¢ 12.¢ No September 14, 201
HERE National Retirement 6130178/001
Fund
Local 68 Engineers Union 51- Yellow  Green Yes i1z 1.t 1.€ No April 30, 2014
Pension Plaf’ 0176618/001
NJ Carpenters Pension Fund 22- Yellow  Yellow Yes 0.t 0.4 0.4 No April 30, 2014
6174423/001
Other Funds 12.¢ 12.5 13.7

Total Contributions $48.¢ $46.¢ $44.¢

@ Represents the Pension Protection Act ("PPA") ztatis for applicable plan year beginning Janua@013, except where noted otherwi
@ Indicates plans for which a financial improvemelaing("FIP") or a rehabilitation plan ("RP") is eithpending or has been implemer
®  Plan years begin July

The zone status is based on information that thagamy received from the plan administrator anceisified by the plan's actuary. Amc
other factors, plans in the red zone are geneledly than less than 65% funded, plans in the yeliome are between 65% and less than
funded, and plans in the green zone are at le&tf88ded. All plans detailed in the table abovdiagd extended amortization provision:

calculate zone status.
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Plans with Company Contributions in Excess of 5%ai&l Plan Contribution:

Pension Fund Applicable Plan Years
Pension Plan of the UNITE HERE National Retirenfeumtd 2012 and 2011
Southern Nevada Culinary and Bartenders Pensian Pla 2012 and 2011
Local 68 Engineers Union Pension Plan 2012 and 2011
Nevada Resort Association IATSE Local 720 Retirenftdan 2012 and 2011

At the date these financial statements were isstmins 5500 were not available for the plan yedirenin 2013 .
Deferred Compensation Plar

The Company has one active and five frozen defezomipensation plans. Amounts deposited into theserrdd compensation plans
unsecured liabilities of the Company. The totability recorded in deferred credits and other fagge plans is $84.3 million as@écember 3:
2013 and $82.8 million as of December 31, 20Cbmpany matching contributions to the active phare suspended beginning in Febr
2009, though participants continue to vest in dbations made prior to that date.

The active plan is the Executive Supplemental Smviplan 1l ("ESSP 11") and allows eligible execetigfficers, directors, and other |
employees to elect to defer a percentage of tladérs and/or bonus. Participants immediately vegheir own elective deferrals and ves
Company funded matching and discretionary contidmston a praata basis over five years. However, Company magcbontributions to th
plan were suspended beginning in February 2009gthparticipants continue to vest in contributiomede prior to that date.

The five frozen plans that contain deferred comatos assets are as follows: (1) Harrah's Execubeéerred Compensation P
("EDCP"), (2) the Harrah's Executive SupplementaViggs Plan ("ESSP"), (3) Harrah's Deferred Comaéms Plan ("HDCP"), (4) tf
Restated Park Place Entertainment Corporation ExecDeferred Compensation Plan, and (5) the Cad&arld, Inc. Executive Security Pl:
Employees may no longer contribute to these plans.

Note 22 — Non-Consolidated Affiliates

Our non-consolidated affiliates are accounted fadar the equity method and, as of December 31, 20L8 investments in and advan
to noneonsolidated affiliates consists primarily of BakrS.A, our investment in Rock Ohio Caesars LLC ((RPDin Ohio, and a Kore:
investment. We manage ROC's Horseshoe Clevelamib¢asorseshoe Cincinnati casino and Thistledowniftafor a fee under managem
agreements that expire in May 2032, March 20334l 2033, respectively.

Note 23 — Related Party Transactions

In connection with the Acquisition, the Sponsorteesd into a services agreement with Caesars Rirtarént relating to the provish of
financial and strategic advisory services and clinguservices. We pay a monitoring fee for thesenagement services and reimburse
Sponsors for expenses they incur related to theseagement services. The fees paid to the Sponsmis@duded in corporate expense
were $22.5 million , $30.0 million , and $30.0 raifi for the years ended December 31, 2013 , 2@t® ,2011, respectively. Due to attaini
certain cost savings measures during the fourthtequaf 2013, the Sponsors granted a waiver ohtbaitoring fee due for the fourth quarte
2013 and first quarter of 2014.

As previo usly discussed, during the fourth quaofe?013, Caesars and CAC executed a series ofacéions as described in Note 5
Caesars Growth Partners, LLC Transactions ."

We may engage in transactions with other compame®d or controlled by affiliates of our Sponsaershie normal course of business.
believe such transactions are conducted at fairevdh addition, certain entities affiliated with under the control of our Sponsors may f
time to time transact in and hold our debt seasjtand participate in any modifications of sucbtriiments on terms available to any ¢
holder of our debt.

Note 24 — Subsequent Events
Sale of Properties from CEOC to CGP LL

On March 1, 2014, Caesars entered into a Transaétipeement (the "Property Sale Agreement") by amibng CEC, CEOC, Caes
License Company, LLC ("CLC"), Harrat’'New Orleans Management Company ("HNOMC"), Colneestment Company, LLC ("CIC'
3535 LV Corp. (3535 LV"), Parball Corporation (f®all"), JCC Holding Company II, LLC ("JCC Holding"CAC and CGP LLC. Tt
Agreement was fully negotiated by and between &i@p€ommittee of CEC’s Board of
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Directors (the "CEC Special Committee™) and a SgeC€ommittee of CAG Board of Directors (the "CAC Special Committeezgcl
comprised solely of independent directors, and veasmmended by both committees and approved btiaeds of Directors of CEC a
CAC. The CEC Special Committee, the CAC Special itae and the Boards of Directors of CEC and CAcChereceived fairness opinic
from firms with experience in valuation matters,igthstated that, based upon and subject to (angliance on) the assumptions made, me
considered and limits of such review, in each @aseet forth in the opinions, the Purchase Prisaléined below) was fair from a financ
point of view to CEC and Growth Partners, respetyiv

Pursuant to the terms of the Property Sale Agreen@®P LLC (or one or more of its designated dicindirect subsidiaries) agreec
acquire from CEOC or one or more of its affiliatéy,The Cromwell (f/k/a Bill's GamblinHall & Saloon), The Quad Resort & Casino (*
Quad"), Bally’'s Las Vegas and Harrah’'s New Orledeach a "Property” and collectively, the "Propetije (i) 50% of the ongoin
management fees and any termination fees payabler tine Property Management Agreements to be ehtexeveen a Property Manager
defined below) and the owners of each of the Ptagse(the "Property Management Agreements "); diccértain intellectual property that
specific to each of the Properties (together wihi transactions described in (i) afiijl above, the "Subsequent Property Transactidéofar
aggregate purchase price of US $2,000.0 mil{ibe "Subsequent Property Purchase Price"), nassfimed debt, in the Subsequent Pro
Transaction, and also subject to various pre-ctpaimd postlosing adjustments in accordance with the termh@fProperty Sale Agreeme
Consistent with the 2013 sale of Planet Hollywoas Vegas, this transaction will also be accounteda$ a reorganization of entities ur
common control.

The Subsequent Property Transaction is subjectettaio closing conditions, including the receipt gdming and other requir
governmental approvals, accuracy of representatoms warranties, compliance with covenants andipedsy CEC and the CEC Spe
Committee of certain opinions with respect to CEQCaddition, the consummation of the Subsequeapétty Transaction by CAC is subj
to CAC's receipt of financing on terms and conditionss$atitory to CAC and CGP LLC. In connection with tBebsequent Prope
Transaction, a whollpwned subsidiary of CGP LLC entered into a commitmletter with certain financial institutions (tHéenders")
pursuant to which, subject to the conditions sethfaherein, the Lenders committed to provide $%,82million in senior secured cre
facilities (a $1,175.0 million senior secured tefiaility and a $150.0 million senior secured rewody facility) and $675.0 milliorin secon
lien indebtedness to consummate the Subsequenem®ropransaction. The Property Sale Agreement pewvithat, at the closing of -
Subsequent Property Transaction (the "Closing'®, alwner of each Property will enter into a Propevignagement Agreement with
applicable Property Manager, pursuant to which,regrather things, the Property Managers will proviggnagement services to the applic
Property and Caesars Licensing Company, LLC vaérise enterprise-wide intellectual property usatiénoperation of the Properties.

The Agreement contains customary indemnificatioligakions of each party with respect to breachetheir respective representatic
warranties, covenants and obligations, and cedtlier designated matters, which in certain circamsts are subject to specified limitation
the amount of indemnifiable damages and the surpeaod in which a claim may be made. Additionadémnification obligations of CEC a
the Sellers (as defined in the Property Sale Agesg)rinclude amounts expended for new construaimhrenovation at The Quad in exces
the $223 million budgeted for renovation expensgstp a maximum amount equal to 15%fsuch budgeted amount and subject to ce
exceptions) and certain liabilities arising undempéoyee benefit plans. In addition to the aforermer@d indemnification obligations, t
Agreement requires that CEOC ensure that the rengaemounts required to construct and open The @edhbe fullyfunded by CEO(
including providing a minimum amount of House Furfds defined in the Property Sale Agreement) imection with the opening of T
Cromwell. CEC and certain of its affiliates willdamnify CAC, CGP LLC and certain of their affiligtéor a failure to open the hotel and ca
at The Cromwell by a specified date and for failir@pen the restaurant and nightclub at The Crdhiwea specified date.

The Property Management Agreements will be entardat Closing by and between each of the fouperty management entities (e
a "Property Manager" and collectively, the "Propéftanagers"), each of which (other than HNOMC, whi the existing manager of Harrah’
New Orleans) will be formed as a whowned subsidiary of CEOC, and each of the respeaiivners of the Properties (the "Prop
Owners"). The ongoing management fees payabledio @athe Property Managers consists of a (i) Imaeagement fee of 2% net operatin
revenues with respect to each month of each yeargithe term of such agreement and (ii) an ineenthanagement fee in an amount equ
5% of EBITDA for each operating year. CEOC will guateanthe obligations of the Property Managers uedeh of the Property Managerr
Agreements.

Pursuant to the terms of the Property Sale Agregrtien parties have agreed to use reasonable fi@ss ¢o establish a new services jt
venture (the "Services JV") between CEOC, CERP@@G® LLC and certain of their respective subsidgariehe purpose of the Services
includes the common management of the enterpride-intellectual property, which will be licensby the Services JV to, among other par
each of the Property Owners, and shared servicesmtipns across the portfolio of CEOC, CERP and QGe properties. Following tt
Closing, at CGP LLCs' request and subject to rdagfiany required
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regulatory approvals, the Property Management Ageses will be assigned to the Services JV which thdreafter perform the obligations
the Property Managers (in which case CE®@uarantee of the obligations under the assigmedelty Management Agreements will
released).

The Property Sale Agreement is subject to ternonaifithe Closing is not completed by June 30, 2@tHich date may be extended u
August 31, 2014 in certain circumstances.

Note 25 — Condensed Consolidating Financial Informtson of Guarantors and Issuers

CEOC is the issuer of certain registered debt #éesira portion of which is guaranteed by CaeEatertainment ("Parer®nly Guarantee
Debt") and a portion of which is guaranteed by bGtesars Entertainment and certain wholly ownedaidigries of CEOC ("Parent a
Subsidiary Guaranteed Debt") as further discussetllate 9 , " Debt" The table below presents the condensed consioliddinancia
information relevant to these two guarantee stnestilas of December 31, 2013 and 2012 , and for efthe three years the perio
December 31, 2013 . The CEC ( parent guarantobsidiary issuer, and subsidiary non-guarantorsasémonly guaranteed debt colun
represent the information related to the Paf@enliy Guaranteed Debt structure. The CEC (parentagiar), subsidiary issuer, subsidi
guarantors of parent and subsidiary guaranteed debitsubsidiary noguarantors of parent and subsidiary guaranteedatdldnns represe
the information related to the Parent and Subsjidiraranteed Debt structure.

In lieu of providing separate unaudited financi@tesments for the guarantor subsidiaries, we haveided the accompanying conder
consolidating financial statements based on Rul® 3f the SEC's Regulation >S- Management does not believe that separate fial
statements of the guarantor subsidiaries are raateriour investors; therefore, separate finansfalements and other disclosures conce
the guarantor subsidiaries are not presented.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Receivables, net
Deferred income taxes
Prepayments and other current assets
Inventories
Intercompany receivables
Assets held for sale
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets other than goodwill
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in and advances to non-consolidated
affiliates

Restricted cash

Deferred charges and other
Deferred income taxes
Intercompany receivables
Assets held for sale

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity/(Deficit)
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Interest payable
Deferred income taxes
Current portion of long-term debt
Intercompany payables
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt

Accumulated losses of subsidiaries in excess of
investment

Deferred credits and other
Deferred income taxes
Intercompany payables
Liabilities held for sale

Total Caesars stockholders’ equity/(deficit)
Noncontrolling interests

Total equity/(deficit)

(In millions)
Subsidiary
Subsidiary Non- Subsidiary
Guarantors of ~ Guarantors of Non-
Parent and Parent and Guarantors of
CEC Subsidiary Subsidiary Parent-Only Consolidating/
(Parent Subsidiary Guaranteed Guaranteed Guaranteed Eliminating
Guarantor) Issuer Debt (a) Debt (b) Debt (a) + (b) Adjustments Total

$ 113¢ $ 996« $ 293¢ $ 1367.¢ $ 1661 $ — $ 2,771
30.5 — 1.C 56.C 57.C — 87.t
0.1 45.4 411.C 162.¢ 574. = 619.¢
— — 113.¢ 8.7 122.F (113.9 8.7
= 26.1 83.7 130.1 213.¢ (2.5) 237.¢
— 0.2 28.4 16.€ 45.¢c — 45.¢
0.8 358.1 146.2 68.4 214.¢ (574.)) =
144.; 1,426.¢ 1,078.: 1,810.¢ 2,889.: (690.9 3,770.:
— 204.¢ 6,980.: 6,056.¢ 13,036.! (3.5 13,237.¢
— — 1,260.: 1,803.: 3,063.! — 3,063.:
— 3.t 2,837t 646.7 3,484.; — 3,487."
= 8,712.: 258.1 958.1 1,216.: (9,928.9) =
— — 3.5 173.C 176.¢ — 176.¢
20.C = = 316.¢ 316.¢ = 336.¢
1.C 283.t 154.¢ 258.c 413.] (93.9 604.2
7.8 2545 = 11.: 11.: (273.9) =
340.t 1,092.¢ 585.¢ 55.C 640.¢ (2,073.) —
= = 11.¢€ = 11.¢€ = 11.¢€
$ 514 $11,978. $13,169.° $12,089.¢ $25259.0 $ (13,063.) $ 24,688.¢
$ 02 % 101.C % 1817 $ 1597 $ 341.< $ — $ 4423
3.8 187.% 486.€ 536.¢ 1,023.¢ (2.5 1,212.°
— 282.¢ 14 105.7 107.1 — 389.t
— 363.t — 39.t 39.t (113.9) 289.2
— 86.C 23.€ 87.t 1111 — 197.1
6.2 9.€ 317.: 241.¢ 559.2 (574.9) =
9.4 1,030.( 1,010.¢ 1,171 2,181.¢ (690.9 2,530.¢
= 16,034.( 92.1 5,768.¢ 5,861.( (976.¢) 20,918.-
3,582.. — — — — (3,582.) —
= 317.¢ 214.% 222.% 436.¢ (87.2) 667.5
— 14.¢ 1,552.: 1,176.: 2,728.0 (266.9) 2,476.(
55.C 285.¢ 871. 862.1 1,733 (2,073.) —
3,646.! 17,681.! 3,740.¢ 9,200.¢ 12,941.: (7,676.9 26,592
(3,132  (5,703.) 9,429. 1,670.¢  11,100.: (5,386.)  (3,122.0)
= = = 1,218.; 1,218.; = 1,218.;
(3,132.) (5,703.) 9,429.1 2,889.: 12,318.- (5,386.9) (1,903.9)




$ 514 $11,978. $13,169.° $12,089.¢ $25259.C $ (13,063.) $ 24,688.¢
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2012

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Receivables, net
Deferred income taxes
Prepayments and other current assets
Inventories
Intercompany receivables
Assets held for sale
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets other than goodwill
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in and advances to non-consolidated
affiliates

Restricted cash

Deferred charges and other
Intercompany receivables
Assets held for sale

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity/(Deficit)
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities
Interest payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Intercompany payables
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt

Accumulated losses of subsidiaries in excess of
investment

Deferred credits and other
Deferred income taxes
Intercompany payables
Liabilities held for sale

Total Caesars stockholders’ equity/(deficit)
Noncontrolling interests

Total equity/(deficit)

(In millions)
Subsidiary
Subsidiary Non- Subsidiary
Guarantors of ~ Guarantors of Non-
Parent and Parent and Guarantors of
CEC Subsidiary Subsidiary Parent-Only Consolidating/
(Parent Subsidiary Guaranteed Guaranteed Guaranteed Eliminating
Guarantor) Issuer Debt (a) Debt (b) Debt (a) + (b) Adjustments Total

$ 74 $ 911¢ $ 353¢& $ 484+ $ 838:I $ — $ 1,757t
— — — 833.¢ 833.¢ — 833.¢
0.1 fIO8E 348.( 212.¢ 560.¢ = 580.£
— 17.¢ 75.7 21.¢ 97.t — 114.¢
5.C 8.2 66.¢€ 69.€ 136.% = 150.(
— 0.2 31.7 20.C 51.7 — 52.C
29.€ 295.¢ 136.¢ 97.2 234.( (559.)) =
— — — 51 5.1 — 51
42.1 1,252.¢ 1,012.¢ 1,744.¢ 2,757. (559.9) 3,493.¢
— 189.¢ 8,534.¢ 6,977.. 15,511 — 15,701
— — 1,331.( 1,829.1 3,160.! — 3,160.!
— 4.2 3,183.( 798.t 3,981 — 3,985.°
= 11,669. 920.: 790.7% 1,711 (13,380.f) =
— — 3.C 97.4 100.¢ — 100.¢
= = = 364.¢ 364.¢ = 364.¢
7.5 298.¢ 184.¢ 236.¢ 421.¢ (6.7) 720.¢
563.1 1,089.¢ 585.¢ 153.¢ 739.7 (2,392.) —
— — — 471.2 4712 — 471.2
$ 6127 $14,504. $15,755.. $13,464.. $29,219.. $ (16,338.) $27,998.:
$ 3¢ % 75.¢ $ 1568 $ 139¢ $ 296.. $ — $ 376.
3.7 164.5 434.5 495.¢ 930.1 — 1,098.t
= 176.( 0.4 57.5 57.7 = 233.7
— 126.2 10.7 743.C 753.7 — 879.¢
15.¢€ 88.1 284.¢ 170.< 455.1 (559.)) =
23.t 630.¢ 887.1 1,605.¢ 2,493.( (559.)) 2,588.1
= 15,257.( 64.¢ 6,122.¢ 6,187.. (912.5 20,532.:
925.¢ — — — — (925.4) —
4.1 535.( 160.2 123.7 283.¢ = 823.(
— 422.¢ 2,188.¢ 1,714. 3,903.¢ 7.9 4,334.:
55.C 614.% 871.% 851.2 1,722.¢ (2,392.9 =
— — — 52.1 52.1 — 52.1
1,008.( 17,460.( 4,172, 10,470.! 14,643.. (4,781.9 28,329.
(395.9 (2,955.9) 11,582." 2,913.¢ 14,496.. (11,557.) (411.9)
= = = 80.1 80.1 = 80.1
(395.9 (2,955.9) 11,582° 2,993.° 14,576.« (11,557.) (331.¢
$ 6127 $14,504. $15755.. $13464.. $29,219.. $ (16,338.) $27,998.:
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(In millions)
Subsidiary
Subsidiary Non-
Guarantors of ~ Guarantors of ~ Subsidiary Non-
Parent and Parent and Guarantors of
CEC Subsidiary Subsidiary Parent-Only Consolidating/
(Parent Subsidiary Guaranteed Guaranteed Guaranteed Debt Eliminating
Guarantor) Issuer Debt (a) Debt (b) (@) + (b) Adjustments Total
Revenues
Casino $ — 56.£ $ 3,617.¢ $ 2,134t $ 5752.« $ — 5,808.¢
Food and beverage — 13.2 821.1 675. 1,496.¢ — 1,510.(
Rooms — 15.¢€ 628.7% 575.( 1,203." — 1,219.¢
Management fees — 1.2 54.2 23.2 77.4 (21.¢) 57.C
Other — 55.C 332.( 672.5 1,004." (184.9 874.¢
Reimbursed management costs — 0.1 52.7 233.¢ 286.F (18.5) 268.1
Less: casino promotional allowances — (17.9) (698.6) (462.7) (1,161.9) — (1,178.9
Net revenues — 124 4,807.¢ 3,852. 8,660.: (225.0 8,559.°
Operating expenses
Direct
Casino — 36.7 2,075.¢ 1,168.: 3,243.¢ — 3,280.¢
Food and beverage — 5.7 339.f 313.: 652.7 — 658.
Rooms — 2.4 145.¢ 157.t 303.C — 305.¢
Property, general, administrative, and other — 31.t 1,166.: 1,137 2,303.¢ (166.9) 2,168.¢
Reimbursable management costs — 0.1 52.7 233.¢ 286.F (18.5) 268.1
Depreciation and amortization — 4.C 342.2 219.1 561.2 (0.2 565.2
Write-downs, reserves, and project opening costs,
net of recoveries — 0.4 33.t 70.t 104.( — 104.«
Impairment of intangible and tangible assets — 0.c 1,866.¢ 1,151 .. 3,018.( — 3,018.¢
(Income)/loss on interests in non-consolidated
affiliates (0.4 — (0.6 18.¢ 18.C — 17.€
(Income)/loss on interests in subsidiaries 2,923.( 1,008.: 102.2 — 102.2 (4,033.9) —
Corporate expense 16.C 1155 21.¢ 48.C 69.¢ (40.1 161.¢
Acquisition and integration costs — 12.2 0.1 68.C 69.C — 81.2
Amortization of intangible assets — 0.7 86.7 77.1 163.€ — 164.t
Total operating expenses 2,938.¢ 1,218.¢ 6,232.( 4,663.¢ 10,895.¢ (4,258.Y) 10,794.:
lincome/(loss) from operations (2,938.9 (1,094.) (1,424.) (811.9 (2,235.9 4,033.! (2,234.9
Interest expense 2.2 (2,075.) (57.5) (350.9) (407.¢) 227.¢ (2,253.()
Gains/(losses) on early extinguishments of debt _ (29.5) (2.0) 1.7 (0.3 _ (29.9)
Gain/(loss) on partial sale of subsidiary — — (8.9 53.C 441 — 441
Other income, including interest income 23.1 60.E 22.¢ 190.¢ 213.7 (283.5) 13.€
Income/(loss) from continuing operations beforeme
taxes (2,913.) (3,138.¢) (1,469.) (915.9) (2,385.) 3,977.¢ (4,459.9)
Benefit/(provision) for income taxes (0.3 797.5 481.¢ 257.¢ 739.5 12.¢ 1,549.°
Income/(loss) from continuing operations, net aime
taxes (2,913.) (2,341.) (987.9) (658.9) (1,646.0) 3,990.¢ (2,909.9
Discontinued operations —
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations — — (0.8 (29.0 (29.9) — (29.9
Benefit/(provision) for income taxes — — 0.3 (0.5 (0.2 — (0.2)
Loss from discontinued operations, net of
income taxes — — (0.5 (29.5 (30.0 — (30.0
Net income/(loss) (2,913.) (2,341.) (988.9) (687.7%) (1,676.0) 3,990.¢ (2,939.9
Less: net income attributable to noncontrollin
interests — — — (8.4) (8.9 — (8.9
Net income/(loss) attributable to Caesars (2,913.) (2,341.) (988.9) (696.7) (1,684.9) 3,990.¢ (2,948.9)

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of inc



taxes:

Total other comprehensive income/(loss), net of
income taxes — 3.t — 79.5 79.5 (121.9 (38.9

Less: foreign currency translation adjustmen
attributable to noncontrolling interests, |
of income taxes = — — 0.1 0.1 — 0.1

Comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to Caesar$ (2,913.) $ (2,337 $ (988.) $ (616.7) $ (1,605.0 $ 3,869 $ (2,986.
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

INCOME/(LOSS)

(In millions)
Subsidiary Subsidiary Non-
Guarantors of Guarantors of Subsidiary Non-
Parent and Parent and Guarantors of
CEC Subsidiary Subsidiary Parent-Only Consolidating/
(Parent Subsidiary Guaranteed Guaranteed Guaranteed Debt Eliminating
Guarantor) Issuer Debt (a) Debt (b) (a) + (b) Adjustments Total
Revenues
Casino — 53¢ $ 3875¢ & 2313¢ $ 6,189.. $ —  $6,243.(
Food and beverage — 12.5 812.¢ 682.5 1,495.: — 1,507.¢
Rooms — 17.€ 626.% 561.¢ 1,187.. — 1,205t
Management fees — 3.6 56.2 11.€ 67.€ (24.9 47.F
Other — 54.C 347.1 541.% 888.4 (180.9 762.(
Reimbursed management costs — — 28.2 38.7 67.1 — 67.1
Less: casino promotional allowances — (19.0 (744.9) (488.9) (1,233.) — (1,252.)
Net revenues — 123.1 5,002.( 3,660.: 8,662.. (204.9) 8,580.¢
Operating expenses
Direct
Casino — 37.7 2,204.¢ 1,310t 3,515 — 3,553.(
Food and beverage — 5.¢ 330.¢ 320.¢ 651.7 — 657.¢
Rooms — 1.7 140.¢ 155.¢ 295.¢ — 297.€
Property, general, administrative, and other — 23.5 1,137. 1,041 2,178." (158.9) 2,043.%
Reimbursable management costs — — 28.2 38.7 67.1 — 67.1
Depreciation and amortization — 6.7 445 ¢ 262.5 707.7 — 714.2
Write-downs, reserves, and project opening costsohn
recoveries 15.C 12.1 57.1 15.€ 72.€ — 99.7
Impairment of intangible and tangible assets — — 1,064." 9.5 1,074.: — 1,074.:
Loss on interests in non-consolidated affiliates — — 0.E 17.C 17.E — 17.E
(Income)/loss on interests in subsidiaries 1,464.; 460.§ (6.6) — (6.6) (1,918.9 —
Corporate expense 28.2 126.1 32.C 54.¢ 86.€ (46.2) 195.C
Acquisition and integration costs — 4.8 — 1.3 1.3 — 6.1
Amortization of intangible assets — 0.7 102.- 71.€ 173.C — 174.¢
Total operating expenses 1,507.t 680.( 5,537.: 3,298.¢ 8,836.: (2,123.9) 8,900.!
Income/(loss) from operations (1,507.9) (556.9 (535.9 361.2 (174.7) 1,918.¢ (319.9
Interest expense 2.0 (1,934.9) (55.5) (336.6) (392.)) 227.( (2,100.9
Gains on early extinguishments of debt — — — 136.C 136.C — 136.(
Other income, including interest income 18.7 79.2 212 159.C 180.2 (252.79) 25 E
Income/(loss) from continuing operations beforeime
taxes (1,490.9) (2,411 (569.¢) 319.¢ (250.0 1,893.¢ (2,258.)
Benefit/(provision) for income taxes 9.1 732.( 174. (88.5) 85.C 43.t 870.t
Income/(loss)from continuing operations, net obime
taxes (1,481.) (1,679.9 (395.9) 231.1 (164.7) 1,936.¢ (1,388.9)
Discontinued operations
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations — — 62.1 (126.6) (64.5) — (64.5)
Benefit/(provision) for income taxes — — (29.7) 13.7 (15.9) (34.7) (50.7)
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of
income taxes — — 33.C (112.9 (79.9 (34.9) (114.9
Net income/(loss) (1,481.) (1,679.9 (362.9) 118.2 (244.0) 1,902.: (1,502.9
Less: net income attributable to noncontrolling
interests — — — (5.9 (5.9 — (5.9
Net income/(loss) attributable to Caesars (1,481.) (1,679.9 (362.2) 112.¢ (249.9 1,902.: (1,508.)
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of incorresta
Total other comprehensive income/(loss), net ¢
income taxes — (25.0 — (34.9 (34.9 96.€ 37.2



Less: foreign currency translation adjustments
attributable to noncontrolling interests, ne
income taxes — — — (1.9 (1.9 — 1.3

Comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to Caesars  $ (1,481.)) $ (1,704.9 $ (362.2) $ 774 $ (284.9) $ 1,998.¢ $(1,472.0)
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

(In millions)

Subsidiary

Guarantors of

Subsidiary Non-

Guarantors of

Subsidiary Non-

Parent and Parent and Guarantors of
CEC Subsidiary Subsidiary Parent-Only Consolidating/
(Parent Subsidiary Guaranteed Guaranteed Guaranteed Debt Eliminating
Guarantor) Issuer Debt (a) Debt (b) (a) + (b) Adjustments Total
Revenues
Casino $ — 62.€ $ 3952 $ 2375. $ 6,327 $ —  $6,389.¢
Food and beverage — 14.2 820.% 671.2 1,491.¢ — 1,506.:
Rooms — 16.7 605.¢ 570.¢ 1,176. — 1,193.:
Management fees — — 66.1 3.C 69.1 (33.9 35.¢
Other — 46.5 353.] 393.( 746.1 (145.5) 647.1
Reimbursed management costs — — 26.€ — 26.€ — 26.€
Less: casino promotional allowances — (19.0 (725.6) (487.%) (1,213.) — (1,232.9)
Net revenues — 121.( 5,099.: 3,525.: 8,624.. (178.9) 8,566.¢
Operating expenses
Direct
Casino — 40.€ 2,243.¢ 1,330.¢ 3,574. — 3,615.:
Food and beverage — 6.7 337.¢ 312 650.: — 657.(C
Rooms — 2.C 133.% 150.¢ 284.% — 286.2
Property, general, administrative, and other — 54.2 1,208.¢ 971.(C 2,179.¢ (140.5 2,093.
Reimbursable management costs — — 26.€ — 26.€ — 26.€
Depreciation and amortization — 6.8 427 F 2427 670.2 — 677.C
Write-downs, reserves, and project opening costs,
net of recoveries — 46.€ 24.¢ 2.€ 27.2 — 73.¢
Impairment of intangible and tangible assets — — 11.C 21.€ 32.€ — 32.€
Loss on interests in non-consolidated affiliates — — 1.€ 6.1 7.¢ — 7.0
(Income)/loss on interests in subsidiaries 693.2 (421.9 (44.7 _ (44.9) (226.9) _
Corporate expense 22.7 98.4 22.¢ 47.7 70.C (38.9) 152.¢
Acquisition and integration costs 0.1 1.C 1.1 21 3.2 — 4.3
Amortization of intangible assets — 0.7 93.¢ 62.4 156.( — 156.7
Total operating expenses 716.2 (164.€ 4,487.¢ 3,150.! 7,638.: (405.¢) 7,784..
Income/(loss) from operations (716.2) 285.¢ 611. 374.¢ 986.< 226.¢ 782.t
Interest expense — (1,953.9) (50.2) (328.0 (378.9 209.¢ (2,121.)
Gains on early extinguishments of debt — — — 47.¢€ 47.€ — 47.¢€
Other income, including interest income 25 E 70.7 17.€ 134.2 151.¢ (222.%) 25.%
Income/(loss) from continuing operations beforeome
taxes (690.7%) (1,597.0 578.¢ 229.C 807.¢ 213.¢ (1,266.0)
Benefit/(provision) for income taxes 3.1 776.€ (215.9 (46.2) (261.9) 16.1 534.¢
Income/(loss) from continuing operations, net @oime
taxes (687.¢) (820.9) 363.5 182.¢ 546.¢ 230.C (731.9
Discontinued operations
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations _ _ 75.= (20.2) 55.1 _ 55.1
Benefit/(provision) for income taxes — — (13.9 1.7 (11.9) (16.7) (27.¢)
Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net
of income taxes — — 61.C (18.5) 43.¢ (16.3) 27.5
Net income/(loss) (687.6) (820.9) 425.¢ 164.4 589.¢ 213.¢ (704.))
Less: net income attributable to noncontrolling
interests — — — (20.9 (20.9 — (20.9)
Net income/(loss) attributable to Caesars (687.6) (820.9) 425.¢ 143t 568.¢ 213.¢ (725.0)

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of incomest



income taxes — 112.¢ — (1.8 (2.9 — 111.1

Less: foreign currency translation adjustments
attributable to noncontrolling interests, net
of income taxes — — — 1.9 1.9 — 1.3

Comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to Caesar $ (687.6) $ (707.9 $ 425.¢. % 1402 $ 565.6 $ 213.¢ $ (615.2)
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013

(In millions)
Subsidiary Subsidiary Non- Subsidiary
Guarantors of Guarantors of Non-
Parent and Parent and Guarantors of
CEC Subsidiary Subsidiary Parent-Only Consolidating/
(Parent Subsidiary Guaranteed Guaranteed Guaranteed Eliminating
Guarantor) Issuer Debt (a) Debt (b) Debt (a) + (b) Adjustments Total
Cash flows from operating activities $ 407.¢ % (906.6) $ 330.C $ 52z $ 382: $ 71 $ (109.9)
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions of property and equipment, ne
change in related payables — (18.9) (376.5) (331.)) (707.¢) — (726.9)
Change in restricted cash (50.5) — 2.0 825.¢ 824.4 — 773.¢
Purchase of additional interest in subsidiari (581.9) (15.9) — — — 597.C —
Purchase of Ling/Octavius from nguarantol (80.7) — — 80.7 80.7 — —
Proceeds from partial sale of subsidiary, ne
cash deconsolidated — — (25.7) 76.1 50.£ — 50.£
Payments to acquire businesses, net of
transaction costs and cash acquired — — — (19.5) (19.5) — (19.5)
Investments infadvances to non-consolidat
affiliates and other — — — (38.6) (38.6) — (38.6)
Dividends received — 831.( 74.2 — 74.2 (905.9) —
Purchases of investment securities — — — (30.0 (30.0 — (30.0
Proceeds from the sale and maturity of
investment securities — — — 67.4 67.4 — 67.4
Proceeds received from (paid for) sale of
assets (29.0 29.C — — — — —
Other (0.9 — (8.9 3.9 (12.7) — (12.5)
Cash flows from investing activities (741.9 825.t (337.9 627.2 289.: (308.9 64.¢
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term dt — 127.2 — 5,911t 5,911t — 6,038."
Assumption of debt issued by non-guarantors — 2,199.¢ — (2,199.9 (2,199.9) — —
Debt issuance and extension costs and fee — (52.2) — (100.6) (200.6¢) — (152.9)
Cash paid for early extinguishments of debt — (1,783.9) — (4,728.9 (4,728.9) — (6,512.)
Scheduled debt retirements — (91.9) (1.5) — (1.5) — (92.9)
Dividends paid — — (48.9 (856.¢) (905.9) 905.2 —
Purchase of additional interests in subsidia — — — (10.0 (10.0 — (10.0
Sales of noncontrolling interests, net of fees — — — 1,197t 1,197t — 1,197t
Distributions to noncontrolling interest owng — — — (19.9 (19.9 — (19.9
Issuance of common stock, net of fees 217.2 — — — — — 217.2
Other — — (8.2 (6.5 (24.7) — (24.7)
Transfer (to)/from affiliates 222.¢ (234.9 6.2 609.4 615.7 (604.7) —
Cash flows from financing activities 439.¢ 165.€ (51.9) (203.¢) (255.9) 301.1 651.1
Cash flows from discontinued operations
Cash flows from operating activities — — (0.5) (8.9) (9.9 — (9.9
Cash flows from investing activities — — — 411.¢ 411.¢ — 411.¢
Cash flows from financing activities — — — — — — —
Net cash from discontinued operations — — 0.5) 403.( 402.t — 402.5
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 105.¢ 84.5 (60.2) 878.¢ 818.€ — 1,009.(
Change in cash classified as assets held for sale — — — 4.7 4.7 — 4.7
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of perio 7.4 911.¢ 353.¢ 484.¢ 838.Z — 1,757.*
Cash and cash equiva|ents’ end of period $ 113.2 $ 996.4 $ 293.¢ $ 1,367.¢ $ 1,661.t $ — $ 2,771..
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012

(In millions)
Subsidiary Subsidiary Non- Subsidiary
Guarantors of Guarantors of Non-
Parent and Parent and Guarantors of
CEC Subsidiary Subsidiary Parent-Only Consolidating/
(Parent Subsidiary Guaranteed Guaranteed Guaranteed Eliminating
Guarantor) Issuer Debt (a) Debt (b) Debt (a) + (b) Adjustments Total
Cash flows from operating activities $ 258.6 $ 94¢€ $ (505.0) $ 144¢ $ (360.9) 372 $ 30.Z
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions of property and equipment, ne
change in related payables — (9.€) (205.9 (292.9) (497.5) — (507.7)
Change in restricted cash — — — (680.5) (680.5) — (680.5)
Return of investment in subsidiary — — 92.t — 92.F (92.5) —
Purchase of additional interest in subsidiary (232.5) (28.)) — — — 260.¢€ —
Proceeds from the sale of subsidiary, net o
cash contributed — — — 42.4 42.4 — 42.4
Payments to acquire businesses, net of
transaction costs and cash acquired — — — (37.9 (37.9 — (37.9
Investments infadvances to non-consolidat
affiliates and other — — — (28.7) (28.7) — (28.7)
Purchases of investment securities — — — (39.29 (39.2) — (39.29)
Proceeds from the sale and maturity of
investment securities — — — 31.€ 31.€ — 31.€
Other 0.8 — (6.6 21 4.7 — (5.5
Cash flows from investing activities (233.9 (37.7) (119.6 (2,001.9 (1,121.9 168.1 (1,224.)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term dt — 432.2 — 3,277.: 3,277.: — 3,709.¢
Assumption of debt issued by non-guarantors — 1,981.: — (1,981.) (1,981.) — —
Debt issuance costs and fees — (38.9 — (11.9) (12.9) — (50.€)
Borrowings under lending agreements — 453.( — — — — 453.(
Repayments under lending agreements — (608.0 — — — — (608.0
Cash paid for early extinguishments of debt — (1,574 — (462.9) (462.9) — (2,036.9
Scheduled debt retirements — (14.9 (2.9) — (1.9 — (15.9)
Purchase of additional interests in subsidiary — — (9.€) — (9.€) — (9.6€)
Sale of noncontrolling interests, net of fees — — — 37.€ 37.€ — 37.€
Distributions to noncontrolling interest owners — — — (10.9) (10.9) — (10.9)
Issuance of common stock, net of fees 174 — — — — — 17.4
Other — — (10.¢) 2.7 (13.5) — (13.5)
Transfer (to)/from affiliates (39.29) 207.5 — 2.3 2.8 (170.6) —
Cash flows from financing activities (21.¢) 838.4 (21.9) 848.¢ 826.€ (170.6) 1,472.¢
Cash flows from discontinued operations
Cash flows from operating activities — — 17.5 (3.9) 14.1 (34.9) (20.6)
Cash flows from investing activities — — 600.: (0.€) 599.% — 599.7
Cash flows from financing activities — — — — — — —
Net cash provided by discontinued
operations — — 617.¢ (4.0 613.¢ (34.9) 579.1
Net increase/(decrease)in cash and cash
equivalents 3.E 895.: (28.7) (12.5) (41.2) — 857.¢
Change in cash classified as assets held for s¢ — 10.C 1.9 8.7 — 8.7
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 3.8 16.€ 3725 498.2 870.7 — 891.C
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period ~ $ 74§  911¢ §  353¢ § 4844 § 838 — $ 1757




CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
(In millions)

Subsidiary Subsidiary Non-
Guarantors of Guarantors of  Subsidiary Non-

Parent and Parent and Guarantors of
CEC Subsidiary Subsidiary Parent-Only Consolidating/
(Parent Subsidiary Guaranteed Guaranteed Guaranteed Eliminating
Guarantor) Issuer Debt (a) Debt (b) Debt (a) + (b) Adjustments Total
Cash flows from operating activities $ 182¢ $ (507.¢ $ 720 $ 298.¢ $ 3716 $ 16.1 $ 63.C
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions of property and equipment, net of
change in related payables — (12.9) (108.7) (152.7) (260.2) — (272.5)
Change in restricted cash — — — (517.%) (517.%) — (517.%)
Purchase of additional interest in subsidiary — — — (75.9) (75.9) — (75.9)
Payments to acquire certain gaming rights — — — (22.9) (22.9) — (22.9)
Payments to acquire businesses, net of transac
costs and cash acquired (123.5 (136.7%) (49.7) (19.0 (68.7) 309.: (19.0
Investments in/fadvances to non-consolidated
affiliates and other — — — (76.0 (76.0) — (76.0
Purchases of investment securities — — — (35.7) (35.7) — (35.7)
Proceeds from the sale and maturity of investment
securities — — — 22.€ 22.€ — 22.€
Other — — (3.9 (6.2) 9.9 — 9.9
Cash flows from investing activities (123.5) (149.0 (161.0 (882.7) (1,043.) 309.: (1,006.9)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt — 418.c — 445.¢ 445t — 863.¢
Debt issuance costs and fees — 3.2 — (14.9 (14.9) — (18.7)
Borrowings under lending agreements — 358.( — — — — 358.(
Repayments under lending agreements — (203.0 — — — — (203.0
Cash paid for early extinguishments of debt — — (2.€) (125.9 (128.5 — (128.5
Scheduled debt retirements — (25.2) — (18.5) (18.5) — (43.7)
Sale of noncontrolling interests, net of fees — — — 14.¢ 14.¢ — 14.¢
Distributions to noncontrolling interest owners — — — (9.9 (9.9 — (9.9
Other 2.7 — (8.1 (12.2) (20.3) — (22.0)
Transfer (to)/from affiliates (189.9) 67.2 49.1 382.7 431.¢ (309.9 —
Cash flows from financing activities (291.5 612.2 38.4 661.7 700.1 (309.9) 811t
Cash flows from discontinued operations
Cash flows from operating activities — — 79.4 3.2 76.2 (16.7) 60.1
Cash flows from investing activities — — (5.9 (5.5 (20.7) — (10.9)
Cash flows from financing activities — — — — — — —
Net cash provided by discontinued operation — — 74.2 (8.7 65.5 (16.7) 49.4
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent (132.J) (44.9) 24.% 69.¢ 94.1 — (82.9)
Change in cash classified as assets held for sale — — BE (2.0) 2.t — 2.5
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 136.( 61.C 344. 429.¢ 774.1 — 971.1
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 3¢ § 166 §$ 372t § 498z $ 8700 $ — $ 891:
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CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)

Note 26 — Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudite)

First Second Third Fourth

(In millions) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter @ Total
2013

Net revenues $ 2,143.. $ 2,158.: $ 2,180.C $ 2,078« $ 8,559.°
Income/(loss) from operatiord 141.¢ 125.: (637.5) (1,864.7) (2,234.9)
Net loss? (216.7) (209.9) (761.9) (1,752.() (2,939.9
Net loss attributable to Caesafs (217.¢) (212.9) (761.9) (1,756.9 (2,948.)
Loss per share - basic and diluted (1.7 (1.69) (6.03) (12.89) (22.99)
2012

Net revenues $ 2,206.. $ 2,163. $ 2,195.¢ $ 2,014¢ $ 8,580.:
Income/(loss) from operatior 61.2 189.1 (216.9) (353.9) (319.9)
Net loss® (281.) (241.9) (503.9) (476.5) (1,502.9
Net loss attributable to Caeséis (280.6) (241.%) (505.5) (480.9) (1,508.)
Loss per share - basic and diluted (2.2 (1.99 (4.03) (3.89 (12.09

@ Amounts presented for the fourth quarter of 201&Hzeen recast to give effect to the Alea Leedsodigion ( Note 4 and the pension accounting che
( Note 21). In addition, the Company sold additional shariesommon stock (Note 11), which had a materia¢&fbn the weighted average shares us
determining loss per share for the quarter. Thie taélow recasts the amounts as originally preseinteur 2012 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

@ Amounts presented contain material impairments Wwhifect the comparability from period to periodir fnore information on these impairments,
Notes 6 and 7

Fourth Quarter

(In millions) 2012

Net revenues as reported $ 2,016.¢
Less net revenues attributable to discontinuedatipers (2.0)
Net revenues as recasted $ 2,014.¢
Loss from operations as reported $ (343.9)
Effect of pension accounting change (Note 21) (10.6¢)
Less: loss from operations attributable to discorgd operations 0.7
Loss from operations as recasted $ (3539
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ITEM 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Acunting and Financial Disclosur:
None.

ITEM 9A. Controls and Procedure:

Disclosure Controls and Procedure

Our principal executive officer and principal fircal officer have evaluated the effectiveness ofdisclosure controls and procedures
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) undeEttehange Act) as of December 31, 2Q1i8cluding controls and procedures to timely i
management to material information relating to @wmpany and its subsidiaries required to be indudeour periodic SEC filings. Based
such evaluation, they have concluded that, asaf date, our disclosure controls and procedures wiéective.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Managemer's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Finandiéporting

Internal control over financial reporting (as defihin Rules 13a-15(f) and 13d(f) under the Exchange Act) refers to the processgne
by, or under the supervision of, our Chief Exeaaitdfficer and Chief Financial Officer, and effectey our board of directors, managem
and other personnel, to provide reasonable assuragarding the reliability of financial reportiagd the preparation of financial statem
for external purposes in accordance with genemlyepted accounting principles. Management is resble for establishing and maintain
adequate internal control over our financial reipgrt

We have evaluated the effectiveness of our intecoatrol over financial reporting as of December 2013 . The evaluation wi
performed using the internal control evaluationmfeavork (1992) developed by the Committee of SpangoDrganizations of the Treadw
Commission. Based on such evaluation, managementunied that, as of such date, our internal comtvel financial reporting was effective.

Attestation Report of the Independent Reqisterdali®Accounting Firrr

Deloitte & Touche LLP has issued an attestatiororepn our internal control over financial repoginTheir report follows this Item ¢
below.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repodin

There has been no change in our internal contret firancial reporting during our most recent fispaarter that has materially affected
is reasonably likely to materially affect, our imal control over financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Caesars Entertainment Corporation:

We have audited the internal control over finanogglorting of Caesars Entertainment Corporationsuigbidiaries (the “Companygs o
December 31, 2013, based on criteria establishédténnal Control - Integrated Framework (199Bsued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Camigamanagement is responsible for maintainingcéffe internal control over financ
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiserd internal control over financial reportingclided in the accompanying Managem
Annual Report on Internal Control Over FinanciapBeing. Our responsibility is to express an opingn the Company's internal control ¢
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight rBo@United States). Tho
standards require that we plan and perform thetdodbbtain reasonable assurance about whethectigeinternal control over financ
reporting was maintained in all material respe€ar audit included obtaining an understanding ¢érimal control over financial reportir
assessing the risk that a material weakness etésting and evaluating the design and operatifertfeness of internal control based on
assessed risk, and performing such other procedigege considered necessary in the circumstancesbéleve that our audit provide
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtiis a process designed by, or under the supenvisi, the company's princij
executive and principal financial officers, or pmrs performing similar functions, and effected e tcompany's board of directc
management, and other personnel to provide reaaaburance regarding the reliability of financegorting and the preparation of finan
statements for external purposes in accordance gétterally accepted accounting principles. A comfsaimternal control over financ
reporting includes those policies and procedures {h) pertain to the maintenance of records thateasonable detail, accurately and f:
reflect the transactions and dispositions of theetssof the company; (2) provide reasonable asser#imt transactions are recorde:
necessary to permit preparation of financial stet@s in accordance with generally accepted acaogirgrinciples, and that receipts
expenditures of the company are being made onlgcoordance with authorizations of management arettdrs of the company; and
provide reasonable assurance regarding preventitimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, ,usedisposition of the company's as
that could have a material effect on the finansiatements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal tcoh over financial reporting, including the posétl of collusion or imprope
management override of controls, material misstatémdue to error or fraud may not be preventedeatected on a timely basis. Al
projections of any evaluation of the effectivenet¢he internal control over financial reportingftdure periods are subject to the risk tha
controls may become inadequate because of changesnditions, or that the degree of compliance vifit policies or procedures n
deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained effectivieinal control over financial reporting as of Det®mn31, 2013, based on the crit
established ininternal Control - Integrated Framework (199%sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiohshe Treadws
Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the stdsdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo&United States), tl
consolidated financial statements and consolidéitemhcial statement schedules as of and for the geaed December 31, 2013, of
Company and our report dated March 17, 26%gressed an unqualified opinion on those condgelitiinancial statements and consolid
financial statement schedules and included exptapgtaragraphs regarding (i) the Compankighly leveraged condition, its significant c
interest requirements, and its requirement to rmantompliance with certain debt covenants as dsmd in Notes 1 and 9 in the note
consolidated financial statements and (ii) the Canys election to change its method of accounting tlodefined benefit pension plan an
change its annual goodwill impairment testing date.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Las Vegas, Nevada
March 17, 2014
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ITEM 9B. Other Information
Federal Investigation

In recent years, governmental authorities have lre@easingly focused on anti-money laundering (‘&M policies and procedures, w
a particular focus on the gaming industry. As aaneple, a major gaming company recently settledS Bttorney investigation into its AV
practices. On October 11, 2013, a subsidiary ofGbmpany received a letter from the Financial Cari@forcement Network of the Unil
States Department of the Treasury (“FInCEN”), stathat FInCEN is investigating the Compangubsidiary, Desert Palace, Inc. (the own
Caesars Palace), for alleged violations of the B&akrecy Act to determine whether it is appropriatessess a civil penalty and/or {
additional enforcement action against Caesars aladditionally, the Company has been informed thdederal grand jury investigati
regarding the Company’s antioney laundering practices and procedures is oggdine Company is fully cooperating with both the@EN
and grand jury investigations. Based on proceediagiate, the Company is currently unable to deteernthe probability of the outcome
these matters or the range of reasonably possibée if any.

Disclosure Pursuant to Section 219 of the Iran TtaeReduction and Syria Human Rights A

Apollo Global Management, LLC (“Apollo”has provided notice to us that, as of October P432certain investment funds manage
affiliates of Apollo beneficially owned approximite22% of the limited liability company interests ©EVA Holdings, LLC (“CEVA”). Undel
the limited liability company agreement governing\A, certain investment funds managed by affiliatésApollo hold a majority of th
voting power of CEVA and have the right to eleanajority of the board of CEVA. CEVA may be deemedt under common control w
us, but this statement is not meant to be an a@mnigkat common control exists. As a result, it egms that we are required to proy
disclosures as set forth below pursuant to Se@idhof the Iran Threat Reduction and Syria HumaghRi Act of 2012 (“ITRA”)and Sectio
13(r) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, asmaed (the “Exchange Act”).

Apollo has informed us that CEVA has provided itwthe information below relevant to Section 1&(frjhe Exchange Act. The disclos
below does not relate to any activities conductgdid and does not involve us or our management.didw@osure relates solely to activi
conducted by CEVA and its consolidated subsidiaiée have not independently verified or particigaie the preparation of the disclos
below.

“Through an internal review of its global operasoi€EVA has identified the following transactionsain Initial Notice of Voluntary Self-
Disclosure that CEVA filed with the U.S. Treasurggartment Office of Foreign Assets Control (“OFA@NH October 28, 2013. CEVA’
review is ongoing. CEVA will file a further repontith OFAC after completing its review.

The internal review indicates that, in February20ZEVA Freight Holdings (Malaysia) SDN BHD (“CEVKalaysia”) provided custorr
brokerage for export and local haulage services felhipment of polyethylene resin to Iran shippedwessel owned and/or operated by |
Lines, also an SDN. The revenues and net profitstfese services were approximately $779.54 USD %81dl.13 USD, respectively.
September 2013, CEVA Malaysia provided customs dmade services for the import into Malaysia oftfjuice from Alifard Co. in Iran vi
HDS Lines. The revenues and net profits for theseices were approximately $227.41 USD and $89.3® Uespectively.

These transactions violate the terms of internaV/ £EEompliance policies, which prohibit transactionsolving Iran. Upon discoverir
these transactions, CEVA promptly launchedraarnal investigation, and is taking action todid@nd prevent such transactions in the fu
CEVA intends to cooperate with OFAC in its reviefittis matter.”
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PART III
ITEM 10. Directors, Executive Officers, and Corprate Governance.

We incorporate by reference the information apmganinder "Executive Officers" in Item 1 of this cepand appearing under the capt
"Executive Officers," "Corporate Governance - Smttl6 (a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Complidremed "Corporate Governance&€ode
of Ethics" in our definitive Proxy Statement forro2014 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, which we expecfil® with the Securities at
Exchange Commission on or about April 4, 2014 (frxy Statement").

ITEM 11. Executive Compensation.

We incorporate by reference the information appegunder the captions "Executive Compensation" '@ufporate GovernanceHumar
Resources Committee Interlocks and Insider Padi@p” in the Proxy Statement.

ITEM 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners andvlanagement and Related Stockholder Matter:

We incorporate by reference the information apmpeaninder the caption "Security Ownership of CertBieneficial Owners ar
Management” in the Proxy Statement. The informatioder Part Il, Item 5. "Market for the Companysn@non Stock, Related Stockhol
Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securitiegjuity Compensation Plan Information" of this repis also incorporated herein
reference.

ITEM 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, an®irector Independence

We incorporate by reference the information appgatinder the captions "Certain Relationships ankhtBe& Party Transactions" ¢
"Corporate Governance - Director IndependenceliénRroxy Statement.

ITEM 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Service

We incorporate by reference the information appgatinder the caption "Proposal 4Ratification of Appointment of Independ
Registered Public Accounting Firm" in the Proxyt&taent.
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ITEM 15.

(a) 1.

Exhibit
Number

PART IV

Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statements of the Company (iralgidelated notes to consolidated financial stateésjdiled as part of this report are
listed below:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing.

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&8132012 .

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 .

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loshi&lears Ended December 31, 2013, 2012 , and 2011
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equityfiite for the Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2042d 2011 .
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 .

Financial statement schedules of the Company ks

Schedule —Condensed Financial Information of Regig Parent Company Only as of December 31, 26832812 and for the
Years Ended December 31, 2013, 2012, and 2011 .

Schedule II—Consolidated Valuation and QualifyingcAunts for the Years Ended December 31, 20132 2ahd 2011 .

We have omitted schedules other than the ones lidieve because they are not required or are ptitaple, or the required
information is shown in the financial statementsiotes to the financial statements.

Exhibits

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Description Filed Period - —
Herewith Form Ending Exhibit Filing Date

2.1

3.1

3.2

3.3

Transaction Agreement, dated March 1, 2014, by

and among the Caesars Entertainment Corporation,

Caesars EntertainmenOperating Company, Inc.,

Caesars License Company, LLC, Harrah’s New

Orleans Management Company, Corner — 8-K — 2.1 3/3/2014
Investment Company, LLC, 3535 LV Corp.,

Parball Corporation, JCC Holding Company II,

LLC, Caesars Acquisition Company and Caesars

Growth Partners, LLC.

Second Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of Caesars Entertainment — 10-K 12/31/2011 3.7 3/15/2012
Corporation, dated February 8, 2012.

Amended Bylaws of Caesars Entertainment

Corporation, as amended, dated February 8, 2012. 10-K 12/31/2011 3.8 3/15/2012

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Caesars
Entertainment Operating Company, Inc. (fka
Harrah's Operating Company, Inc., f/lk/a Embassy
Suites, Inc.), as amended, dated June 13, 2005.

— S-4 — 3.1 10/29/2008
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Herewith

Incorporated by Reference

Filed Form

Period
Ending

Exhibit

Filing Date

3.4

3.5

3.6

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.5

4.6

4.7

Certificate of Amendment of Restated Certificate
of Incorporation of Caesars Entertainment

Operating Company, Inc. (fka Harrah's Operating

Company, Inc.), dated May 19, 2008.

Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of

Incorporation of Caesars Entertainment Operating

Company, Inc. dated November 22, 2010.

Bylaws of Caesars Entertainment Operating

Company, Inc. (fka Harrah's Operating Company,

Inc.), as amended.

Certificate of Designation of NoWeting Perpetuz
Preferred Stock of Harrah's Entertainment, Inc.,
dated January 28, 2008.

Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of
Designation of Non-Voting Perpetual Preferred
Stock of Harrals Entertainment, Inc., dated Mai
29, 2010.

Certificate of Elimination of Non-Voting Perpetual

Preferred Stock of Harrah’s Entertainment, Inc.,
dated March 29, 2010.

— 10-K

Amended and Restated Indenture, dated as of July

28, 2005, among Harrah’s Entertainment, Inc., as
Guarantor, Harrah’'s Operating Company, Inc., as

Issuer, and U.S. Bank National Association, as
Trustee, relating to the Floating Rate Contingent
Convertible Senior Notes due 2024.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of
September 9, 2005, to Amended and Restated
Indenture, dated as of July 28, 2005, among
Harrah’'s Operating Company, Inc., as Issuer,
Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. as Guarantor, and
U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee,
relating to the Floating Rate Contingent
Convertible Senior Notes due 2024.

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of
January 8, 2008, to Amended and Restated
Indenture, dated as of July 28, 2005, among
Harrah’'s Operating Company, Inc., as Issuer,
Harrah’s Entertainment, Inc. as Guarantor, and
U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee,
relating to the Floating Rate Contingent
Convertible Senior Notes due 2024.

8-K

— **S-3/A

10-K
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12/31/2008

12/31/2007

3.4

3.3

3.4

4.4

3.1

3.2

4.8

4.7

4.25

3/17/2009

11/24/2010

10/29/2008

1/31/2008

3/30/2010

3/30/2010

8/2/2005

9/19/2005

2/29/2008




Exhibit
Number

Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Description Filed

Herewith Form

Period
Ending

Exhibit

Filing Date

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

412

4.13

4.14

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January
28, 2008, to Amended and Restated Indenture,
dated as of July 28, 2005, among Harrah’s
Operating Company, Inc., as Issuer, Harrah’s
Entertainment, Inc. as Guarantor, and U.S. Bank
National Association, as Trustee, relating to the
Floating Rate Contingent Convertible Senior N¢
due 2024.

8-K

Indenture, dated as of May 27, 2005, between

Harrah’'s Operating Company, Inc., as Issuer,

Harrah's Entertainment, Inc., as Guarantor, and — 8-K
U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee,

relating to the 5.625% Senior Notes due 2015.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August
19, 2005, to Indenture, dated as of May 27, 2005,
between Harrah’s Operating Company, Inc., as
Issuer, Harrah's Entertainment, Inc., as Guarantor,
and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee,
relating to the 5.625% Senior Notes due 2015.

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of

September 28, 2005, to Indenture, dated as of May

27, 2005, between Harrah’s Operating Company,

Inc., as Issuer, Harrah’s Entertainment, Inc., as — 8-K
Guarantor, and U.S. Bank National Association, as

Trustee, relating to the 5.625% Senior Notes due

2015.

Indenture dated as of September 28, 2005, among

Harrah’'s Operating Company, Inc., as Issuer,

Harrah’s Entertainment, Inc., as Guarantor, and — 8-K
U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee,

relating to the 5.75% Senior Notes due 2017.

Indenture, dated as of June 9, 2006, between

Harrah’'s Operating Company, Inc., Harrah’s

Entertainment, Inc. and U.S. National Bank — 8-K
Association, as Trustee, relating to the 6.50%

Senior Notes due 2016.

Officers’ Certificate, dated as of June 9, 20086,

pursuant to Sections 301 and 303 of the Indenture

dated as of June 9, 2006 between Harrah's

Operating Company, Inc., Harrah’s Entertainment, — 8-K
Inc. and U.S. National Bank Association, as

Trustee, relating to the 6.50% Senior Notes due

2016.
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1/28/2008

6/3/2005
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10/3/2005

10/3/2005

6/14/2006
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Filed
Herewith

Incorporated by Reference

Form

Period
Ending

Exhibit

Filing Date

4.15

4.16

417

4.18

4.19

4.20

4.21

Indenture, dated as of February 1, 2008, by and
among Harrah's Operating Company, Inc., the
Guarantors (as defined therein) and U.S. Bank
National Association, as Trustee, relating to the
10.75% Senior Cash Pay Notes due 2016 and
10.75%/11.5% Senior Toggle Notes due 2018.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 12,
2008, by and among HarraOperating Compan
Inc., the Guarantors (as defined therein) and U.S.
Bank National Association, as Trustee, relating to
the 10.75% Senior Cash Pay Notes due 2016 and
10.75%/11.5% Senior Toggle Notes due 2018.

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of
January 9, 2009, by and among Harsa@perating
Company, Inc., the Guarantors (as defined therein)
and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee
relating to the 10.75% Senior Notes due 2016 and
10.75%/11.5% Senior Toggle Notes due 2018.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March
26, 2009, by and among Harrah's Operating
Company, Inc., the Note Guarantors (as defined
therein) and U.S. Bank National Association, as
Trustee relating to the 10.75% Senior Notes due
2016 and 10.75%/11.5% Senior Toggle Notes due
2018.

Indenture, dated as of December 24, 2008, by and
among Harrah's Operating Company, Inc.,
Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. and U.S. Bank
National Association, as Trustee, relating to the
10.00% Second-Priority Senior Secured Notes due
2018 and 10.00% Second-Priority Senior Secured
Notes due 2015.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 22,
2009, by and among HarraOperating Compan
Inc., Harrah’s Entertainment, Inc. and U.S. Bank
National Association, as Trustee, relating to the
10.00% Second-Priority Senior Secured Notes due
2018 and 10.00% Second-Priority Senior Secured
Notes due 2015.

Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of

April 12, 2013, by and among Caesars
Entertainment Operating Company, Inc., Caesars
Entertainment Corporation and U.S. Bank Natic
Association, as Trustee relating to the 10% Senior
Secured Notes due 2015.
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10-Q

10-Q

8-K

S-4/A

10-Q

10-Q

6/30/2008

3/31/2009

6/30/2009

3/31/2013

10.1

4.34

4.35

4.1

4.39

4.38

4.24

2/4/2008

8/11/2008

5/14/2009

3/31/2009

12/24/2008

8/13/2009

5/9/2013




Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Herewith

Filed

Incorporated by Reference

Form

Period
Ending

Exhibit

Filing Date

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

4.26

4.27

4.28

4.29

Collateral Agreement, dated as of December 24,
2008, by and among HarrahOperating Compan
Inc. as Issuer, each Subsidiary of the Issuer
identified therein, and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Collateral Agent relating to the
12.75% Second-Priority Senior Secured Notes due
2018.

Indenture, dated as of April 15, 2009, by and
among Harrah's Operating Company, Inc.,
Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee and collateral
agent relating to the 10.00% Second-Priority
Senior Secured Notes due 2018.

First Supplemental Indenture, dated May 18, 2009,
by and among Harrah’s Operating Company, Inc.,
Harrah’s Entertainment, Inc. and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee relating to the
10.00% Second-Priority Senior Secured Notes due
2018.

Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of April
12, 2013, by and among Caesars Entertainment

Operating Company, Inc., Caesars Entertainment
Corporation and U.S. Bank National Association,

as Trustee relating to the 10.00% Senior Secured
Notes due 2018.

Indenture, dated as of June 10, 2009, by and
among Harrah's Operating Escrow LLC, Harrah’s
Escrow Corporation, Harrah’s Entertainment, Inc.
and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee,
relating to the 11.25% Senior Secured Notes due
2017.

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 10, 2009,

by and among Harrah’s Operating Company, Inc.
and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee,
relating to the 11.25% Senior Secured Notes due
2017.

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of
September 11, 2009, by and among Harrah's
Operating Company, Inc., Harrah’s Entertainment,
Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association, as
trustee, relating to the 11.25% Senior Secured
Notes due 2017.

Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 12,
2013 by and among Caesars Entertainment
Operating Company, Inc., Caesars Entertainment
Corporation and U.S. Bank National Association
as Trustee related to the 11.25% Senior Secured
Notes due 2017.

S-4/A

10-Q

10-Q

8-K

8-K

8-K

10-Q

6/30/2009

3/31/2013

3/31/2013

4.40

4.1

4.4

4.28

4.1

4.2

4.1

4.32

12/24/2008

4/20/2009

8/13/2009

5/9/2013

6/15/2009

6/15/2009

9/17/2009

5/9/2013



130




Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description Filed
Herewith

Incorporated by Reference

Form

Period

Ending Exhibit Filing Date

4.30

431

4.32

4.33

4.34

4.35

4.36

Indenture, dated as of April 16, 2010, by and
among Harrah’s Operating Escrow LLC, Harrah’s
Escrow Corporation, Harrah’s Entertainment, Inc.
and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee,
relating to the 12.75% Second-Priority Senior
Secured Notes due 2018.

Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 20, 2010,
by and among Harrah’s Operating Company, Inc.

and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, —

relating to the 12.75% Second-Priority Senior
Secured Notes due 2018.

Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of April
12, 2013 by and among Caesars Operating Escrow
LLC, Caesars Escrow Corporation, Caesars
Entertainment Corporation and U.S. Bank Natic
Association as Trustee related to the 12.75%
Senior Secured Notes due 2018.

Joinder and Supplement to the Intercreditor
Agreement, dated as of May 20, 2010, by and
among U.S. Bank National Association, as new
trustee, U.S. Bank National Association, as second

priority agent, Bank of America, N.A., as credit —

agreement agent and U.S. Bank national
Association, as other first priority lien obligat®
agent, relating to the 12.75% Second-Priority
Senior Secured Notes due 2018.

Additional Secured Party Consent, dated as of
20, 2010, by U.S. Bank National Association, as
agent or trustee for persons who shall become

“Secured Parties” under the Collateral Agreement —

dated as of December 24, 2008, relating to the
12.75% Second-Priority Senior Secured Notes due
2018.

Indenture dated as of February 3, 2012 among
Chester Downs and Marina, LLC , a Pennsylvania
limited liability company, Chester Downs Finance
Corp., and, together with the Company, Subsidiary

Guarantors party hereto from time to time, U.S. —

Bank National Association, as trustee and U.S.
Bank National Association, as collateral agent,
relating to the 9.25% Senior Secured Notes due
2020.

Indenture, dated as of February 14, 2012, by and
among Caesars Operating Escrow LLC, Caesars
Escrow Corporation, Caesars Entertainment
Corporation and U.S. Bank National Association,
as trustee, relating to the 8.5% Senior Secured
Notes due 2020.
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8-K

8-K

10-Q

8-K

8-K

10-K

8-K

— 4.1 4/22/2010

— 4.1 5/24/2010

3/31/2013 4.35 5/9/2013

— 10.1 5/24/2010

— 10.2 5/24/2010

12/31/2011 4.43 3/15/2012

— 4.1 2/15/2012
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4.37 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 1,
2012, by and among Caesars Operating Escrow
LLC, Caesars Escrow Corporation, Caesars
Entertainment Corporation and U.S. Bank Natic
Association, as trustee, relating to the 8.5% Senio
Secured Notes due 2020.

8-K — 4.1 3/2/2012

4.38 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of April
12, 2013 by and among Caesars Operating Escrow
LLC, Caesars Escrow Corporation, Caesars
Entertainment Corporation and U.S. Bank Natic
Association, as Trustee related to the 8.5% Senior
Secured Notes due 2020.

10-Q 3/31/2013 4.44 5/9/2013

4.39 Equity Distribution Agreement, dated April 12,
2012, between Caesars Entertainment Corporation,
Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. and Credit Suisse
Securities (USA) LLC.

8-K — 11 4/13/2012

4.40 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of
December 13, 2012 (to the August 22, 2012 and
October 5, 2012 Registration Rights Agreement
and Joinder), by and among Caesars Operating
Escrow LLC, Caesars Escrow Corporation, — 8-K — 4.2 12/13/2012
Caesars Entertainment Corporation and Citigroup
Global Markets Inc., as representative of theahiti
purchasers, related to the 9% Senior Secured Notes
due 2020.

4.41 Indenture dated as of August 22, 2012 by and
among Caesars Operating Escrow, LLC, Caesars
Escrow Corporation, Caesars Entertainment
Corporation, and U.S. Bank National Association,
as trustee, related to the 9% Senior Secured Notes
due 2020.

8-K — 4.1 8/22/2012

4.42 Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 5,
2012, by and among Caesars Operating Escrow,
LLC, Caesars Escrow Corporation, Caesars
Entertainment Corporation, and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee, related to the 9%
Senior Secured Notes due 2020.

— 8-K — 4.1 10/10/2012

4.43 Additional Notes Supplemental Indenture, dated as
of December 13, 2012 , by and among Caesars
Operating Escrow LLC, Caesars Escrow
Corporation, Caesars Entertainment Corporation
and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee,
related to the 9% Senior Secured Notes due 2020.

8-K — 4.1 12/13/2012

4.44 Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of
February 20, 2013, by and among Caesars
Operating Escrow, LLC, Caesars Escrow
Corporation, Caesars Entertainment Corporation, — 8-K — 4.1 2/21/2013
and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, in
connection with the 9% Senior Secured Notes due
2020.
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4.45

4.46

4.47

4.48

4.49

10.1

10.2

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April
12, 2013, by and among Caesars Operating
Escrow, LLC, Caesars Escrow Corporation,
Caesars Entertainment Corporation, and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee, in connectior'

the 9% Senior Secured Notes due 2020.

Indenture, dated as of February 15, 2013, by and
among Caesars Operating Escrow LLC, Caesars
Escrow Corporation, Caesars Entertainment
Corporation and U.S. Bank National Association,
as trustee, related to the 9% Senior Secured Notes
due 2020.

Indenture, dated as of October 11, 2013, amon

CERP Entities, the Subsidiary Guarantors and U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee, relating to —
the 8% First-Priority Senior Secured Notes due

2020.

Indenture, dated as of October 11, 2013, amon

CERP Entities, the Subsidiary Guarantors and U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee, relating to —
the 11% Second-Priority Senior Secured Notes due
2021.

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of

October 11, 2013, by and among the CERP

Entities, the Subsidiary Guarantors and Citigroup  —
Global Markets Inc., as representative of theahiti
purchasers.

Credit Agreement, dated as of January 28, 2008,
by and among Hamlet Merger Inc., Harrah’s
Operating Company, Inc. as Borrower, the Lenders
party thereto from time to time, Bank of America,
N.A., as Administrative Agent and Collateral

Agent, Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as
Syndication Agent, and Citibank, N.A., Credit —
Suisse, Cayman Islands Branch, JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner &

Smith Incorporated, Goldman Sachs Credit
Partners L.P., Morgan Stanley Senior Funding,
Inc., and Bear Sterns Corporate Lending, Inc., as
Co-Documentation Agents.

Incremental Facility Amendment, dated as of
September 26, 2009 to the Credit Agreement dated —
as of January 28, 2008.
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10-Q

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K/A

8-K

3/31/2013 4.56 5/9/2013

— 4.1 2/15/2013

— 4.1 10/15/2013

— 4.2 10/15/2013

— 4.3 10/15/2013

— 10.1 2/7/2008

— 99.1 9/29/2009
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10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

Amendment Agreement dated as of May 20, 2011,
among Caesars Entertainment Corporation,
Caesars Entertainment Operating Company, Inc.
each Subsidiary Loan Party party thereto, the
lenders party thereto and Bank of America, N.A.,
as administrative agent under the Credit —
Agreement dated as of January 28, 2008, among
Caesars Entertainment Corporation, Caesars
Entertainment Operating Company, Inc., the
lenders party thereto from time to time and the
other parties party thereto.

Reaffirmation Agreement, dated as of March 1,
2012, among Caesars Entertainment Corporation,
Caesars Entertainment Operating Company, Inc.
each Subsidiary Loan Party party thereto, the
lenders party thereto and Bank of America, N.A.,
as administrative agent under the Amended and —
Restated Credit Agreement dated as of May 20,
2011, among Caesars Entertainment Corporation,
Caesars Entertainment Operating Company, Inc.,
the lenders party thereto from time to time and the
other parties party thereto.

Reaffirmation Agreement, dated as of October 5,
2012, among Caesars Entertainment Corporation,
Caesars Entertainment Operating Company, Inc.
each Subsidiary Loan Party party thereto, the
lenders party thereto and Bank of America, N.A.,
as administrative agent under the Amended and —
Restated Credit Agreement dated as of May 20,
2011, among Caesars Entertainment Corporation,
Caesars Entertainment Operating Company, Inc.,
the lenders party thereto from time to time and the
other parties party thereto.

Reaffirmation Agreement, dated as of March 27,
2013, among Caesars Entertainment Corporation,
Caesars Entertainment Operating Company, Inc.
each Subsidiary Loan Party party thereto, the
lenders party thereto and Bank of America, N.A.,
as administrative agent under the Amended and —
Restated Credit Agreement dated as of May 20,
2011, among Caesars Entertainment Corporation,
Caesars Entertainment Operating Company, Inc.,
the lenders party thereto from time to time and the
other parties party thereto.
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8-K/IA —

8-K —

8-K —

8-K —

10.1

10.2

10.1

10.2

5/23/2011

3/2/2012

10/10/2012

3/28/2013




Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

Herewith

Filed

Incorporated by Reference

Form

Period

Ending Exhibit

Filing Date

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement,
dated as of June 3, 2009, among Harrah's
Operating Company, Inc., Harrah’s Entertainment,
Inc., the lenders from time to time party thereto
(the “Lenders”), Bank of America, N.A, as
administrative agent, and the other parties thereto

Amendment Agreement, dated as of March 1,
2012, among Caesars Entertainment Corporation,
Caesars Entertainment Operating Company, Inc.
each Subsidiary Loan Party party thereto, the
lenders party thereto and Bank of America, N.A.,
as administrative agent under the Amended and
Restated Credit Agreement dated as of May 20,
2011, among Caesars Entertainment Corporation,
Caesars Entertainment Operating Company, Inc.,
the lenders party thereto from time to time and the
other parties party thereto.

Amendment, dated as of February 6, 2013, to the
Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement,
dated as of March 1, 2012, among Caesars
Entertainment Corporation, Caesars Entertainment
Operating Company, Inc., the lenders from time to
time party thereto, Bank of America, N.A., as
administrative agent and collateral agent, and the
other parties named therein.

Amended and Restated Collateral Agreement ¢
and effective as of January 28, 2008 (as amended
and restated on June 10, 2009), among Harrah's
Operating Company, Inc., each Subsidiary Party
that is party thereto and Bank of America, N.A., as
Collateral Agent.

Other First Lien Secured Party Consent to the
Collateral Agreement, dated as of October 5, 2012,
by U.S. Bank National Association, as agent or
trustee for persons who shall become “Secured
Parties” under the Collateral Agreement dated as

of January 28, 2008, as amended and restated as of

June 10, 2009.

Amended and Restated Guaranty and Pledge
Agreement dated and effective as of January 28,
2008 (as amended and restated on June 10, 2009),
made by Harrals Entertainment, Inc. (as succes

to Hamlet Merger Inc.) in favor of Bank of

America, N.A., as Administrative Agent and
Collateral Agent.
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8-K/A

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

— 10.1 6/11/2009

— 10.1 3/2/2012

— 10.1 3/28/2013

— 10.3 6/15/2009

— 10.3 10/10/2012

— 10.4 6/15/2009
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10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

Other First Lien Secured Party Consent to the
Guaranty and Pledge Agreement, dated as of

October 5, 2012, by U.S. Bank National

Association, as agent or trustee for persons who —
shall become “Secured Partiagider the Guaran

and Pledge Agreement dated as of January 28,

2008, as amended and restated as of June 10, 2009.

Other First Lien Secured Party Consent to the
Collateral Agreement, dated as of February 20,

2013, by U.S. Bank National Association, as agent

or trustee for persons who shall become “Secured —
Parties” under the Collateral Agreement dated as

of January 28, 2008, as amended and restated as of
June 10, 2009.

Other First Lien Secured Party Consent to the
Collateral Agreement, dated as of March 27, 2013,

by U.S. Bank National Association, as agent or

trustee for persons who shall become “Secured —
Parties” under the Collateral Agreement dated as

of January 28, 2008, as amended and restated as of
June 10, 2009.

Other First Lien Secured Party Consent to the
Guaranty and Pledge Agreement, dated as of

February 20, 2013, by U.S. Bank National

Association, as agent or trustee for persons who —
shall become “Secured Partiagider the Guaran

and Pledge Agreement dated as of January 28,

2008, as amended and restated as of June 10, 2009.

Other First Lien Secured Party Consent to the
Guaranty and Pledge Agreement, dated as of

March 27, 2013, by U.S. Bank National

Association, as agent or trustee for persons who —
shall become “Secured Partiagider the Guaran

and Pledge Agreement dated as of January 28,

2008, as amended and restated as of June 10, 2009.

Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of January 28,

2008 by and among Bank of America, N.A. as
administrative agent and collateral agent under the
Credit Agreement, Citibank, N.A. as —
administrative agent under the Bridge-Loan

Agreement and U.S. Bank National Association as
Trustee under the Indenture.
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8-K

8-K

8-K

10-K

12/31/2008

104

10.2

10.4

10.3

10.5

10.3

10/10/2012

2/20/2013

3/28/2013

2/20/2013

3/28/2013

3/17/2009
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10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of December 24,
2008 among Bank of America, N.A. as Credit
Agreement Agent, each Other First Priority Lien
Obligations Agent from time to time, U.S. Bank —
National Association as Trustee and each collateral
agent for any Future Second Lien Indebtedness

from time to time.

Joinder and Supplement to the Intercreditor
Agreement, dated as of April 15, 2009 (to the
Agreement dated December 24, 2008) by and
among U.S. Bank National Association, as new
trustee, U.S. Bank National Association, as Tru
under the Intercreditor Agreement, Bank of
America, N.A., as Credit Agreement Agent under
the Intercreditor Agreement, and any other First
Lien Agent and Second Priority Agent from time
to time party to the Intercreditor Agreement.

First Lien Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of
June 10, 2009 (to the Agreement dated December
24, 2008), by and among Bank of America, N.A.,
as collateral agent for the First Lien Secured
Parties and as Authorized Representative for the
Credit Agreement Secured Parties, U.S. Bank —
National Association, as Authorized
Representative for the Initial Other First Lien
Secured Parties, and each additional Authorized
Representative from time to time party to the First
Lien Intercreditor Agreement.

Joinder and Supplement to Intercreditor
Agreement, dated June 10, 2009 (to the Agreement
dated December 24, 2008) by and among U.S.
Bank National Association, as new trustee, U.S.
Bank National Association, as Trustee under the
Intercreditor Agreement, Bank of America, N.A.,

as Credit Agreement Agent under the Intercreditor
Agreement, U.S. Bank National Association as a —
Second Priority Agent under the Intercreditor
Agreement and any other First Lien Agent and
Second Priority Agent from time to time party to

the Intercreditor Agreement. (Exhibit A thereto
incorporated by reference to exhibit 10.4 to the
Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K filed
March 17, 2009).
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10-K

8-K

8-K/IA

8-K

12/31/2008 104

— 10.1

— 10.1

— 10.2

3/17/2009

4/20/2009

6/11/2009

6/15/2009
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10.23

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

Joinder and Supplement to the Intercreditor
Agreement, dated as of September 11, 2009 by and
among U.S. Bank National Association, as new
trustee, U.S. Bank National Association, as Tru
under the Intercreditor Agreement, Bank of
America, N.A., as Credit Agreement Agent under
the Intercreditor Agreement, and any other First
Lien Agent and Second Priority Agent from time

to time party to the Intercreditor Agreement redate
to the 11.25% Senior Secured Notes due 2017.

Joinder and Supplement to the Intercreditor
Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2012, by and

among U.S. Bank National Association, as new
trustee, U.S. Bank National Association, as second
priority agent, Bank of America, N.A., as credit —
agreement agent and U.S. Bank National

Association, as other first priority lien obligat®

agent, relating to the 8.5% Senior Secured Notes

due 2020.

Joinder and Supplement to the Intercreditor
Agreement, dated as of October 5, 2012, by and
among U.S. Bank National Association, as new
trustee, U.S. Bank National Association, as second
priority agent, Bank of America, N.A., as credit o
agreement agent and U.S. Bank National

Association, as

other first priority lien obligations agent.

Joinder and Supplement to the Intercreditor
Agreement, dated as of February 20, 2013 (the
Intercreditor Agreement dated December 24,

2008) , by and among U.S. Bank National

Association, as new trustee, U.S. Bank National —
Association, as second priority agent, Bank of
America, N.A., as credit agreement agent and U.S.
Bank National Association, as other first priority.

lien obligations agent.

Other First Lien Secured Party Consent to the
Collateral Agreement, dated as of March 1, 2012,

by U.S. Bank National Association, as agent or

trustee for persons who shall become “Secured —
Parties” under the Collateral Agreement dated as

of January 28, 2008, as amended and restated as of
June 10, 2009.
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8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

10.1

10.3

10.2

10.1

10.4

9/17/2009

3/2/2012

10/10/2012

2/20/2013

3/2/2012
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10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

Other First Lien Secured Party Consent to the
Guaranty and Pledge Agreement, dated as of
March 1, 2012, by U.S. Bank National
Association, as agent or trustee for persons who
shall become “Secured Partiagider the Guaran
and Pledge Agreement dated as of January 28,

— 8-K — 10.5 3/2/2012

2008, as amended and restated as of June 10, 2009.

Other First Lien Secured Party Consent, dated as
of September 11, 2009, by U.S. Bank National
Association, as agent or trustee for persons who
shall become “Secured Parties” under the
Amended and Restated Collateral Agreement ¢
and effective as of January 28, 2008 (as amended
and restated on June 10, 2009).

Other First Lien Secured Party Consent, dated as
of September 11, 2009, by U.S. Bank National
Association, as agent or trustee for persons who
shall become “Secured Parties” under the
Amended and Restated Guaranty and Pledge
Agreement dated and effective as of January 28,

— 8-K — 10.2 9/17/2009

— 8-K — 10.3 9/17/2009

2008 (as amended and restated on June 10, 2009).

Trust Agreement dated June 20, 2001 by and
between Harrah’'s Entertainment, Inc. and Wells
Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A.

Escrow Agreement, dated February 6, 1990, by
and between The Promus Companies Incorporated,
certain subsidiaries thereof, and Sovran Bank, as

escrow agent.

Amendment to Escrow Agreement dated as of
October 29, 1993 (to the Agreement dated
February 6, 1990) among The Promus Companies
Incorporated, certain subsidiaries thereof, and
NationsBank, formerly Sovran Bank.

Amendment, dated as of June 7, 1995 (the
Agreement dated February 6, 1990 and amended
on October 29, 1993), to Escrow Agreement
among The Promus Companies Incorporated,
certain subsidiaries thereof and NationsBank.

Amendment, dated as of July 18, 1996, to Escrow
Agreement between Harrah's Entertainment, Inc.

and NationsBank.

Amendment, dated as of October 30, 1997, to
Escrow Agreement between Harrah's
Entertainment, Inc., Harrah’s Operating Company,

Inc. and NationsBank.

— 10-Q 9/30/2001 10.4 11/9/2001

— 10-K 12/29/1989 Unknown 3/28/1990

— 10-K 12/31/1993 10.66 3/28/1994

— 8-K — 10.12 6/15/1995

— 10-Q 9/30/1996 10.1 11/12/1996

10-K 12/31/1997 10.82 3/10/1998
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10.37

10.38

110.39

110.40

110.41

110.42

110.43

110.44

110.45

110.46

10.47

Amendment to Escrow Agreement, dated April 26,
2000, between Harrah’s Entertainment, Inc. and
Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, N.A., Successor to
Bank of America, N.A.

Letter Agreement with Wells Fargo Bank

Minnesota, N.A., dated August 31, 2000,

concerning appointment as Escrow Agent under —
Escrow Agreement for deferred compensation

plans.

Amendment and Restatement of Harrah’s
Entertainment, Inc. Executive Deferred —
Compensation Plan, effective August 3, 2007.

Amendment and Restatement of Harrah's
Entertainment, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan, —
effective as of August 3, 2007.

Amendment and Restatement of Park Place
Entertainment Corporation Executive Deferred —
Compensation Plan, effective as of August 3, 2

Amendment and Restatement of Harrah'’s
Entertainment, Inc. Executive Supplemental —
Savings Plan, effective as of August 3, 2007.

Amendment and Restatement of Harrah'’s
Entertainment, Inc. Executive Supplemental —
Savings Plan Il, effective as of August 3, 2007.

First Amendment to the Amendment and
Restatement of Harrah's Entertainment, Inc.
Executive Supplemental Savings Plan Il, effective
as of February 9, 2009.

Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. Amended and

Restated Executive Deferred Compensation Trust
Agreement dated January 11, 2006 by and between —
Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. and Wells Fargo

Bank, N.A.

Amendment to the Harrah’s Entertainment, Inc.
Amended and Restated Executive Deferred
Compensation Trust Agreement effective January —
28, 2008 by and between Harrah’s Entertainment,

Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

Equity Interest Purchase Agreement with Exhibits
A-F with Penn National Gaming, Inc., Caesars
Entertainment Operating Company, Inc., Harrah’s
Maryland Heights Operating Company, Players
Maryland Heights Nevada, LLC and Harrah’s
Maryland Heights, LLC, dated May 7, 2012.
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10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

8-K

10-K

10-K

10-Q
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9/30/2000
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6/30/2007
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12/31/2007
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10.8

10.7

10.69

10.70

10.71

10.72

10.73

10.2

10.41

10.42

10.102

11/13/2000

11/13/2000

8/9/2007

8/9/2007

8/9/2007

8/9/2007

8/9/2007

2/13/2009

2/29/2008

2/29/2008

8/8/2012
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10.48 Share Purchase Agreement between Caesars
Entertainment Operating Company, Inc., and Pearl
Dynasty Investments Limited dated August 6, — 10-Q 6/30/2013 10.73 8/9/2013
2013.

10.49 Services Agreement, dated as of January 28, 2008,
by and among Harrah’s Entertainment, Inc.,
Apollo Management VI, L.P., Apollo Alternative
Assets, L.P. and TPG Capital, L.P.

8-K/A — 10.15 2/7/2008

10.50 Stockholders’ Agreement, dated as of January 28,
2008, by and among Apollo Hamlet Holdings,
LLC, Apollo Hamlet Holdings B, LLC, TPG
Hamlet Holdings, LLC, TPG Hamlet Holdings B,
LLC, Co-Invest Hamlet Holdings, Series LLC, Co-
Invest Hamlet Holdings B, LLC, Hamlet Holdings
LLC and Harrah’s Entertainment, Inc., and, solely
with respect to Sections 3.01 and 6.07, Apollo
Investment Fund VI, L.P. and TPG V Hamlet AlV,
L.P.

— 8-K/A — 10.14 2/7/2008

10.51 Form of First Amendment to the Stockholders’
Agreement by and among Apollo Hamlet
Holdings, LLC, Apollo Hamlet Holdings B, LLC,
TPG Hamlet Holdings, LLC, TPG Hamlet
Holdings B, LLC, Co-Invest Hamlet Holdings,
Series LLC, Co-Invest Hamlet Holdings B, LLC,
Hamlet Holdings LLC and Caesars Entertainment
Corporation.

— S-1/A — 10.91 2/2/2012

10.52 Form of Release and Contribution Agreement,
dated as of January 25, 2012, by and among
Caesars Entertainment Corporation, Co-Invest
Hamlet Holdings, Series LLC, Co-Invest Hamlet
Holdings B, LLC and the Participating Co-
Investors listed on Schedule I.

S-1/A — 10.90 2/2/2012

10.53 Form of Acknowledgment to the Services
Agreement among Caesars Entertainment
Corporation, Apollo Management VI, L.P., Apollo
Alternative Assets, L.P. and TPG Capital, L.P.

S-1/A — 10.92 2/2/2012

10.54 Irrevocable Proxy of Hamlet Holdings LLC, dated

November 22, 2010. — 8-K — 10.1 11/24/2010

t10.55 Amended and Restated Management Investors

Rights Agreement, dated November 22, 2010. 8K o 10.2 11/24/2010

t10.56  Consent and Acknowledgment, dated May 6, 2
to the Amended Management Investors Rights — 10-Q 3/31/2013 10.74 5/9/2013
Agreement.
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10.57

10.58

10.59

10.60

10.61

10.62

10.63

10.64

10.65

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, Dated

as of November 14, 2012, among Caesars
Entertainment Operating Company, Inc., as —
Borrower, and Caesars Entertainment Corporation,

as Lender.

First Lien Credit Agreement, dated as of October
11, 2013, by and among the CERP Entities,
Citicorp North America Inc., as administrative
agent and the lenders party thereto.

First Lien Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of
October 11, 2013, by and among the First Lien
Collateral Agent, Citicorp North America, Inc., as
authorized representative under the credit
agreement and U.S. Bank National Association, as
the initial other authorized representative.

Second Lien Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of
October 11, 2013, by and among Citicorp North
America, Inc., as credit agreement agent, U.S.
Bank National Association, as other first priority
lien obligations agent and U.S. Bank National
Association, as second priority agent.

Collateral Agreement (First Lien), dated as of
October 11, 2013, by and among the CERP
Entities, the Subsidiary Guarantors, and Citicorp
North America, Inc., as collateral agent.

Collateral Agreement (Second Lien), dated as of
October 11, 2013, by and among the CERP
Entities, the Subsidiary Guarantors, and U.S. Bank
National Association, as collateral agent.

Transaction Agreement, dated as of October 21,
2013, among Caesars Acquisition Company,
Caesars Growth Partners, LLC, Caesars
Entertainment Corporation, HIE Holdings, Inc.,
Harrah’'s BC, Inc., PHW Las Vegas, LLC, PHW
Manager, LLC, Caesars Baltimore Acquisition
Company, LLC and Caesars Baltimore
Management Company, LLC.

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Comps
Agreement of Caesars Growth Partners, LLC, —
dated as of October 21, 2013.

Management Services Agreement, dated as of
October 21, 2013, among Caesars Acquisition
Company, Caesars Growth Partners, LLC and
Caesars Entertainment Operating Company, Inc.
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10-K/A

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

8-K

12/31/2012

10.72

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.1

10.2

10.3

3/15/2013

10/15/2013

10/15/2013

10/15/2013

10/15/2013

10/15/2013

10/22/2013

10/22/2013

10/22/2013




Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit ibi inti i i
Number Exhibit Description H ;‘mth Form Eﬁé‘i‘r’]‘é Exhibit Filing Date
10.66 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of
October 21, 2013, among Caesars Acquisition
Company, Caesars Growth Partners, LLC and — 8-K — 104 10/22/2013
certain subsidiaries of Caesars Entertainment
Corporation.

10.67 Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of
October 21, 2013, between Caesars Entertainment — 8-K — 10.5 10/22/2013
Corporation and Caesars Acquisition Company.

10.68 Omnibus Voting Agreement, dated as of October
21, 2013, among Apollo Hamlet Holdings, LLC,
Apollo Hamlet Holdings B, LLC, TPG Hamlet
Holdings, LLC, TPG Hamlet Holdings B, LLC,
Co-Invest Hamlet Holdings, Series LLC, Gorest
Hamlet Holdings B, LLC, Hamlet Holdings LLC,
Caesars Entertainment Corporation and Caesars
Acquisition Company.

— 8-K — 10.6 10/22/2013

t10.69  Caesars Entertainment Corporation Management
Equity Incentive Plan, as amended and restated on — S-1/A — 10.78 12/28/2011
November 29, 2011.

t10.70  Caesars Entertainment Corporation 2012

Performance Incentive Plan. o S-VA o 10.89 2/2/2012

110.71 Amendment No.1 to the Caesars Entertainment

Corporation 2012 Performance Incentive Plan. o 8K o 101 712512012

t10.72  Form of Caesars Entertainment Corporation 2012
Performance Incentive Plan Nonqualified Option — SC-TO-I — (d)(?3) 7/25/2012
Award Agreement.

t10.73  Form of Caesars Entertainment Corporation 2012
Performance Incentive Plan Nonqualified Option — SC-TO-I — (d)(4) 7/25/2012
Award Agreement (Replacement Options).

t10.74  Form of Caesars Entertainment Corporation 2012
Performance Incentive Plan Nonqualified Option
Award Agreement (Replacement Options Granted
to Gary W. Loveman).

— SC-TO-| — (d)(5) 7/25/2012

t10.75  Form of Caesars Entertainment Corporation 2012
Performance Incentive Plan Nonqualified Option — SC-TO-I — (d)(3) 7/25/2012
Award Agreement.

110.76 Form of Caesars Entertainment 2012 Performance

Incentive Plan Restricted Share Award Agreement. 10-K/A 12/31/2012 10.84 3/15/2013

t10.77  Form of Caesars Entertainment Corporation 2012
Performance Incentive Plan Restricted Stock Unit — 8-K — 10.1 7/2/2013
Award Agreement.
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Exhibit Description Filed Period - .
Number Herewith Form Ending Exhibit Filing Date

t10.78  Form of Indemnification Agreement entered into
by Caesars Entertainment Corporation and each of — S-1 — 10.75 11/16/2010
its directors and executive officers.

1t10.79  Form of Stock Option Grant Agreement dated
April 16, 2012 between Caesars Entertainment — 10-Q 3/31/2012 10.96 5/9/2012
Corporation and Gary W. Loveman.

t10.80  Form of Caesars Entertainment Corporation
Management Equity Incentive Plan Stock Option — SC-TO-I — (d)(7) 7/25/2012
Grant Agreement.

110.81 Form of Amendment to Caesars Entertainment
Corporation Management Equity Incentive Plan — SC-TO-I — (d)(8) 7/25/2012
Stock Option Grant Agreement.

t10.82  Financial Counseling Plan of Harrah's

Entertainment, Inc., as amended January 1996. o 10-K 12/31/1995 10.22 3/6/1996

t10.83  Waiver of Financial Counseling Plan, effective as
of April 29, 2013, by and between Gary W. — 10-Q 3/31/2013 10.31 5/9/2013
Loveman and Caesars Entertainment Corporation.

110.84 2009 Senior Executive Incentive Plan, amended

and restated December 7. 2012, — 10-K/A 12/31/2012 10.90 3/15/2013
t10.85  Caesars Entertainment Corporation Omnibus

Incentive Plan, dated November 14, 2012. o 10-K/A 12/31/2012 10.91 3/15/2013
110.86  Employment Agreement, made as of January 28,

2008, and amended on March 13, 2009, by and . 10-K 12/31/2008 10.16 3/17/2009

between Harrah's Entertainment, Inc. and Gary W.
Loveman.

t10.87  Form of Employment Agreement between Caesars
Entertainment Operating Company, Inc., and — 8-K — 10.1 1/9/2012
Thomas M. Jenkin, and John W. R. Payne.

110.88 Employment Agreement made as of November 14,
2012, by and between Caesars Entertainment — 10-K/A 12/31/2012 10.85 3/15/2013
Operating Company, Inc. and Donald Colvin.

t10.89  Employment Agreement made as of April 2, 2009
by and between Harrah's Operating Company, Inc. — 10-K/A 12/31/2012 10.87 3/15/2013
and Timothy Donovan.

12 Computation of Ratios X

14 Amended and Restated Code of Business Conduct

and Ethics, amended February 21, 2013 10-K/A 12/31/2013 14 3/15/2013
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Incorporated by Reference

Exhibit Exhibit Description Filed Period - .
Number Herewith Form Ending Exhibit Filing Date
18.1 Preferability letter regarding changes in accountin X
principles
21 List of Subsidiaries X
23 Consent of Deloitte & Touche, LLP, independent X

registered public accounting firm.

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act X
of 2002, dated March 17, 2014.

31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act X
of 2002, dated March 17, 2014.

32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act X
of 2002, dated March 17, 2014.

32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act X
of 2002, dated March 17, 2014.

99.1 Gaming and Regulatory Overview X

101 The following financial statements from the
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2013, formatted in XBRL: (i)
Consolidated Condensed Balance Sheets, (ii)
Consolidated Condensed Statements of Opera
(iif) Consolidated Condensed Statements of X
Comprehensive Loss, (iv) Consolidated Conde!
Statement of Stockholders’ Equity, (V)
Consolidated Condensed Statements of Cash
Flows, (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

T Denotes a management contract or compensatmyoplarrangement.

*  Filed by Park Place Entertainment Corporation
**  Filed by Harrah's Entertainment, Inc.
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT PAREN T COMPANY ONLY
CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONDENSED BALANCE SHEETS

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Receivables, net
Prepayments and other current assets
Intercompany receivables
Total current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Restricted cash
Deferred charges and other
Deferred income taxes
Intercompany receivables
Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity/(Deficit)
Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Deferred income taxes

Intercompany payables

Total current liabilities

Accumulated losses of subsidiaries in excess afstment
Deferred credits and other
Deferred income taxes
Intercompany payables
Total liabilities
Total stockholders’ equity/(deficit)

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity(deficit)

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Financialnhafibon.

(In millions)
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Schedule

As of December 31,

2013 2012
1135 $ 7.4
30. —
0.1 0.1
— 5.
0.f 29.€
144 42.1
20.C —
1.0 7.5
7.6 —
340.F 563.1
514.0 $ 612.7
02 $ 3.
3.£ 3.7
5.2 15.¢
9.4 23.F
3,582.. 925
— 4.1
55.C 55.
3,646.! 1,008.(
(3,132.) (395.9
514.C $ 612.7




CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT PAREN T COMPANY ONLY

CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

Schedule

(In millions)
Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Net revenues $ — % — % —

Operating expenses
Write-downs, reserves, and project opening costspfirecoveries — 15.C =
Loss on interests in non-consolidated affiliates (0.4 — —
Loss on interests in subsidiaries 2,923.( 1,464.: 693.4
Corporate expense 16.C 28.2 221
Acquisition and integration costs — — 0.1
Total operating expenses 2,938.¢ 1,507t 716.2
Loss from operations (2,938.¢) (1,507.) (716.2)
Interest expense 2.3 (1.0 —
Other income, including interest income 23.1 18.c 255
Loss from operations before income taxes (2,913.) (1,490.9) (690.7%)
Benefit for income taxes (0.3 9.1 3.1
Net loss (2,913.) (1,481.) (687.6)
Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of incomega — — —
Comprehensive loss $ (2,913 $ (1,481.) $ (687.6)

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Financialnhafibon.
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Schedule

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT PAREN T COMPANY ONLY
CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(In millions)
Years Ended December 31,
2013 2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activities $ 407.¢ 9 258.¢ $ 182.¢

Cash flows from investing activities
Change in restricted cash (50.5) — —
Payments to acquire businesses, net of transamtigts and cash acquired — — (123.5
Purchase of additional interest in subsidiary (581.9 (232.5) —
Purchase of Ling/Octavius from non-guarantor (80.7) — —
Proceeds paid for sale of assets (29.0 — —
Other (0.4) 0.8 —
Cash flows used in investing activities (741.9 (233.9 (123.5)

Cash flows from financing activities
Issuance of common stock, net of fees 217.2 17.4 —
Other — — a.7)
Transfer to affiliates 222.¢ (39.9) (189.9)
Cash flows provided by financing activities 439.¢ (21.%) (191.5
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equisalent 105.¢ BE (132.7)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 7.4 3.6 136.(
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $ 113%  $ 74§ 3¢

See accompanying Notes to Condensed Financialnhafibon.
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Schedule
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT PAREN T COMPANY ONLY
CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

1. Background and basis of presentatio

These condensed parent company financial staterhamésbeen prepared in accordance with Rule 15€Hedule 1 of Regulation §-as
the restricted net assets of Caesars Entertain@eroration and its subsidiaries exceed 25% of ahesolidated net assets of Cae
Entertainment Corporation and its subsidiaries (t@empany"). This information should be read in jomction with the company
consolidated financial statements included elsea/frethis filing.

2. Restricted net assets of subsidiaris

Certain of the Company's subsidiaries have retniston their ability to pay dividends or make netmmpany loans and advances purs
to financing arrangements and regulatory restmstioThe amount of restricted net assets the Congpamnsolidated subsidiaries helc
December 31, 2013 and 2012 was approximately $Bionband $1.2 billion, respectively. Such restrictions are on net asseSaesal
Entertainment Corporation and its subsidiaries. @ah@unt of restricted net assets in the Company®nsolidated subsidiaries was
material to the financial statements.

3. Commitments, contingencies and longerm obligations

For a discussion of the Company's commitments,ingencies and long term obligations under its ses@cured credit facility, s
Note 9, " Debt" and Note 17, " Litigation, Contractual Commitments and Contingkiatbilities " of the Company's consolidated finan
statements.
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Schedule |
CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(In millions)
Additions
Charged
Balance at to Costs Deductions Balance
Beginning and from at End
Description of Period Expenses Reserves of Period
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2013
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Current 201.7 29.1 $ $ (68.5 @ $ 162.(
Long-term 0.1 — % $ — $ 0.1
Liability to sellers under acquisition agreemént 1.C — 3 $ 0. $ 0.¢
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Current 202.2 66.7 $ $ (67.2) @ % 201.7
Long-term .3 — % $ (0.2) $ 0.1
Liability to sellers under acquisition agreeméht 1.1 — % $ 0.9 $ 1.C
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Current 216.2 49.: % $ (63.9) @ $ 202.2
Long-term 2 — $ — $ 2
Liability to sellers under acquisition agreeméht 1.2 — § $ (0 § 1.1

@ Uncollectible accounts written off, net of amourdgsoverec

®  We acquired Players International, Inc., ("Playgis'March 2000. In 1995, Players acquired a hatel land adjacent to its riverboat gaming facitity
Lake Charles, Louisiana, for cash plus future paym® the seller based on the number of passehgarding the riverboat casinos during a defined
term. In accordance with the guidance provided BCATopic 805 regarding the recognition of liakéltiassumed in a business combination accounted
as a purchase, Players estimated the net predastafahe future payments to be made to the sedled recorded that amount as a component of tale to
consideration paid to acquire these assets. Oardigg of this liability in connection with the mirase price allocation process following the Player
acquisition was originally reported in 2000. Ousioa operations in Lake Charles sustained sigmifidamage in late third quarter 2005 as a result of
Hurricane Rita. As a result of hurricane damagd,on the Company’s subsequent decision to se&le dperations in Lake Charles and ultimately sell
the property, the current and long-term portionthaf obligation were written down in fourth quarB905; the credit was included in Discontinued
operations on our Consolidated Statements of Camepieve Loss. We sold Harrah’s Lake Charles intfoguarter 2006. Prior to the sale, the current an
long-term portions of this obligation were included.iabilities held for sale on our Consolidatedl&ce Sheets. The remaining long-term portiomisf t
liability is included in Deferred credits and othler our Consolidated Balance Sheets; the curretibpoof this obligation is included in Accrued expses

on our Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of theeBurities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant haduly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereuntduly authorized.

CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION

March 17, 2014 By: /sl GARY W. L OVEMAN
Gary W. Loveman

Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer, and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant in the capacities and on theddiaidicated.

Signature Title Date

/sl  JEFFREY BENJAMIN Director March 17, 2014
Jeffrey Benjamin

/s/ DAVID BONDERMAN Director March 17, 2014
David Bonderman

/sl JEFFREY T. HOUSENBOLD Director March 17, 2014
Jeffrey Housenbold

/s/ KELVIN DAVIS Director March 17, 2014
Kelvin Davis
/s/ FRED J. KLEISNER Director March 17, 2014

Fred J. Kleisner

/s/ GARY W. LOVEMAN Director, Chairman of the Board, March 17, 2014
Gary W. Loveman Chief Executive Officer and President
/s/ ERIC PRESS Director March 17, 2014
Eric Press
/sl MARC ROWAN Director March 17, 2014
Marc Rowan
/s/ DAVID SAMBUR Director March 17, 2014

David Sambur

/s/  LYNN C. SWANN Director March 17, 2014
Lynn C. Swann

/sl CHRISTOPHER J. WILLIAMS Director March 17, 2014
Christopher J. Williams

/s/ DONALD COLVIN Executive Vice President and Chief March 17, 2014
Donald Colvin Financial Officer




/s/ DIANE E. WILFONG Senior Vice President, Controller, and March 17, 2014

Diane E. Wilfong Chief Accounting Officer
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Exhibit 12

CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
COMPUTATION OF RATIOS
(Unaudited)

(In millions, except ratio amounts)

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges® 2013@ 2012® 2011©@ 2010 2009®@
Income/(loss) from continuing operations befori
income taxes $ (4,459.)) $ (2,258.7) $ (1,266.0) $ (1,348.)) $ 2,410.!
Add:
Fixed charges, excluding interest capitalizec 2,296.¢ 2,161.: 2,178." 2,035.( 1,929.:
Amortization of interest capitalized 8.C 8.5 8.€ 8.¢ 5.4
Losses from equity in non-consolidated
affiliates 22.7 17.t 7.6 ilg 2.2
Noncontrolling interests that have not incurred
fixed charges 10.z 7.5 2.C 0.2 2.7
Distributed income from equity investees — 1.C .G 1.7 2.2
Earnings/(losses) as defined $ (2,121) $ (63.0 $ 933.1 % 699.1 $ 4,352.:

Fixed charges:

Interest expense, net of interest capitalized $ 2,253.( % 2,100.0 $ 2,121 % 1,981.( $ 1,892.!

Interest capitalized 37.¢ 38.2 22.¢ 1.4 32.4
Interest included in rental expense 43.¢ 60.€ 57.C 54.C 36.€
Total fixed charges $ 2,334 $ 2,199.. $ 2,201t $ 2,036.. $ 1,961.!
Ratio of earnings to fixed chargés — — — — 2.2

(@)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

®

The full year results of 2013 include a $29.8 millipre-tax loss on early extinguishment of debf0$3.9 million in pretax charges for impairments, ¢
$104.4 million in pre-tax charges for write-dowrsserves, and project opening costs, net of re@ser

The full year results of 2012 include a $136.0 imillpre-tax net gain on early extinguishment oftd&h,074.2 million in préax charges for impairmen
and $99.7 million in pre-tax charges for write-d®yreserves, and project opening costs, net of/esiEs.

The full year results of 2011 include a $47.9 miilipre-tax gain on early extinguishment of debf.83nillion in pretax charges for impairments, ¢
$73.8 million in pre-tax charges for write-downsserves, and project opening costs, net of receseri

The full year results of 2010 include a $115.6 imnillpre-tax gain on early extinguishment of deli840 million in pretax charges for impairments, ¢
$149.7 million in pre-tax charges for write-dowrsserves, and project opening costs, net of re@ser

The full year results of 2009 include a $4,965.8iom pre-tax net gain on early extinguishment ebt $1,638 million in préax charges for impairmen
and $107.8 million in net pre-tax charges for wdtavns, reserves, and project opening costs, metcolveries.

For purposes of computing this ratio, “earningshsists of income before income taxes plus fixedrges (excluding capitalized interest), exclu
equity in undistributed earnings of less-than-50##ed investments. “Fixed chargeisitlude interest whether expensed or capitalizethrization o
debt expense, discount or premium related to irathtess, and such portion of rental expense thaleem to be representative of interest. As requiy
the rules that govern the computation of this rabmth earnings and fixed charges are adjustedendugpropriate to include the financial resultstfm
Company's non-consolidated majority owned subs&laFor the years ended December 31, 2@132, 2011, and 2010, our earnings were insuffidia
cover fixed charges by $4,456.4 million , $2,262iflion , $1,268.4 million , and $1,337.3 milliomgspectively.
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Exhibit 18.1
March 17, 2014

Caesars Entertainment Corporation
One Caesars Drive
Las Vegas, Nevada

Dear Sirs/Madams:

We have audited the consolidated financial statésnef Caesars Entertainment Corporation and subsdi as of December 31, 2013
2012, and for each of the three years in the perizded December 31, 2013, included in your Annwegdd®t on Form 10k to the Securitie
and Exchange Commission and have issued our répengon dated March 17, 2014vhich expressed an unqualified opinion and inet
explanatory paragraphs regarding (i) the Compmahighly leveraged condition, its significant casterest requirements, and its requireme
maintain compliance with certain debt covenantsliasussed in Notes 1 and 9 in the notes to coraelidfinancial statements and (ii)
Companys election to change its method of accounting tlodéefined benefit pension plan and change its @ngaodwill impairment testir
date.

The accounting changes are described in the noté® tconsolidated financial statements, includirdgscription in Note 1 of your adoptior
the change in the method of accounting for penaiinarial gains and losses from a delayed recognitiethod to the immediate recogni
method and a description in Note 2 of your adoptiaring the year ended December 31, 2013, of taegd in the date of the annual gooc
impairment test from September 30 to October lhunjudgment, each change is to an alternativewatoay principle that is preferable un
the circumstances.

Yours truly,

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

Las Vegas, Nevada
March 17, 2014



Exhibit 21

CAESARS ENTERTAINMENT CORPORATION
LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

As of March 13, 2014

Jurisdiction of

Name Incorporation

190 Flamingo, LLC Nevade
2115-2121 Ontario Building, LLC Ohio
250 Huron LLC! Ohio
3535 LV Corp. Nevade
AC Conference Holdco., LLC Delaware
AC Conference Newco., LLC Delaware
AJP Holdings, LLC Delaware
AJP Parent, LLC Delaware
Aster Insurance Ltd. Bermude
Atlantic City Country Club I, LLC New Jerse
Atlantic City Express Service, LLE New Jerse'
B | Gaming Corporation Nevade
Bally's Midwest Casino, Inc. Delaware
Bally's Park Place, Inc. New Jerse'
Baluma Cambio, S.A. Uruguay
Baluma Holdings S.A Bahama:
Baluma Ltda. Brazil
Baluma S.A* Uruguay
Benco, Inc. Nevade
Biloxi Hammond, LLC Delaware
Biloxi Village Walk Development, LLC Delaware
BL Development Corp. Minnesote
Boardwalk Ltd. Israel
Boardwalk Regency Corporation New Jerse
BPP Providence Acquisition Company, LLC Delaware
Brussels Casino S.A. Belgium
Burlington Street Services Limited England/Wale
CA Hospitality Holding Company, Ltd. British Virgin Islands
Caesars Air, LLC Delaware
Caesars Asia Limited Hong Koncg
Caesars Bahamas Investment Corporation Bahama:
Caesars Bahamas Management Corporation Bahama:
Caesars Canada Marketing Services Corporation Canad:
Caesars Casino Castilla La Mancha $.A Spain
Caesars Entertainment (U.K.) Ltd. United Kingdon
Caesars Entertainment Canada Holding, Inc. Nevade
Caesars Entertainment Finance Corp. Nevadz
Caesars Entertainment Golf, Inc. Nevade
Caesars Entertainment Operating Company, Inc. Delaware
Caesars Entertainment Retail, Inc. Nevade
Caesars Entertainment Windsor Limited Canad:
Caesars Escrow Corporation Delaware
Caesars Europe Development, LLC Delaware
Caesars Florida Acquisition Company, LLC Delaware






Name

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation

Caesars India Sponsor Company, LLC

Caesars Korea Holding Company, LLC

Caesars License Company, LLC

Caesars Marketing Services Corporation

Caesars Massachusetts Acquisition Company, LLC
Caesars Massachusetts Development Company, LLC
Caesars Massachusetts Investment Company, LLC
Caesars Massachusetts Management Company, LLC
Caesars Entertainment Resort Properties Finance, In
Caesars Entertainment Resort Properties Holdco, LLC
Caesars Entertainment Resort Properties, LLC
Caesars New Jersey, Inc.

Caesars Ohio Acquisition, LLC

Caesars Ohio Investment, LLC

Caesars Ontario Holding, Inc.

Caesars Operating Escrow LLC

Caesars Palace Corporation

Caesars Palace Realty Corporation

Caesars Palace Sports Promotions, Inc.

Caesars Riverboat Casino, LLC

Caesars Spain Holdings Limited

Caesars Tournament, LLC

Caesars Trex, Inc.

Caesars United Kingdom, Inc.

Caesars World International Corporation PTE, Ltd.
Caesars World International Far East Limited
Caesars World Marketing Corporation

Caesars World Merchandising, Inc.

Caesars World, Inc.

California Clearing Corporation

Casanova Club Limited

Casino Computer Programming, Inc.

CG Services, LLC

CH Management Company, Ltd.

Chester Downs and Marina LL'C

Chester Downs Finance Corp.

Chester Facility Holding Company, LLC

Christian County Land Acquisition Company, LLC
Cinderlane, Inc.

Consolidated Supplies, Services and Systems
Corby Leisure Retail Development Limited

Corner Investment Company, LLC

Corner Investment Holdings, LLC

Corner Investment Propco, LLC

Creator Capital Limited

Culembourg Metropole Casino (Pty) Limited

CZL Development Company, LLC

CZL Investment Company, LLC

CZL Management Company, LLC

Dagger Holdings Limited

DCH Exchange, LLC

Nevade
Delaware
Nevade
Nevadz
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
New Jerse
Delaware
Delaware
Canad:
Delaware
Delaware
Nevade
Nevade
Indiana
England/Wale
Delaware
Delaware
Nevade
Singaporte
Hong Konc
New Jerse
Nevadz
Florida
California
England/Wale
Indiana
Delaware
Hong Konc
Pennsylvanii
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Nevade
Nevadz
England/Wale
Nevade
Delaware
Delaware
Bermude
South Africe
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
England/Wale
Nevadz






Name

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation

DCH Lender, LLC

Des Plaines Development Limited Partnership
Desert Palace, Inc.

Durante Holdings, LLC

East Beach Development Corporation

Emerald Safari Resort (Pty) Limitéd

FHR Corporation

Flamingo CERP Manager, LLC

Flamingo Las Vegas Holding, LLC

Flamingo Las Vegas Operating Company, LLC
Flamingo-Laughlin, Inc.

GB Investor, LLC

GCA Acquisition Subsidiary, Inc.

GNOC, Corp.

Golden Nugget Club Limited

Grand Casinos of Biloxi, LLC

Grand Casinos of Mississippi, LLC Gulfport
Grand Casinos, Inc.

Grand Media Buying, Inc.

HAC CERP Manager, LLC

Harrah South Shore Corporation

Harrah's (Barbados) SRL

Harrah's Activity Limited

Harrah's Arizona Corporation

Harrah's Atlantic City Holding, Inc.

Harrah's Atlantic City Mezz 1, LLC

Harrah's Atlantic City Mezz 2, LLC

Harrah's Atlantic City Mezz 3, LLC

Harrah's Atlantic City Mezz 4, LLC

Harrah's Atlantic City Mezz 5, LLC

Harrah's Atlantic City Mezz 6, LLC

Harrah's Atlantic City Mezz 7, LLC

Harrah's Atlantic City Mezz 8, LLC

Harrah's Atlantic City Mezz 9, LLC

Harrah's Atlantic City Operating Company, LLC
Harrah's Atlantic City Propco, LLC

Harrah's BC, Inc.

Harrah's Bossier City Investment Company, LLC
Harrah's Bossier City Management Company, LLC
Harrah's Chester Downs Investment Company, LLC
Harrah's Chester Downs Management Company, LLC
Harrah's Entertainment Limited

Harrah's lllinois Corporation

Harrah's Interactive Investment Company
Harrah's International C.V

Harrah's International Holding Company, Inc.
Harrah's Investments, Inc.

Harrah's lowa Arena Management, LLC
Harrah's Las Vegas, LLC

Harrah's Las Vegas Holdco, LLC

Harrah's Laughlin, LLC

Nevade
Delaware
Nevade
Nevade
Mississippi
South Africe
Nevadz
Nevade
Nevade
Nevadz
Nevade
Delaware
Minnesote
New Jerse
England/Wale
Minnesote
Mississippi
Minnesote
Minnesote
New Jerse
California
Barbado:
England/Wale
Nevade
New Jerse
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
New Jerse
Delaware
Delaware
Louisiane
Nevade
Delaware
Nevadz
England/Wale
Nevadz
Nevadz
The Netherland
Delaware
Nevade
Delaware
Nevadz
Delaware
Nevadz






Name

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation

Harrah's Laughlin Holdco, LLC

Harrah's Management Company

Harrah's Maryland Heights Operating Company
Harrah's MH Project, LLC

Harrah's NC Casino Company, LLC

Harrah's New Orleans Management Company
Harrah's North Kansas City LLC

Harrah's Nova Scotia ULC

Harrah's Operating Company Memphis, LLC
Harrah's Pittsburgh Management Company
Harrah's Reno Holding Company, Inc.

Harrah's Shreveport Investment Company, LLC

Harrah's Shreveport Management Company, LLC
Harrah's Shreveport/Bossier City Holding CompanyCL
Harrah's Shreveport/Bossier City Investment Compah€
Harrah's Southwest Michigan Casino Corporation

Harrah's Travel, Inc.

Harrah's West Warwick Gaming Company, LLC
Harveys BR Management Company, Inc.
Harveys C.C. Management Company, Inc.
Harveys lowa Management Company, Inc.
Harveys Tahoe Management Company, Inc.
H-BAY, LLC

HBR Realty Company, Inc.

HCAL, LLC

HCR Services Company, Inc.

HEI Holding C.V.

HEI Holding Company One, Inc.

HEI Holding Company Two, Inc.

HET International 1 B.V.

HET International 2 B.V.

HHLV Management Company, LLC

HIE Holdings Topco, Inc.

HIE Holdings, Inc.

HLV CERP Manager, LLC

Hole in the Wall, LLC

Horseshoe Cincinnati Management, LLC
Horseshoe Cleveland Management, LLC
Horseshoe Entertainment

Horseshoe Gaming Holding, LLC
Horseshoe GP, LLC

Horseshoe Hammond, LLC

Horseshoe Ohio Development, LLC
Horseshoe Shreveport, L.L.C.

HTM Holding, Inc.

Inter Casino Management (Egypt) Limited
Jazz Casino Company, LLC

JCC Fulton Development, LLC

JCC Holding Company Il LLC

Koval Holdings Company, LLC

Koval Investment Company, LLC

Delaware
Nevadz
Nevade

Delaware

North Caroline
Nevade
Missouri
Nova Scoti:

Delaware
Nevadz
Nevade
Nevadz
Nevadz

Delaware

Delaware
Nevade
Nevadz

Delaware
Nevade
Nevadz
Nevade
Nevade
Nevadz
Nevade
Nevadz
Nevadz

The Netherland
Nevadz
Nevade
The Netherland
The Netherland
Nevade

Delaware

Delaware
Nevade
Nevadz

Delaware

Delaware

Louisiane

Delaware
Nevadz
Indiana

Delaware

Louisiane
Nevade

Isle of Man

Louisiane

Louisiane

Delaware

Delaware
Nevadz






Name

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation

LAD Hotel Partners, LLC

Las Vegas Golf Management, LLC
Las Vegas Resort Development, Inc.
Laughlin CERP Manager, LLC

LCI (Overseas) Investments Pty Ltd.
LClI plc

Lifeboat, Inc.

London Clubs (Europe) Limited
London Clubs (Overseas) Limited
London Clubs Brighton Limited
London Clubs Glasgow Limited
London Clubs Holdings Limited
London Clubs International Limited
London Clubs Leeds Limited
London Clubs Limited

London Clubs LSQ Limited

London Clubs Management Limited
London Clubs Manchester Limited
London Clubs Nottingham Limited
London Clubs Poker Room Limited
London Clubs South Africa Limited
London Clubs Southend Limited
London Clubs Trustee Limited

LVH Corporation

MP Flamingo, LLCY

Martial Development Corporation
NAL Ohio Holdings, LLC

Nevada Marketing, LLC

New Gaming Capital Partnership
Ocean Showboat, Inc.

Octavius Ling Holding Co., LLC
Parball Corporation

Paris CERP Manager, LLC

Paris Las Vegas Holding, LLC
Paris Las Vegas Operating Company, LLC
Park Place Finance, ULC

PHW Investments, LLC

PHW Las Vegas, LLC

PHW Manager, LLC

Playboy Club (London) Limited
Players Bluegrass Downs, Inc.
Players Development, Inc.

Players Holding, LLC

Players International, LLC

Players LC, LLC

Players Maryland Heights Nevada, LLC
Players Resources, Inc.

Players Riverboat II, LLC

Players Riverboat Management, LLC
Players Riverboat, LLC

Players Services, Inc.

Louisiane
Nevade
Nevade
Nevade

South Africe
England/Wale
Louisiane
England/Wale
England/Wale
England/Wale
Scotlanc
England/Wale
England/Wale
England/Wale
England/Wale
England/Wale
England/Wale
England/Wale
England/Wale
England/Wale
England/Wale
England/Wale
England/Wale
Nevade
Nevade

New Jerse

Michigan
Nevade
Nevade

New Jerse

Delaware
Nevade
Nevade
Nevade
Nevade

Nova Scoti:

Delaware
Nevade
Nevade

England/Wale

Kentucky
Nevade
Nevade
Nevade
Nevade
Nevade
Nevade

Louisiane
Nevade
Nevade

New Jerse






Name

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation

R Casino Limited

R Club (London) Limited

Reno Crossroads, LLC

Reno Projects, Inc.

RGFD, LLC*

Rio CERP Manager, LLC

Rio Development Company, Inc.

Rio Properties, LLC

Rio Properties Holdco, LLC

Rio Property Holding, LLC

Robinson Property Group Corp.

ROC Finance 1 Corp.

ROC Finance, LLC

Rock Gaming Cleveland Scranton Peninsula, ELC
Rock Ohio Caesars Chase, LLC

Rock Ohio Caesars Cincinnati, LL)C

Rock Ohio Caesars Cleveland, LEC

Rock Ohio Caesars Gateway, LEC

Rock Ohio Caesars Hotel, LL'C

Rock Ohio Caesars, LLE

Rock Parent, LLC

Roman Entertainment Corporation of Indiana
Roman Holding Corporation of Indiana
Romulus Risk and Insurance Company, Inc.
Shanghai Golf Club, Ltd.

Shanghai Realestate, Ltd.

Showboat Atlantic City Mezz 1, LLC
Showboat Atlantic City Mezz 2, LLC
Showboat Atlantic City Mezz 3, LLC
Showboat Atlantic City Mezz 4, LLC
Showboat Atlantic City Mezz 5, LLC
Showboat Atlantic City Mezz 6, LLC
Showboat Atlantic City Mezz 7, LLC
Showboat Atlantic City Mezz 8, LLC
Showboat Atlantic City Mezz 9, LLC
Showboat Atlantic City Operating Company, LLC
Showboat Atlantic City Propco, LLC
Showboat Holding, Inc.

Showboat Nova Scotia ULC

Southern lllinois Riverboat/Casino Cruises, Inc.
Sterling Suffolk Racecourse, LLE

Tahoe Garage Propco, LLC

Tele/Info, Inc.

The Caesars Foundation

The Sportsman Club Limited

Thistledown Management, LLC
Thistledown Racetrack, LLC

TRB Flamingo, LLC

Trigger Real Estate Corporation

Tunica Roadhouse Corporation

England/Wale
England/Wale
Delaware
Nevade
Michigan
Nevade
Nevadz
Nevadz
Delaware
Nevadz
Mississippi
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Indiana
Indiana
Nevade
Macau
Macau
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
New Jerse
Delaware
Nevadz
Nova Scotic
Illinois
Massachuset
Delaware
Nevade
Nevadz
England/Wale
Delaware
Delaware
Nevade
Nevadz
Delaware






Name

Jurisdiction of
Incorporation

Turfway Park, LLC*®

Twain Avenue, Inc.

Village Walk Construction, LLC
Windsor Casino Limited
Winnick Holdings, LLC
Winnick Parent, LLC

© 00 N O O~ WOWN B

N o e =
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Subsidiary under Rock Ohio Caesars, LLC

33.33% Boardwalk Regency Corporation; 33.33% Héasratantic City Holding, Inc.; 33.33% non-affiliat
11.46% B | Gaming Corporation; 83.77% Harrah'srim&onal Holding Company, Inc.; 4.77% third pastareholders
60% Harrah's Entertainment Limited.; 40% non-affei

99.5% Harrah's Chester Downs Investment Compang, L0.5% third party shareholders

7.5% Harrah's Interactive Investment Company; 92s% affiliate

80% Harrah's lllinois Corporation ; 20% non-affiéa

70% LCI (Overseas) Investments Pty Ltd.; 30% nditiate

49% Harrah's Bossier City Investment Company, LR non-affiliate

50% Caesars Entertainment Corporation 50% norizaéfil

20% Caesars Ohio Investment Company, LLC; 80% Hifiliete

4.2% Caesars Massachusetts Investment Company,93.8% non-affiliate

90% Rock Ohio Caesars, LLC; 10% non-affiliate

55% Baluma Holdings S.A.; 45% non-affiliate

Delaware
Nevade
Delaware
Canad:
Delaware
Delaware



Exhibit 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

W e consent to the incorporation by reference igifetion Statement No. 333-182385 on Form S-8 Redistration Statement Nos. 333
180115 and 333-180116 on Form S-3 of Caesars Bimerént Corporation of our reports dated March201,4, relating to the consolidat
financial statements and consolidated financialestant schedules of Caesars Entertainment Corporatthich expresses an unquali
opinion on those consolidated financial statemantsconsolidated financial statement schedulesranhades explanatory paragraphs regar

(i) the Companys highly leveraged condition, its significant casterest requirements, and its requirement to raairdcompliance with certa
debt covenants as discussed in Notes 1 and 9 indtes to consolidated financial statements andh@ Companys election to change
method of accounting for its defined benefit pengidan and to change its annual goodwill impairntesting date; and the effectivenes
Caesars Entertainment Corporation's internal cbrdver financial reporting, appearing in the AnniRéport on Form 16 of Caesar
Entertainment Corporation for the year ended Deeergh, 2013.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Las Vegas, Nevada
March 17, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

I, Gary W. Loveman, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FormKLOf Caesars Entertainment Corporat

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@ynuntrue statement of a material fact or omg#téde a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,adimer financial information included in this refdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officers ande agsponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registrantdalsre controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the regissanternal control over financial reporting tleaturred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officers and Véaisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiortesnal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thataumnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknedssehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;
and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a signifiodamin the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 17, 2014
By: / s/ GARY W. L OVEMAN
Gary W. Loveman
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, andPresident




Exhibit 31.2

I, Donald A. Colvin certify that:

1.
2.

5.

Date:

I have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Caesars Entertainment Corporat

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary tc
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the

period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemems other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officers drade responsible for establishing and maintainiisglosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a)

b)

d)

designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifige prepared,;

designed such internal control over finanaggilarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atmuoce with generally accepted accounting princjples

evaluated the effectiveness of the registraligdosure controls and procedures and presentidsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on

such evaluation; and

disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regis's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahneport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, the registrant's internal control over finahceporting; and

The registrant's other certifying officers drthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatanmnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@ispersons performing the equivalent

functions):

a)

b)

all significant deficiencies and material weaknessehe design or operation of internal contradiofinancial reporting whic
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize ambrt financial information;

and

any fraud, whether or not material, that involveenaggement or other employees who have a significémin the registrant
internal control over financial reporting.

March 17, 2014

By: / s/ DONALD A. COLVIN
Donald A. Colvin
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as created by Segiérof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersi officer of Caesars Entertainment
Corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies, twls officer's knowledge, that:

() the accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-Kh&f Company for the year ended December 31, 20&3'Report”) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a$ection 15(d), as applicable, of the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934, as amended; and

(il the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of operations of
the Company.

Dated: March 17, 2014

/' s/ GARY W. L OVEMAN
Gary W. Loveman
Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer, andPresident

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pl® accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.€35D, and is not being filed for purposes
of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of4,3% amended, and is not to be incorporated leyeete into any filing of the Company,
whether made before or after the date hereof, déggs of any general incorporation language in $iliog.



Exhibit 32.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as created by Segiérof the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersi officer of Caesars Entertainment
Corporation (the “Company”), hereby certifies, twls officer's knowledge, that:

() the accompanying Annual Report on Form 10-Kh&f Company for the year ended December 31, 20&3'Report”) fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a$ection 15(d), as applicable, of the SecuritieshBrge Act of 1934, as amended; and

(il the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of operations of
the Company.

Dated: March 17, 2014

/ s/ DONALD A. COLVIN
Donald A. Colvin
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pl® accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.€35D, and is not being filed for purposes
of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of43% amended, and is not to be incorporated leyene€e into any filing of the Company,
whether made before or after the date hereof, déggs of any general incorporation language in $iliok.



General

Exhibit 99.1

GAMING REGULATORY OVERVIEW

The ownership and operation of casino entertainrfeanilities are subject to pervasive regulation emithe laws, rules and regulation:

each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. Gagniaws are based upon declarations of public paliesigned to ensure that gamin
conducted honestly, competitively and free of cniatiand corruptive elements. Since the continuesvtr and success of gaming is depen
upon public confidence, gaming laws protect gandagsumers and the viability and integrity of thengiag industry, including prevention
cheating and fraudulent practices. Gaming laws aisy be designed to protect and maximize statdamad revenues derived through taxa
and licensing fees imposed on gaming industry @pgnts and enhance economic development and foufis accomplish these public pol
goals, gaming laws establish procedures to ensateparticipants in the gaming industry meet carstandards of character and fitnes:
suitability. In addition, gaming laws require gaimdustry participants to:

Establish and maintain responsible accounting jmestnd procedure

Maintain effective controls over their financialgtices, including establishment of minimum progeduor internal fiscal affairs a
the safeguarding of assets and revenues;

Maintain systems for reliable record keep
File periodic reports with gaming regulators;

Maintain strict compliance with various laws, regfidns and required minimum internal cont
pertaining to gaming.

Typically, regulatory environments in the jurisdicts in which we operate are established by stamnteare administered by a regula

agency or agencies with interpretive authority wehkpect to gaming laws and regulations and braamtedion to regulate the affairs of own
managers, and persons/entities with financial @ssrin gaming operations. Among other things, ggrauthorities in the various jurisdictic
in which we operate:

Adopt rules and regulations under the implemengiadutes
Make appropriate investigations to determine if¢hlgas been any violation of laws or regulati
Enforce gaming laws and impose disciplinary samstifor violations, including fines and penalt

Review the character and fitness of participantsgaming operations and make determinations regartheir suitability o
qualification for licensure;

Grant licenses for participation in gaming openasi
Collect and review reports and information subrdithy participants in gaming operatic

Review and approve transactions, such as atigaisior change-ofontrol transactions of gaming industry particigargecuritie
offerings and debt transactions engaged in by padicipants; and

Establish and collect fees and/or ta




Licensing and Suitability Determination

Gaming laws require us, each of our subsidiarigmeed in gaming operations, certain of our direstofficers and employees, anc
some cases, our stockholders and holders of ourséehrities, to obtain licenses or findings otalility from gaming authorities. Licenses
findings of suitability typically require a detemnaition that the applicant qualifies or is suital@d&ming authorities have very broad discre
in determining whether an applicant qualifies farehsing or should be deemed suitable. Subjectettain administrative proceedi
requirements, the gaming regulators have the atjhtar deny any application or limit, condition,stect, revoke or suspend any licer
registration, finding of suitability or approvalr fine any person licensed, registered or foundable or approved, for any cause dee
reasonable by the gaming authorities. Criteria usedetermining whether to grant a license or figdf suitability, while varying betwe
jurisdictions, generally include consideration ators such a:

* The financial stability, integrity and responsityiliof the applicant, including whether the openatis adequately capitalized in
jurisdiction and exhibits the ability to maintaidemjuate insurance leve

» The quality of the applicant's casino facilit
* The amount of revenue to be derived by the appkcainisdiction through operation of the applicargaming facility
* The applicant's practices with respect to mindrniting and training; ar

» The effect on competition and general impact onctiramunity

In evaluating individual applicants, gaming autties consider the individual's reputation for gabdracter and criminal and financial hist
and the character of those with whom the individasslociates.

Many jurisdictions limit the number of licenses igted to operate gaming facilities within the jurtdthn, and some jurisdictions limit t
number of licenses granted to any one gaming operabr example, in Indiana, state law allows usrity hold two gaming licenses. Licen
under gaming laws are generally not transferablessnthe transfer is approved by the requisite latgy agency. Licenses in many of
jurisdictions in which we conduct gaming operatians granted for limited durations and require veaddrom time to time. In lowa, our abili
to continue our casino operations is subject tef@rendum every eight years or at any time upoitiqgredf the voters in the county in which
operate; the most recent referendum occurred i9.20lr New Orleans casino operates under a contiiitthe Louisiana gaming authorit
which extends until 2018, with a teear renewal period. There can be no assurancetiyabf our licenses or any of the above menti
contracts will be renewed, or with respect to cam@g operations in lowa, that continued gamingvigtwill be approved in any referendum.

Most jurisdictions have statutory or regulatory\psions that govern the required action that mestdken in the event that a licens
revoked or not renewed. For example, under Indiawa a trustee approved by gaming authorities asBume complete operational contrc
our riverboat in the event our license is revokedat renewed, and will be authorized to take astjoa necessary to sell the property if we
unable to find a suitable buyer within 180 days.

In addition to us and our direct and indirect sdiasies engaged in gaming operations, gaming aitit®may investigate any individt
or entity having a material relationship to, or eral! involvement with, any of these entities taedmine whether such individual is suitabli
should be licensed as a business associate of mgditensee. Certain jurisdictions require thay amange in our directors or office
including the directors or officers of our subsi@da, must be approved by the requisite regulasmmgncy. Our officers, directors and cer
key employees must also file applications withdghening authorities and may be required to be lieéngualified or be found suitable in mi
jurisdictions. Gaming authorities may deny an aggtion for licensing for any cause which they deeasonable. Qualification and suitabi
determinations require submission of detailed pwbka@and financial information followed by a thordugnvestigation. The burden
demonstrating suitability is on the applicant, whast pay all the costs of the investigation. Charigdicensed positions must be reporte
gaming authorities and in addition to their authyotb deny an application for licensure, qualifioat or a finding of suitability, gamir
authorities have jurisdiction to disapprove of armtpe in a corporate position.

If gaming authorities were to find that an officditector or key employee fails to qualify or issuitable for licensing or unsuitable
continue having a relationship with us, we wouldéi® sever all relationships with such person. Inittatlll gaming authorities may require
to terminate the employment of any person who efus file appropriate applications.




Moreover, in many jurisdictions, any of our stockleys or holders of our debt securities may be ireduto file an application, |
investigated, and qualify or have his, her or igability determined. For example, under Nevadenigg laws, each person who acqui
directly or indirectly, beneficial ownership of ampting security, or beneficial or record ownersbipany nonvoting security or any de
security in a public corporation which is registereith the Nevada Gaming Commission (the “Commisyiosuch as Caesars Entertainn
Corporation, may be required to be found suitabiled Commission has reason to believe that hiseoacquisition of that ownership, or his
her continued ownership in general, would be inistest with the declared public policy of Nevadathe sole discretion of the Commiss
Any person required by the Commission to be foumithble shall apply for a finding of suitability thin 30 days after the Commissic
request that he or she should do so and, togetitiethig or her application for suitability, deposiith the Nevada Gaming Control Board |
“Board”) a sum of money which, in the sole discretion of Beoard, will be adequate to pay the anticipatedscasd charges incurred in
investigation and processing of that applicationdaitability, and deposit such additional sumsgsrequired by the Board to pay final ¢
and charges.

Furthermore, any person required by a gaming aifyhtorbe found suitable, who is found unsuitabyetoe gaming authority, shall not
able to hold directly or indirectly the benefic@lknership of any voting security or the beneficatecord ownership of any nonvoting sect
or any debt security of any public corporation whis registered with the gaming authority, suclCassars Entertainment Corporation, be
the time prescribed by the gaming authority. A afidn of the foregoing may constitute a criminaleate. A finding of unsuitability by
particular gaming authority impacts that persobiitg to associate or affiliate with gaming liceses in that particular jurisdiction and cc
impact the person's ability to associate or af@liaith gaming licensees in other jurisdictions.

Many jurisdictions also require any person who @egubeneficial ownership of more than a certairc@atage of our voting securit
and, in some jurisdictions, our nmoting securities, typically 5%, to report the aisifion to gaming authorities, and gaming authesitma
require such holders to apply for qualificationaofinding of suitability. Most gaming authoritidspwever, allow an “institutional investotd
apply for a waiver that allows the “institutionalviestor’to acquire, in most cases, up to 15% of our vosiagurities without applying f
qualification or a finding of suitability. An “ingtitional investor”is generally defined as an investor acquiring aoldihg voting securities
the ordinary course of business as an institutionadstor, and not for the purpose of causing,afliyeor indirectly, the election of a majority
the members of our board of directors, any changmiir corporate charter, bylaws, management, gslior operations, or those of any of
gaming affiliates, or the taking of any other astiwhich gaming authorities find to be inconsisteiith holding our voting securities 1
investment purposes only. An application for a waigs an institutional investor requires the subiois of detailed information about
company and its regulatory filings, the name ofheperson that beneficially owns more than 5% ofitiséitutional investor's voting securit
or other equivalent and a certification made urodgh or penalty for perjury, that the voting setiesiwere acquired and are held for invest
purposes only. Even if a waiver is granted, anititghnal investor generally may not take any attinconsistent with its status when
waiver was granted without once again becomingesuilip the foregoing reporting and application géions. A change in the investm
intent of an institutional investor must be repdrte certain regulatory authorities immediatelyenfts decision.

Notwithstanding, each person who acquires diregtlyndirectly, beneficial ownership of any votingcsirity, or beneficial or reca
ownership of any nonvoting security or any debusiég in our company may be required to be founitasle if a gaming authority has rea
to believe that such person's acquisition of tatership would otherwise be inconsistent with theldred policy of the jurisdiction.

Generally, any person who fails or refuses to afgiya finding of suitability or a license withihe prescribed period after being adv
it is required by gaming authorities may be deraditense or found unsuitable, as applicable. Hmesrestrictions may also apply to a re:
owner if the record owner, after request, failsdentify the beneficial owner. Any person found witeble or denied a license and who hc
directly or indirectly, any beneficial ownership ofir securities beyond such period of time as mayiescribed by the applicable gan
authorities may be guilty of a criminal offenserthermore, we may be subject to disciplinary actfpafter we receive notice that a persc
unsuitable to be a stockholder or to have any a#iationship with us or any of our subsidiaries; w

* pay that person any dividend or interest upon ating securitie:

» allow that person to exercise, directly or indihgcany voting right conferred through securitiedchby that perso
e pay remuneration in any form to that person fovises rendered or otherwise;

» fail to pursue all lawful efforts to require suchswitable person to relinquish his voting secus

* including, if necessary, the immediate purchassaad voting securities for cash at fair market @




Although many jurisdictions generally do not reguihe individual holders of debt securities suclmates to be investigated and fo
suitable, gaming authorities may neverthelessrrata discretion to do so for any reason, including not limited to, a default, or where
holder of the debt instruments exercises a matiflaience over the gaming operations of the entitguestion. Any holder of debt securi
required to apply for a finding of suitability otherwise qualify must generally pay all investigatfiees and costs of the gaming authori
connection with such an investigation. If the gagrathority determines that a person is unsuitabtavn a debt security, we may be subje
disciplinary action, including the loss of our apyals, if without the prior approval of the gamiagthority, we:

* pay to the unsuitable person any dividend, intavesiny distribution whatsoev
e recognize any voting right by the unsuitable pelisoconnection with those securiti
* pay the unsuitable person remuneration in any faor

* make any payment to the unsuitable person by wayinfipal, redemption, conversion, exchange, tigtion or similar transactic

Certain jurisdictions impose similar restrictiomsdonnection with debt securities and retain thdtrio require holders of debt securitie
apply for a license or otherwise be found suitddyié¢he gaming authority.

Under New Jersey gaming laws, if a holder of oustde equity securities is required to qualify, tm@lder may be required to file
application for qualification or divest itself dig securities. If the holder files an application dualification, it must place the securitiesrinsi
with an approved trustee. If the gaming regulatarshorities approve interim authorization, and wltile application for plenary qualificatior
pending, such holder may, through the approvedaeygontinue to exercise all rights incident te tlwnership of the securities. If the gan
regulatory authorities deny interim authorizatitive trust shall become operative and the trustak Isiive the authority to exercise all the ri
incident to ownership, including the authority tisgbse of the securities and the security holdatl $tave no right to participate in cas
earnings and may only receive a return on its itnwent in an amount not to exceed the actual coteoinvestment (as defined by New Je
gaming laws). If the security holder obtains interauthorization but the gaming authorities latexdfreasonable cause to believe tha
security holder may be found unqualified, the tslstll become operative and the trustee shall trevauthority to exercise all rights incid
to ownership pending a determination on such h@dgralifications. However, during the period tleelgities remain in trust, the secu
holder may petition the New Jersey gaming auttexito direct the trustee to dispose of the trugpenty and distribute proceeds of the tru
the security holder in an amount not to exceeddiver of the actual cost of the investment or thtug of the securities on the date the
became operative. If the security holder is ultehafound unqualified, the trustee is requiredet the securities and to distribute the proc
of the sale to the applicant in an amount not ediceethe lower of the actual cost of the investnarthe value of the securities on the datt
trust became operative and to distribute the reimgiproceeds to the state. If the security holddound qualified, the trust agreement wil
terminated.

Additionally, following the Reclassification, thee@ificates of Incorporation of CEC and CEOC comtpiovisions establishing the ri
to redeem the securities of disqualified holderseifessary to avoid any regulatory sanctions,dagt the loss or to secure the reinstateme
any license or franchise, or if such holder is dateed by any gaming regulatory agency to be uablgt has an application for a licens
permit denied or rejected, or has a previouslyddslicense or permit rescinded, suspended, revokeabt renewed. The Certificates
Incorporation also contain provisions defining tedemption price and the rights of a disqualifiedwsity holder. In the event a security ho
is disqualified, the New Jersey gaming authoriies empowered to propose any necessary actiorotecpithe public interest, including
suspension or revocation of the licenses for tlsnoa we own in New Jersey.

Many jurisdictions also require that manufacturansl distributors of gaming equipment and supplarsertain goods and services
gaming industry participants be licensed and regus to purchase and lease gaming equipment, eapgtid services only from licen:
suppliers.

Violations of Gaming Laws

If we or our subsidiaries violate applicable gamlags, our gaming licenses could be limited, cdodid, suspended or revoked
gaming authorities, and we and any other persovsiad could be subject to substantial fines. Fentla supervisor or conservator cat
appointed by gaming authorities to operate our ggmroperties, or in some jurisdictions, take tideour gaming assets in the jurisdiction,
under certain circumstances, earnings generatetigdsuch appointment could be forfeited to the mple jurisdictions. Furthermo
violations of laws in one jurisdiction could residtdisciplinary action in other jurisdictions. Asresult, violations by us of applicable gan
laws could have a material adverse effect on manitial condition, prospects and results of openati




Reporting and Recordkeeping Requireme!

We are required periodically to submit detailedafinial and operating reports and furnish any othrmation about us and ¢
subsidiaries which gaming authorities may requieder federal law, we are required to record anoirsudetailed reports of currer
transactions involving greater than $10,000 ataasinos and Suspicious Activity Reports (“SARG$'the facts presented so warrant. Si
jurisdictions require us to maintain a log thatorels aggregate cash transactions in the amourg,008 or more. We are required to mainte
current stock ledger which may be examined by ggraithorities at any time. We may also be requioedisclose to gaming authorities uj
request the identities of the holders of our debbtber securities. If any securities are heldrirstt by an agent or by a nominee, the re
holder may be required to disclose the identityhefbeneficial owner to gaming authorities. Failirenake such disclosure may be ground
finding the record holder unsuitable. In Indiana are required to submit a quarterly report to gansiuthorities disclosing the identity of
persons holding interests of 1% or greater in arbwat licensee or holding company. Gaming auilesrihay also require certificates for
stock to bear a legend indicating that the seewriiire subject to specified gaming laws. In ceifjaiisdictions, gaming authorities have
power to impose additional restrictions on the bodbf our securities at any time.

Review and Approval of Transactiot

Substantially all material loans, leases, saleseofirities and similar financing transactions byand our subsidiaries must be reporte
or approved by, gaming authorities. Neither weamoy of our subsidiaries may make a public offedfigecurities without the prior approva
certain gaming authorities if the securities or pheceeds therefrom are intended to be used tdroghsacquire or finance gaming facilities
such jurisdictions, or to retire or extend obligas incurred for such purposes. Such approvalyéngy does not constitute a recommendatic
approval of the investment merits of the securitiabject to the offering. Changes in control thtougerger, consolidation, stock or a
acquisitions, management or consulting agreementstherwise, require prior approval of gaming awitiies in certain jurisdictions. Entiti
seeking to acquire control of us or one of our &lilses must satisfy gaming authorities with regpe a variety of stringent standards pric
assuming control. Gaming authorities may also megeontrolling stockholders, officers, directorsdaather persons having a mate
relationship or involvement with the entity propasito acquire control, to be investigated and keehas part of the approval process rel
to the transaction.

Certain gaming laws and regulations in jurisdicsiame operate in establish that certain corporadgisitions opposed by managem
repurchases of voting securities and corporatendeféactics affecting us or our subsidiaries mainjogious to stable and productive corpo
gaming, and as a result, prior approval may beiredibefore we may make exceptional repurchasestiig securities (such as repurchi
which treat holders differently) above the currerarket price and before a corporate acquisitiorospgd by management can be consumm
In certain jurisdictions, the gaming authoritiescatequire prior approval of a plan of recapitalma proposed by the board of directors
publicly traded corporation which is registered hwihe gaming authority in response to a tenderraff@de directly to the registel
corporation's stockholders for the purpose of amgicontrol of the registered corporation.

Because licenses under gaming laws are generdilyrartsferable, our ability to grant a securityenetst in any of our gaming assel
limited and may be subject to receipt of prior awat from gaming authorities. A pledge of the stofla subsidiary holding a gaming lice
and the foreclosure of such a pledge may be ingféeqvithout the prior approval of gaming authadti Moreover, our subsidiaries holc
gaming licenses may be unable to guarantee a se@siied by an affiliated or parent company punst@ a public offering, or pledge th
assets to secure payment of the obligations evedkby the security issued by an affiliated or ppempany, without the prior approval
gaming authorities. We are subject to extensiverm@pproval requirements relating to certain boings and security interests with respe:
our New Orleans casino. If the holder of a securitgrest wishes operation of the casino to cometiduring and after the filing of a suit
enforce the security interest, it may request thpomtment of a receiver approved by Louisiana ganauthorities, and under Louisi:
gaming laws, the receiver is considered to haveualrights and obligations under our contract Witluisiana gaming authorities.

Some jurisdictions also require us to file a repaith the gaming authority within a prescribed pdrif time following certain financi
transactions and the offering of debt securitiegr&\they to deem it appropriate, certain gamindnaittes reserve the right to order s
transactions rescinded.

Certain jurisdictions require the implementationaftompliance review and reporting system createdttfe purpose of monitoril
activities related to our continuing qualificatiofhese plans require periodic reports to senioragament of our company and to the regulz
authorities.

Certain jurisdictions require that an independerditacommittee oversee the functions of surveillaaod internal audit department
our casinos.




License Fees and Gaming Tax

We pay substantial license fees and taxes in mangdjctions, including the counties, cities, andy aelated agencies, boat
commissions, or authorities, in which our operatiane conducted, in connection with our casino ggroperations, computed in various w
depending on the type of gaming or activity invalv®epending upon the particular fee or tax invdlMéiese fees and taxes are payable
daily, monthly, quarterly or annually. License feesl taxes are based upon such factors as:

» apercentage of the gross revenues rece

« the number of gaming devices and table games @uk
« franchise fees for riverboat casinos operatingentamn waterways; ai

» admission fees for customers boarding our riverbaainos

In many jurisdictions, gaming tax rates are graeldatith the effect of increasing as gross reveme®ase. Furthermore, tax rates
subject to change, sometimes with little noticed are have recently experienced tax rate increasesnumber of jurisdictions in which
operate. A live entertainment tax is also paidartain jurisdictions by casino operations wheregainment is furnished in connection with
selling or serving of food or refreshments or thltirsg of merchandise.

Operational Requirements

In many jurisdictions, we are subject to certaiquieements and restrictions on how we must conductgaming operations. In me
jurisdictions, we are required to give preferenzdotal suppliers and include mino-owned and womepwned businesses in construc
projects to the maximum extent practicable.

Some jurisdictions also require us to give prefeesnto minority-owned and womenvned businesses in the procurement of good
services. Some of our operations are subject taatsns on the number of gaming positions we rhaye, the minimum or maximum wag
allowed by our customers, and the maximum lossstoouer may incur within specified time periods.

Our landbased casino in New Orleans operates under a cagearating contract (the "COC") with the State ofilsiana Gaming Contt
Board, assuming the regulatory authority, contrm purisdiction of the Louisiana Economic Developr€ontrol Board pursuant to Louisiz
Revised Statute 27:15.

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the COC,Maw Orleans casino is subject to not only manyhaf foregoing operatior
requirements, but also to restrictions on our faad beverage operations, including with respethéosize, location and marketing of ea
establishments at our casino entertainment fachitythermore, with respect to the hotel tower,ame subject to restrictions on the numbe
rooms within the hotel, the amount of meeting spaitiein the hotel and how we may market and adserthe rates we charge for rooms.

In Mississippi, we are required to include adequaeking facilities (generally 500 spaces or manelose proximity to our existir
casino complexes, as well as infrastructure féedjtsuch as hotels, that will amount to at led8t 2f the casino cost. The infrastruc
requirement was increased to 100% of the casinofepany new casinos in Mississippi.

To comply with requirements of lowa gaming laws, heve entered into management agreements with Weg&t Racing Association
non-profit organization. The lowa Racing and Gaming @Gussion has issued a joint license to lowa WestirRpAssociation and Harve
lowa Management Company, Inc. for the operatiothefHarrah's Council Bluffs Casino, which was anuggion gambling boat but is ni
land based, and issued a license for the HorseShaacil Bluffs Casino at Bluffs Run Greyhound Parkich is a full service, land bas
casino and a greyhound racetrack. The company @sdvath facilities pursuant to the managementesgeats.

The United Kingdom Gambling Act of 2005 which be&aeffective in September 2007, replaced the GarAirtgl 968, and removt
most of the restrictions on adverting. Though t®% Act controls marketing, advertising gamblingnisy controlled by the Advertisil
Standards Authority through a series of codes attme. Known as the CAP codes, the codes offatagugie on the content of print, televis
and radio advertisements.

In Indiana, we are required to submit a quarteglyort to gaming authorities disclosing the identifyall persons holding interests
1% or greater in a riverboat licensee or holdingypany.” Under an omnibus update to its rules that the |@@pted late last year, publi
traded companies are now exempt from this requinénfdne amendment to 68 IAC 1-31-1 went into effacarly January 2013




Indian Gaming

The terms and conditions of management contraatsttam operation of casinos and all gaming on Indéad in the United States
subject to the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act of 198Be “IGRA"), which is administered by the National Indian Gam@gmmission, (th
“NIGC"), the gaming regulatory agencies of tribal governmeand Class Il gaming compacts between the tfimeghich we manage casir
and the states in which those casinos are locBBRIA established three separate classes of tridmalmmg-Class I, Class Il and Class lll. Cla
includes all traditional or social games solely foizes of minimal value played by a tribe in coctimn with celebrations or ceremonies. C
Il gaming includes games such as bingo, pulltabagcpboards, instant bingo and nosked card games (those that are not played aghé
house) such as poker. Class Ill gaming includemeoatyle gaming such as banked table games like ldekkgraps and roulette, and gan
machines such as slots and video poker, as wédit@sies and pari-mutuel wagering. Harrah's @kin Phoenix and Rincon provide Clas
gaming and, as limited by the tribstite compact, Class Ill gaming. The Eastern Bahdrdkee Casino currently provides only Clas
gaming.

IGRA prohibits all forms of Class Ill gaming unlefise tribe has entered into a written agreementampact with the state tt
specifically authorizes the types of Class Ill gagthe tribe may offer. These compacts may addessng other things, the manner
extent to which each state will conduct backgroimastigations and certify the suitability of theanager, its officers, directors, and
employees to conduct gaming on tribal lands. Weeh@aaceived our permanent certification from thezéna Department of Gaming
management contractor for the Ak-Chin Indian Comityisicasino, a Tribabtate Compact Gaming Resource Supplier Findinguatiility
from the California Gambling Control Commissioncionnection with management of the Rincon San Laidgend of Indians casino, and h
been licensed by the relevant tribal gaming autiesrito manage the A&hin Indian Community's casino, the Eastern BandChéroke
Indians' casino and the Rincon San Luiseno Barnddi&ns' casino, respectively.

IGRA requires NIGC approval of management contrimt€lass Il and Class 11l gaming as well as te@ew of all agreements collate
to the management contracts. Management contrdmthare not so approved are void. The NIGC will approve a management contract
director or a 10% stockholder of the managementpamy:

» is an elected member of the Native American trmlernment which owns the facility purchasing @sieg the game
» has been or is convicted of a felony gaming offe
* has knowingly and willfully provided materially & information to the NIGC or the tril

» has refused to respond to questions from the NI

* is a person whose prior history, reputation aneéaations pose a threat to the public interestooeftective gaming regulation a
control, or create or enhance the chance of udeitetivities in gaming or the business and fir@rarrangements incidental thereto.

In addition, the NIGC will not approve a managemegrtract if the management company or any ofgengs have attempted to unc
influence any decision or process of tribal govezntirelating to gaming, or if the management corpdaas materially breached the term
the management contract or the tribe's gaming antie, or a trustee, exercising due diligence, wootdapprove such management contra
management contract can be approved only afteXtB€ determines that the contract provides, amdhgrahings, for:

» adequate accounting procedures and verifiable ¢iahreports, which must be furnished to the ti

» tribal access to the daily operations of the ganainigrprise, including the right to verify dailyogs revenues and incor

* minimum guaranteed payments to the tribe, whichtrasge priority over the retirement of developmandl construction cos

» aceiling on the repayment of such developmentcamdtruction costs; a

e a contract term not exceeding five years and a gemnant fee not exceeding 30% of net revenues (@sntieed by the NIGC
provided that the NIGC may approve up to a sevar y@&m and a management fee not to exceed 40%takmenues if NIGC

satisfied that the capital investment required, iedincome projections for the particular gamietj\ity require the larger fee a
longer term.




Management contracts can be modified or cancelesbpnt to an enforcement action taken by the NI@§e8 on a violation of the I
or an issue affecting suitability.

Indian tribes are sovereign with their own governtaksystems, which have primary regulatory autha@ver gaming on land within t
tribes' jurisdiction. Therefore, persons engageghiming activities, including the company, are eabjo the provisions of tribal ordinances
regulations on gaming. These ordinances are sutpemview by the NIGC under certain standardshdisteed by IGRA. The NIGC mi
determine that some or all of the ordinances regainendment, and that additional requirementsyding additional licensing requiremel
may be imposed on us. The possession of validdesifrom the AKZhin Indian Community, the Eastern Band of Cherokeltans and tt
Rincon San Luiseno Band of Indians, are ongoinglitimms of our agreements with these tribes.

Riverboat Casino:

In addition to all other regulations applicablghie gaming industry generally, some of our rivethm@sinos are also subject to regulat
applicable to vessels operating on navigable watgswincluding regulations of the U.S. Coast Guditiese requirements set limits on
operation of the vessel, mandate that it must keraded by a minimum complement of licensed perdprasablish periodic inspectiol
including the physical inspection of the outsiddl,land establish other mechanical and operatiarak.

Racetracks

We own a full service casino which includes a &rhlay of table games in conjunction with a greyhbracetrack in Council Bluffs, low
The casino operation and the greyhound racing tiparare regulated by the same state agency ansbaject to the same regulatory struc
established for all lowa gaming facilities. A siagbperating license covers both parts of the ojperah Council Bluffs. We also own s
machines at a thoroughbred racetrack in Bossiegr, Cbuisiana, and we own a combination harnesstrade and casino in southeas!
Pennsylvania in which the company, through varisubsidiary entities, owns a 99.5% interest in thétye licensed by the Pennsylva
Gaming Control Board. Generally, our slot operatian the lowa racetrack is regulated in the sameneraas our other gaming operation
lowa. In addition, regulations governing racetraakes typically administered separately from oureotilaming operations (except in lowa), \
separate licenses and license fee structures. X@nme, racing regulations may limit the numberdaf/s on which races may be held
Kentucky, we own and operate Bluegrass Downs, adsarracetrack located in Paducabh.

We have a 20% interest in Rock Ohio Caesars LLAGCR), a venture with Rock Ohio Ventures, LLC (formerly dRoGaming, LLC
(“Rock”). We divested our interests in Thistledo®Racetrack, LLC (“Thistledown”) a thoroughbred racetrack located in North Randaip,
which is regulated by the Ohio State Racing Comimisand subject to the same regulatory structutabéshed for all Ohio racing facilitie
ROC wholly owns the operation and once it commersletl operations, which are regulated by the Ohittdry Commission, we beg
managing the property for a fee under a manageaggaement that will expire on the 20th anniversdrygommencing such slot operations.

We divested our interest in Turfway Park LLC, owoérthe Turfway Park thoroughbred racetrack in Boa@ounty, to ROC. Turfw:
Park LLC also owns a minority interest in KentudRgpwns LLC, which is the owner of the Kentucky Dowrasetrack. These Kentuc
racetracks are licensed and regulated by the Kkytdorse Racing Commission and are subject to dneesregulatory structure establishec
all Kentucky racing facilities.

Internet

An affiliate of the Company, Caesars InteractiveeElinment, Inc., engages in lawful real moneyreninternet gaming activity in t
United Kingdom through two outside third party agers. This internet gaming is offered to residefitthe United Kingdom by the third pa
operators pursuant to licenses issued to theseatoperby the Gibraltar Regulatory Authority. Gilbealis a United Kingdom “white listed”
jurisdiction which allows operators to legally adige online gaming services in the United Kingddio.date, the key gaming regulat
authorities governing online internet gaming are @ibraltar Regulatory Authority, the Alderney Gdmg Control Commission and the Isle
Mann Gambling Supervision Commission. Italy andn€és also legalized online internet gaming by pevebmpanies and, in June 2(
Denmark passed legislation legalizing online inéérgaming. Caesars Interactive Entertainment, mecently entered into agreements 1
third parties for the use of the World Series okétobrand on online gaming websites in Italy andnée. In addition, the State of Nev
legalized real money online internet poker wittie State. The Nevada Gaming Control Board adopgdlations and established licen:
requirements for the operation of real money oniimernet poker in the State of Nevada. Caesaesdative Entertainment, Inc., obtained
appropriate licenses in Nevada and, pursuant édatianship with a third party software provideeld trial operation of its real money web:
began in __ The State of New Jersey also leghlieal money online internet gaming within the &tathe New Jersey regulators ado
regulations and established licensing requiremfemtshe operation of real money online internet gagrin the State of New Jersey. Cae
Interactive Entertainment, Inc., obtained the appate licenses in New Jersey and, pursuant tdioakhips with two third software provide
operation of its real money websites began in Ndam2013.




Lastly, we have "play for fun" offerings in otharrisdictions, social games on Facebook and otheialsmedia websites, and mot
application platforms.



